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BEFORE THE STATE AUDITOR AND COMMISSIONER OF INSURANCE 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the adoption of 
new rules for the administration 
and enforcement of laws regulating 
standards for companies considered 
to be in hazardous financial 
condition, regulating annual 
audited reports, regulating life 
and health reinsurance agreements, 
regulating reports by holding 
company systems, establishing 
accounting practices and 
procedures to be used in annual 
statements, regulating credit for 
reinsurance, including letters of 
credit, and establishing standards 
for valuation of insurer 
securities and other invested 
assets 

TO: All Interested Persons. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC 
HEARING 

1. on September 3, 1993, at 9:00 o'clock a.m., MDT, a 
public hearing will be held in the east conference room on the 
ground floor of the Mitchell Building, 126 North Roberts Street, 
Helena, Montana. The hearing will be to consider the proposed 
adoption of new rules pertaining to the administration and 
enforcement of laws regulating standards for companies 
considered to be in hazardous financial condition, regulating 
annual audited reports, regulating life and health reinsurance 
agreements, regulating reports by holding company systems, 
establishing accounting practices and procedures to be used in 
annual statements, regulating credit for reinsurance, including 
letters of credit, and establishing standards for valuation of 
insurer securities and other invested assets. 

2. The proposed new rules provide as follows: 

RULES REGARDING COMPANIES CONSIDERED TO BE IN HAZARDOUS 
FINANCIAL CONDITION 

RULE I STANDARDS FOR EVALUATING FINANCIAL CONDIT!ON OF 
REGULATED COMPANIES (1) The following standards or criteria, 
either singly or a combination of two or more, may be considered 
by the commissioner in determining whether the continued 
operation of any insurer transacting an insurance business in 
this state might be deemed to be hazardous to the policyholders, 
creditors or the general public: 

(a) Adverse findings reported in financial condition and 
market conduct examination reports; 

(b) The national association of insurance commissioners 
(NAIC) insurance regulatory information system and its related 
reports; 

~R ~otice ~o. 6-40 15-3/12/9] 
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(c) The ratios of commission expense, general insurance 
expe~se, policy benefits, and reserve increases to annual 
prem1um and net investment income which could lead to an 
impairment of capital and surplus; 

(d) Whether insurer's asset portfolio, when viewed in 
light of current economic conditions, is of sufficient value, 
liquidity, or diversity to assure the company's ability to meet 
its outstanding obligations as they mature; 

(e) The ability of an assuming reinsurer to perform, and 
whether the insurer's reinsurance program provides sufficient 
protection for the company's remaining surplus after taking into 
account the insurer's cash flow and the classes of business 
written, as well as the financial condition of the assuming 
reinsurer; 

(f) Whether the insurer's operating loss in the last 
twelve-month period or any shorter period of time, including but 
not limited to net capital gain or loss, change in non-admitted 
assets, and cash dividends paid to shareholders, is greater than 
fifty percent (50%) of the insurer's remaining surplus as 
regards policyholders in excess of the minimum required; 

(g) Whether any affiliate, subsidiary or reinsurer is 
insolvent, threatened with insolvency or delinquent in payment 
of its monetary or other obligations; 

(h) contingent liabilities, pledges, or guaranties which, 
either individually or collectively, involve a total amount 
#hich in the opinion of the commissioner may affect the solvency 
of the insurer; 

( i) Whether any "controlling person" of an insurer is 
delinquent in the transmitting to, or payment of, net premiums 
to such insurer; 

(j) The age and collectibility of receivables; 
(k) Whether the management of an insurer, including 

officers, directors, or any other person who directly or 
indirectly controls the operation of the insurer, fails to 
possess and demonstrate the competence, fitness, and reputation 
deemed necessary to serve the insurer in such position; 

(l) Whether management of an insurer has failed to respond 
to inquiries relative to the condition of the insurer or has 
furnished false and misleading information concerning an 
inquiry; 

(m) Whether management of an insurer either has filed any 
false or misleading sworn financial statement, or has released 
false or misleading financial statement to lending institutions 
or to the general public, or has made a false or misleading 
entry, or has omitted an entry of a material amount in the books 
of the insurer; 

(n) Whether the insurer has grown so rapidly and to such 
an extent that it lacks adequate financial and administrative 
capacity to meet its obligations in a timely manner; and 

(a) Whether the company has experienced or will experience 
in the foreseeable future cash flow and(or liquidity problems. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: JJ-2-1517, MCA 
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RULE II SCOPE OF COMMISSIONER'S DISCRETION (~) For the 
purposes of making a detenninat ion of an insurer's financial 
condition under this rule, the commissioner may: 

(a) Disregard any credit or amount receivable resulting 
from transactions with a reinsurer which is insolvent, impaired, 
or otherwise subject to a delinquency proceeding; 

(b) Make appropriate adjustments to asset values 
attributable to investments in or transactions with parents, 
subsidiaries, or affiliates; 

(c) Refuse to recognize the stated value of accounts 
receivable, if the ability to collect receivables is highly 
speculative in view of the age of tha account or the financial 
condition of the debtor; or 

(d) Increase the insurer's liability in an amount equal to 
any contingent liability, pledge, or guarantee f!Ot otherwise 
included, if there is a substantial risk that the insurer will 
be called upon to meet the obligation undertaken within the 
next twelve-month period. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517 1 MCA 

RULE III POSSIBLE AQMINISTBAIIVE SANCTIONS AGAINST 
COMPANIES IN HAZARDOUS CONDITION (1) If the commissioner 
determines that the continued operation of the insurer licensed 
to transact business in this state may be hazardous to the 
policyholders or the general public, then the commissioner may, 
upon such a determination, issue an order requiring the insurer 
to: 

(a) Reduce the total amount of present and potential 
liability for policy benefits by reinsurance; 

(b) Reduce, suspend, or limit the volume of business being 
accepted or renewed; 

(c) Reduce general insurance and commission expenses by 
specified methods; 

(d) Increase the insurer's capital and surplus; 
(e) Suspend or limit the declaration and payment of 

dividend by an insurer to its stockholders or to its 
policyholders; 

(f) File reports in a form acceptable to the commissioner 
concerning the market value of an insurer's assets; 

(g) Limit or withdraw from certain investments or 
discontinue certain investment practices to the extent the 
commissioner deems necessary; 

(h) Document the adequacy of premium rates in relation to 
the risks insured; 

(i) File, in addition to regular annual statements, 
interim financial reports on the form adopted by the national 
association of insurance commissioners or in such format as 
promulgated by the commissioner. 

AUTH: 
IMP: 

33-1-313 1 JJ-2-1321, and 33-2-1517, MCA 
33-2-1321 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
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RULE IV ADMINIStRATIVE REMEDIES AVAILABLE TO INSUBERS 
( 1) Any insurer subject to an order under Rule III may 

request a hearing or appeal from the order pursuant to 33-2-
1321, MCA. 

AUTH: 33-1-313, 33-2-1321, and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1321 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULES REGARDING ANNUAL AUDITED REPORTS 

RULE V QEFINITIONS ( 1) For the purposes of this 
subchapter, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings: 

(a) "Audited financial report" means and includes those 
items specified in Rule VIII. 

(b) "Accountant" and "Independent Certified Public 
Accountant" means an independent certified public accountant or 
accounting firm in good standing with the American institute of 
CPAs (AICPA) and in all states in which they are licensed to 
practice; for canadian and British companies, it means a 
Canadian-chartered or British-chartered accountant. 

(c) "Insurer" means a licensed insurer as defined in 33-1-
201 and 33-2-1501, MCA, or an authorized insurer as defined in 
33-1-201, MCA. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE VI PURPOSE AND SCOPE (1) The purpose of this rule 
is to improve the surveillance of the financial condition of 
insurers by the department of insurance of the state of Montana 
by requiring annual examinations by independent certified public 
accountants of the financial statements reporting the financial 
position and the results of operations of insurers. 

(2) Except as specifically provided herein, every insurer 
shall be subject to these rules. Insurers having direct 
premiums written in this state of less than $1,000,000 in any 
calendar year and less than 1,000 policyholders or 
certificateholders of directly written policies nationwide at 
the end of such calendar year shall be exempt from these rules 
for such year (unless the commissioner makes a specific finding 
that compliance is necessary for the commissioner to carry out 
statutory responsibilities). Insurers having assumed premi~ 
pursuant to contracts and/or treaties of reinsurance oi 
~1,000,000 or more will not be exempt. 

(3) Foreign or alien insurers filing audited financial 
reports in another state, pursuant to such other state's 
requirement of audited financial reports which has been found by 
the commissioner to be substantially similar to the requirements 
herein, are exempt from these rules if: 

(a) A copy of the audited financial report, report on 
significant deficiencies in internal controls, and the 
accountant's letter of qualifications which are filed with such 
other state are filed with the commissioner in accordance with 
the filing dates specified in Rules VII, XIII, and XIV, 

15-3/12/93 MAR ~otice ~o. 6-40 
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respectively (Canadian insurers may submit accountants' reports 
as filed with the Canadian Dominion Department of Insurance) . 

(b) A copy of any notification of adverse financial 
condition report filed with such other state is filed with the 
commissioner within the time specified in Rule XI. This rule 
does not prohibit, preclude or in any way limit the commissioner 
from ordering and/or conducting and!or performing examinations 
of insurers under the rules, regulations, practices, and 
procedures of the department. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE 'iii FILING ANP EXTENSIONS FOR FILING OF ANNUAL 
AUD!TEP FlN'ANCIAL REPORTS ( 1) All insurers shall have an 
annual audi~ by an independent certified public accountant and 
shall file an audited financial report with the commissioner on 
or before June 1 for the year ended December 31 immediately 
preceding. Upon 90 days advance notice, for good cause, the 
commissioner may require an insurer to file an audited financial 
report earlier than June 1. 

(2) Extensions of the June 1 filing date may be granted by 
the commissioner for thirty-day periods upon showing by the 
insurer and its independent certified public accountant of good 
cause for an extension. Request for extension must be submitted 
in writing not less than 10 days prior to the due date and must 
be in sufficient detail to permit the commissioner to make an 
informed decision with respect to the requested extension. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517 1 MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE VIII CONTENTS OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL 8EPORT 
(1) The annual audited financial report shall report the 

financial position of the insurer as of the end of the most 
recent calendar year and the results of its operations, cash 
flows and changes in capital and surplus for the year then 
ended, all in conformity with statutory accounting practices 
prescribed, or otherwise permitted, by the department of 
insurance of the state of domicile. 

(2) The annual audited financial report shall include the 
following: 

(a) Report of independent certified public accountant. 
(b) Balance sheet reporting admitted assets, liabilities, 

capital, and surplus. 
(c) Statement of operations. 
{d) Statement of cash flows. 
(e) Statement of changes in capital and surplus. 
(f) Notes to financial statements. These notes must be 

the same as those required by the appropriate national 
association of insurance commissioners annual statement 
instructions and any other notes required by generally accepted 
accounting principles and must also include: 

{i) A reconciliation of differences, if any, between the 
audited statutory financial statements and the annual statement 

~-R ~otice ~o. 6-40 15-8/12/93 
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filed pursuant to sections 33-2-701, 33-4-313, 33-7-lla, 33-30-
107, and 33-31-211, MCA. 

(ii) A summary of ownership and relationships of the 
insurer and all affiliated companies. 

(g) The financial statements included in the audited 
financial report shall be prepared in a form, and using language 
and groupings substantially the same as the relevant sections of 
the annual statement of the insurer filed with the commissioner, 
and the financial statement must be comparative, presenting the 
amounts as of December 31 of the current year and the amounts as 
of the immediately preceding December 31. In the first year in 
which an insurer is required to file an audited financial 
report, the comparative data may be omitted. 

AUTH: 
IMP: 

33-1-313, 33-2-1517, and 33-5-413, MCA 
33-2-1517 and JJ-5-413, MCA 

RULE IX DESIGNATION OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANT (1) Each insurer required by these rules to file an 
annual audited financial report must, within 60 days after 
becoming subject to such requirement, register with the 
commissioner in writing the name and address of the independent 
certified public accountant or accounting firm retained to 
conduct the annual audited required by these rules. Insurers 
not retaining an independent certified public accountant on the 
effective date of this rule shall register the name and address 
of their retained certified public accountant not less than 6 
months before the date when the first audited financial report 
is to be filed. 

(2) The insurer shall obtain a letter from the accountant, 
and file a copy with the commissioner, stating that the 
accountant is aware of the provisions of Title 33, MCA, and the 
administrative rules of the department that relate to accounting 
and financial matters, and affirming that he will express his 
opinion on the financial statements in terms of their conformity 
with the statutory accounting practices prescribed or otherwise 
permitted by that department, specifying such exceptions as he 
may believe appropriate. 

( 3) If an accountant who was the accountant for the 
immediately preceding filed audited financial report is 
dismissed or resigns, the insurer shall within 5 business days 
notify the department of this event. The insurer shall also 
furnish the commissioner with a separate letter within 10 
business days of the above notification, stating whether in the 
24 months preceding such event there were any disagreements with 
the former accountant on any matters of accounting principles or 
practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or 
procedure; which disagreements, if not resolved to the 
satisfaction of the former accountant, would have caused him to 
make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in 
connection with his opinion. The disagreements required to be 
reported in response to this rule include both those resolved ~o 
the farmer accountant's satisfaction and those not resolved to 
the former accountant's satisfaction. Disagreements 

lS-a/12/93 MAR Notice No. 6-40 
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contemplated by this rule are those that occur at the decision­
making level, that is between personnel of the insurer 
responsible for presentation of its financial statements and 
personnel of the accounting firm responsible for rendering its 
report. The insurer shall also in writing request such former 
accountant to furnish a letter addressed to the insurer stating 
whether the accountant agrees with the statements contained in 
the insurer's letter and, if not, stating the reasons for which 
he does not agree; and the insurer shall furnish such responsive 
letter from the former accountant to the commissioner, together 
with its own. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA !~: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE X QUALIFICATIONS OF INQEPENPENT CERTiflEP PUBLIC 
ACCOQNIANT (1) The commissioner shall not recognize any person 
or firm as a qualified independent: certified public accountant 
that is not in good standing with t.he AlCPA and in all states in 
which the accountant is licensed tc> practice, or, for a Canadian 
or British company, that is not a chartered accountant. 

( 2) Except as otherwise provided herein, an independent 
certified public accountant shall be recognized as qualified as 
long as he or she conforms to t:he standards of his or her 
profession, as contained in the code of professional ethics of 
the AICPA and rules and regulations and code of ethics and rules 
of professional conduct of th•~ Montana board of public 
accountants or its counterparts in sister states. 

( 3) No partner or other per~; on responsible for rendering 
a report may act in that capacity for more than 7 consecutive 
years. Following any period of service such person shall be 
disqualified from acting in that or a similar capacity for the 
same company or its insurance subsidiaries or affiliates for a 
period of 2 consecutive years. Art insurer may make application 
to the commissioner for relief from the above rotation 
requirement on the basis of unusual circumstances. The 
commissioner may consider the following factors in determining 
whether relief should be granted: 

(a) Number of partners, expertise of the partners or the 
number of insurance clients in the currently registered firm; 

(b) Premium volume of the insurer; and 
(c) Number of jurisdictions in which the insurer transacts 

business. 
(4) The commissioner shall not recog~ize as a qualified 

independent certified public accountant, nor accept any annual 
audited financial report prepared in whole or in part, by any 
natural person who: 

(a) Has been convicted of fraud, bribery, a violation of 
the Racketeer Influenced and C1orrupt Organizations Act, 18 
u.s.c. Sections 1961-1968, or any dishonest conduct or practices 
under federal or state law; 

(b) Has been found to have violated the insurance laws of 
this state with respect to any previous reports submitted under 
this rule; or 

~~R Notice No. 6-40 15-d/12/93 
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(c) Has demonstrated a pattern or practice of failing to 
detect or disclose material information in previous reports 
filed under the provisions of this rule. 

(5) The commissioner may hold a hearing pursuant to 33-1-
701, MCA, to determine whether a certified public accountant is 
qualified and, after considering the evidence and arguments 
presented, may decide whether the accountant is qualified to 
express his opinion on the financial statements in the annual 
audited financial report filed pursuant to these rules and may 
require the insurer to replace the accountant with another whose 
relationship with the insurer is qualified within the meaning of 
these rules. 

AUTH: 
IMP: 

33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
33-1-701 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XI CONSOLIDATED OR COMBINED AUPITS (1} An insurer 
may make written application to the commissioner for authority 
to file audited consolidated or combined financial statements in 
lieu of separate annual audited financial statements, if the 
insurer is part of a group of insurance companies which utilizes 
a pooling, or one hundred percent reinsurance, agreement that 
affects the solVency and integrity of the insurer's reserves and 
such insurer cedes all of its direct and assumed business to the 
pool. In such cases, a columnar consolidating or combining 
worksheet shall be filed with the report:, as follows: 

(a) Amounts shown on the consolidated or combined audited 
financial report shall be shown on the worksheet. 

(b) Amounts for each insurer subject to this section shall 
be stated separately. 

(c) Noninsurance operations may be shown on the worksheet 
on a combined or individual basis. 

(d) Explanations of consolidating and eliminating entries 
shall be included. 

(e) A reconciliation shall be included of any differences 
between the amounts shown in the individual insurer columns of 
the worksheet and comparable amounts shown on the annual 
statements of the insurers. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XII SCOPE OF EXAMINATION AND REPORT OF INDEPENDENT 
cgRTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOlJNTA.NT ( 1} Financial statements furnished 
pursuant to Rule IV hereof shall be examined by an independent 
certified public accountant. The examination of the insurer's 
financial statements shall be conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards. Consideration should 
also be given to such other procedures illustrated in the 
Financial Condition Examiner's Handbook promulgated by the NAIC, 
as the independent certified public accountant deems necessary. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: JJ-2-1517, MCA 
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RULE XIII NOTIFICATION OF ADVERSE FINANCIAL CONDITION 
( 1) The insurer required to furnish the annua 1 audited 

financial report shall require the independent certified public 
accountant to report, in writing, within 5 business days to the 
board of directors or its audit committee any determination by 
the independent certified public accountant that the insurer has 
materially misstated its financial condition as reported to the 
commissioner, as of the balance sheet date currently under 
examination, or that the insurer does not meet the minimum 
capital and surplus requirement of 33-2-109, 33-2-110, 33-4-401, 
33-5-401, 33-30-201, and 33-31-216(9), MCA, as of that date. An 
insurer who has received a report pursuant to this rule shall 
forward a copy of the report to the commissioner within 5 
business days of receipt of such report, and shall provide the 
independent certified public accountant making the report with 
evidence of the report being furnished to the commissioner. If 
the independent certified public accountant fails to receive 
such evidence within the required 5-business-day period, the 
independent certified public accountant shall furnish to the 
commissioner a copy of its report within the next 5 business 
days. 

(2) If the accountant, subsequent to the date of the 
audited financial report filed pursuant to this rule, becomes 
aware of facts which might have affected his report, it has the 
obligation to take such action as prescribed in Volume 1, 
Section AU 561 of the Professional Standards of the AICPA. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517 1 MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XIV REPQRT ON SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL 
CONTROLS ( 1) In addition to the annual audited financial 
statements, each insurer shall furnish the commissioner with a 
•.tritten report prepared by the accountant, describing 
significant deficiencies in the insurer's internal control 
structure noted by the accountant during the audit, in 
accordance with SAS No. 60, "Communication of Internal Control 
Structure Matters Noted in an Audit" (AU section 325 of the 
professional standards of the AICPA, which requires an 
accountant to communicate significant deficiencies (called 
"reportable conditions") noted during a financial statement 
audit to the appropriate parties within an entity. No report 
should be issued if the accountant does not identify significant 
deficiencies. If significant deficiencies are noted, the 
written report must be filed annually by the insurer with the 
department within 10 days after the filing of the annual audited 
financial statements. The insurer shall provide a description 
of remedial actions taken or proposed to correct significant 
deficiencies, if such actions are not described in the 
accountant's report. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 
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RULE XV ACCOUNTANT'S LETTER OF QUALIFICATIONS 
(l) The accountant shall furnish the insurer in connection 

with, and for inclusion in, the filing of the annual audited 
financial report, a letter stating: 

(a) That the accountant is independent with respect to the 
~nsurer and conforms to the standards of his or her profession 
as contained in the code of professional ethics and 
pronouncements of the AICPA and the rules of professional 
conduct of the Montana board of public accountants or its 
applicable counterpart in a sister state. 

(b) The background and experience in general, and the 
experience in audits of insurers of the staff assigned to the 
engagement, and whether each is an independent certified public 
.~ccountant. Nothing within these rules shall be construed as 
prohibiting the accountant from utilizing such staff as he or 
she deems appropriate where use is consistent with the standards 
prescribed by generally accepted auditing standards. 

(c) That the accountant understands the annual audited 
:inanc~al report and his or her opinion thereon will be filed in 
compliance with these rules and that the commissioner will be 
relying on this information in the monitoring and regulation of 
the financial position of insurers. 

(d) That the accountant consents to the requirements of 
Rule XII and that the accountant consents and agrees to make 
available for review by the commissioner, his desJ.gnee or his 
~ppoinred agent, the workpapers, as defined in Rule XII. 

!~) A representation that the accountant is properly 
licensed by an appropriate state licensing authority and 1s a 
member in good standing in the AICPA. 

(f.) A representation that the accountant is in compliance 
with the requirements of Rule X Of these rules. 

AUTH: 33-l-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XVI DEFINITION, AVAILABILITY. AND MAINTENANCE OF CPA 
WOJ3.KPAPERS ( l) workpapers are the records kept by the 
independent certified public accountant of the procedures 
fallowed, the tests performed, the information obtained, and the 
conclusions reached pertinent to his examination of the 
financial statements of an insurer. Workpapers, accordingly, 
may include audit planning documentation, work programs, 
analyses, memoranda, letters of confirmation aod representation, 
abstracts of company documents and schedules or commentaries 
prepared or obtained by the independent certified public 
accountant in the course of his or her examination of the 
financial statements of an insurer and which support his or her 
opinion thereof. 

(2) Every insurer required to file an audited financial 
report pursuant to these rules shall require the accountant to 
make available for review by department examiners, all 
workpapers prepared in the conduct of his or her examination and 
any communications related to the audit between the accountant 
and the insurer, at the offices of the insurer, at the 
department, or at any other reasonable place designated by the 
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commissioner. The insurer shall require that the accountant 
retain the audit workpapers and communications until the 
department has filed a report on examination covering the period 
of the audit, but no longer than 7 years from the date of the 
audit report. 

(3) In the conduct of the afo~ementioned periodic review 
by the department examiners, photocopies of pertinent audit 
workpapers may be made and retained by the department. such 
reviews by the department examiners shall be considered 
investigations and all working papers and communications 
obtained during the course of such investigations shall be 
afforded the same confidentiality as other examination 
workpapers generated by the department. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XVII EXEMPTIONS AND EFFECTIVE DATES ( 1) Upon 
written application of any insurer, the commissioner may grant 
an exemption from compliance with these rules if the 
commissioner finds, upon review of the application, that 
compliance with this rule would constitute a financial or 
organizational hardship upon the insurer. An exemption may be 
granted at any time and from time to time for a specified period 
or periods. Within 10 days from a denial of an insurer's 
written request for an exemption from this rule, such insurer 
may make a written request for a hearing on its application for 
an exemption. Such hearing shall be held in accordance with 33-
1-701, MeA. 

(2) Domestic insurers retaining certified public 
accountants on the effective date of this rule who qualify as 
independent shall comply with these rules for the year ending 
December 31, 1993, and each year thereafter unless the 
commissioner permits otherwise. 

(3) Domestic insurers not retaining certified pUblic 
accountants on the effective date of these rules who qualify as 
independent may meet the following schedule for compliance, 
unless the commissioner permits otherwise. 

(a) As of December 31, 1993, file with the commissioner: 
(i) A report of an independent certified public 

accountant; 
(ii) Audited balance sheets; and 
(iii) Notes to audited balance sheet. 
(b) For the year ending December 31, 1994, and each year 

thereafter, such insurers shall file with the commissioner all 
reports required by these rules. 

(4} Foreign insurers shall comply with these rules for the 
year ending December 31, 1993, and each year thereafter, unless 
the commissioner permits otherwise. 

AUTH: 
IMP: 

33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
33-1-701 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
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RULE XVIII CAflA!)IAN AND BRITISH COMPAHIES ( l) In the 
case of canadian and British insurers, the annual audited 
financial report must be defined as the annual statement of 
total business on the form filed by such companies with their 
domiciliary supervision authority, duly audited by an 
independent chartered accountant. 

(2) For such insurers, the letter required in Rule IX must 
state that the accountant is aware of the requirements relating 
to the annual audited statement filed with the commissioner 
pursuant to Rule VII and must affirm that the opinion expressed 
is in conformity with such requirements. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MeA 

RULES REGULATING LIFE AND HEALTH REINSURANCE AGREEMENTS 

RULE XIX SCOPE QF RULES ( 1) These rules apply to all 
domestic life and accident and health insurers and to all other 
licensed life and accident and health insurers which are not 
subject to a substantially similar regulation in their 
domiciliary state. These rules also apply to licensed property 
and casualty insurers with respect to their accident and health 
business. These rules do not apply to assumption reinsurance, 
yearly renewable term reinsurance or certain nonproportional 
reinsurance such as stop-loss or catastrophe reinsurance. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: JJ-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XX ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS (1) No insurer subject 
to these rules may, for reinsurance ceded, reduce any liability 
or establish any asset in any financial statement filed with the 
department if, by the terms of the reinsurance agreement, in 
substance or effect, any of the following conditions exist: 

(a) Renewal expense allowances provided or to be provided 
to the ceding insurer by the reinsurer in any accounting period, 
are not sufficient to cover anticipated allocable renewal 
expenses of the ceding insurer on the portion of the business 
reinsured, unless a liability is established for the present 
value of the shortfall (using assumptions equal to the 
applicable statutory reserve basis on the business reinsured) . 
Renewal expenses include commissions, premium taxes, and direct 
expenses including, but not limited to, billing, valuation, 
claims, and maintenanc.e expected by the company at the time the 
business is reinsured; 

(b) The ceding insurer can be deprived of surplus or 
assets at the reinsurer's option or automatically upon the 
occurrence of some event, such as the insolvency of the ceding 
insurer, except that termination of the reinsurance agreement by 
the reinsurer for nonpayment of reinsurance premiums or other 
amounts due, such as modified coinsurance reserve adjustments, 
interest and adjustments on funds withheld, and tax 
reimbursements, shall not be considered to be such a deprivation 
of surplus or assets; 
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(c) The ceding insurer is required to reimburse the 
reinsurer for negative experience under the reinsurance 
agreement, except that neither offsetting experience refunds 
against current and prior years' losses under the agreement nor 
payment by the ceding insurer of an amount equal to the current 
and prior years' losses under the agreement upon voluntary 
termination of in-force reinsurance by the ceding insurer shall 
be considered such a reimbursement to the insurer for negative 
experience. Voluntary termination does not include situations 
where termination occurs because of unreasonable provisions 
which allow the reinsurer to reduce its risk under the 
agreement; 

(d) The ceding insurer must, at specific points in time 
scheduled in the agreelllent, terminate, or automatically 
recapture all or part of the reinsurance ceded; 

(e) The reinsurance agreement involves the possible 
payment by the ceding insurer to the reinsurer of amounts other 
than from income realized from the reinsured policies; 

(f) The agreement does not involve transfer of all of the 
significant risk inherent in the business being reinsured. 

(i) Significant risks include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

(A) Morbidity. 
(B) Mortality. 
(C) The risk that a policy will voluntarily terminate 

prior to the recoupment of a statutory surplus strain 
experienced at issue of the policy (lapse risk). 

(0) The risk that invested assets supporting the reinsured 
business will decrease in value, the main hazards being that 
assets will default or that there will be a decrease in earning 
power (credit quality risk). This risk excludes market value 
declines due to changes in interest rate. 

(E) The risk that interest rates 
reinvested (coupon payments or monies 
maturity or call) will therefore earn 
(reinvestment risk). 

will fall and funds 
received upon asset 
less than expected 

(F) The risk that interest rates rise and policy loans and 
surrenders increase or maturing contracts do not renew at 
anticipated rates of renewal (disintermediation risk). 

(ii) Risk categories for types of insurance covered by 
these rules are summarized in the following chart: (+ denotes 
significant risk; 0 denotes insignificant risk.) 

LINES OF INSURANCE A B c D E F 

Health Insurance--other than LTC/LTD* + 0 + 0 0 0 

Health Insurance--LTC/LTD* + 0 + + + 0 

Immediate Annuities 0 + 0 + + 0 

single Premium Deferred Annuities 0 0 + + + + 

Flexible Premium Deferred Annuities 0 0 + + + + 
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LINES OF INSURANCE A 8 c D E F 

Guaranteed Interest Contracts 0 0 0 ... .. + 

Other Annuity Deposit Business 0 0 ;. ;. ;. ... 
Single Premium Whole Lite 0 ;. ;. ;. ;. ;. 

Traditional Non-Par Permanent 0 + ;. ;. + + 

Traditional Non-Par Term 0 + + 0 0 0 

Traditional Par Permanent 0 + + ... + ;. 

Traditional Par Term 0 + + 0 0 0 

Adjustable Premium Permanent 0 ;. ;. + + + 

Indeterminate Premium Permanent 0 + + + + + 

Universal Life Flexible Premium 0 + + ;. ... ;. 

Universal Life Fixed Premium 0 + + + + 

Universal Life Fixed Premium 0 + + + ,. ... 

*LTC = Long Term Care Insurance 
LTD = Long Term Disability Insurance 

(g) The credit quality, reinvestment, or disintermediation 
risk is significant for the business reinsured and the ceding 
company does not [other than for the classes of business 
excepted in (i) below] either transfer the underlying assets to 
the reinsurer or legally segregate such assets in a trust or 
escrow account or otherwise establish a mechanism satisfactory 
to the commissioner which legally segregates, by contract or 
contract provision, the underlying assets. 

(i) Notwithstanding the requirements of (1) (g), the assets 
supporting the reserves for the following classes of business 
and any classes of business which do not have a significant 
credit quality, reinvestment or disintermediation risk may be 
held by the ceding company without segregation of such assets: 

(A) Health Insurance--LTC/LTD; 
(B) Traditional Non-Par Permanent; 
(C) Traditional Par Permanent; 
(D) Adjustable Premium Permanent; 
(E) Indeterminate Premium Permanent; 
(F) Universal Life Fixed Premium (exclusive of dumped-in 

premiums). 
( ii) Ariy formula for determining reserve interest rate 

adjustment must be one which reflects the ceding company's 
investment earnings and incorporates all realized and unrealized 
gains and losses reflected in the statement. 

(h) Settlements are made less frequently than quarterly or 
payments due from the reinsurer are not made in cash within 90 
days of the settlement date. 
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(i) The ceding insurer is required to make representations 
or warranties not reasonably related to the business being 
reinsured. 

(j) The ceding insurer is required to make representations 
or warranties about future performance of the business being 
reinsured. 

(k) The reinsurance agreement· is entered into for the 
principal purpose of producing significant surplus aid for the 
ceding insurer, typically on a temporary basis, while not 
transferring all of the significant risks inherent in the 
business reinsured and, in substance or effect, the expected 
potential liability to the ceding insurer remains basically 
unchanged. 

(2) Notwithstanding subsection (1), an insurer subject to 
this rule may, with the prior approval of the commissioner, take 
such reserve credit or establish such asset as the commissioner 
may deem consistent with the Montana insurance code and rules of 
the department, including actuarial interpretations or standards 
adopted by the department. 

(3) Agreements entered into after the effective date of 
these rules which involve the reinsurance of business issued 
prior to the effective date of the agreements, along with any 
subsequent amendments thereto, shall be filed by the ceding 
company with the commissioner within 30 days from the date of 
execution. Each filing shall include data detailing the 
financial impact of the transaction. The ceding insurer's 
actuary who signs the financial statement actuarial opinion with 
respect to valuation of reserves shall consider these rules and 
applicable actuarial standards of practice when determining the 
proper credit in financial statements filed with the department. 
The actuary shall maintain adequate documentation and be 
prepared to describe the actuarial work performed for inclusion 
in the financial statements and to demonstrate that his or her 
work conforms to these rules. 

(a) Any increase in surplus net of federal income tax 
resulting from arrangements described in this subsection shall 
be identified separately on the insurer's statutory financial 
statement as a surplus item (aggregate write-ins for gains and 
losses in surplus in the capital and surplus account of the 
annual statement) and recognition of the surplus increase as 
income shall be reflected on a net of tax basis on the line 
captioned "reserve adjustments on reinsurance ceded" of the 
annual statement, as earnings emerge from the business 
reinsured. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and JJ-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXI WRITTEN AGREEH~NT (1) No reinsurance agree~ent 
or amendment to any agreement may be used to reduce any 
liability or to establisn any asset in any financial statement 
filed with the department, unless the agreement, amendment or a 
binding letter of intent has been duly executed by both parties 
no later than the "as of date" of the financial statement. 
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( 2) In the case of a letter of intent, a reinsurance 
agreement or an amen<iment to a reinsurance agreement must ·be 
executed within a reasonable period of time, not exceeding 90 
days from the execution date of the letter of intent, in order 
for credit to be granted for the reinsurance ceded. 

(3) The reinsurance agreement must contain provisions to 
the effect that: 

(a) The agreement constitutes the entire agreement batweP.n 
the parties with respect to the business being reinsured 
thereunder and that there are no understandings between the 
parties other than as expressed in the agreement; and 

(b) Any change or modification to the agreement iS null 
and void unless made by amendment to the agreement and signed by 
both parties. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXII EXISTING AGREEMENTS Insurers subject to these 
rules must reduce to zero by December 31, 1995, any reserve 
credits or assets established with respect to reinsurance 
agreements entered into prior to the effective date of these 
rules which, under the provisions of these rules would not be 
entitled to recognition of the reserve credits or assets; 
provided, however, that the reinsurance agreements must have 
been in compliance with laws or regulations in existence 
;mmediately preceding the effective date of these rules. 

AUTH: JJ-l-313 and JJ-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULES REGARDING REPORTING BY HOLDING COMPANY SYSTEMS 

RQJ<E XXIII DEFINITIONS (1) For the purposes of this 
subchapter, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings: 

(a) "Executive officer" means chief executive officer, 
chief operating officer, chief financial officer, treasurer, 
secretary, controller, and any other individual performing 
funct:ions corresponding to those performed by the foregoing 
officers under whatever title. 

(b) "Foreign insurer" shall include an alien insurer, 
except where clearly noted otherwise. 

(c) "Ultilnate controlling person" means that person which 
is not controlled by any other person. 

( 2) Unless the context otherwise requires, other terms 
found in these rules are used as defined in 33-1-201, 202, and 
1101, MCA. Other nomenclature or terminology is according to 
the Montana insurance code, or industry usage if not defined by 
the Code. 

AUTH: JJ-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA IMP: 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXIV FORMS--GENERAL REQUIREMENTS (1) Forms A, B, C, 
and D are intended to be guides in the preparation of the 
statements required by 33-2-1104, 33-2-1111, and JJ-2-1113, 
MCA. 

:5-8/!2/93 MAR ~ot~ce No. 6-40 



-1 i42-

They are not intended to be blank forms which are to be filled 
in. The statements filed must contain the numbers and captions 
of all items, but the text of the items may be omitted, provided 
the answers thereto are prepared in such a manner as to indicate 
clearly the scope and coverage of the items. All instructions, 
whether appearing under the items of the form or elsewhere 
therein, are to be omitted. Unless expressly provided 
otherwise, if any item is inapplicable or the answer thereto is 
in the negative, an appropriate statement to that effect shall 
be made. 

(2) One complete copy of each statement including exhibits 
and all other papers and documents filed as a part thereof, must 
be filed with the commissioner by personal delivery or mail 
addressed to the commissioner of insurance of the state of 
Montana. A copy of Form c shall be filed in each state in which 
an insurer is authoril!:ed to do business, if the insurance 
regulator of that state has notified the insurer of its request 
in writing, in which case the insurer has JO days from receipt 
of the notice to file such form. At least one of the copies 
shall be manually signed in the manner prescribed on the form. 
Unsigned copies must be conformed. If the signature of any 
person is affixed pursuant to a power of attorney or other 
similar authority, a copy of such power of attorney or other 
authority must also be filed with the statement. 

(3) Statements should be prepared on paper 8 l/2 11 x ll" 
(or 8 l/2" x 14 11 ) in size and preferably bound at the top or the 
top left-hand corner. Exhibits and financial statements, unless 
specifically prepared for the filing, may be submitted in their 
original size. All copies of all statements, financial 
statements, and exhibits must be clear, easily readable and 
suitable for photocopying. Debits in credit categories and 
credits in debit categories must be designated so as to be 
clearly distinguishable as such on photocopies. Statements must 
be in the English language arid monetary values must be stated in 
United States currency. If any exhibit or other paper or 
document filed with the statement is in a foreign language, it 
must be accompanied by a translation into the English language 
and any monetary value shown in a foreign currency normally 
shall be converted into United states currency. 

AUTH: JJ-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1104, JJ-2-1111, 33-2-1113, and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXV FOBMS--INCORPOBATION BY REFERENCE, SUMMABIES. AND 
OMISSIONS (1) Information required by any item of Farm A, 
Form B, or Form 0 may be incorporated by reference in answer or 
partial answer to any other item. Information contained in any 
financial statement, annual report, proxy statement, statement 
filed with a governmental authority, or any other document may 
be incorporated by reference in answer or partial answer to any 
item of Form A, Form B, or Form D provided such document or 
paper is filed as an exhibit to the statement. Excerpts of 
documents may be filed as exhibits if the documents are 
extensive. Documents currently on file with the commissioner 
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which were filed within three years need not be attached as 
exhibits. References to information contained in exhibits or in 
documents already on file must clearly identify the material and 
shall specifically indicate that such material is to be 
incorporated by reference in answer to the item. Matter must 
not be incorporated by reference in any case where such 
incorporation would render the statement incomplete, unclear, or 
confusing. 

(2) Where an item requires a summary or outline of the 
provisions of any document, only a brief statement must be made 
as to the pertinent provisions of the document. In addition to 
such statement, the summary or outline may incorporate by 
reference particular parts of any exhibit or document'currently 
on file with the commiss·ioner which was filed within three years 
and may be qualified in its entirety by such reference. In any 
case where two or more docmnents required to be filed as 
exhibits are substantially identical in all material respects 
except as to the parties thereto, the dates of execution, or 
other details, a copy of only one of such documents need be 
filed with a schedule identifying the omitted documents and 
setting forth the material details in which such documents 
differ from the documents a copy of which is filed. 

AUTH: 33-l-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1104, 33-2-1511, 33-2-1113, and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXVI FQRMS--INFOBMATION UNKNOWN OR UNAVAILABLE AND 
EXTENSION OF TIME TO FURNISH (1) Information required need be 
given only insofar as it is known or reasonably available to the 
person filing the statement. If any required information is 
unknown and not reasonably available to the person filing, 
either because the obtaining thereof would involve unreasonable 
effort or expense, or because it rests peculiarly within the 
knowledge of another person not affiliated with the person 
filing, the information may be omitted, subject to the following 
conditions: 

(a) The person filing shall give such information on the 
subject as it possesses or can acquire without unreasonable 
effort or expense, together with the sources thereof; and 

(b) The person filing shall include a statement either 
showing that unreasonable effort or expense would be involved or 
indicating the absence of any affiliation with the person within 
•,;hose knowledge the information rests and stating the result of 
a request made to such person for the information. 

(2) If it is impractical to furnish any required 
information, document, or report at the time it is required to 
be filed, there may be filed with the commissioner a separate 
document: 

(a) identifying the information, document, or report in 
question; 

(b) stating why the 
impractical; and 

(c) requesting an 
information, document, or 
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(J) The request for extension will be deemed granted 
unless the commissioner ·.dthin 30 days after receipt thereof 
notifies the person that the request is denied. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1104, 33-2-1111, 33-2-1113, and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXVII FORHS--ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND EXHIBITS 
(1) In addition to the information expressly required to 

be included in Form A, Form B, Form C, and Form D, there must be 
added such further material information, if any, as may be 
necessary to make the information contained therein no~ 
misleading. The person filing may also file such exhibits as it 
may desire in addition to those expressly required by the 
statelllent. such exhibits must be so marked as to indicate 
clearly the subject matters to which they refer. Changes to 
Forms A, B, c, or D must include on the top of the coverage page 
the phrase: "Change No. (insert number) to" and must indicate 
the date of the change and not the date of the original filing. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1104, 33-2-1111, 33-2-1113, and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXVIII FILING OF FORM A. REGARDING ACQUISITION OR 
COHTROL (1) A person required to file a statement pursuant to 
33-2-1104, MCA, shall furnish the required information on Form 
A, hereby made a part of these rules. 

AUTH: 
IMP: 

33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
33-2-1104 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXIX AME«DMENTS ;o fORM A (1) The applicant shall 
promptly advise the comm~ss~oner of any changes in the 
information so furnished on Form A arising subsequent to the 
date upon which such information was furnished but prior to the 
commissioner's disposition of the application. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1104 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXX REPORTING ACQUISITION QF DOMESTIC INSURERS 
(1) If the person being acquired is deemed to be a 

"domestic insurer" solely because of the provisions of 33-2-
1104, MCA, the name of the domestic insurer on the cover page 
should be indicated as follows: 

"ABC Insurance Company, a subsidiary of XYZ Holding Company." 
(2) Where a domestic is being acquired, references to "the 

insurer" contained in Form A must refer to both the domestic 
subsidiary insurer and the person being acquired. 

AUTH: 
IMP: 

33-l-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
33-2-1104 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
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RULE XXXI FILING Of FORM B--ANNYAL R£GISTBATION QF 
INSURERS (1) An insurer required to file an annual 
registration statement pursuant to 33-2-1111(2), MCA, shall 
furnish the required information on form B, hereby made a part 
of these rules. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1111 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXII AMENDMENTS TO FORM B (1) An amendment to Form 
B must be filed within 15 days after the end of any month in 
which there is a material change to the information provided in 
the annual registration statement. 

(2) Amendments must be filed in the Form 8 format with 
only those items which are being amended reported. Each such 
amendment must include at the top of the cover page "Amendment 
No. (insert number) to Form B for (insert year)" and must 
indicate the date of the change and not the date of the original 
filings. 

AUTH: JJ-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MeA 
IMP: JJ-2-1111 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXIII SQMMARX OF REGISTBATION--STATEMENT FILING 
(1) An insurer required to file an annual registration 

statement pursuant to 33-2-1111(2), MCA, is also required ::a 
furnish information required on Farm c, hereby made a part of 
these regulations. An insurer shall file a copy of Form C in 
each state in '"hich the insurer is authorized to do business, if 
t:equested by the commissioner of that state. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1111 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RQLE XXXIV ALTERNATIVE AND CONSOLIDATED REGISTRATIONS 
(1) Any authorized insurer may file a registration 

statement on behalf of any affiliated insurer or insurers which 
are required to register under 33-2-1111, MCA. A registration 
statement may include information not required by 33-2-1111, 
MCA, regarding any insurer in the insurance holding company 
system even if such insurer is not authorized to do business in 
this state. In lieu of filing a registration statement on Form 
B, the authorized insurer may file a copy of the registration 
statement or similar report which it is required in its state of 
domicile, provided: 

(a) the statement or report contains substantially similar 
information required to be furnished on Farm B; and 

(b) the filing insurer is the principal insurance company 
in the insurance holding company system. 

( 2) The question of whether tha filing insurer is the 
principal insurance company in the insurance holding company 
system is a question of fact and an insurer filing a 
registration statement or report in lieu of Form B on behalf of 
an affiliated insurer, shall set forth a brief statement of 
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facts which will substantiate the filing insurer's claim that 
it, in fact, is the principal insurer in the insurance holding 
company system. 

(3) With the prior approval of the commissioner, an 
unauthorized insurer may follow any of the procedures which 
could be done by an authorized insurer under paragraph ( 1) 
above. 

(4) Any insurer may take advantage of the provisions of 
33-2-1111(8) and (9), MCA, without obtaining the prior approval 
of the commissioner. The commissioner, however, may require 
individual filings if he deems such filings necessary in the 
interest of clarity and ease of administration or for the public 
benefit. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1111 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXV DISCLAIMERS ANp TERMINATION OF REGISTRATION 
(1) A disclaimer of affiliation or a request for 

termination of registration claiming that a person does not, or 
'H"ill not upon the taking of some proposed action, control 
another person (hereinafter referred to as the "subject") must 
contain the following information: 

(a) the number of authorized, issued, and outstanding 
voting securities of the subject; 

(b) with respect to the person whose control is denied and 
all affiliates of such person, the number and percentage of 
shares of the subject's voting securities which are held of 
record or known to be beneficially owned, and the number of such 
shares concerning which there is a right to acquire, directly or 
indirectly; · 

(c) all material relationships and bases for affiliation 
between the subject and the person whose control is denied and 
all affiliates of such person; 

(d) a statement explaining why such person should not be 
considered to control the subject. 

(2) A request for termination of registration shall be 
deemed to have been granted unless the commissioner, within 30 
days after he receives the request, notifies the registrant 
otherwise. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1111, 33-2-1112, and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXVI FILING OF FORM 0--TBANSACTIONS SUBJECT TO PRIOR 
~ (1) An insurer required to give notice of a proposed 
transaction pursuant to 33-2-1113, MCA, shall furnish the 
required information on Form D, hereby made a part of these 
rules. 

AUTH: 
IMP: 

33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
33-2-1113 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
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RULE XXXVII EXTRAORQINAB'i DIVIDENDS Al{D OTHER 
Q,l:STRIBYTIONS (1) Requests for approval of extraordinary 
dividends or any other extraordinary distribution to 
shareholders must include the follows: 

(a) The amount of the proposed dividend; 
(b) The da~e established for payment of the dividend; 
(c) A statement as to whether the dividend is to be in 

cash or other property and, if in property, a description 
thereof, its cost, and its fair market value, together with an 
explanation of the basis for valuation; 

(d) A copy of the calculations determining that the 
proposed dividend is extraordinary. The work paper must include 
the following information: 

(i) The amounts, dates, and forms of payment of all 
dividends or distributions (including regular dividends but 
excluding distributions of the insurers own securities) paid 
~ithin the period of 12 consecutive months ending on the date 
fixed for payment of the proposed dividend for which approval is 
sought and commencing on the day after the same day of the same 
month in the last preceding year. 

(ii) Surplus as regards policyholders (total capital 
and surplus) as of the 31st day of December nex~ preceding; 

(iii) If the insurer is a life insurer, the net gain 
from operations for the 12-month period ending the 31st day of 
December next preceding; 

( i v) If the insurer is not a life insurer, the net 
income less realized capital gains for the 12-month period 
ending the 31st day of December next preceding and the two 
preceding 12-months periods; and 

(v) If the insurer is not a life insurer, the dividends 
oaid to stockholders excluding distributions of the insurer's 
own securities in the preceding two calendar years. 

(e) A balance sheet and statement of income for the period 
intervening from the last annual statement filed with the 
commissioner and the end of the month preceding the month in 
which the request for dividend approval is submitted; and 

(f) A brier statement as to the effect of the proposed 
dividend upon the insurer's surplus and the reasonableness of 
surplus in relation to the insurer's outstanding liabilities and 
the adequacy of surplus relative to the insurer's financial 
needs. 

( 2) Subject to 33-2-1114, MeA, each registered insurer 
shall report to the commissioner all dividends and other 
distributions to shareholders within 15 business days following 
the declaration thereof, including the same information required 
by (1) (d) (i)-(v) hereof. 

AUTH: 
IMP: 

33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
JJ-2-1114 and JJ-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXVIII ADEOYACX OF SVRPWS (1) ·rhe facto:rs set 
forth in 33-2-1113(6), MCA, are not exclusive. In determining 
the adequacy and reasonableness of an insurer's surplus, no 
single factor will necessarily be controlling. The commissioner 
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will consider the net effect of all of these factors plus other 
factors bearinq on the financial condition of the insurer. In 
comparing the surplus maintained by other insurers, the 
collllllissioner will consider the extent to which each of these 
factors varies from company to company and in determining the 
quality and liquidity of investments in subsidiaries, the 
collllllissioner will consider the individual subsidiary and may 
discount or disallow its valuation to the extent that the 
individual in~estments so warrant. 

AUTH: 33-l-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1113 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
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FORM A 

STATEMENT RBGARDIBG THE 
ACQUISITION OF CONTROL OF OR MERGER WITH A DOMESTIC INSURER 

Name of Domestic Insurer 

BY 

Name of Acquiring Person (Applicant) 

Filed with the Department of Insurance of the state of Montana 

(State of domicile of insurer being acquired) 

Dated'----------------------------• 19 

Name, Title, Address, and Telephone Number of Individual to Whom 
Notices and correspondence Concerning this Statement Should be 
Addressed: 

ITEM l. INSURER AND METHOD OF ACQUISITION 

State the name and address of the domestic insurer to which 
this application relates and a brief description of how control 
is to be acquired. 

ITEM 2 • ID:Elft'I'l'Y AJm BAC:XGROIJND OF 'l'JIE APPLICANT 

(a) State the name and address of the applicant seeking to 
acquire control over the insurer. 

(b) If the applicant is not an individual, state the 
nature of its business operations for the past five years or for 
such lesser period as such person and any predecessors thereof 
shall have been in existence. Briefly describe the business 
intended to be done by the applicant and the applicant's 
subsidiaries. 

(c) Furnish a chart or listing clearly presenting the 
identities of the inter-relationships among the applicant and 
all affiliates of the applicant. No affiliate need be 
identified if its total assets are equal to less than 1/2 of 1% 
of the total assets of the ultimate controlling person 
affiliated with the applicant. Indicate in such chart or 
listing the percentage of voting securities of each such person 
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which is owned or controlled by the applicant or by any other 
such person. If control of any person i$ mainta1ned other than 
by the ownership or control of voting securities, indicate the 
basis of such control. As to each person specified in such 
chart or listing indicate the type of organization (e.g., 
corporation, trust, partnership) and the state or other 
jurisdiction of domicile. If court proceedings involving a 
reorganization or liquidation are pending with respect to any 
such person, indicate which person, and set forth the title of 
the court, nature of proceedings, and the date when commenced. 

ITEM 3. IDENTITY AND BACKGROUND OF INDIVIDUALS ASSOCIATED WITH 
THE APPLIClUIT 

State the following with 
(s)he is an individual or (2) 
executive officers or owners 
securities of the applicant 
individual. 

respect to (1) the applicant if 
all persons who are directors, 
of 10% or more of the voting 
if the applicant is not an 

(a) Name and business address; 
(b) Present principal business activity, occupation, or 

employment including position and office held and the name, 
principal business, and address of any corporation or other 
organization in which such employment is carried on; 

(c) Material occupations, positions, offices, or 
employment during the last five years, giving the starting and 
ending dates of each and the name, principal business, and 
address of any business corporation or other organization in 
which each such occupation, position, office or employment was 
carried on; if any such occupation, position, office, or 
employment required licensing by or registration with any 
federal, state, or municipal governmental agency, indicate such 
fact, the current status of such licensing or registration, and 
an explanation of any surrender, revocation, suspension, or 
disciplinary proceedings in connection therewith. 

(d) Whether or not such person has ever been convicted in 
a criminal proceeding (excluding minor traffic violations)during 
the last ten years and, if so, give the date, nature of 
conviction, name and location of court, and penalty imposed or 
other disposition of the case. 

ITEM 4. NATURE, SOURCE, AND AMOUNT OF CONSIDERATION 

(a) Describe the nature, source, and amount of funds or 
other considerations used or to be used in effecting the merger 
or other acquisition of control. If any part of the same is 
represented or is to be represented by funds or other 
consideration borrowed or otherwise obtained for the purpose of 
acquiring, holding, or trading securities, furnish a description 
of the transaction, the names of the parties thereto, the 
relationship, if any, between the borrower and the lender, the 
amounts borrowed or to be borrowed, and copies of all 
agreements, promissory notes, and security arrangements relating 
thereto. 
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(b) Explain the criter.ia used in determining the nature 
and amount of such consideration. 

(c) If the source of the consideration is a loan made in 
the lender's ordinary course of business and it the applicant 
wishes the identity of the lender to remain confidential, he 
must specifically request that the identity be kept 
confidential. 

ITEM 5 , FU'l'URB PLANS OF INSURER 

Describe any plans or proposals which the applicant may 
have to declare an extraordinary dividend, to liquidate such 
insurer, to sell its assets to or merge it with any person or 
persons or to make any other material change in its business 
operations or corporate structure or management. 

ITEM 6, VOTING SECURITIES TO BE ACQUIRED 

State the number of shares of the insurer's voting 
securities which the applicant, its affiliates, and any person 
listed in Item 3 plan to acquire, and the terms of the offer, 
request, invitation, agreement, or acquisition, and a statement 
as to the method by which the fairness of the proposal was 
arrived at. 

ITEM 7. OWNERSHIP OF VOTING SECURITIES 

State the amount of each class of any voting security of 
the insurer which is beneficially owned or concerning which 
there is a right to acquire beneficial ownership by the 
applicant, its affiliates, or any person listed in Item J. 

ITEM 8, CON'l'RACTS, ARRANGEME!l'l'S, OR UNDEliS'l'AHDINGS WITH RESPECT 
TO VOTING SECURITIES OF THE INSURER 

Give a full description of any contracts, arrangements, or 
understandings with respect to any voting security of the 
insurer in which the applicant, its affiliates, or any person 
listed in Item J is involved, includinq but not limited to 
transfer of any at the securities, joint ventures, loan or 
option arrangements, puts or calls, guarantees of loans, 
guarantees against loss or guarantees of profits, division of 
losses or profits, or the giving or withholding of proxies. 
such description shall identify the persons with whom such 
contracts, arrangements, or understandings have been entered 
into. 

ITEM 9, RECENT PURCHASES OF VOTING SECURITIES 

Oescril:.Je any purcnases of any voting securities of the 
insurer by the applicant, its affiliates or any person listed in 
Item 3 during the 12 calendar months preceding the filing of 
this statement. Include in such description the dates of 
purchase, the names of the purchasers, and the consideration 
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paid or agreed to be paid therefor. 
shares so purchased are hypothecated. 

State whether any such 

I'lEH 10. RECENT RECOMMENDATIONS TO PUJI.CRASE 

Describe any recommendations to purchase any voting 
security of the insurer made by the applicant, its affiliates, 
or any person listed in Item 3, or by anyone based upon 
interviews or at the suggestion of the applicant, its 
affiliates, or any person listed in Item 3 during the 12 
calendar months preceding the filing of this statement. 

I'l'WH 11. AGREEMENTS WITH BROKER-DEALERS 

Describe the terms of any agreement, contract, or 
understanding made with any broker-dealer as to solicitation of 
voting securities of the insurer for tender and the amount of 
any fees, commissions, or other compensation to be paid to 
broker-dealers with regard thereto. 

I~ 12. FI~CIAL STATEktNTS AND EXHIBITS 

(a) Financial statements and exhibits must be attached to 
this statement as an appendix, but list under this item the 
financial statements and exhibits so attached. 

(b) The financial statements must include the annual 
financial statements of the persons identified in Item 2(c) for 
the preceding five fiscal years (or for such lesser period as 
such applicant and its affiliates and any predecessors thereof 
shall have been in existence), and similar information covering 
the period from the end of such person's last fiscal year, if 
such information is available. Such statements may be prepared 
on either an individual basis, or, unless the conunissioner 
otherwise requires, on a consolidated basis if such consolidated 
statements are prepared in the usual course of business. 

The annual financial statements of the applicant must be 
accompanied by the certificate of an independent public 
accountant to the effect that such statements present fairly the 
financial position of the applicant and the results of its 
operations for the year then ended, in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles or with requirements of insurance 
or other accounting principles prescribed or permitted under 
law. If the applicant is an insurer which is actively engaged 
in the business of insurance, the financial statements need not 
be certified, provided they are based on the Annual Statement of 
such person filed with the insurance department of the person's 
domiciliary state and are in accordance with the requirements of 
insurance or ather accounting principles prescribed or permitted 
under the law and regulations of such state. 

(c) File as exhibits copies of all tender offers for, 
requests or invitations for, tenders of, exchange offers for, 
and agreements to acquire or exchange any voting securities of 
the insurer and (if distributed) of additional soliciting 
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material relating "thereto, any proposed employment, 
consultation, advisory, or management contracts concerning the 
insurer, annual reports to the stockholders of the insurer and 
the applicant for the last two fiscal years, and any additional 
documents or papers ·required by Form A or Regulation Sections 4 
and 6. 

ITEM 13. SIGNATURE AJm CERTIFICATION 

Signature and certification required as follows: 

SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the requirements of section 33-2-1104, MCA, 
has caused this application to be 

duly signed on its behalf in the city of 
and state of on the day of 

----------------' 19 -----· 

Attest: 

(Signature of Officer) 

(Title) 

STATE OF 

county of 

(SEALl------------~~------­
Name of Applicant 

BY ____ ~--~--~~~~----
( Name) (Title) 

ss. 

The undersigned hereby certifies that (s)he has duly 
executed the attached application dated --------------------' 19 

for and on babalf of 
(Name of Applicant) 

that (s)he is the of such company and that 
(Title of Officer) 

(s)he is authori~ed to execute and file such instrument. 
Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with such 
instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein 
set forth are true to the best of his/her knowledge, 
information, and belief. 

(Signature) ________________________ _ 

(Type or print name beneath) __________________________ __ 
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FORM B 

INSURANCE HOLDING COMPANY SYSTEM ANNUAL REGISTRATION STATEMENT 

Filed with the Department of Insurance of the state of Montana 

By 

Name of Registrant 

On Behalf of Following Insurance Companies 

Name Address 

Date: 19 

Name, Title, Address, and Telephone Number of Individual to Whom 
Notices and Correspondence Concerning this Statement Should be 
Addressed: 

ITEM 1. IDENTITY AND CONTROL 0~ REGISTRANT 

Furnish the exact name of each insurer registering or being 
registered (hereinafter called ''the Registrant"), the home 
office address and principal executive offices of each; the date 
on which each registrant became part of the insurance holding 
company system; and the method(s) by which control of each 
registrant was acquired and is maintained. 

ITEM 2. ORGANIZATIONAL CllART 

Furnish a chart or listing clearly presenting the 
identities of all interrelationships among all affiliated 
persons within the insurance holding company system. No 
affiliate need be shown .if its total assets are equal to less 
than 1/2 of 1% of the total assets of the ultimate controlling 
person within the insurance holding company system unless it has 
assets valued at or exceeding (insert amount). The chart or 
listing should show the percentage of each class of voting 
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securities of each affiliate which is owned, directly or 
indirectly, by another affiliate. If control of any person 
within the system is maintained other than by the ownership or 
control of voting securities, indicate the basis of such 
control. As to each person specified in such chart or listing, 
indicate the type of organization (e.g., corporation, trust, 
partnership) and the state or other jurisdiction of domicile. 

ITEM 3. THE ULTIMATE CONTROLLikG PERSON 

As to the ultimatu controlling person in the insurance 
holding company system furnish the following information: 

(a) Name. 
(b) Horne office address. 
(c) Principal executive office address. 
(d) The organizational structure of the person, i.e., 

corporation, partnership, individual, trust, etc. 
(e) The principal business of the person. 
(f) The name and address of any person who holds or owns 

10% or more of any class of voting security, the class of such 
security, the number of shares held of record or known to be 
beneficially owned, and the percentage of class so held or 
owned. 

(g) If court proceedings involving a reorganization or 
liquidation are pending, indicate the title and location of the 
court, the nature of proceedings, and the date when commenced. 

ITEM 4. BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION 

Furnish the following information for the directors and 
executive officers of the ultimate controlling person: the 
individual's name and address, his or her principal occupation, 
and all offices and positions held during the past five years, 
and any conviction of crimes other than minor traffic violations 
during the past ten years. 

ITEM S. TRANSACTIONS AHD AGREEMENTS 

Briefly describe the following agreements in farce and 
transactions currently outstanding or which have occurred during 
the last calendar year between the registrant and its 
affiliates: 

(a) loans, other investments, or purchases, sales, or 
exchanges of securities of the affiliates by the registrant or 
of the registrant by its affiliates; 

(b) purchases, sales, or exchanges of assets; 
(c) transactions not in the ordinary course of business; 
(d) guarantees or undertaJtings for the benefit of an 

affiliate which result in an actual contingent exposure of the 
registrant's assets to liability, other than insurance contracts 
entered into in the ordinary course of the registrant's 
business; 
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(e; all management agreements, service contracts, and all 
cost-sharing arrangements; 

(f) reinsurance agreements; 
(g) dividends and other distributions to shareholders; 
(hJ consolidated tax allocation agreements; and 
(i) any pledge of the registrant's stock and/or of the 

stock of any subsidiary or controlling affiliate, for a loan 
made to any member of the insurance holding company system. 

No information need be disclosed if such information is not 
material for purposes of Section 4 of the Act. 

Sales, purchases, exchanges, loans or extensions of credit, 
investments or guarantees involving one-half of 1% or less of 
the registrant's admitted assets as of the 31st day of December 
next preceding are not deemed material. (Note: Commission~r 
may by rule or order provide otherwise.) 

The description must be in a manner as to permit the proper 
evaluation thereof by the collUilissioner, and shall include at 
least the following: the nature and purpose of the transaction, 
the nature and amounts of any payments or ~ransfers of assets 
between the parties, the identity of a:; parties to such 
transaction, and relationship of the affiliated parties to the 
registrant. 

ITEM ~. LITIGATION OR ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS 

A. brief description of any litigation or administrative 
proceedings of the following types, either then pending or 
concluded within the preceding fiscal year, to which the 
ultimate controlling person or any of its directors or executive 
officers was a party or of which the property of any such person 
is or was the subject; give the names of the parties and the 
court or agency in which such litigation or proceeding is or was 
pending: 

(a) criminal prosecutions or administrative proceedings by 
any government agency or authority which may be relevant to the 
trustworthiness of any party thereto; and 

(b) Proceedings which may have a material effect upon the 
solvency or capital structure of the ultimate holding company 
including, but not necessarily limited to, bankruptcy. 
receivership, or other corporate reorganizations. 

ITEM 7. STATEMENT REGARDING PLAN OR SERIES OF TRANSACTIONS 

The insurer shall furnish a statement that transactions 
entered into since the filing of the prior year's annual 
registration statement are not part of a plan or series of like 
transactions, the purpose of which is to avoid statutory 
threshold amounts and the review that might otherwise occur. 
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ITEM 8 • FINANCIAL STATEJIDI'rS AND BDIBITS 

(a) Financial statements and exhibits should be attached 
to this statement as an appendix, but list under this item the 
financial statements and exhibits so attached. 

(b) The financial statements must include the annual 
financial statements of the ultimate controlling person in the 
insurance holding company system as of the end of the person's 
latest fiscal year. 

If at the time of the initial registration, the annual 
financial statements for the latest fiscal year are not 
available, annual statements for the previous fiscal year may be 
filed and similar financial information must be filed for any 
subsequent period to the extent such information is available. 
such financial statements may be prepared on either an 
individual basis, or unless the commissioner otherwise requires, 
on a consolidated basis if such consolidated statements are 
prepared in the usual course of business. 

Unless the commissioner otherwise permits, the annual 
financial statements must be accompanied by the certificate of 
an independent public accountant to the effect that such 
statements present fairly the financial position of the ultimate 
controlling person and the results of its operations for the 
year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles or with requirements of insurance or other 
accounting principles prescribed or permitted under law. If the 
ultimate controlling person is an insurer which is actively 
engaged in the business of insurance, the annual financial 
statements need not be certified, provided they are based on the 
Annual Statement of such insurer filed with the insurance 
department of the insurer's domiciliary state and are in 
accordance with requirements of insurance or other accounting 
principles prescribed or permitted under the law and regulations 
of such state. 

(c) Exhibits must include copies of the latest annual 
reports to shareholders of the ultimate controlling person and 
proxy material used by the ultimate controlling person; and any 
additional documents or papers required by Form B or Regulation 
Sections 4 and 6. 

ITEM 9. FORM C (TO BE FILED WITH FORM B) 

A Form c, Summary of Registration statement, must be 
prepared and filed with this Form B. 

ITEM 10. SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

Signature and certification required as follows: 

SIGNATURE 
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Pursuant to the requirements of section 33-2-1111, MCA, the 
registrant has caused this annual registration statement to be 
duly signed on its behalf in the. city of 

and state of on the _____ day of 
----------------' 19 _____ . 

(SEAL) 
Name of Registrant 

BY 
(Name) (Title) 

Attest: 

(Signature of Officer) 

(Title) 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned certifies that ( s) he has duly executed the 
attached annual registration statement dated 
19 _____ , for and on behalf of 

(Name of Company) 
that (s)he is the of such company 

(Title of Officer) 
that (s)he is authorized to execute and file such instrument. 
Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with such 
instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein 
set forth are true to the best of his/her knowledge, 
information, and belief. 

(Signature) 

(Type or print name beneath) 
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FORM C 

SUXKARY OF RBGISTRATIOH STATEMENT 

Filed with the Department of Insurance of the state of Montana 

By 

Name of Registrant 

On Behalf of Following Insurance Companies 

Name Address 

Date: ------------------' 1~-----
Name, Title, Address, and Telephone Number of Individual to Whom 
Notices and correspondence Concerning This Statement Should Be 
Addressed: 

Furnish a brief des=iption of all items in the current 
annual registration statement which represent changes from the 
prior year's annual registration statement. The description 
shall be in a manner as to permit the proper evaluation thereof 
by the commissioner, and shall include specific references to 
Item numbers in the annual registration statement and to the 
terms contained therein. 

Changes occurring under Item 2 of Form B insofar as changes 
in the percentage of each class of voting securities held by 
each affiliate is concerned, need only be included where such 
changes are ones which result in ownership or holdings of 10 
percent or more of voting securities, loss or transfer of 
control, or acquisition or loss of partnership interest. 

Changes occurring under Item 4 of Form B need only be 
included where: an individual is, for the first time, made a 
director or executive officer of the ultimate controlling 
person; a director or executive officer terminates his or her 
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responsibilities with the ultimate controlling person; or in the 
event an individual is named president of the ultimate 
controlling person. 

If a transaction disclosed on the prior year's annual 
registration statement has been changed, the nature Of such 
change shall be included. If a transaction disclosed on the 
prior year's annual registration statement has been effectuated, 
furnish the mode of completion and any flow of funds between 
affiliates resulting from the transaction. 

The insurer must furnish a statement that transactions 
entered into since the filing of the prior year's annual 
registration statement are not part of a plan or series of like 
transactions whose purpose is to avoid statutory threshold 
amounts and the review that might otherwise occur. 

SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

Signature and certification required as follows: 

SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the requirements of section JJ-2-1111, MCA, the 
registrant has caused this su~~ary of registration statement to 
be duly signed on Lts behalf in the city of 

and state of on the 
_____ day of 19 ____ _ 

(SEAL) 
Name of Registrant 

By 
(Name) (Title) 

Attest: 

(Signature of Officer) 

(Title) 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned certifies that (s)he has duly executed the 
attached summary of registration statement dated 
-------------' 19 ______ , for and on behalf of 
_________________ ; that (s)he is the --------~~--------~--

(Name of company) (Title of Officer) 
of such company and that (s)he is authorized to execute and file 
such instrument. Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar 
with such instrument and the contents thereof, and that the 
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facts therein set forth are true to the best of hisjher 
knowledge, information, and belief. 

(Signature) 

(Type or print name beneath) 
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FORM D 

PRIOR NOTICE OF A TRANSACTION 

Filed with the Department of Insurance of the state of Montana 

By 

Name of Registrant 

On Behalf of Following Insurance Companies 

Name Address 

--------~--------

Date: -----------------------' 19 ____ _ 

Name, Title, Address, and Telephone Number of Individual to Whom 
Notices and Correspondence Concerning This Statement Should be 
Addressed: 

ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF PARTIES TO TRANSACTION 

Furnish the following information for each of the parties 
to the transaction: 

(a) Name. 
(b) Home office address. 
(c) Principal executive office address. 
(d) The organizational structure; i.e., corporation, 

partnership, individual, trust, etc. 
(e) A description of the nature of the parties' business 

operations. 
(f) Relationship, if any, of other parties to the 

transaction to the insurer filing the notice, including any 
ownership or debtor/creditor interest by any other parties to 
the transaction in the insurer seeking approval, or by the 
insurer filing the notice in the affiliated parties. 

(g) Where the transaction is with a non-affiliate, the 
name(s) of the affiliate(s) which will receive, in whole or in 
substantial part, the proceeds of the transaction. 
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ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF THE TRAHSACTION 

Furnish the following information for each transaction for 
which notice is being given: 

(a) A statement as to whether notice is being given under 
section 33-2-1113(2), MCA. 

(b) A statement of the nature of the transaction. 
(c) The proposed effective date of the transaction. 

ITEM J • SALES, PURCHASEIIII, EXCHAJIGES, LOANS, EXTENSIONS OF 
CREDIT, GUARANTEES OR INVES!MENTS 

Furnish a brief description of the amount and source ot 
funds, securities, property, or other consideration for the 
sale, purchase, exchange, loan, extension of credit, guarantee, 
or investment, whether any provision exists for purchase by the 
insurer filing notice, by any party to the transaction, or by 
any affiliate of the insurer filing notice, a description of the 
terms of any securities being received, if any, and a 
description of any other agreements relating to the transaction 
such as contracts or agreements for services, consulting 
agreements, and the like. If the transaction involves other 
than cash, furnish a description of the consideration, its cost 
and its fair market value, together with an explanation of the 
basis for evaluation. 

If the transaction involves a loan, extension of credit or 
a guarantee, furnish a description of the maximum amount which 
the insurer will be obligated to make available under such loan, 
extension of credit or guarantee, the date on which the credit 
or guarantee will terminate, and any provisions for the accrual 
of or deferral of interest. 

If the transaction involves an investment, guarantee, or 
other arrangement, state the time period during which the 
investment, guarantee, or other arrangement will remain in 
effect, together with any provisions for extensions or renewals 
of such investments, guarantees or arrangements. Furnish a 
brief statement as to the effect of the transaction upon the 
insurer's surplus. 

No notice need be given if the maximum amount which can at 
any time be outstanding or for which the insurer can be legally 
obligated under the loan, extension of credit, or guarantee is 
less than, (a) in the case of non-life insurer's, the lesser of 
3% of the insurer's admitted assets or 25% of surplus as regards 
policyholders or, (b) in the case of life insurers, 3% of the 
insurer's. admitted assets, each as of the 31st day of December 
next preceding. 
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ITEM 4. LOANS OR EXTENSIONS OF CREDIT TO A NON-AFFILIATE 

If the transaction involves a loan or extension of credi~ 
to any person who is not an affiliate, furnish a brief 
description of the agreement or understanding whereby the 
proceeds of the proposed transaction, in whole or in substantial 
part, are to be used to make loans or extensions of credit to, 
to purchase the assets of, or to make investments in, any 
affiliate of the insurer making such loans or extensions of 
credit, and specify in what manner the proceeds are to be used 
to loan to, extend credit to, purchase assets of, or make 
investments in any affiliate. Describe the amount and source of 
duns, securities, property, or other consideration for the loan 
or extension of credit and, if the transaction is one involving 
consideration other than cash, a description of its cost and its 
fair market value together with an explanation of the basis for 
evaluation. Furnish a brief statemen~ as to the effect of the 
transaction upon the insurer's surplus. 

No notice need be given if the loan or extension of credit 
is one which equals less than, in the case of non-life 
insurer's, the lesser of 3% of the insurer's admitted assets or 
25% of surplus as regards policyholders or, with respect to life 
insurers, Jt of the insurer's admitted assets, each as of the 
Jlst day of December next preceding. 

ITEM 5. REINSURANCE 

If the transaction is a reinsurance agreement or 
modification thereto, as described by Section 33-2-
1113 (2) (a) (ii) (C), MCA, furnish a description of the known 
and/or estimated amount of liability to be ceded andjor assumed 
in each calendar ye~r, the period of time during which the 
agreement will be 1n effect, and a statement whether an 
agreement or understanding exists between the insurer and non­
affiliate to the effect that any portion of the assets 
constituting the consideration for the agreement will be 
transferred to one or more of the insurer's affiliates. Furnish 
a brief description of the consideration involved in the 
transaction, and a brief statement as to the effect of the 
transaction upon the insurer's surplus. 

No notice need be given for reinsurance agreements or 
modifications thereto if the reinsurance premium or a change in 
the insurer's liabilities in connection with the reinsurance 
agreement or modification thereto is less than 5% of the 
insurer's surplus as regards policyholders, as of the 31st day 
of December next preceding. 

ITEM 6. MAHAGEMENT AGREEMENTS, SERVICE AGREEMENTS, AND COST­
SHARING ARRANGEMENTS 

For management and service agreements, furnish: 
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(a) a brief description of the managerial 
responsibilities, or services to be performed. 

(b) a brief description of the agreement, including a 
statement of its duration, together with brief descriptions of 
the basis for compensation and the terms under which payment or 
compensation is to be made. 

For cost-sharing arrangements, furnish: 

(a) a brief description of the purpose of the agreement. 
(b) a description of the period of time during which the 

agreement is to be in effect. 
(c) a brief description of each party's expenses or costs 

covered by the agreement. 
(d) a brief description of the accounting basis to be used 

in calculating each party's costs under the agreement. 

ITEM 7. SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

Signature and certification required as follows: 

SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the requirements of section JJ-2-lllJ, 
has caused this notice to be duly 

on its behalf in the city of 
state of on the -----------
--------------------' 19 ____ _ 

(SEAL) 

MCA, _ 
signed 

and 
day of 

Name of Applicant 

By ---~--:-----:-::::,...,.-::--:---
(Name) (Title) 

Attest: 

(Signature of Officer) 

(Title) 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned certifies that (s)he has duly executed the 
attached notice dated , 19 ______ , for 
and on behalf of ; that 

(Name of Applicant) 
(s)he is the ot such company and tt1<1.t 

(Title of Officer) 
(s)he is authorized to execute and file such instrument. 
Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with such 
instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein 
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set forth are true to the best of his;her knowledge, 
information, and belief. 

(Signature) 

(Type or print name beneath) 
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RULES REGARDING CREDIT FOR REINSURANCE 

RULE XXXIX QEFINITIONS (1) For the purposes of this 
subchapter, the following terms have the following meanings: 

(a) "Beneficiary" means the entity for whose sole benefit 
the trust has been established and any successor of the 
beneficiary by operation of law. If a court of law appoints a 
successor in interest to the named beneficiary, then the named 
beneficiary includes and is limited to the court appointed 
domiciliary receiver (including conservator, rehabilitator or 
liquidator). 

(b) "Grantor'' means the entity that has established a 
trust for the sole benefit of the beneficiary. When established 
in conjunction with a reinsurance agreement, the grantor is the 
unlicensed, unaccredited assuming insurer. 

(c) "Obligations", as used in Rule XXXX(1) (j) of this 
subsection, means: 

(i) Reinsured losses and allocated loss expenses paid 
by the ceding company, but not recovered from the assuming 
insurer; 

(ii) Reserves for reinsured losses reported and 
outstanding; 

(iii) Reserves for reinsured losses incurred but not 
reported; and 

(iv) Reserves for allocated reinsured loss expenses 
and unearned premiums. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXX TRUST AGREEMENT CONDITIONS ( 1) The trust 
agreement required by 33-2-1216(5) (c), MCA, must be entered into 
between the beneficiary, the grantor and a trustee which shall 
be a qualified United States financial institution as defined in 
33-2-1501, MCA, and include the following conditions: 

(a) The trust agreement must create a trust account into 
which assets shall be deposited. 

(b) All assets in the trust account must be held by the 
trustee at the trustee's office in the united states, except 
that a bank may apply for the commissioner's permission to use 
a foreign branch office of such bank as trustee tor trust 
agreements established pursuant to this section. If the 
commissioner approves the us~ of such foreign branch office as 
trustee, then its use must be approved by the benet ic iary in 
writing and the trust agreement must provide that the written 
notice described in (1) (c) (i) must also be presentable, as a 
(1) (c) (i) matter of legal right, at the trustee's principal 
office in the United States. 

(c) The trust agreement must provide that: 
(i) The beneficiary shall have the right to withdraw 

assets from the trust account at any time, without notice to the 
grantor, subject only to written notice from the beneficiary to 
the trustee; 
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(ii) No other statement or document is required to be 
presented in order to withdraw assets, except that the 
beneficiary may be required to acknowledge receipt of withdrawn 
assets; 

(iii) It is not subject to any conditions or 
qualifications outside the trust agreement; and it shall not 
contain references to any other agreements to documents except 
as provided for under (l) (j). 

(d) The trust agreement must be established for the sole 
benefit of the beneficiary. 

(e) The trust agreement must require the trustee to: 
( i) Receive assets and hold all assets in a safe 

place; 
(ii) Determine that all assets are in such form that 

the beneficiary, or the trustee upon direction by the 
beneficiary, may wh~never necessary negotiate any such assets, 
without consent or signature from the grantor or any other 
person or entity; 

(iii) Furnish to the grantor and the beneficiary a 
statement of all assets in the trust account upon its inception 
and at interv~ls no less f~equent than the end of each calendar 
quarter; 

(iv) Notify the grantor and the beneficiary within 10 
days of any deposits to or withdrawals from the trust account; 

(v) Upon written demand of the beneficiary, 
immediately take any and all steps necessary to transfer 
absolutely and unequivocally all right, title, and interest in 
the assets held in the trust account to the beneficiary and 
deliver physical custody of the assets to the beneficiary; and 

(vi) Allow no substitutions or withdrawals of assets 
from the trust account, except on written instructions from the 
beneficiary, except that the trustee may, without the consent 
of, but with notice to, the beneficiary, upon call or maturity 
of any trust asset, withdraw such asset upon condition that the 
proceeds are paid into the trust account. 

(f) The trust agreement must provide that at least JO 
days, but not more than 45 days, prior to termination of the 
trust account, written notification of termination must be 
delivered by the trustee to the beneficiary. 

(g) The trust agreement must be made subject to and 
governed by the laws of the state in which the trust is 
established. 

(h) The trust ag.reement must prohibit invasion of the 
trust corpus for the purpose of paying compensation to, or 
reimbursing the expenses of, the trustee. 

( i) The trust agreement must provide that the trustee 
shall be liable for its own negligence, willful misconduct or 
lack of good faith. 

(j) Notwithstanding other provisions of this rule, when a 
trust agreement is established in conjunction with a reinsurance 
agreement covering risks other than life, annuities and accident 
and health, where it is the custom and practice to provide a 
trust agreement for a specific purpose, such a trust agreement 
may, notwithstanding any other conditions in this regulation, 
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provide that the ceding insurer shall undertake to use and apply 
amounts drawn upon the trust account, without diminution because 
of the insolvency of the ceding insurer or the assuming insurer, 
for the following purposes: 

(i) To pay or reimburse the ceding insurer for the 
assuming insurer's share under the specific reinsurance 
agreement regarding any losses and allocated loss expenses paid 
by the ceding insurer, but not recovered from the assuming 
insurer, or for unearned premiums due to the ceding insurer if 
not otherwise paid by the assuming insurer; 

(ii) To make payment to the assuming insurer of any 
amounts held in the trust account that exceed 102 percent of the 
actual amount required to fund the assuming insurer's 
obligations under the specific reinsurance agreement; or 

(iii) When the ceding insurer has received notification 
of termination of the trust account and when the assuming 
insurer's entire obligations under the specific reinsurance 
agreement remain unliquidated and undischarged 10 days prior to 
the termination date, to withdraw amounts equal to the 
obligations and deposit those amounts in a separate account in 
the name of the ceding insurer in any qualified United States 
financial institution as defined in 33-2-1501, MeA, apart from 
its general assets, in trust for such uses and purposes 
specified in subparag:t'aphs ( i) and ( ii) above as may remain 
executory after such withdrawal and fo:t' any period after the 
termination date. 

(k) The :t'ainsurance agreement ente:t'ed into in conjunction 
with the trust agreement may, but need not, contain the 
p:t'ovisions required by 33-2-1216(5) (c), MCA, so long as these 
required conditions are included in the trust ag:t'eement. 

(2) The trust agreement requi:t'ed by this rule may include 
any O:t' all of the following conditions: 

(a) The trust ag:t'eement may provide that the trustee may 
resign upon delivery of a written notice of resignation, 
effective not less than 90 days after :t'eceipt by the beneficiary 
and qranto:t' of the notice and that the t:t'UStee may be removed by 
the grantor by delivery to the trustee and the beneficia:t'y of a 
written notice of removal, effective not less than 90 days after 
:t'eceipt by the trustee and the beneficiary of the notice, 
p:t'ovided that no such resignation or removal shall be effective 
until a successor trustee has been duly appointed and approved 
by the beneficiary and ~e grantor and all assets in the t:t"ust 
have. been duly t:t'ansfer:t'ed to the new t:t'ustee. 

(b) The g:t'antor may have the full and unqualified right to 
vote any shares of stock in the trust account and to receive 
from time-to-time payments of any dividends or interest upon any 
shares of stock or obligations included in the trust account. 
Any such inte:t'est or dividends must be eithe:t' forwa:t'ded promptly 
upon receipt to the g:t'antor or deposited in a separate account 
established in the granto:t''s name. 

(c) The trustee may be given autho:t'ity to invest, and 
accept substitutions of, any funds in the account, provided that 
no investment o:t' substitution may be made without prio:t' approval 
of the beneficiary, unless the trust agreement specifies 
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categories of investments acceptable to the beneficiary and 
authorizes the trustee to invest funds and to accept 
substitution which the trustee determines are at least equal in 
market value to the assets withdrawn and that are consistent 
wi~h the restrictions in Rule XXXXII(l) (b) of this subchapter. 

(d) The trust agreement may provide that the beneficiary 
may at any time designate a party to which all or part of the 
trust assets are to be transferred. Such transfer may be 
conditioned upon the ~rustee receiving, prior to or 
simultaneously, other specified assets. 

(e) The trust agreement may provide that, upon termination 
of the trust account, all assets not previously withdrawn by the 
beneficiary must, ·..-ith written approval by the benefiCiary, be 
dellVered over t0 the grantor. 

AUTH: JJ-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXXI CCNDITIONS APPLICABLE TO REINSJl:BA!!CJ;; AGBEEM...ID:!T.S. 
( 1) Reinsurance agreements entered into in conjunct ion 

with trust agreements under these rules must include the 
following: 

(a) A requirement that the assuming insurer enter into a 
trust agreement and establish a trust account for the benefit of 
the ceding insurer, and specifying what the agreement is to 
cover; 

(b) A requirement that assets deposited in the trust 
account be valued according to their current fair market value 
and consist only of cash (United States legal tender), 
certificates of deposit (issued by a United States bank and 
payable in United States legal tender), and investments of the 
types permitted by the Montana insurance code, or any 
combination of the above, provided that such investlllents are 
issued by an institution that is not the parent, subsidiary, or 
affiliate of either the grantor or the beneficiary. The 
reinsurance agreement may further specify the types of 
investments to be deposited. When a trust agreement is entered 
into in conjunction with a reinsurance agreement covering risks 
other than life, annuities, and accident and health, then the 
trust agreement may contain the provisions required by this 
paragraph in lieu of including such provisions in the 
reinsurance agreement; 

(c) A requirement that the assuming insurer, prior to 
depositing assets with the trustee, execute assignments or 
endorsements in blank, or to transfer legal title to the trustee 
of all shares, obligations or any other assets requiring 
assignments, in order that the ceding insurer, or the trustee 
upon the direction of the ceding insurer, may, whenever 
necessary, negotiate these assets without consent or signature 
from the assuming insurer or any other entity; 

(d) A requirement that all settlements of account between 
the ceding insurer and the assuming insurer be made in cash or 
its equivalent; and 
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(e) A requirement that the assuming insurer and the ceding 
insurer agree that the assets in the trust account, established 
pursuant to the provisions of the reinsurance agreement, may be 
withdrawn by the ceding insurer at any time, notwithstanding any 
other provisions in the reinsurance aqraament, and must be 
utilized and applied by the ceding induter or its successors in 
interest by operation of law, including without limitation any 
liquidator, rehabilitator, receive~ or conservator of such 
company, without diminution because of insolvency on the part of 
the ceding insurer or the assuming insurer, only for the 
following purposes: 

(i) To reimburse the ceding insurer for the assuming 
insurer's share of premiums returned to the owners of policies 
reinsured under the reinsurance agreement because of 
cancellations of such policies; 

(ii) To reimburse the ceding insurer for the assuming 
insurer's share of surrenders and benefits or losses paid by the 
ceding insurer pursuant to the provisions of the policies 
reinsured under the reinsurance agreement; 

(iii) To fund an account with the ceding insurer in an 
amount at least equal to the deduction, for reinsurance ceded, 
from the ceding insurer liabilities for policies ceded under the 
agreement. The account must include, but not be limited to, 
amounts for policy reserves, claims and losses incurred 
(including losses incurred but not reported), loss adjustment 
expenses and unearned premium reserves; and 

( i v) To pay any other amounts the ceding insurer 
claims are due under the reinsurance agreement. 

(2) The reinsurance agreement may also contain provisions 
that: 

(a) Give the assuming insurer the right to seek approval 
from the ceding insurer to withdraw from the trust account all 
or any part of the trust assets and t~ansfer those assets to the 
assuming insurer, provided: 

(i) The assuming insurer shall, at the time of withdrawal, 
replace the withdrawn assets with other qualified assets having 
a market value equal to the market value of the assets 
withdrawn, so as to maintain at all times the deposit in the 
required amount, or 

(ii) After withdrawal and transfer, the market value of the 
trust account is no less than 102 percent of the required 
amount. The ceding insurar shall not unreasonably or 
arbitrarily withhold its approval. 

(b) Provide for: 
(i) The return of any amount withdrawn in excess of the 

actual amounts required for (1) (e) (i) (ii) and (iii) of this rule 
or, in the case of (1) (e) (iv), any amounts that are subsequently 
determined not to be due; and 

( ii) Interest payments, at a rate not in excess of the 
prime rate of interest, on the amounts held pursuant to 
(1) (e) (iii). 

(c) Permit the award by any arbitration panel or court of 
competent jurisdiction of: 
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( i) 
in (2)(b)(ii), 

(ii) 
(iii) 
(iv) 

Interest at a rate different fro• that provided 

court of arbitration costs, 
Attorney's fees, and 
Any other reasonable expenses. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXXII RESTRICTIONS ON AMENDMENT OF TROST AGREEMENTS 
(1) No amendment to the trust agreement may be effective 

unless reviewed and approved in advance by th& commissioner. 
AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXXIII FINANCIAL REPORTING (1) A trust agreement 
may be used to reduce any liability for reinsurance ceded to an 
unauthorized assuming insurer in financial statements required 
to be filed with the department in compliance with the 
provisions of this rule when established on or before the date 
of filing of the financial statement of the ceding insurer. 
Further, the reduction for the existence of an acceptable trust 
account must be equal to the current fair market value of 
acceptable assets available to be withdrawn from the trust 
account at that time, but such reduction shall be no greater 
than the specific obligations under the reinsurance agreement 
that the trust account was established to secure. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXXIV EFFECT OF FAILURE TO IDENTifY BENEFICIARY 
(1) The failure of any trust agreement to specifically 

identify the beneficiary as defined in Rule XXXIX of this 
subchapter shall not be construed to affect any actions or 
rights which the commissioner may take or possess pursuant to 
the provisions of the laws of this state. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE X~XXV EFFECT OF LOSS Of ACCREQITATION BY ASSYMlNG 
REINSUBER (1) credit will not be granted to a domestic ceding 
insurer with respect to reinsurance ceded attar October 1, 1993, 
if the assuming insurer's accreditation hal!l been denied or 
revoked by the commissioner after notice and hearing. 

AUTH; JJ-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: JJ-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXXYI SUBPLUS DETERHINATlON OF A GRQUP OF 
INCORfORATEQ INSURERS UNDER COMMQN ADMINIS'tMTION ( 1) The 
trust fund for a group of incorporated insurers under common 
administration, whose members possess aggregate policyholders 
surplus of $10,000,000,000 required by 33-2-1216(5)(b), MCA, 
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must be calculated and reported in substantially the same manner 
as prescribed by the annual statement instructions and 
Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual of the NAIC and which 
has continuously transacted an insurance business outside the 
United states for at least 3 years immediately prior to making 
application for accreditation, shall consist of funds in trust 
in an amount not less than the assuming insurers• liabilitles 
attributable to business ceded by United states ceding insurers 
to any members of the group pursuant to reinsurance contracts 
issued in the name of such group and, in addition, the group 
shall ;naintain a joint trust.eed surplus of which $lOO, 000, ·JOO 
shall be held jointly for the benefit of United states cedlng 
insurers of any member of the group. The group shall :"ile J. 

properly executed Form AR·l as evidence of the submissio:l >:.o 
·cilis st:ate' s autho:z:·ity to examine the books and records of 3r;f 

of its members and shall cet·tify that any members examined wi ~l 
bear the expeilse of any such examination. The group shall mz.ke 
available to the co=issioner annual certifications by Cl<c 
:nembers' domiciliary regulators and their independent public 
accountants vf the solvency of each member of the group. 

AUTH: 33-i-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE XXXXVII THE PERIOD FOR PAYMENT OF TRUST FUNDS SUBJ~gT 
TO CLAIMS (1) Contested claims under 33-2-1216(5) (c), MCA, 
shall be valid and enforceable out of funds in trust to the 
extent remaining unsatisfied 30 days after entry of the final 
order of any court of competent jurisdiction in the iJn1ted 
States. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULES REGARDING LETTERS OF CREDIT 

RULE XXXXVIII DEFINITIONS (1) As used in this 
subsection, "beneficiary" means the domestic insurer for whose 
benefit the letter of credit has been established and any 
successor in interest to the named beneficiary, then the named 
beneficiary includes and is limited to the court appointed 
domiciliary receiver (including conservator, rehabilitator, or 
liquidator). 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE IL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF LETTERS OF CREDIT 
(1) Applicable standards of acceptability for issuers of 

letters of credit under 33-2-1217, MCA, include the following: 
(a) The letter of credit must contain an issue date and 

date of expiration and must stipulate that the beneficiary need 
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only draw a sight draft under the letter of credit and present 
it to obtain funds and that no other document need be presented. 

(b) The letter of credit must indicate that it is not 
subject to any condition or qualifications outside of the letter 
of credit. 

(c) The letter of credit itself must not contain reference 
to any other agreements, documents, or entities, except as 
provided in subsection 9 below. 

(2) The heading of the letter of credit may include a 
boxed section which contains the name of the applicant and other 
appropriate notations to provide a reference for the letter of 
credit. The boxed •ection must be clearly marked to indicate 
that such information is for internal identification purposes 
only. 

(3) The letter of credit must contain a statement to the 
effect that the obligation of the qualified United states 
financial institution under the letter of credit is in no way 
contingent upon reimbursement with respect thereto. 

(4) The term of the letter of credit must be for at least 
one year and must contain a clause which prevents the expiration 
of the letter of credit without due notice from the issuer. 
Such clause must provide for a period of no less than 30 days' 
notice prior to expiration date or nonrenewal. 

(5) The letter of credit must state whether it is subject 
to and governed by the laws of this state or the Uniform Customs 
and Practice for Documentary Credits of the International 
Chamber of Commerce (Publication 400) , and whether all drafts 
drawn thereunder must be presentable at an office in the United 
States of a qualified United States financial institution. 

(6) If the letter of credit is made subject to the Uniform 
Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits of· the 
International Chamber of commerce (publication 400) , then the 
letter of credit must specifically address and make provision 
for an extension of time to draw against the letter of credit in 
the event that one or more of the occurrences specified in 
Article 19 of PUblication 400 occur. 

(7) The letter of credit must be issued or confirmed by a 
qualified United states financial institution authorized to 
issue letters of credit, pursuant to 33-2-1501, MCA. 

(8) If the letter of credit is issued by a qualified 
United States financial institution authorized to issue letters 
of credit, other than a qualified United States financial 
institution as dasc4ibed in (7) then the following additional 
requirements must be met: 

(a) The issuing qualified United States financial 
institution shall formally designate the confirming qualified 
United States financial institution as its agent for the receipt 
and payment of the drafts, and 

(b) The clause preventing expiration without due notice 
from the issuer must provide for 30 days' notice prior to 
expiration date for nonrenewal. 

(9) The reinsurance agreement in conjunction ~ith ~hich 
the letter of credit is obtained may contain provisions which: 
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(a) Require the asswning insurer to provide letters of 
credit to the ceding insurer and specify what they are to cover. 

(b) Require the assuming insurer and ceding insurer to 
agree that the letter of credit provided by the assuming insurer 
pursuant to the provisions of the reinsurance agreement may be 
drawn upon at any time, notwithstanding any other provisions in 
the agreement, and shall be utilized by the ceding insurer or 
its successors in interest only for one or more of the following 
reasons: 

(i) To reimburse the ceding insurer for the assuming 
insurer's share of premiums returned to the owners of poLicies 
reinsured under the r·einsurance agreement on account ,Jf 

cancellations of such policies; 
(ii) To reimburse the ceding insurer for the assuming 

1..n$urer ~ s share of surrenders and: benefits or losses paid ty ::!l.c: 
ceding insurt:r Under the terms and provisions of the polic.~<2:s 
reinsured under the reinsurance agreement; 

(iii) To fund an account with the ceding insurer in dl• 

amount at least equal to the deduction, ror ceinsurance ceded, 
from the ceding insurer's liabilities for policies ceded under 
the agreement (such amount shall include, but not be limited to, 
amounts for policy reserves, claims and losses incurred and 
unearned premium reserves); and 

( i v) To pay any other amounts the ceding insurer 
claims are due under the reinsurance agreement. 

(10) All of the foregoing provisions of paragraph 9 must be 
applied without diminution due to insolvency on the part of the 
ceding insurer or assuming insurer. 

(11) Nothing contained in paragraph 9 precludes the ceding 
insurer and as~uming insurer from providing for: 

(a) An interest payment, at a rate not in excess of the 
prime rate of interest, on the amounts held pursuant to 
Paragraph (9) (b) (iii), and/or 

(b) The return of any amounts drawn down on the letters of 
credit in excess of the actual amounts required for the above 
or, in the case of Paragraph (9)(b) (iv), any amounts that are 
subsequently determined not to be due. 

(12) When a letter of credit is obtained in conjunction 
with a reinsurance agree111ent covering risks other than life, 
annuities and health, where it is the custom and practice to 
provide a letter of credit for a specific purpose, then the 
reinsurance agreement may, in lieu of paragraph (9) (b) require 
that the parties enter into a "Trust Agreement" which may be 
incorporated into the reinsurance agreement or be a separate 
document. 

AlJTH: 
IMP: 

33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
33-2-1217 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

R!JLE L L!MITS ON USE OF LETTER OF CREDIT TO REDUCE 
LIABILITX (1) A letter of credit may not be used to reduce any 
liability for reinsurance ceded to an unauthorized assuming 
insurer in financial statements required to be filed vith this 
department unless an acceptable letter of credit with the filing 
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ceding insurer as beneficiary has been issued on or before the 
date of filing of the financial statement. Further, the 
reduction for the letter of credit may be up to the amount 
available under the letter of credit but no greater than the 
specific obligation under the reinsurance agreement which the 
letter of credit was intended to secure. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1217 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE LI OTHER SECURITY FOR PAYMENT OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER 
CONTBACT (1) A ceding insurer may take credit for unencumbered 
funds withheld by the ceding insurer in the United States 
subject to withdrawal solely by the ceding insurer and under its 
exclusive control as another form of security acceptable to the 
commissioner under 33-2-1217(2) (d), MCA. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE LII REINSURANCE CONTRACTS AS SECURITY (1) Credit 
will not be granted to a ceding insurer for reinsurance effected 
with assuming insurers meeting the requirements of these rules 
or otherwise in compliance with 33-2-1216, MCA, after the 
adoption of this rule, unless the reinsurance agreement: 

(a) Includes a clause which requires that the reinsurance 
is payable by the assuming insurer on the basis of the liability 
of the ceding insurer without diminution because of the 
insolvency of the ceding insurer; and 

(b) Includes a provision whereby the assuming insurer, if 
an unauthorized assuming insurer, has submitted to the 
jurisdiction of an alternative dispute resolution panel or court 
of competent jurisdiction within the United States, and has 
agreed to comply with all requirements necessary to give such 
court or panel jurisdiction, has designated an a9ent upon whom 
service of process may be effected, and has agreed to abide by 
the final decision of such court or panel. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216, 33-2-1217, and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE LII! CONTRACTS AFFECTED (1) All new and renewal 
reinsurance transactions entered into after Oct,ober 1, 1993, 
shall conform to the requirements and these rules if credit is 
to be given to the ceding insurer for such reinsurance. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: 33-2-1216, 33-2-1217, and 33-2-1517, MCA 

RULE I,JV FORM FOR SUBMITTING TO STATE AUTHORIT'i AND 
JUEISDICTION (1) The following is Form AR-1 to be used for 
filing by an accredited reinsurer with the colOIIIissioner, of 
evidence of submission to the state's jurisdiction and to the 
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state's authority to examine records as required by 33-2-1216(3) 
and (5), MCA. 

AUTH: JJ-1-313 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
IMP: JJ-2-1216 and 33-2-1517, MCA 
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FORM AR-1 
CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMING INSURER 

I, ----~---,:-;:,--..,,...----- -----,.,-,-...,-=------
(- of offiur) (lido of officer! 

of ____ _, __ "'7"_-.,.-:---..,---------------·lbe usuminc U\llum 
(Mille of UlllllliDg iaauer) 

Wider a reiDolltabco "iteeDIO.tll(s) wilh OM or - ~rers domiciled ill 

-----------~----------------------------------~Y~nicyt~ 
(name of stala) 

-------,(:--n-ame--o::-f usu--mm-.,..-~..,.---m-)-.,.------------•<" Assuminz Insurer'): 

I. Submiu to the junsdictioo of any court of competent jurisdiction in 

(C<IIilog insum-'s - of *""'cile) 
for the acijlldicatiO<l of any iuues arisill11 <lilt of the reillswaDce •&-t(s), agteeS 10 comply wilh all 
requiRIIDI'Ills ~y to give such COCidJUrisdi<:tioc, a:l4 will abide by lho fiml decision of ouch r.oun or any 
appellate CO\Irt in lbe event of an appal. Nolbini in this panarapb cooslituleS or should be uoderstood to 
conslltutc a waiver of Assuming lnsllrcr's ripts 10 COIIUllellce an action in any coun of competent jurisdiction 
in lbe United States, to reJDOvo an actioa 10 a United Stateo District Court, or to seek a tr.u~~~fer of a case to 
anolhcr court as permittc<l by the laws of lbe Unitc<l SIIUes or of any state in lhc United StaleS. This para!raph 
i• not mlaided 1<> conflict wuh or override the obligation of tho parties to the reinsurance agreemeut(s) to 
arbltrale theU di3putes if such an obliglllion is cteated in the agreemc~~t(s). 

2. Desip~A~CS the Insurance Col'OIIIiui<IIICr of ------,-~--:-----,:-----::-:--:-;:-..,.-----­
(cedins iuuet's swe of domicile) 

as iu lawiul all<lmey upon whom may lx: "'rved any lawful p_.,.. 111 any action, suit or proceeding arising 
out of the n>UIStltallce ag.,.ment(s) iastilutcd by or on beb.alf of the ceding insurer. 

). Submi.b to the authority of the Insuruo:c Commisaioner of 

-----.,--::----:----;-':---:-'~---------'to exaiJWie its books and records 
(ccdillg insurer's state of domicile) 

and apea 10 bear the oxpenso of any m:h e111111iu!ion. 

4. Submits with this form a cummt llsl of insurem domiciled in 

----,--,,-,.,.-.....,..--...,....,....-,-,.-------"'·III>Ul'ed by Asouming insurer and 
(cediug insum-'s slate of domicile) 

un~ to submit additions 1<> or .W,:tiou from the list to the Insurance Commissioner at least once per 
caiC!Id..- quancr. 

Dated: _______ _ 

(name of usuiDlDg insurer) 

By: __ ~--~~~--------------
(name of officer) 

(title of officer) 
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RULES REGARDING VALUATION OF-SECURITIES 

RULE LV VALUATION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN THOSE 
SPECIFICALLY REFERRED TO IN STATUTES (1) Securities and asset:s 
other than those specifically referred to in 33-2-532, 533, 534, 
and 535, MCA, must be valued in accordance with valuation 
standards of the NAIC published in its 1990 Accounting Practices 
and Procedures manual and its 1992 Valuation of Securities 
manual. 

(2) The department hereby adopts and incorporates herein 
by reference the standards adopted by the NAIC for valuation of 
securities and other investments appearing in its 1990 
Accounting Practices and Procedures manual and its 1992 
Valuation of SecuritiP.s manual. These are nationally-recognized 
models for such standards. Copies of the manuals are available 
for inspection at the office of the Commissioner of Insurance, 
Room 270, Sam W. Mitchell Building, Helena, Montana. Copies of 
the Accounting Practices and Procedures lnanual and the Valuation 
of Securities manual may be obtained by writing to the National 
Association of Insurance Commissioners, 120 West 12th street, 
suite 1100, Kansas City, MO 64105-1925. Persons obtaining 
copies of such manuals may be required to pay the NAIC's costs 
of providing such copies. 

AUTH: 33-1-313 and 33-2-533, MCA IMP: 33-2-533, MCA 

REASON: These rules are being proposed because they are 
mandated by Chapter 596, Laws of 1993. They substantially 
resemble the model regulation structure developed by the NAIC 
and will make Montana insurance regulation uniform with those of 
other states regarding eliqibility for national accreditation to 
enable insurers domiciled in Montana to do business in this 
state and other states with a maximum of financial stability and 
a minimum of regulatory difficulty, that encourages the start-up 
and expansion of insurance companies domiciled in Montana. 

6. Interested persons may present their data, views, or 
arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. written 
data, views, or arguments may also be submitted to Frank Cote, 
Deputy Commissioner of Insurance, P.O. Box 4009, Helena, Montana 
59604, and must be received no later than September 10, 1993. 

7. The state Auditor will make reasonable accommodations 
for persons with disabilities who wish to participate at this 
public hearing. If you request an accommodation, please contact 
the State Auditor's Office not later than 5:00p.m., August 30, 
1993, and advise the office of the nature of the accommodation 
needed. Please contact Frank Cote', Deputy commissioner of 
Insurance, P.O. Box 4009, Helena, Montana 59604; telephone (406) 
444~5237; toll free dial 1 and then 800-332-6148; fax (406) 444-
3497. 

15-3!12/93 MAR Clotice No. 6-·lO 



-liS(>.-

8. Geoffrey L. Brazier, 516 Harrison Avenue, Helene., 
Montana 59601, haa been designated to preside over and conduct 
the hearintJ. 

certified tc the secretary of State this 2nd day of August, 
1993. 
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BEFORE THE CLASSIFICATION AND RATING COMMITTEE 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

:n the matter of the adoption 
Jf new rules on matters subject 
~o ~otice and hearing before 
~he classificatcon and rating 
committee. 

TO: All Interested Persons. 

NOTICE OF PL~L~C 
HEARING 

l. On September 3, 1993, at 9 o'clock a.m., MDT, a public 
~ear~~g will be held in ~oom 136 of the Mitchell Building, l26 
North Roberts Street, Heler.a, Montana. The hearing will be to 
cons1.der ~he proposed adoption of ~ew rules pertaining to all 
matters subject to notice and hearing before the classificat~on 
and rating committee. 

2. ~he proposed new rules provide as follows: 

RULE : AGENCY ORGANIZATION \:) History. The dassi· 
£::.cation and rating comm1.ttee is created by statute. The 
district court held in cause No. BDV-91-1585, state of Montana, 
~irst judicial distrlct, entitled State Compensation Mutual 
cnsurance Fund v. R;E. Develooecs Inc. , decided August :.4, 
1992, that the classification and rating committee is a stace 
agency defined by 2-4-102. ~CA. As a scate agency, the 
classification and eating 'c:ommittee is cequired to promulgat:e 
9rocedural ,.-ules pursuant to the Montana Adminiscraci 'JP! 

?c·ocedure Act. In 1393, the legislature amended 36-16-1812, 
~CA, to give the committee express rulemaking authority. 

(21 Nature of committee. The classification and rating 
~ommit~ee is a state agency as aerLneo by 2-4-102, MCA. 
Documents and other lnformation concerning the classLfication 
and <:acing committee's actLons are made available for public 
rev~cw at the office of the commissioner of insurance. The 
classification and ratlng committee consists of five members, of 
'"hom four are appointed by the commissioner of 1nsurance and one 
is ~ppointed by the executive director of the state fund, as 
orcv1ded in 36-16-1011, MCA. The classification and ratinq 
comm:I.ttee is staffed as determined necessary by the National 
:ounc~l on Compensation !nsurance or such other workers' 
compensation racing organ1zat1on as the classification and 
racing committee may designate. 

(3) Inquiries and submissions. Unless otherwise provided 
in these rules or by s9ecial ~otice, all inqu1ries and 
submissions to the classification and rating committee should be 
~ade ~o che Montana Classification and Rating Committee in care 
of the National r:ouncil on Compensation Insurance, Two Tamarac 
Square, Suite 613, ~535 East Hampden Ave., Denver, CO 60231. 

>\U1H: Sec. 3:0·l6-L012, :<!CA. 
IMP: Se>c. 2-4-201; 33-16-1011; and 33-16-1012, ~CA. 
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RULE II APOPTION OF MOPEL RULES ( l) The :::lassifical:ion 
and ~ating committee adopcs and incorporates by reference the 
following of the attorney general's Model Procedural Rules: 

(a) 1.3.102; 
(bl 1.3.203 through 1.3.2ll; 
(c) 1.3.216; 
(d) 1.3.218; and 
(e) 1. 3. 222 through l. 3. 233. 

The attorney general's Model Procedural Rules are adopted 
on a selective basis because certain of the rules ar~ not 
consistent with the requirement contained in 33-16-1012, MCA, 
which provides that a hearing conducted before the committee 
must be an informal proceeding as provided in 2-4-604, MCA. 

( 2) A copy of the model rules adopted by the 
classification and rating committee may be obtained from the 
committee. 

AUTH: Sec. 33-16-1012. MCA 
IMP: Sec. 33-16·1012; 2-4-201; 2-4-202, MCA 

RULE III DEFINITIONS The following definitions apply to 
this subchapter, unless context or the oarticular rule requires 
otherwise: · 

(l) ·"Class~fication" means a category of risk based on the 
nature of ~he work performed. 

(2) "Classification decision" means the classification 
assigned by the insurer. 

(3) "Classification determination" means the determination 
made by the commit tee· of the appropriate classification. 

(4) "Committee" means the :::lassification and rating 
committee created under 33-16-1011, MCA. 

(5} "Insurer" means an authorized insurer ... riting workers • 
compensation coverage in this state, including the state 
compensation insurance fund. 

AUTH: Sec. 33-16-1012, MCA 
IMP: Sec. 33-16-1011; 33-16-1012, MCA 

RULE IV ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL OF CLASSIFICATION DECISION 
Ill An employer may appeal a classification decision by filing 
a notice of administrati~ appeal. The notice of administrative 
appeal must contain a short statement of the reasons for the 
appeal and a statement of the general nature of the relief 
sought. 

(3) The notice of administrative appeal must be filed with 
the classification and rating committee. 

AUTH: Sec. 33-16-1012. MCA 
IMP: Sec. 33-16-1011; 33-16-1012; 2-4-201, MCA 

RULE V GENERAL HEARING PROCEDURE (l) This rule 
implements 33-16-1012, MCA, by setting forth procedural steps 
that shall be followed in hearings for administrative appeals 
involving classification determinations. 

(2) Classification determination hearings must be informal 
proceedings held pursuant to 2-4-604, MCA. Classification 
determina<:: ion hearings are conducted in such a manner as to 
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asce!:"tain the substantial rights of the rarties. All issues 
celevant to the classification determination are conside!:"ed and 
passed upon. .'\.ny par::y and any .,.,itness may, under oath or 
affirmatlon, present pertinent evidence subject to examination 
by the commlttee and to cross-examinat:on by the opposlng party. 

(3) With t:he consent of the committee, the parties may 
sti.pulate in writing the facts of the case. A hearing .nay 
nevertheless be held if the committee finds such a stipulation 
~nadequate for determination in the administrative appeal. 

(4) :f any party fails to appear at the hearing, and good 
cause JUStify::..ng continuance is not shown, the committee may 
~ecide the issues and make a determination on the best evidence 
available. The hearlng may be postponed for good cause upon 
application to the commlttee orally or in writing before the 
hearlng is concluded. 

(5) 'The committee may cont::..nue any hearing for a 
reasonable period of time, in order to secure all the evidence 
that is necessary and co be fair to the parties. 

(6) The committee may appoint a hearing examiner to decide 
all pre-hearing macters and to conduct the hearing. While a 
party may request the appointment of a hearing examiner, the 
decision of whether to appoint a hearing examiner rests with the 
ccmmittee. 

AUTH: Sec. 33-16-1012, ~CA 

IMP: Sec. 33-16-1012; 2-4-603; 2·4-604, MCA 

RULE VJ NOTTCE OF HEARING (1) A hearing must be scheduled 
at a reguiar or special meeting of the committee. 

(2) Wr~tten not:ice of a hearing must be mailed to the 
part~es at least 20 days before the ~earing or conference. 

13) A hearing notice must comply with section 2-4-601, 
MCA, except that the hearing notice shall not contain a 
statement that a formal proceeding may be waived pursuant to 2-
4-603, MCA. The hearing notice shall contain a statement that 
the hearing must be an informal proceeding as provided in 2-4-
604, MCA. 

AUTH: Sec. 33·16-1012, MCA 
IMP: Sec. 33-16-1012; 2-4-201; 2-4-601; 2-4-604, MCA 

RULE VII PRE-HE;ARING EXCHANGE OF INFORMAIION (1) .".t 
least 10 days before a hearing, each par·ty must mail or deliver 
the following information or documents to the committee and to 
all other parties: 

(a) accurate copies of all documentary evidence; 
(b) the names, addresses and teleph.one numbers of all 

proposed witnesses; and 
(c) the telephone numbers where the parties and witnesses 

may be reached at the time of the hearing. 
i 2) 'The employer shall mark and identify each document 

constit·Jting t:!"le employer· s documentary evidence with a number, 
beglnn~ng '"i th the number "1". The insurer shall mark and 
identify each document of the insurer's documentary evidence 
with a letter, beginn1ng with the letter "A". 

I 3) Telephone numbers 01ay oe updated by either party at 
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any time prior to hearing. 
(4l The commitr;:ee may prescribe a form to be used in 

providing the information required by this rule. 
AUTH: Sec. 33-16-1012, MeA 
IMP: sec. 33-16-1012: 2-4-201; 2-4-602, MeA 

RQLE VIII TELEPHQNE HEaRINGS (1) A hearing may be held 
by telephone conference call. 

(2) An in-person hearing shall be scheduled in Helena if 
a party makes a written request for such a hearing ar;: least 5 
days before a scheduled telephone conference call hear~ng. 

AUTH: Sec. 33-16-1012, MeA 
IMP: Sec. 33-16-1012; 2-4-201; 2-3-202, MCA 

RQLE !X ESTABLISHMENT OF QLASSIFICATIQNS (1) The 
committee hereby adepts and incorporates by reference the NCCI 
Basic Manual for Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability 
Insurance, 1980 ed., as supplemented through August 12, 1993, 
which establishes classificaeions with respect. to employers 
electing to be bound by compensation plan No. 2 as provided in 
Title 39, chapter 71, parr;: 22, Montana Code Annotated. A copy 
of the Basic Manual for Workers• Compensacion and Employers 
Liability Insurance is available for public inspection at the 
Office of the Commissioner of Insurance, Room 270, Sam W. 
Mitchell Building, P.O. Box 200301, Helena, MT 59620-0301. 
Copies of the Basic Manual for Workers' Compensation and 
Employers Liability Insurance may be obeained by writing to the 
Montana Classification and Rating Committee in care of the 
National Council on compensation Insurance, Two Tamarac Square, 
Suite 613, 7535 East Hampden Ave., Denver, CO 80231. Persons 
obtaining a copy of the Basic Manual for Workers' Compensation 
and Employers Liability Insurance must pay the committee's cost 
of providing such copies. . 

(2) The committee may amend the definition of. a rate 
classification, establish a new rate classification, or deleee 
an existing rate classification pursuant to the rulemaking 
procedures as provided in Title 2, chapter 4, part 3, Montana 
Code Annotated and the applicable attorney general's Model 
Procedural Rules adopted by the committee. 

AUTH: Sec. 33-16-1012, MeA 
IMP: Sec. 33-16-1012; 2-4-103, MCA 

RULE X PQBLIC £bRTICIPA1IQN GUIDELINES (1) A con~inuing 
committee program for public participation shall be observed for 
each function of the committee. The exact mechanisms for public 
participation may vary in relation to the resources available, 
public response, or the nature of the issues involved. 

(2) The committee shall provide continuing policy, 
program, and technical information at the earliest practical 
time and at a place reasonably accessible to interested or 
affected persons or organizations so that they can make informed 
and constructive contributions to commit tee decision making. 
News releases and other publications may be used for this 
purpose as well as informat:ional discussions and meetings with 
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~nce::-ested groups. Effcr~s shall be made to summarize complex 
~nd technical mater~als for oublic and ~edia use. 

\3) The committee shalf have a procedure for disse!Tlinat '..en 
of 1nformacion to interested persons and organizations. 
~equescs ~or tnformation shall be promptly handled. 

-4) The committee shall have a procedure for early 
·:onsul~ation and exchance of v~ews with interested or affec:ed 
persons and organizati;ns an signif~cant activity pr~or :o 
decJ.sicn making. 

(S) The committee shall malntain a current list cf 
;.ncerested persons and organizations, including any who havP. 
~equested inclus1on 0n sucn llst, for the distribution ·~f 

1nfor:nat~on. The committee shall, in addition, not:~ry cJ.ny 
int.er':;:'sted persons ..:;f any public hear.:n·g or other deci.sicil_ 
maki~;_g proceedings prior to dec:!.-S:Lon making and whereve!" 
pract~cal shall supplement this notlfication WJ.th infor!Tlal 
notice to all interested persons or organizations having 
::-eauested such not ice in advance. The committee shall make 
av~ilable for public inspection committee meeting agendas ~nd 
agenda materials at the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance 
at least five days prior t:o a committee meeting. 

:6) Committee ~iles, other chan personnel files and those 
~c:..:.es required by law or require!Tlents of individual privacy to 
~emaln con:idential, are open to public inspection. These =iles 
are located at the office of the ~ational Committee on 
:ompensacion Insurance, Two Tamarac Square, Suite 613, 7535 East 
Hampden Ave., Denver, CO 80231. Copies of committee files are 
located at the Office of. the Commissioner of Insurance, Room 
278, Sam :v. :1itchell =>uilcing, ?.0. Sox 200301, Helena, MT 
59'"12C-03Qj,_. \-::Jpies ct spec1.fi.c documents are available from c~e 
~at:cnal Comm~ttee on Comoensation Insurance or the Office of 
the Commissioner of Insurance e~ther free or for a reasonable 
copying charge. 

i7) When the committee determines that a orooosed decision 
or act~on is of significant interest to the public, one person 
shall be designated as contact [Jerson with the public on the 
proposed decision or action. 

\8) The listing of specific measures in this section shall 
not preclude additional techniques for obtaining, encouraging or 
assisting public participation. 

AUTH: Sec. 33-16-1012, MCA 
IMP: Sec. 2-3-103, MCA 

3. These rules are being proposed by reason of ::-ecent 
legislation. On April 24, 1993, H.E. 587 became effective. 
il.a. 587 revises sections 33-16-1011 and 33-16-1012, MCA, to, 
among other things, provide that the classification and rating 
committee (1) makes the final determinat~on regarding the 
establishment of classifications and (2) makes rules necessary 
for the ::onduct of business subject to notice and hearing, 
including review of employer objections to classifications 
asslgned to the employer by an insurer. The classification and 
ratlng committee finds it necessary to adopt rules to implement 
"·a. 587. 
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4. Interested persons may present their data, views, or 
argument:s, either orally or .i.n writing, at ::he hearing. Written 
data, views, or arguments may also be submitted to: 

Robert Carlson, Chairperson 
Montana Classification and Rating Committee 
c/o National Council on Compensation Insurance 
Two Tamarac Square, Suite 613 
7535 Bast Hampden Avenue 
Denver, co 80231 

Comments must be received :to later than September 13, 1993. 

5. The classification. and rating committee will make 
reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish 
to participate in chis public hearing. If you request an 
accommodation, please contact the Office of the Commissioner of 
Insurance no later than September 1, 1993, and advise the office 
of the nature of the accommodation needed. Please contact Bill 
Lombardi, Executive Assistant, Office of the Commissioner of 
Insurance, Room 270, sam W. Mitchell Building, P.O. Box 200301, 
Helena, MT 59620-0301; Teleohone (406) 444-2495; toll :ree dial 
1 and then aoo-332-6148; fax 444-3497. 

5. Katharine S. Donnelley, Box 1697, Helena, MT 59624, 
has been designated to preside over and conduct the hearing. 

By 1 .Afh;, r; .,eea; 
Robert carleon, Cb&irper•on 
Cla••tfica~ion and Ra~ing committe~ 

By, r.J.~.,~~ Geoff yazier:~ e Reviewer 
Stace Auditor's Office 

Certified to the Secretary of State August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF FUNERAL SERVICE 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the proposed 
amendment of rules pertalning 
to fees and unprofessional 
conduct, and adoption of new 
rules pertaining to crematory 
facility regulation, casket/ 
containers, shipping cremated 
numan remains, identifying 
~etal disc, processing of 
cremated remains, and crematory) 
prohibitions 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
AND ADOPTION OF RULES 
PERTAINING TO CREMATORIES 

NO P~~LIC HEARING CONTEMPLATED 

TO: All ~nterested Persons: 
1. on September 11, 1993, the Board of Funeral Service 

proposes to amend and adopt rules pertaining to crematories. 
2. The Board is proposing to amend ARM 8.30.407 and 

8.30.701 as follows.: (new matter underlined, deleted matter 
interlined) 

"8.30.407 FEE SCHEDULE 
(1/ Morticians. crematory OJ;lerat.or. $75. oo 

crematory technician 
( 2 I through ( 4) (c) will remain the same. 
ldl Crematory operator. crematory 40. oo 

technician 
(d) will remain the same but will be renumbered (el . 
+e+ lil Late renewal penalty mortuary 100.00 

and crernatorv license (paid in addition to 
renewal feel 

(5) and (6) will remain the same. 
(7) Crematory application fee (includes 100.00 

original license feel 
(8! Crematory original inspection fee ~ 
(91 Crematory renewal · segarate ~ 

facility 
!10) Crematory renewal attached to ~ 

mortuary 
ill) Crematory temporary permit ~" 
Auth: Sec. 37-1-134, 37-19-202, 37-19-703, MCA; JME, 

Sec. 37-1-134, 37-19-402, 37-19-403, 37-19-"02, 37-19-703, MCA 

REA$0N: ~he proposed amendment will set the fee schedule for 
the application, licensing, renewal and inspection of 
crematory operator, ~rematory technician and crematory 
facilities, as mandated by the 1993 Legislature. 

"8.30.701 UNPROFESSIONAL CONDUCT (1) through (1) (y) 
will remain the same. 

l5-S/l2/93 :1AR :lor.ice :lo. 8-30-22 
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<zl removing or possessing dental gold or dental silver 
frqm deceased persons without specific written permisaion of 
the authorized agent. 

<aal attaching. detaining. claiming to detain. or 
failing to r~lease any buman remains or burnan cremated remains 
fgr agy debt or demand. or upon anv pretended lien or charges 
upon deliyery of authorization for release of remains.• 

Auth: Sec. 37-1-131, 37-1·136, 37-19·202, 37·19-311, ~ 
~. MCA; ~. Sec. 37·1-136, 37-19-311, 37-19·404, MCA 

&EASQN; The proposed amendment will add two specific areas of 
concern regarding removal of dental gold and silver, and 
attaching human remains as a "lien,• which the Board has not 
been able to specifically discipline for in the past, but 
which does constitute unprofessional conduct. 

3. The proposed new rules will read as follows: 

"I CREMATORY FACILITY REGULATION (1) Each location of 
a crematory facility is considered a separate location and 
must be licensed separately from a mortuary, even though they 
may share the same common building. 

(2) The crematory facility shall comply with all local, 
state and federal building codes and regulations regarding 
environmental impact on the area in which it is located. 

(3) The crematory facility shall provide plans to the 
board on the interior design and placement of the crematory 
retort which shall be in a completely fire-proof building and 
exterior design which includes size and placement of smoke 
stack and emissions of sediment or smoke from it. 

(4) All crematory facilities shall carry full fire 
protection insurance necessary for operation. 

(5) The telephone number of the fire department or rural 
fire district serving the crematory facility shall be posted 
in large bold numbers in a conspicuous place near all 
telephones in the crematory facility as well as in the office, 
if attached to a mortuary facility. 

(6) The crematory operator is responsible for the 
maintenance and safe operation of retort equipment used in 
cremations. 

(7) All crematory facilities shall be kept and 
maintained in a clean and sanitary condition and all 
appliances used in the cremation process of dead human bodies 
shall be thoroughly cleansed and disinfected. 

(8) Floors and walls shall be constructed of an 
impervious material. 

(9) Used caskets or casket parts shall be placed in a 
storage room not available to the public view. 

(10) When the crematory facility is unable to cremate 
human remains immediately upon taking custody, the human 
remains shall be placed in a holding area which shall be 
marked •private• or •authorized personnel only.• 

~uth: Sec. 37-19-202, 37-19-703, MCA; LMf, Sec. 37-19· 
703. 37-19-705, MCA 

MAR Not~ce No. 8-30-22 15-8/12/93 
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~EASON; The proposed new rule will sec forth crematory 
regulations on location, building codes,. plans, insuran~e, 
fire protection, equipment, sanitation, materials,- s.torage, 
and holding areas, as the 1993 Legislature mandateQ~rematory 
licensing. for the first time in Montana. · 

"II CASKET/CONTAINERS Ill All caskets and alternative 
containers for cremation shall meet the ·following standards; 

(a) be able to be- closed to provide a complete covering 
for the human remains; 

lbl be composed of readily combustible materials 
suitable for cremation; 

(c) be resistant to leakage or spillage; 
ldl be sufficient for handling with ease; 
(e) be able to provide protection for the health and 

safety of crematory personnel. 
(2) The crematory facility, at its discretion, has the 

right to remove noncombustible materials such as handles or 
rails from caskets or containers prior to cremation and to 
discard them with similar materials from other cremations and 
other refuse in a non-recoverable manner." 

Auth; sec. 37-19-202, 37-19-703, MCA; lMf, Sec. 37-19-
705, MCA 

REASON; The_proposed new rule will provide standards for 
caskets and other containers to provide guidance for 
crematories being licensed for the first time as mandated by 
the 1993 Legislature. 

":CII SHIPPING CREMATED !UlMAN REMAINS (1) Cremated 
human remains sent through the U.S. mail must be marked, 
t·egistered, insured, sealed and properly addressed. 

12) Cremated human remains may also be shipped through a 
common carrier that has an internal tracing system. 

( 3 l Cost of mailing or shipping· shall be paid by "the 
authorized agent.• 

AUth; Sec. 37-19·202, 37-19-703, MCA; JMf, Sec. 37-19-
705, MCA 

~EASON; The proposed new rule will provide standards for 
shipping cremated human remains to provide guidance for 
crematories being licensed for the first time as mandated by 
the 1993 Legislature. 

"IV IDENTIFYING METAL DISC (1) It shall be the 
responsibility of the crematory operator, crematory technici~n 
or mortician to see that an identifying metal disc is attached 
to each receptacle containing human remains. When remains are 
to be cremated, the disc initially shall be secured to the top 
of the head end of the casket or alternate container. During 
the cremation process the disc shall be placed on the control 
panel, outside the retort. 

12) The identifying metal disc shall be held on the 
outside control panel of the retort. The disc shall then be 
placed with the cremated remains inside the urn and the 
plastic liner. 

15-8/12/93 MAR Not~ce No. 8-30-22 
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(3) The identifying metal disc shall be properly secured 
to each receptacle containing human remains when :he remains 
are delivered to a cemetery, columbarium or mausoleum. 

(4) In the case of scattering of cremated remains by a 
licensee, :he identifying metal disc shall be made a part of 
the licensee's permanent record.• 

Auth: Sec. 37·19-202, 37·19-703. MCA: mf, Sec. 37·19-
704, 37·19·705, MCA 

REA$0N; The proposed new rule will set up a system for 
identification of the human remains to avoid potential 
problems as reported in other states with non-identified 
remains. ~he regulations will inform crematories of the 
procedure to be used, as the crematories are be~ng licensed 
for the first time, as mandated by the 1993 Legislature. 

"V I?RQCESSING OF CR@".ATEP REMAINS ( 1) Upon completion 
of the cremation process, all residual of the cremation 
process shall be removed form the retort and the cremation 
chamber swept cleaned. The residual remains shall be placed 
within a container or tray in such a way that will ensure 
against commingling with other cremated remains. The 
identifying metal disc shall be removed from the control panel 
areaand attached to the container or tray to await final 
processing. 

(2) All residual of :he cremation process shall undergo 
final processing. 

(3) Should the cremated remains or processed remains not 
adequately fill the container's interior dimensions, the extra 
space may be filled with packing material that will not become 
intermingled with the cremated remains or processed remains, 
and then securely closed. 

(4) When a temporary container is used to return the 
cremated remains or processed remains, the container shall be 
placed within a sturdy box and all box seams taped closed to 
increase the security and integrity of that container. The 
outside of the container shall be clearly identified with the 
name of the deceased person whose cremated remains are 
contained there.• 

Auth: sec. 37-19-202, 37-19-703, MCA; mf, Sec. 37·19-
704, 37-19-705, 37-19-706, MCA 

RSASQN; ~he proposed new rule will provide procedures for 
processing of cremated human remains, to inform newly licensed 
crematory operators and technicians, as mandated by the 1993 
Legislature. 

"VI CREMAIORY PROHIBITIONS (1) It is prohibited to 
cremate fetuses, limbs, and bodv parts from private or public 
health agencies, medical doctors or colleges and universities 
unless appropriate permits and releases are provided to the 
crematory facility. 

(2) Copies of such permits and releases shall remain 
with the crematory facility and ~he parties contracting for 
t~e crernat~on serv~ces. 

MAR Notice No. 8-30-22 15-8/12/93 
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(3) Cremacion of animals or pees of any type, is 
strictly prohibited in a crematory facility designed for 
;::remation of human remains." 

Auth: Sec. 37·19-202, 37·19·703, MCA: ~. Sec. 37-19-
704, 37·19·705, 37-19-706, 37-19-707,37-19-708, MCA 

REASON: The proposed new rule will sec fort:h prohibitions on 
crematories to inform newly licensed operators and ~echnicians 
of the behaviors which are-·not allowed under their new license 
mandated by the 1993·Legislature. 

'l.. Interested persons may pr!!sl'!rtt their data, views or 
arguments concerning the proposed amendments and adoptions in 
writing to the Soard of Funeral Service, Lower Level, Arcade 
3uilding, 111 North Jackson, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 
59620-0513, to be received· no lat:et than 5:00p.m., September 
3. 1993. 

5. If a person who is .. direc;tly affected by t:he proposed 
amendments and adoptions wishes to present his data, views or 
arguments orally or in writing at a public hearing, he must 
make written request for a hearing and submit the request 
along with any comments he has eo t:he Board of Funeral 
Service, Lower Level, Arcade Building, 111 North Jackson, P.O. 
3ox 200513 Helena, Montana 59620·0513, to be received no later 
than 5:00p.m., September 9, 1993. 

6. If the Board receives requests for a public hearing 
on the proposed amendments and adoptions from either 10 
percent·or 25, whichever is less, of those persons who are 
directly affect:ed by the proposed amendments and adoptions, 
=ram the Administrative Code Committee of the legislature, 
from a governmental agency or subdivision or from an 
association having no less than 25 members who will be 
directly affected, a hearing will be held at a later date. 
Notice of the hearing will be published in the Montana 
Administrative Register. ·Ten percent of those persons 
directly affected has been determined to be 47 based on the 
466 licensees and applicants in the state of Montana. 

BOARD OF FUNERAL SERVICE 
GUY M!SBR, CHAIRMAN 

.--; 

/ J/ --i ---,. k 
BY: "1,1:(, t ,V ,J1. (g{. · 

ANNIE 'M.BARTOS, CHIEF COUNSEL 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

ANNIE M. BARTOS, RULE REVIEWER 

Certified to the Secretary of State, August 2·, l993. 
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGISTS 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the proposed 
amendment of rules pertaining 
to application procedures, 
examination and fee schedule 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
OF 8.52.604, 8.52.608 AND 
9.52.616 PERTAINING TO 
THB PRACTICE OF PSYCHOLOGY 

NO PUBLIC HEARING CONTEMPLATED 

TO: All Interested Persons: 
1. On Sept~er 11, 1993, the Board of Psychologists 

proposes to amend the above-stated rules. 
2. The proposed amendments will read as follows: (new 

matter underlined, deleted matter interlined) 

"8.52.604 APPLICATION PROCEDQRES (l) through (1) (c) 
will remain the same. 

(2) A completed application file shall consist of the 
completed and notarized application !arm, transcripts of all 
graduate work completed, program and course descriptions f=om 
the oHicial college catalog(s), three work samples, and 
completed reference forms from a min~ of five references of 
good moral character. An application ~ile must be complete at 
least ~ iQ days in advance of the April or October 
examination dates. 

(a) through (5) (a) will remain the same.• 
Auth: Sec. 37-l-131, 37-17-202, MCA; IM£, Sec. ~ 

.l.QZ, MCA 

REASQN: The proposed amendment will give the Board a greater 
length of time for application evaluation, as the current 60 
day requirement does not always allow sufficient time for 
review, gathering of supplemental material and making a 
decision on the applications before the candidates must be 
notified of the exam date and time. 

"8.52.608 EXAMINATIQH (1) The applicant will be 
notified of the examination time schedule at least 1 ~ l 
~ in advance. This examination schedule will establish: 
tiMe(s), place(s), the amount o! the examination fee, and 
other pertinent information and/or instructions. 

(2) The board shall determine the subject matter and 
scope of specialized psychological areas and techniqua. for 
the examination. Examinations will oe written and oral. 
These will be conducted by the board or its duly constituted 
representative(s). The written examinations developed by the 
national licensing program with the support of the American 
association of state psychology boards may be given. The 
acceptable level of performance on the written examination 
shall be eeeerm~fted bl !fte bears eases ee neeieftal Berms as 
eseseliefte4 by ehe ~erieae aeeseiaeies e! seaee pe,ehel~ 
bearSs er as eseaelisfted bl ehe pre•essieBal e~HBRineeieft 
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seniee ,.'ftiel't ~!'eo'id:es l::h:e e-inel:.:.el'\ aftd: will l:!e etl'\ftettl'\ee!l. 
ift B:li uaftee 1.0.1. · 

(3) through (5) will remain the same." 
Auth: Sec. 37-l-131, 37-17-202, MCA; IMf, Sec. ~ 

lQ.l, MCA 

REA£0N: The proposed amendment to subsection (l) will allow 
for a minimum of two weeks notification of the exam schedule, 
as the Board often cannot meet and make application decisions 
in time to send notification a full month in advance. 

The proposed amendment to (2) will set the passing rate 
in Montana at 70%, as recommended by the national examination 
service. 

"8.52.616 fEE SCHEDULE (1) The department will collect 
the following fees, none of which are refundable: 

(a) ~ill remain the same. 
(b) Examination fee ~ ~ 
(c) will remain the same." 
Auth: Sec. 37-1-134, 37-17-202, MCA: IMf, Sec. ~ 

.l1U.. 37-17-303, 37-17-307, 37-17-307, MCA 

REA80N: The proposed amendment will raise the examination fee 
to $275.00, to reflect the higher fee now being charged by the 
national examination service. 

3. Interested persons may present their data, views or 
arguments concerning the proposed amendments in writing to the 
Board of Psychologists, Lower Level, Arcade Building, 111 
North Jackson, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, to 
be received no later than 5:00p.m., September 9, 1993. 

4. If a person who is directly affected by the proposed 
amendments ~ishes to present his data, views or arguments 
orally or in writing at a public hearing, he must make written 
request for a hearing and submit the request along with any 
comments he has to the Board of Psychologists, Lower Level, 
Arcade Building, 111 North Jackson, P.O. Box 200513 Helena, 
Montana 59620-0513, to be received no later than 5:00p.m., 
September 9, 1993. 

5. If the Board receives requests for a public hearing 
on the proposed amendments from either 10 percent or 25, 
whichever is less, of those persons who are directly affected 
by the proposed amendments, from the Administrative Code 
Committee of the legislature, from a governmental agency or 
subdivision or from an association having no less than 25 
members who will be directly affected, a hearing will be held 
at a later date. Notice of the hearing will be published in 

lS-8/12/93 ~~R ~otice ~o. 8-52-13 
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the Montana Administrative Register. Ten percent of those 
persons directly affected has been determined to be 2 based on 
the approximately 20 applicants in the state of Montana. 

30ARD OF PSYCHOLOGISTS 
DAVID SCHULDBERG, Ph.D. 
CHAIRMAN 

r;. -,t: 
BY: ( fta 14 f1r · 06l·'-

ANNIE M. BARTOS, CHIEF COUNSEL 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

ANNIE M. BARTOS, RULE REVIEWER 

Certified to the Secretary of State, August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF SPEECH-LANGUAGE 
PATHOLOGISTS AND AUDIOLOGISTS 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter at the proposed 
amendment of rules pe:ceaining 
co aide suoervision and non­
allowable functions of aides 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
OF 8.62.502 SCHEDULE OF 
SUPERVISION · CONTENTS AND 
8.62.504 NONALLOWABLE FUNCTIONS 
OF AIDES 

NO PUBLIC HEARING CONTEMPLATED 

70: All Interested Persons: 
1. On September 11, 1993, the Board of Speech-Language 

Pathologists proposes to amend the above-stated rules. 
2. The proposed amendments will read as follows: (new 

matter underlined, deleted matter interlined) 

"8.62.502 SCHEDULE OF SUPERVISION- CONTENTS (1) will 
remain the same. 

(2) Aides must be supervised appre~imately 29' ~i the 
::l.:._Ht -el'i&raet t:fme, ef wh.:.eh tel'i pere-Ht :1811) ftft!S!! 5e i!ireet 
eaHeaeE a minimum of 20% of their weekly contact hours. Ten 
oercenh of total weekly contract hours must be completed with the 
supervisor ohysically present on site. during the aide's 
interaction with clientfsl in a therapy programming situation. 

Example: aide is contracted for 30 hours per week: total 
superyision at 20% of 30 hours is 6 hours per week: direct 
superyision at 10% of 30 hours is 3 hours per week.> • 

Auth: sec. 37-15-202. MCA; !Mf, Sec. 37-15-102, 37-15-313, 
MCA 

REASON: This proposed amendment will clarify the direct 
supervision required when employing a speech language pathology 
aide, as the present language could be interpreted in two 
different ways. The requirement is for direct physical 
supervision of the speech language pathology aide for 10% of the 
total weekly work hours the speech language pathology aide is 
working. 

"8.52.504 NONALLOWABLE FUNCTIONS Of .IUPES (l) through 
( 2) If) will remain the same. 

i3) Speeeh aiaes whe were _e~iseeree =i~h the eeara ee~~eeH 
the dates ei A~~~s~ 1, 1988 aHa J~fte 1, 1989, aHa whe were 
alle .. ea, as part ai 'ehei!' re'!JiseratieB plaH, te eefta~et 
e•al~at.:.eHs afta partiei~aEe ea CS~s aaa IEPs will eeatiH~e ~e be 
al'ewea ce ~erfe~ ~hese aeei.ities ~aaer s~peF\isiea if the~ are 
earellea iH a ~raa~a'ee ~re~ram fer the p~rpese ef eaMPlet:iB~ 
l.:.eeHstire re~iremeats. llawe•er, speeefi aides whe fall ~fide­
this s~bsee&ieH m~s'e meet lieeHstire re~~ir_meaes e~ sep'eembe-. 
:992, er the~ will ae leH~er ee aele to eeHa~et ehese aetivieies. 
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epee a~ai _egiseraeioft, ehese aiaes ~se ~re•iee ee ehe ~eara 
'>'eri!.:.eaeieft e£ eettiseworlt lre111 t:fle gradttaee seheel ~regrl!llll 
aeeaiftee eewerd lie-ftsttre re~irelfteftes.• 

Auth: Sec. 37·15-202, MCA; lMf, Sec. 37-15-102, MCA 

REASON: This amendment is being proposed because the time limits 
set forth have now expired and the section is no longer 
necessary. 

3. Interested persons may present their data, views or 
arguments concerning the proposed amendments in writing to the 
Board of Speech-Language Pathologists and Audiologists, Lower 
Level, Arcade Building, 111 North Jackson, P.O. Box 200513, 
Helena, Montana 59620-0513, to be received no later than 5:00 
p.m., September 9, 1993. 

4. If a person who is directly affected by the proposed 
amendments wishes to present his data, views or arguments orally 
or in writing at a public hearing, he must make written request 
for a hearing and submit the request along with any comments he 
has to the Board of Speech-Language Pathologists and 
Audiologists, Lower Level, Arcade Building, 111 North Jackson, 
P.O. Box 200513 Helena, Montana 59620-0513, to be received no 
later than 5:00p.m., September 9, 1993. 

5. If the Board receives requests far a public hearing on 
the proposed amendments from either 10 percent or 25, whichever 
is less, of those persons who are directly affected by the 
proposed amendments, from the Administrative Code Committee of 
the legislature, from a governmental agency or subdivision or 
from an association having no less than 25 members who· will be 
directly affected, a hearing will be held at a later date. 
Notice of the hearing will be published in the Montana 
Administrative Register. Ten percent of those persons directly 
affected has been determined to be 38 based on t·he approximately 
388 licensees in the state of Montana. 

BOARD OF SPEECH-LANGUAGE 
PATHOLOGISTS AND AUDIOLOGISTS 
CARL CLARK, CHAIRMAN 

BY: (/L~ 1/fJ 'E~ . ..k 
ANNIE M. BARTOS, CHIEF COUNSEL 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

ANNIE M. BARTOS, RULE REVIEWER 

Certified to the Secretary of State, August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE BOARD-OF MILK CONTROL 
OF THE STATE OP MONTANA 

In the matter of proposed 
amendment of rule 8.86.301 
As it relates to the monthly 
calculation of the class I 
milk paid to producers 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

NO PUBLIC HEARING CONTEMPLATED 

DOCKET #17-93 

TO: ALL LICENSEES UNDER THE MONTANA MILK CONTROL ACT 
(SECTION Bl-23-101, MCA, AND FOLLOWING), AND ALL INTERESTED 
PERSONS: 

1. on September 20, 1993, the board of milk control 
(board) proposes to amend ARM 8.86.301(6) (a) on the board's 
own motion. The proposed change is in response to house bill 
516, passed by the 1993 legislature, which will fund t~e milk 
and egg bureau of the department of livestock. In that law, 
which was effective on July 1, 1993, the legislature mandated 
the collection of an assessment fee of $.1497 per 
hundredweight (CWT) from the milk producer and that cost 
reflect as an increase in the producer's price. The 
legisla~ure determined that the actual cost be assessed on the 
consuming public and that this was in the best interest and 
welfare of the public as a whole. 

2. The rule as proposed to be amended provides as 
follows: (full text of the rule is located at pages 8-2529 
thru B-2549, Administrative Rules of ~ontana) (new matter 
underlined, deleted rnatter interlined) 

"8.86.301 PRICING RULES 
(1)-(6) remains the same. 
(a) The minimum prices which shall be paid to producers 

by distributors in the state of Montana shall be calculated by 
either applying the flexible economic formula described below 
or the Minnesota-Wisconsin series plus three aellars ($3.88) 
three dollars and fifteen cents ($3.151 whichever price is 
lower. The flexible economic formula utilizes a November 1969 
base equalling 100, an interval of 4.5 and consists of seven 
(7) factors. The factors and their assigned weights are as 
follows: 

( i) 

(ii) 

UQ:QB 
Unemployment US 
(6.67 (3.3 - C) + 100) .05 
Unemployment MT. 
(6.67 (6.1 - C) + 100) .10 

lS-8/12/93 
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*(iii) Weekly Wages - Total private 
(Revised and seasonally 
adjusted) 15% .1329787:3 

(iv) Prices Received by Farmers -
MT. ( 1 47 - '49 = 100) 15% .22960139 

(V} Mixed Dairy Feed 20% • 32258065 
(vi) Alfalfa Hay 12% .48000000 
(vii) Prices Paid by Farmers - us 

( 1 67 = 100) 2H .41990335 

100% 

*Nate: The reported revised weekly wage - total private 
is seasonally adjusted by dividing each months revised figures 
by the following factors: Jan. - .9867; Feb. - .9832; March -

.9809; April - .9822; May - .9911; June - 1.0053; July -
1.0165; August - 1.0261; Sept. - 1.0136; Oct. - 1.0192; Nov. -

1.0047; Dec. - .9905. 

The following table will be used in computing producer 

TABLE I 
Producer price determination using above formula with 

November, 1969 - 100 and an interval - 4.5 

FORMULA INDEX 
201.5 - 205.1 
206.0 - 209.6 
210.5 - 214.1 
215.0 - 218.6 
219.5 - 223.1 
224.0 - 227.6 
228.5 - 232.1 
233.0 - 236.6 
237.5 - 241.1 
242.0 - 245.6 
246.5 - 250.1 
251.0 - 254.6 
255.5 - 259.1 
260.0 - 263.6 
264.5 - 268.1 
269.0 - 272.6 
273.5 - 277.1 
278.0 - 281.6 
282.5 - 286.1 
287.0 - 290.6 

(i)-(14} (b) remains the same." 

AUTH: 81-23-302, MCA 
IMP: 81-23-302, MC.ll, 
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3. ARM 8.86.301(6) (a) is being amended to ensure the 
$.1497 per CWT deduction from milk producers, to fund the milk 
and egg bureau (dept. of Livestock) and mandated by H.B. 516, 
be passed through to the consuming public. 

4. Interested parties may submit their data, views, or 
arguments concerning the proposed amendment in writing to the 
Milk Control Bureau, 1520 East Sixth Avenue~Room 50, PO Box 
200512, Helena, MT 59620-0512. Any comments must be received 
no later than September 18, 1993. 

5. If a person who is directly affec~ed by the proposed 
amendment wishes to express his data, views and arguments 
orally or in writing at a public hearing, he must make written 
request for a hearing and submit this request along with any 
written comments he has to the Milk Control Bureau, 1520 East 
Sixth Avenue-Room 50, PO BOX 200512, Helena, MT 59620-0512. A 
written request must be received no later than september 18, 
1993. 

6. If the agency receives requests for a public hearing 
on the proposed amendment from either 10% or 25, whichever is 
less, of the persons who are directly affected by the proposed 
action; from the Administrative Code Committee of the 
legislature; from a governmental subdivision or agency; or 
from an association having not less than 25 members who will 
be directly affected, a hearing will be held at a later date. 
Notice of the hearing will be published in the Montana 
Administrative Register. Ten percent of those persons 
directly affected has been determined to be (18) persons based 
on (176) producers and (5) licensed Montana distributors. 

MONTANA BOARD OF MILK CONTROL 
MILTON J. OLSEN, hairman 

Certified to the secretary of State August 2, 1993. 

15-8!12/93 MAR Notice No. B-86-48 
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BEFORE THE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the proposed 
amendment and adopt~on of rules) 
pertaining to the microbus1ness) 
finance program ) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED ~~ENDMENT AND ADOPTION 
OF RULES PERTAINING TO THE MICRO-

_ BUSINESS FINANCE PROGRAM 

TO: All Interested Persons: 
1. On September 3, 1993, a public hearing will be held 

in the downstairs conference room of the Department of 
commerce building, 1424 - 9th Avenue, Helena, Montana, to 
consider the proposed amendment and adoption of rules 
pertaining to the Microbusiness Finance Program. 

2. The Business Development Division is proposing to 
amend ARM 9.99.401, 8.99.404, 8.99.501, 8.99.503, 8.99.505, 
8.99.509, and 8.99.511. The proposed amendments will read as 
follows: (new matter underlined, deleted matter interlined) 

"8.99 401 DEFINITIONS As used in this sub-chapter, the 
following definitions apply: 

(1) through (19) will remain the same. 
(20) "Statewide MBDC" means an MBDC that meets all 

requirements for statewide certification stated herein, and, 
has a viable plan to provide specialized services to 
constituents throughout che state, and does not preempt or 
duplicate efforts of MBDCs within local communities~ 
eb~aifis wrie~eft indieatiens e£ s~~~ert !rem 'eeal !ffiBCs ia the 
eel!llllt~fiit:ies ift 'whieh .:.e !:'lane ee ef:fer it!!! eervieee." 

Auth: sec. 17-6-4Q6, MCA; IM£, Sec. 17-6-406, 17-6·408, 
MCA 

R&ASQN: Senate Bill 161, enacted by the 1993 Legislature, 
amended the Montana Microbusiness Development Act by deleting 
the requirement that a statewide MBDC obtain written support 
from local development organizations in every community in 
which it plans to offer its services. This requirement 
presented a serious barrier to developing a statewide MBDC 
because it necessitated that the prospective MBDC to obtain 
numerous written support documents. This "housekeeping" 
amendment to the department's administrative rules is 
necessitated by the statutory change. 

"8.99.4Q4 CERTIFICATION OF REGIONAL MICROBUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATIONS ( 1) through ( 4) (e) will remain the 
same. 

(f) evidence of meeehing collateral funds. Such 
evidence shall include a legally binding commitment from a 
governmental entity, organization, business, and/or individual 
pledging at least $1 for every ~ ~ in development loan to be 
borrowed from the program. Meee~ift! Collateral tunds must be 
in cash available for deposit with the development loan, or to 
be pledged as collateral for the development loan. Leveraging 
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of development loan funds through banks or other lending 
institutions does not constitute mateh~a~ collateral funds. 

(g) and (h) will remain the same." 
Auth: Sec. 17-6-406, MCA; ~' Sec. 17-6-409, MCA 

REA$0N: Senate Bill 161 amended the Montana Microbusiness 
Development Act by substituting the '"ord "collateral" for the 
word "match." This change will allow collateral to leverage 
other funds for MBDC operations or loan fund purposes. 

Senate Bill 161 also reduced the minimum collateral ratio 
from 1:3 to 1:6. These statutory changes necessitated the 
"housekeeping" amendments to the department'S administrative 
rules noted above. 

"8.99,501 DEVE:LO!?MENT LOAN - CRITERIA (1) through 
(2) (a) will remain t!le same. 

ibl legally binding commitment(s) for maeehin~ 
collateral funds; 

(c) through (4) ld) will remain the same." 
Auth: Sec. 17-6-406, MCA; ];Mf, Sec. 17-6-406, 17-6-407, 

MCA 

RE8SON: senate Bill 161, amended the Montana Microbusiness 
Development Act by substituting the word "collateral" for the 
word "match." This change will allow collateral to leverage 
other funds for MBDC operations or loan fund purposes. This 
''housekeeping• amendment to the department's administrative 
rules is necessitated by this statutory change. 

"8.99.503 DEVELOPMENT LOAN - INTEREST (1) and (2) will 
remain the same. 

(3) The interest rate set in the development loan 
agreement may nee ee iae~eased d~Fia~ tfie eer-m ei the lean, 
~may be reduced at the department's discretion. The Fate 
ef interest!-~ net :ee lees than J'lr a yeaF." 

Auth: Sec. 17-6-406, MCA; IMf, Sec. 17-6-406, MCA 

REASON: Senate Bill 161 amended the Montana Microbusiness 
Development Act by eliminating the three percent minimum 
interest rate for development loans. This change necessitated 
a corresponding amendment to the department's administrative 
rules. 

The Department is also proposing this amendment to allow 
it and the MBDC's greater flexibility in negotiating loan 
agreement provisions. For example, under certain 
circumstances, an MEDC may wish to negotiate a variable 
interest rate with a predetermined maximum. The proposed 
amendment would not affect the current four percent maximum 
interest rate. 

"8. 99.505 DeyELOPMENT LOAN - MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS AND 
COLLATERAL ( 1 l P!atehin~ Collateral funds must be provided in 
cash. Leverage provided by financial institutions committing 
to make microbusiness loans in consequence of a guarantee fund 
established with the development loan funds does not 
constitute cash~ collateral. 
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(2) The development loan agreement between the 
department and an MBDC must specify account(s), or type of 
account(s), into which the full amount of the cash~ 
collateral must be deposited before the development loan may 
be disbursed to the MBDC, except that, when the MBDC presents 
a legally binding commitment for cash ~ collater~l from a 
federal agency contingent only upon disbursement of the 
development loan, the development loan may be disbursed prior 
to deposit of that committed federal portion of the cash ~ 
collateral. 

(3) In order to assist an MSDC in obtaining ~ 
collateral from other sources, the department may provide a 
legally binding commitment to an MBDC to award a development 
loan, contingent on receipt and deposit of cash ~ 
collateral as specified in the loan agreement. Such a 
commitment must have an expiration date; the duration of such 
commQtments ~ mgy be no longer than one calendar quarter, 
so that commitments to MBDCs withOut maeehiB! cash collateral 
on hand do not unreasonably delay lending to MBDCs with cash 
~ collateral ready and available. 

(4) cash balances of development loan proceeds and 
maeehift! collateral funds, including guarantee funds and all 
other funds not loaned out in microbusiness loans, must be: 

(a) and (b) will remain the same. 
(5) So long as any development loan balance is 

outstanding between the department and an MBDC, cas~ m&eefi 
collateral from the MBDC must be maintained in the form of 
microbusiness loans made from the revolving loan fund, or in 
the form of such deposits and investments as are specified in 
paragraph (4) above, in at least the ratio of $1 in cash ~ 
collateral to~~ in development loan balance outstanding. 
Reduction of ~ collateral below this minimum ratio or the 
minimum established in the development loan agreement between 
the department and the MBDC, whichever is greater, will be 
grounds for declaring an MBDC to be in default of the 
development loan agreement. 

(6) ~ Collateral held by MBDCs in cash, cash 
deposits or investments other than microbusiness loans or 
guarantee funds must be pledged as collateral against the 
development loan. 

(7) An MBDC must provide the department with a first 
lien against the full amount of all microbusiness loans made 
from development loan and matehi~ collater01 funds. 

(8) In the case that proceeds from a development loan 
are used to establish a revolving loan fund, from which loans 
are made directly to microbusinesses, cash ~ collateral 
must be deposited, invested and lent together with the 
development loan proceeds, and must be used for only those 
purposes for which the development loan fund proceeds are 
used, as defined in l7-6-407(5), MCA. 

(9) In the case that an MBDC establishes both a 
revolving loan fund and a guarantee fund, cash ~ 
collateral must be allocated between the guarantee fund and 
the revolving loan funding the same proportion that 
development loan proceeds are allocated between the guarantee 
fund and the revolving loan fund. 
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(10) through (10) (d) will remain the same. 
(i) the MBDC must maintain a reserve fund of matehift! 

cash collateral deposited or invested as specified in 
paragraph (4) above, pledged as collateral against the 
development loan in the amount of at least $1 for eve~ ~ ~ 
of development loan proceeds allocated to the guarantee fund 
or the amount specified in the development loan agreement, 
whichever is greater; 

(A) a letter of credit provided to the department as 
collateral for the development loan by the financial 
institution or institutions having a guarantee agreement with 
the MBDC, may at the department's discretion be substituted in 
place of up to $49,000 $18.000 of the rese~Je fund required 
under (i) above. 

(ii) will remain the same.• 
Auth: Sec. 17-6-406, MCA; IM£, Sec. 17-6-406, MCA 

REASON: Senate Bill 161 amended the Montana Microbusiness 
Development Act by substituting the word "collateral" for the 
word "match." This change will allow collateral to leverage 
other funds for MBDC operations or loan fund purposes. 
Several of the proposed amendments to the department's rules 
simply bring the rules into conformance with these statutory 
changes. 

Senate Bill 161 also amended the Montana Microbusiness 
:Jevelopment Act by reducing the minimum required loan 
collateral from 1:3 to 1:6. The department proposed to amend 
~ts administrative rules to reflect this statutory change. 

The statutory change in the minimum collateral/loan rat~o 
a~so requires a corresponding reduction in the maximum letter 
of credit amount for a guarantee fund. 

"8.99.509 ADMINISTRATIVE ACCOUNT (1) The microbusiness 
administrative account into which interest from development 
loans and other program income is deposited may accumulate an 
operating reserve equivalent to ~ ~ months of program 
administrative expenses. 

(2) will remain the same.• 
Auth: Sec. 17-6-406, MCA; IMP, Sec. 17-6-407, MCA 

REA50N: This amendment will permit the department to 
accumulate a sufficient cash reserve to meet unanticipated 
program costs such as those associated with resolving troubled 
loan funds and conducting special audits. 

This amendment is intended to allow the department to 
manage the MBDC program in a more fiscally responsible manner 
so as to assure the long,term economic viability of the 
program. 

"8.99.511 MICROBUS!NESS LOANS · ELIGIBILITV FOR ANQ 
iE&MS 8ND CONDITIONS (1) Microbusiness loan applicants will 
be required to certify in ehe menne~ speei£iea &fta en ferme 
~~e•iaed b' the depa~tment to the MBDCs, that the applicant~ 
~ ~ ~ eligible borrower~ from the program as defined in 
17-6-403 and 17~6-407(5) and (6), MCA. 

( 2) through ( 6 l will remain the same. " 
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Auth: Sec. 17-6-406, MCA; IMR, Sec. 17-6-406. 17-6-407, 
MCA 

REASON; The department has never provided the form referred 
to in this rule and MBDC's appear ::o be certifying applicants 
adequately without detailed guidance from the department. 
This amendl!lent. will allow t:he department to manage the MBDC 
program in a more efficient manner. 

3. The proposed new r~le will read as follows: 

'' r CE:RTIF!CATION 0( a stATEWIDE Mif"ROBUSINESS 
D!NELOPMEN'l' C:QRPQRATiilll ( l) Under the authority granted by 
section l7-6-406, MCA, che department adopts r:he following 
rules for !:he certificatial'. ot a scatewide microbusiness 
development: corporation. 

c2) The departme11t will compile: standards of practice 
:or microlending by surveying a selection of revolving loan 
:und programs and lending institutions targeted to 
microbusinesses both ~l,s::.de and outside Montana, against which 
proposals for certification will be measured. This survey 
-..,ill include at least, but will not be limited to, a direct 
loan program model, a loan guarantee program model, and a 
group or circle lending program model. 

{a) ~1e department will distribute the standards of 
9raceice to al~ persons and organizations responding to 
requests for ~roposals ~o become certified MBDCs, and all 
others who request the information. 

{bl The department with the council will review and 
update che scandard~ of practice for microlending at least 
every biennium to reflect evolving standards of practice for 
microlending and new program models. 

{C) The department will review United States General 
Accounting Office and Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles, and choose a standard set of accounting principles 
against which to measure the administrative procedures of 
applicants for certification. The department will announce 
the selected standard set of accounting principles in its 
requests for proposals for certification. 

{3) There is no limit to the number of certified 
statewide MBOCs; however, only one certified statewide MBDC 
may be funded at any given time. Statewide MBDCs must comply 
with 17-6-408(2), MCA. 

(a) When the certified and funded statewide MBDC is 
determined eo be in default, that MBDC is considered 
decertified and no longer funded, and another certified 
statewide MBDC may apply for and receive a development loan. 

(b) To maintain its status as a certified MBDC, an MBDC 
that is certified but not funded must be reviewed and 
recertified every four years. 

(4) The following information is reqtiired to be 
presented to the department by applicants for certification as 
a statewide MBOC: 

(a) a plan for delivery of management training and 
technical assistance. The plan will show qualifications of 
providers, timeline, and cost of training. The plan will 
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include, but will not be l~ted to, the subjects of business 
planning, accounting, financial planning, financial controls, 
personnel management, marketing, legal aspects of business 
operation, and loan proposal preparation. 

(b) a plan for credit investigation and analysis, and 
lean analysis of microbusiness loan applicants. The plan will 
include, but will not be limited to, the manner in which the 
credit history of microbusiness loan applicants will be 
determined and evaluated, what business information and 
history will be required from applicants, and the manner in 
which confidentiality will be maintained. The plan will 
include a description of the exact credit approval and denial 
process, and the qualifications of those who will conduct the 
investigation, analysis, and evaluation. 

(cl a plan for and evidence of ability to administer a 
revolving loan fund. The plan will include, but will not be 
limited to, loan servicing documentation, financial oversight 
and monitoring of borrowers, delinquent loans and collateral 
collections, internal accounting, financial procedures and 
controls, business management procedures, loan portfolio risk 
management policies, measures and procedures, and loan fund 
balance investment and management practices. The plan will 
include structure, composition, and organizational 
relationships of the loan committee and qualifications of its 
members. 

(d) a staffing plan including job titles, job 
descriptions, necessary qualifications, experience, education 
and other qualifications of principle manager, and personnel 
training and supervision. 

(e) evidence of broad-based community support, to 
include letters of support from persons and institutions 
throughout the state including, but not limited to, local 
governments, certified community lead organizations, financial 
institutions, business incubators, business assistance groups, 
women, and representatives of low-income and minority 
populations. The evidence must include a full list of names 
and resumes of board members, demonstrating the minimum 
requirement for board representation of women, minorities and 
low-income persons. 

(f) evidence of collateral funds. Such evidence shall 
include a legally binding commitment from a governmental 
entity, an organization, a business, or an individual pledging 
$1 for every $6 in development loan to be borrowed from the 
program. Collateral funds must be in cash available for 
deposit with the development loan, or to be pledged as 
collateral for the development loan. Leveraging of 
development loan funds throUgh banks or other lending 
institutions does not constitute collateral funds. 

(g) evidence of sufficient operating income including at 
least, but not limited to, financial reports for previous two 
years for an existing organization, and two-year full 
financial projections for all applicants. In the case of a 
new organization, evidence shall include principals and board 
members with successful experience in managing similar amount 
of funding in a nonprofit corporation. 
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(h) evidence ot adequate business cliencs to include, 
but noc be limited to, a plan for identifying, qualifying, and 
marketing to potential borrowers throughout the state.• 

Auth: Sec. 17·6-406, MCA; IMf, Sec. 17·6·406, 17·6·408, 
MCA 

REA$0N: This new rule is 
certification of regional 
Development Corporations. 
requirements for regional 
inapplicable to statewide 

proposed for adoption to distinguish 
from statewide Microbusiness 
Certain of the certification 

MBDCs contained in 8.99.404 are 
MBDCs. 

4. Interested persons t~y present their data, views or 
arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. 
Written data, views or arguments may also be submitted to Lynn 
Robson, Business Development Division, Departmenc of Commerce, 
1424 · 9th Avenue, Helena, Montana 59620, to be received no 
later than 5:00p.m., September 9, 1993. 

5. Lynn Robson, Business Development Division, will 
preside over and conduct the hearing. 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 

/_.•"! 

. . • .., ~ ..L._ 
BY: ;' .iLt\; -.0. AiA,J.4-

ANNIE M. BARTOS, CHIEF COUNSEL 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

ANN!E M. BARTOS, RULE REVIEWER 

Cercified to the Secretary of State, August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of 
rules 16-8.1903 and 16.8.1905 
dealing with air quality operation 
and permit fees 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
FOR PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

OF RULES 

(Air Quality) 

To: All Interested Persons 

' on September 17, 1993, at 9:00 a.m., the board will hold a 
public hearing in Room C209 of the cogswell Building, 1400 
Broadway, Helena, Montana, to consider the amendment of the 
above-captioned rules. 

2. The rules, as proposed to be amended, appear as follows 
(new material is underlined; material to be deleted is 
interlined): 

16~8.1903 AIR QUALITY OPERATION FEES (1)-(2) Remain the 
same. 

(3) The air quality operation fee is based on the actual or 
estimated actual amount of air pollutants emitted during t:he 
previous calendar year and is the greater of a minimum fee of 
$250 or a fee calculated using the following formula: 

tons of total particulate emitted, 
multiplied by $~ ~; plus 
tons of sulfur dioxide emitted, 
multiplied by $~ ~; plus 
tons of lead emitted, 
multiplied by $~ ~; plus 
tons of oxides of nitrogen emitted, 
multiplied by $~ ~; plus 
tons of volatile organic compounds emitted, 
multiplied by $~ ~-

(4)-(5) Remain the same. 
AUTH: 75-2-111, MCA; IMP: 75-2-211, MCA 

16.6.1905 AIR QUALITY PERMIT APPLICATION FEES 
(1)-(4) Remain the same. 
(5) The fee is the greater of: 
(a) a fee calculated using the following formula: 

tons of total particulate emitted, 

~5-3/12/93 

multiplied by $~ ~; plus 
tons of sulfur dioxide emitted, 
multiplied by $~ 8.55; plus 
tons of lead emitted, 
multiplied by $~ ~; plus 
tons of oxides of nitrogen emitted, 
multiplied by $~ ~; plus 
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tons of volatile organic compounds emitted, 
multiplied by $~ ~; 

(b) Remains the same. 
AUTH: 75-2-111, MCA; IMF: 75-2-211, MCA 

3. The prc;posed amendments increase the existing fees 
associated with the air quality bureau's permit fee program, 
relating to operation and pe~it application, and are undertaken 
in response tc actions taken by the 5Jrd Legislature in the L99J 
regular session. The fees are raisetl from $4.00 to $8.55 per ton 
of poll~tant fer particulates, lead and sulfur diox\de, and from 
$1.00 to $2.14 for nitrogen oxides and volatile organic 
compounds. These amendments should generate approximately 
$517,413 in ;::.dd!.tional rc:>'Jenues for the department's: air quality 
permitting program. This ;-roposal represents an increase to 
existing fees, and no new fees are proposed. 

These amend=ents are necessary to respond to action taken by 
the 1993 legislature, which authorized the collection of an 
additional $517,413 in fee revenues to fund activities associated 
with the passage of House Bill 318, and the implementation of a 
permitting program to meet the requirements of Title V of the 
federal Clean Air Act. 

4 . Interested persons may submit their data, views, or 
arguments concerning the proposed amendments, either orally or in 
writing, at the hearing. Written data, views, or arguments may 
also be submitted to Yoli Fitzsi=ons, Board of Health and 
Environmental sciences, Cogswell Building, Capitol Station, 
Helena, Montana 59620, no later than September 14, 1993. 

5. Raymond w. "Rib" Gustafson has been designated to 
preside over and conduct the hearing. 

certified to the Secretary of state --~A~u~qu~s~t~~2~-~1~9~9~3~--
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the adoption 
of rules containing licensure 
standards for residential 
treatment facilities 

To: All Interested Persons 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
FOR PROPOSED ADOPTION 

OF RULES 

(Health care Facility 
Licensing) 

1. On september 3, 1993, at 9:00 a.m. , the department 
will hold a public hearing in Room C209 of the Cogswell 
Building, 1400 Broadway, Helena, Montana, to consider the 
adoption of the above-captioned rules, which establish stan­
dards for licensure of residential treatment facilities. 

2. The rules, as proposed, appear as follows: 

RULE I RESIPENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY -- APPLICATION OF 
OTHER RULES (1) To the extent that other licensure rules in 
this chapter conflict with the terms of [Rules II and III], the 
terms of [Rules II and III] will apply to residential treatment 
facilities. 
AUTH: 50-5-103, MCA; IMP: 50-5-103, MCA 

RULE II RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FAcrLITY -- LICENSURE 
STANDARDS (1) A residential treatment facility must meet the 
requirements of the following: 

(a) The standards for the following categories, contained 
in the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Care 
organizations' 1993 Accreditation Manual for Mental Health, 
Chemical Dependency, and Mental Retardation/Developmental 
Disabilities Services: 

(i) administrative/clinical management, as specified 
under the following headings: 

(A) governance and management (GM); 
(B) professional staff organization (PO), with the 

exception of P0.2.5.8.1; 
(C) human resources management (HR); 
(D) planning and evaluation (PE); 
(E) quality ass•ssment and improvement (QA); 
(F) utilization review (UR); 
(G) research (RS), it provided; 
(H) patient rights (PI); 
(I) clinical records management (CR); 
(ii) patient services, as specified under the following 

headings: 
(A) 
(B) 
(C) 

lS-8/12/93 

patient management (PM); 
child and adolescent services (CA); 
forensic services (FC), if provided; 
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(D) special treatment procedures (SC), if provided; 
(iii) patient support services, as specified under the 

following headings: 
(A) nutrition services (NU); 
(B) emergency services (ER); 
(C) pharl!lacy services (PH), as specified for residential 

settings in Appendix A; 
(D) physical health services (PY); 
(E) libraries and information networks (LI); 
(F) rehabilitation services (RH), as specified for 

residential settings in Appendix A; 
(iv) environmental management, as specified under the 

following headings: 
(A) plant, technology and safety manaqement (PL), a!l 

specified for residential settings in Appendi~ A; 
(B) therapeutic environment (TH); 
(C) infection control (IC), with the exception of 

IC.2.2.1 and IC.2.2.2.2--IC.2.2.4.1; and 
(v) for facilities in existence or for which construc­

tion had commenced prior to [the effective date of this rule], 
the interim life safety measures contained in appendix D. 

(b) The standards contained in Title 42 CFR, part 441, 
subpart D, as they exist on october 1, 1992. 

(2) A residential treatment facility may not share direct 
care staff or provide joint activities or treatment in conjunc­
tion with another type of health care facility, even if both 
facilities are under the same management. 

(3) The number of residents admitted to the facility and 
the number of beds in use and/or ready for use may not-exceed 
the number of beds for which the facility is licensed, as 
indicated on the face of the license issued to it. 

(4) The department hereby adopts and incorporates by 
reference the 1993 Accreditation Manual for Mental Health, 
Chemical Dependency, and Mental Retardation/Developmental 
Disabilities Services, published by the Joint Commission on 
Accreditation of Healthcare organizations, which contains 
accreditation standards for facilities providing mental health 
services, and Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR), part 44~, subpart D (effective October~. 1992), which 
contains standards for provision of inpatient psychiatric 
services to individuals under age 2~. copies of these stan­
dards are available from the Licensure Bureau, Depart~ent of 
Health and Environ~ental Sciences, Cogswell Building, Helena, 
Montana, 59620. 
AUTH: 50-5-103, MCA; IMP: 50-5-103, MCA 

RULt III RESIDENTIAL TR£ATMENT FACILITIES--SEPARATE 
LICENSES (l) Separate residential treatment facility 
licenses are not required for separate buildings within the 
same coi1Uilunity if they are utilized to provide residential 
psychiatric care under the same management. 
AUTH: 50-5-103, MCA; IMP: 50-5-~03, MCA 

3. The department is proposing these rules because 
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50-5-201, MCA, requires ev~y health care facility, including, 
by definition, a residential treatment facility, to be li­
censed. Title 50, chapter 5, part 2, requires, as a condition 
of licensure, that a facility meet licensure standards estab­
lished by the department. Therefore, these rules are necessary 
to establish the standards that residential treatment facili­
ties must meet in order to obtain the license the law requires 
of them. 

4. Interested persons may submit their data, views, or 
arguments concerning the proposed rules, either orally or in 
writing, at the hearing. Written data, views, or arguments may 
also be submitted to Mike Craig, Licensure Bureau, Department 
of Health and Environmental Sciences, Cogswell Building, 
capitol station, Helena, Montana 59620, no later thah September 
10, 1993. 

certified to the Secretary of state AUgust 2. 1993 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES 
OF THE STATE Of' MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of 
rules 16.38.301-304, and the 
adoption of a new rule addressing 
laboratory fees for food, consumer 
safety and occupational health 
analysis. 

To: All Interested Persons 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT OF RULES 

AND ADOPTION 
Of' NEW RULE I 

NO PUBLIC HEARING 
CONTEMPLATED 

(Public Health Lab 
and Chemistry Lab) 

1. On September 14, 1993, the department intends to 
amend the above-captioned rules and adopt a new rule concerning 
fees to be charged by the chemistry and public health laborato­
ries of the Department of Health and Environmental Sciences. 

2. The rules, as proposed to be amended and adopted, 
appear as follows (new material in existing rules is underlined 
or balded; material to be deleted is interlined): 

16.38.301 CHEMISTRY LABORATORY FEES-- AIR (1) Effec­
tive J~o~ly 1;2, 1991 october 1. 1993, fees for air quality analy­
ses are as follows: 

type of analysis £Q2! 
Total suspended particulate (TSP), $ ~ 6.10 per filter 

hi-vol sampler 
TSP, dichotomous sampler 
Sulfate in hi-vol filter 
Nitrate in hi-vol filter 
Trace metals-one metal 
Trace metals-each additional metal 
Fluoride: Vegetation 
Sulphation rate 
Dustfall 
Cut strips 
Microwave digestion 

~ ~ per filter 
~ 12.60 per filter 
~ ~ per filter 
~ ~ per filter 
~ 7.30 per filter 
~~ 
~ 18.90 per plate 
~ ll.,.!Q 
~ 1....QQ 
~ ll..d.Q 

AUTH: 50-1-202, MCA; IMP: 50-l-202, MCA 

16.38.30' CHEMISTRY 1ABOBATORY fEES -- WATER 
l.ll Effective J~o~},~ 12, 1991 October 1. 1993, fees for 

analysis of water and water extracts by the"chemistry laborato­
rY of the department of health and environmental sciences are 
as follows+ 

( l) 'l'ae fee fel!' a ereaftdal!'Ei mie~eeiela~Jieal (t.etal eeH 
l!erm) analyaie ie $1Q,QQ, 

(<!) 'l?l!e fo;.e far a feeal eeliferm anal.ya4a ie IS>Hlo99. 
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(3) ~Re tee fer a pla~e ee~fte is ~19o99o 
+++ 'l'Re fees Q,ll___1l. per analysis ~ to determine the 

concentration of individual constituents al!'e as felle\•'9: 

Analysis Cost per Analysis 
Alkalinity 
Aluminum 
Ammonia 
Antimony 
Arsenic 
Barium 
Beryllium 
Biochemical oxygen Demand (BOO) 
Bismuth 
Boron 
Bromide 
Cadmium 
Calcium 
Carbamate Pesticides by 531 
Chemical oxygen Demand (COD) 
Chloride 
Chlorinated Pesticides ~ 
Chlorophenoxy Herbicides 
Chlorophyll 
Chromium 
Cobalt 
Color (2 tests - pH adjusted) 
conductivity 
Copper 
cyanide 
Fluoride 
Hardness 
Hexavalent Chromium 
Iron 
Kjeldahl Nitrogen 
Lead 
Magnesium 
Manganese 
Mercury 
Metals scan 
MolybdentW 
Nickel 
Nitrate 
Nitrite 
Oil and Grease 
Ortho-Phosphorus 
Pentachlorophenol 
Pesticides/PCS/EPB. DBCP by 504/505 
pH 
Poly-chlorinated Biphenyls 
Potassium 

15-8!12/93 

~ 1.1..,§Q 
5-r-6-G 7.30 
~~ 

5-r-6-G 12.60 
~ 12....,_§.Q 

5-r-6-G 7 • 3 0 
5-r-6-G L2Q 
~ M..,_lQ 
~ 7.30 
~ 7.30 
~ lL.2.Q 

5-r-6-G 7.30 
5-r-6-G L.1Q 

l.2.....QQ 
73.60 
17.40 

UQ.,_QQ 
1.ll.Q..,_QQ 

~ 
L.1Q 
L1Q 

ll:..2Q 
4.90 
L..lQ 

ll......1Q 
20.00 
l.i......§.Q 

li.Q...Q.Q. 
7. 30 

21.50 
l......l..Q 
L1Q 
L.l.Q 

38.20 
l.!.......2.Q 

7. 30 
L.1Q 

li..,..2.Q 
~~ 
~ 2L....!Q 
~ll.....2..Q. 
~ lJ!.!L...Q.Q 

liQ.,_QQ 
~ WQ 
~ .lllL..Q.Q 
~ 7.30 
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Selenium 
Semi-Volatile organics 
Silicon 
Silver 
Sodium 
Strontium 
Sulfate 
sulfide 
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Synthetic Qrganic Compounds by 52~ 
Tin 
Th.allium 
Total Dissolved Solids 
Total organic carbon 
Total Phenolics 
Total Phosphorus 
Total suspended Solids 
Trihalomethanes 
Turbidity 
Volatile organic Compounds 
Volatile suspended Solids 
Zinc 

f5+ lZl The fees specified in (1) ehre~b (4) LLL of this 
rule may be lowered by the department of health and environ=en­
tal sciences when larger batches of samples or a change of 
analysis method warrant lower fees. 
AUTH: 50-l-202, MCA; IMP: so-1-202, MCA 

16.38.303 PUBLIC !IEALTH LABOEATORX FEES P\JBWG HihL'fJI 
LI•89R'W9RX (1) As ei J~ly 14 1 1991, Efta baRdliR9 fee ~e $5.99 
~·· sl~Rieal speeimeft (i.e, fra. a b~aR eedy er ee~ tl~iae) 
aft& $1Q,QQ fer eaeb eR"ire~en•al epee~men, ~Rleee •ae speeimeR 
is eaemi~ed fer aft ai• ~eliey EasE sqe;eee ee ARM 16ol8o391, 
a test; ef e.i:rl:llifl~ 'A'ater 'A'hieb is ee ... erM ay Nlll 16, 3 8 o 3 ail, er 
t.fte l!lsl!'eeR~R9 eeet;s l'eferrell ee in eeet:iea (2) ef ~is l'ule o 

As of October 1, 1993, the fees for analyses in the public 
health laboratory of the department of health and environmental 
sciences are as follows: 

Testing CAtegory 
Water. P!ilr test 
Newborn screening Panel 
Cystic Fibrosis 
Viral ang Chlamydia Isolation 
lin 
Rubella 
syphilis 
~ 
Anti-HBs 
Chlamygia. Direct 
<;C, Direct 
Cqmbo GC & Chlamydia, Piregt 
Atypical Pneu;gnia Panel 
Chronic Fatigue PaQ§l 
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Encephalitis Panel 
Exanthem Panel 
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Respiratory Disease. Short Panel 
Respiratory Disease. Long Panel 
TORCH Panel 
Tick Borne Disease Panel 
Serologic Tests. ordered individually 
laM 
Mvcology 
Ova and Parasites 
Mycobacteria logy 
Enteric Panel 
o.c. Testing 
Bacteriology. ordered individually 

( 2) !lffeeeive J\!ly 12, 19911 Efie fee fep Sel:'ael'lil'IEf f!ef" 
iHsel:'H epl:'el:'e at meeaselism is $9.ao, Stieh eereeHiHEf iHel\!ees 
t:eeea fel!' f!heHyl:ket:el'l\!l!'ia 1 eel'!Efel'lit:al Ryflet!hypeidil!lm, and Efa 
laet:eeemia• 

( 3) tie haHeliHEf fee • ill be efial!'EJed tel!' a llliepesiele'fieal 
t:est: el'l al'ly epeeimel'l wheee s\!flmissieH .,;e ehe lal!!e!Nlt:el''{ •as 
l:'e~\!est:ed I!!~ t:he de!lel!'~eflt:. 

AUTH: 50-1-202, MCA; IMP: 50-1-202, MCA 

16.38.304 CHEMISTRY LABORATORY FEES -- WASTES. SOILS AND 
SLUDGES (1) Effective Jul' 12, 1991 October 1. 1993, fees for 
waste, soil, and sludge analyses are as follows: 

Type of analysis 
Corrosivity 
Cyanide 
EP Extraction 
Herbicides 
Ignitability 
Microwave Digestion 
Pentachlorophenol 
Pesticides/PCB 
Polynuclear Aromatics 
Reactivity 
semi-Volatile organics 
soxlet Extr. for semivols 
TCLP Extr. - Metals, semivol 
TCLP Extr. - Volatilize 
Total Phenolics 
Volatile Extraction and Cleanup 
Volatile Organic Compounds 

(2) Remains the same. 

.hQ.tt 
~ 14.60 
~.2..4.......1Q 

~~ 
~ llQ.,_QQ 
~ ll.....lQ 
~l.i......i.Q 

~ llQ....QQ 
~ 2ll.Q..QQ 
~ .llQ......Q..Q 

-H-r5G ~ 
~ 430.00 
~ .l.2ll...QQ 
~ 43.50 
~ 11...:..QQ 
~ l1.2.....Q..Q 
~ i2......§Q 
~~ 

AUTH: 50-1-202, MCA; IMP: 50-1-202, MCA 

RULE ! LABORATORY FEES FOOQ, CONSUMER SAFETY. AND 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH (1) Effective October 1, 1993, fees for 
food, consumer safety and occupational health analyses are as 
follows: 
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type ot Analvsj.s 
Blood Lead 
Cholinesterase Activity 
Formaldehyde 
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Fat, Moisture, Extenders in Foods 
Coumarin Screen 

~ 
$ 17.90 

21.50 
28.70 
96.80 

7.20 
AUTH: 50-1-202, MCA; IMP: 50-1-202, MCA 

3. The department is proposing these amendments to the 
rules and the adoption of a new rule because the fee increases 
and additions they entail are necessary to provide financing 
for the laboratories to allow their continued operation. Ex­
penditure of the incr~ased amounts was authorized by the 1993 
Legislature. Fees reflect actual costs of tests or services. 

4. Interested persons may submit their data, views, or 
arguments concerning the proposed amendments and adoption of 
new rule, in writing to: Dr. Douglas 0. Abbott, Department of 
Health and Environmental Sciences, cogswell Building, Capitol 
Station, Helena, Montana 59620, no later than September 9, 
1993. 

5. If a person who is directly affected by the proposed 
adoption wishes to express his data, views and arguments orally 
or in writing at a public hearing, he must make written request 
for a hearing and submit this request along with any written 
comments he has to Dr. Douglas 0. Abbott, Department of Health 
and Environmental Sciences, Cogswell Building, capitol station, 
Helena, Montana 59620. The comments must be received no later 
than September 13, 1993. 

6. If the department receives requests for a public 
hearing on the proposed adoption from either 10% or 25, which­
ever is less, of the persons who are directly affected by the 
proposed adoption; rrom the administrative code committee of 
the legislature; from a governmental subdivision or agency; or 
from an association having not less than 25 members who will be 
directly affected, a hearing will be held at a later date. 
Notice ot the ~ring will be published in the Montana Adminis­
trative Register. Ten percent of those persons directly af­
fected has been determined to be 25 persons. 

Certified to the secretary of state August 2. 1993 
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the adoption of 
new rules I-XXV dealing with 
operating pe~its for certain 
stationary sources of air 
pollution. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
FOR PROPOSED ADOPTION 

OF NEW RULES 

(Air Quality Bureau) 

To: All Interested Persons 

1. On September 17, 1993, at 9:30 a.m., the Board will 
hold a public hearing in Room C209 of the Cogswell Building, 1400 
Broadway, Helena, Montana, to consider the adoption of the above­
captioned rules. 

2. The proposed rules do not replace or modify any section 
currently found in the Administrative Rules of Montana. 

3. The rules, as proposed, appear as follows: 

RQLE I AIR OYALITX OPEBATING PERMIT PROGBAM QVERVIEW 
(l) This subd!apter provides for the establishment of a 

comprehensive air quality operating permit system consistent with 
the requirements of Title v of the FCAA and the federal operating 
pe~it program (57 FR 32250 July 21, 1992, to be codified as 40 
CFR Part 70). These regulations, when viewed as a whole, are not 
invariably limited to the minimum federal requirements and do not 
invariably impose the strictest optional alternatives. No air 
quality operating permit issued under this subchapter may be less 
stringent than necessary to meet all applicable requirements. 

(2) The requirements of this subchapter, including provi­
sions regarding schedules for submission and approval or disap­
proval of air quality operating pe~it applications, shall apply 
to the permitting of affected sources under the acid rain pro­
gram, except as provided herein or in regulations promulgated 
pursuant to Title IV of the FCAA. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE U DEF:WITIONS As used in this subchapter, unless 
indicated otherwise, the following definitions apply: 

(1) "Administl:ative permit amendment" means an air quality 
operating permit revision that: 

(a) corrects typographical errors; 
(b) identifies a change in the name, address, 

number of any person identified in the air quality 
permit, or identifies a similar minor administrative 
the source; 

or phone 
operating 
change at 

(c) requires more frequent monitoring or reporting by the 
permittee; 

(d) allows for a change in ownership or operational control 
of a source if the department has determined that no other change 
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in the air quality operating permit is necessary, consistent ~ith 
[RULE XIX]; or 

(e) incorporates any other type of change which the depart­
ment has determined to be similar ~o those revisions set forth in 
(a) -(d), above. 

(2) "Affected source" means a source that includes one or 
more affected units under Title IV of the FCAA. 

(J) "Affected states" means all states: 
(a) that are contiguous to Montana and whose air quality 

may be affected by a source requiring an air quality operating 
permit, permit modification or permit renewal; or 

(b) that are within 50 miles of a source requiring an air 
quality operating permit, permit modification or permit renewal. 

(4) "Affected unit" means a unit that is subject to emis­
sion reduction requirements or limitations under Title IV of the 
FCAA. 

(5) "Air quality operating permit" or ''permit" means any 
permit or group of permits issued, renewed, revised, amended, or 
modified pursuant to this subchapter. 

(6) "Air quality operating permit modification" or "permit 
modification" means.a revision to an air quality operating permit 
that does not meet the definition of an administrative permit 
amendment under this subchapter. 

(7) "Air quality operating permit renewal" or •permit re­
newal" means the process by which an air quality operating permit 
is reissued at the end of its term. 

(B) "Air quality permit revision" or "permit revision" 
means any air quality operating permit modification or adminis­
trative permit amendment. 

(9) "Air quality preconstruction permit" means a permit 
issued, altered, or modified pursuant to subchapters 9, 11, 17, 
~r 18 of this chapter. 

(10) "Applicable requirement" means all of the following as 
they apply to emissions units in a source requiring an air quali­
ty operating permit (including requirements that have been pro­
mulgated or approved by the department or the administrator 
through rulemaking at the time of issuance of the air quality 
operating permit, but have future-effective compliance dates): 

(a) any standard, rule, or other requirement, including any 
requirement contained in a consent decree or judicial or adminis­
trative order entered into or issued by the department, that is 
contained in the Montana state implemli!ntation plan approved or 
promulgated by the administrator through rulemaking under Title I 
of the FCAA; 

(b) any federally enforceable term, condition or other 
requirement of any air quality preconstruction permit issued by 
the department under subchapters 9, 11, 17, and 18 of this chap­
ter, or pursuant to regulations approved or promulgated through 
rulemaking under Title I of the FCAA, including parts c and D; 

(c) any standard or other requirement under section 7411 of 
the FCAA, including section 74ll(d); 

(d) any standard or other requirement under section 7412 of 
the FCAA, including any requirement concerning accident preven­
tion under section 7412(r) (7), but excluding the contents of any 
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risk management plan required under section 7412(r); 
(e) any standard or other requirement of the acid rain 

program under Title IV of the FCAA or regulations promulgated 
thereunder; 

(f) any requirements established pursuant to section 
766lc(b) or section 7414(a) (3) of the FCAA; 

(g) any standard or other requirement governing solid waste 
incineration, under section 7429 of the FCAA; 

(h) any standard or other requirement 
commercial products, under section 7511b(e) of 

( i) any standard or other requirement 
under section 7511b(f) of the FCAA; 

for consumer and 
the FCAA; 
for tank vessels, 

( j) any standard or other requirement of the regulations 
promulgated to protect stratospheric ozone under Title VI of the 
FCAA, unless the administrator determines that such requirements 
need not be contained in an air quality operating permit; 

(k) any national ambient air quality standard or increment 
or visibility requirement under part C of Title I of the FCAA, 
but only as it would apply to temporary sources permitted pursu­
ant to section 766lc(e) of the FCAA; or 

(1) any federally-enforceable term or condition of any air 
quality open burning permit issued by the department under sub­
chapter l3. 

(11) "Designated representative" means a responsible person 
or official authorized by the owner or operator of an affected 
source and of all affected units at the source, to represent and 
legally bind each owner and operator in matters pertaining to the 
holding, transfer, or disposition of allowances allocated to a 
source, and the submission of and compliance with permits, permit 
applications, and compliance plans for the unit and all other 
matters pertaining to·Title IV of the FCAA. Proof of such status 
shall be evidenced by a certificate of representation submitted 
pursuant to subpart B of 40 CFR Part 72, specifically 40 CFR 
section 72.24 (58 FR 3590, January 11, 1993). 

(12) "Draft air quality operating permit" or "draft permit" 
means the version of an air quality operating permit which the 
department offers for public participation under [RULE XXIV] or 
affected state review under [RULE XXV). 

(13) "Emergency" means any situation arising from sudden 
and reasonably unforeseeable events beyond the control of the 
source, including acts of God, which situation requires immediate 
corrective action to restore normal operation, and that causes 
the source to exceed a technology-based emission limitation under 
the air quality operating permit due to unavoidable in~ases in 
emissions attributable to the emergency. An emergency shall not 
include noncompliance to the extent caused by improperly designed 
equipment, lack of preventative maintenance, careless or improper 
operation, or operator error. 

(14) "Emissions allowable under the permit" means a feder­
ally enforceable air quality operating permit term or condition 
determined at issuance to be required by an applicable require­
ment that establishes an emissions limit (including a work prac­
tice standard) or a federally enforceable emissions cap that the 
source has assumed to avoid an applicable requirement to which 
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the source would otherwise ·be subject. 
(15) "Einissions unit" means any part or activity of a sta­

tionary source that emits or has the potential to emit any regu­
lated air pollutant or any pollutant listed under section 7412(b} 
of the FCAA. This term is not meant to alter or affect the defi­
nition of the term "unit" for purposes of Title IV of the FcAA. 

(16) "FCAA" means the federal Clean Air Act, as amended. 
( 17) "Federally enforceable" means all limitations and 

conditions which are enforceable by the administrator, including 
those requirements developed pursuant to 40 CFR Parts 60 and 61, 
requirements within the Montana state implementation plan, and 
any permit requirement established pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21 or 
under regulations approved pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51, Subpart I, 
including operating permits issued under an EPA-approved program 
that is incorporated into the Montana state implementation plan 
and expressly requires adherence to any permit issued under such 
program. 

(lB} "Fin;!.l air quality operating permit" or "final permit" 
means the version of an air quality operating permit issued by 
the department that has completed all review procedures required 
by [RULE XIV)-[RULE XXV]. 

(19) "Fugitive emissions" means those emissions which 
could not reasonably pass through a stack, chimney, vent, or 
other functionally equivalent opening. 

(20) "General air quality operating permit" or "general 
permit" means an air quality operating permit that meets the 
requirements of [RULE XVI], covers multiple sources in a source 
category, and is issued in lieu of individual permits being is­
sued to each source. 

(21) "Hazardous air pollutant" means any air pollutant 
listed as a harardous air pollutant pursuant to section 112(b) of 
the FCAA. 

(22) "Insignificant emissions unit" means any activity or 
emissions unit located within a source that: 

(a) has a potential to emit less than one ton per year 
of any pollutant, other than a hazardous air pollutant listed 
pursuant to section 7412{b) of the FCAA or lead; 

{b) has a potential to emit less than 500 pounds per 
year of lead; 

(c) does not have a potential to emit hazardous air pollut­
ants listed pursuant to section 7412(b) in any amount; and 

{d) is not regulated by an applicable requirement. 
( 23) "Major source" means any stationary source (or any 

group of stationary sources that are located on one or more con­
tiguous or adjacent properties, and are under common control of 
the same person (or persons under common control)) belonging to a 
single major industrial grouping and that are described in (a)­
(C) of this definition. For the purposes of defining "major 
source," a stationary source or group of stationary sources shall 
be considered part of a single industrial grouping if all of the 
pollutant emitting activities at such source or group of sources 
on contiguous or adjacent properties belong to the same major 
group (i.e., all have the same two-digit code) as described in 
the standard Industrial Classification Manual, 1987. 
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(a) A major source under section 7412 of the FCAA, which 
is defined as: 

(iJ for pollutants other than radionuclides, any stationary 
source or group of stationary sources located within a contiguous 
area and under common control that emits or has the potential to 
emit, in the aggregate, 10 tons per year or more of any hazardous 
air pollutant which has been listed pursuant to section 7412(b) 
of the FCAA, 25 tons per year or more of any combination of such 
hazardous air pollutants, or such lesser quantity as the depart­
ment may establish by rule. Notwithstanding the preceding sen­
tence, emissions from any oil or gas exploration or production 
well (with its associated equipment) and emissions from any pipe­
line compressor or pump station shall not be aggregated with 
emissions from other similar units, whether or not such units are 
in a contiguous area or under common control, to determine wheth­
er such units or stations are major sources; or 

( ii) for radionuclides, "major source" shall have the mean­
ing specified by the department by rule. 

(b) A major stationary source of air pollutants that di­
rectly emits or has the potential to emit, 100 tons per year or 
more of any air pollutant. The fugitive emissions of a station­
ary source shall not be considered in determining whether it is a 
major stationary source, unless the source belongs to one of the 
following categories of stationary source: 

(i) Coal cleaning plants (with thermal dryers); 
(ii) Kraft pulp mills; 
(iii) Portland cement plants; 
(iv) Primary zinc smelters; 
(v) Iron and steel mills; 
(vi) Primary aluminum ore reduction plants; 
(vii) Primary copper smelters; 
(viii) Municipal incinerators capable of charging more than 

250 tons of refuse per day; 
(ix) Hydrofluoric, sulfuric, or nitric acid plants; 
(x) Petroleum refineries; 
(xi) Lime plants; 
(xii) Phosphate rock processing plants; 
(xiii) Coke oven batteries; 
(xiv) Sulfur recovery plants; 
(xv) Carbon black plants (furnace process); 
(xvi) Primary lead smelters; 
(xvii) Fuel conversion plant; 
(xviii) Sintering plants; 
(xix) Secondary metal production plants; 
(xx) Chemical process plants; 
(xxi) Fossil-fuel boilers (or combination thereof) total-

ing more than 250 million British thermal units per hour heat 
input; 

(xxii) Petroleum storage and transfer units with a total 
storage capacity exceeding 300,000 barrels; 

(xxiii) Taconite ore processing plants; 
(xxiv) Glass fiber processing plants; 
(xxv) Charcoal production plants; 
(xxvi) Fossil-fuel-fired steam electric plants of more than 
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250 million Dritish thermal units per hour heat input; or 
(xxvii) All other stationary source categories regulated by 

a standard promulgated under sections 7411 or 7412 of the FCAA, 
but only with respect to those air pollutants that have been 
regulated for that category; 

(c) For particulate matter (PM-10) nonattainment areas 
classified as "serious" under Title I of the FCAA or regulations 
promulgated thereunder, sources with the potential to emit 70 
tons per year or more of PM-10. 

( 2 4) "Penni ttee" means the owner or operator of any source 
subject to the permitting requirements of this subchapter, as 
provided in [RULE IV], that holds a valid air quality operating 
permit or has submitted a timely and complete permit application 
for issuance, renewal, amendment, or modification pursuant to 
this subchapter. 

(25) "Potential to emit" means the maximum capacity of a 
stationary source to emit any air pollutant under its physical 
and operational design. Any physical or operational limitation 
on the capacity of a source to emit an air pollutant, including 
air pollution control equipment and restrictions on hours of 
operation or on the type or amount of material combusted, stored, 
or processed, shall be treated as part of its design only if the 
limitation is federally enforceable. As used in this subchapter, 
this definition does not alter the use of this term for any other 
purposes under the FCAA, or the term "capacity factor" as used in 
Title IV of the FGAA or rules promulgated thereunder. 

(26) "Proposed air quality operating per111it" or "proposed 
permit" means the version of an air quality operating permit that 
the department proposes to issue and forwards to the administra­
tor for review in compliance with [RULE XXV]. 

(27) "Regulated air pollutant" means the following: 
(a) nitrogen oxides or any volatile organic compounds; 
(b) any pollutant for which a national ambient air quality 

standard has been promulgated; 
(c) any pollutant that is subject to any standard promul­

gated under section 7411 of the FCAA; 
(d) any Class I or II substance subject to a standard pro­

mulgated under or established by Title VI of the FGAA; or 
(e) any pollutant subject to a standard or other require­

ment established or promulgated under section 7412 of the FCAA, 
including but not limited to the following: 

(i) any pollutant subject to requirements under section 
7412(j) of the FCAA. If the administrator fails to promulgate a 
standard by the date established pursuant to section 7412(e) of 
the FCAA, any pollutant for which a subject source would be major 
shall be considered to be regulated on the date 18 months after 
the applicable date established pursuant to section 7412 (e) of 
the FCAA; and 

( ii) any pollutant for which the requirements of section 
7 412 (g) ( 2) of the FGAA have been met, but only with respect to 
the individual source subject to the section 7412(g) (2) require­
ment. 

(28) "Responsible official" means one of the following: 
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(a) For a corporation: a president, secretary, treasurer, 
or vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal 
business function, or any other person who performs similar poli­
cy or decision-making functions for the corporation, or a duly 
authorized representative of such person if the representative is 
responsible for the overall operation of one or more manufactur­
ing, production, or operating facilities applying for or subject 
to a permit and either: 

(i) the facilities employ more than 250 persons or have 
gross annual sales or expenditures exceeding $25 million (in 
second quarter 1980 dollars); or 

(ii) the delegation of authority to such representative i9 
approved in advance by the department. 

(b) For a partnership or sole proprietorship: a general 
partner or the proprietor, respectively. 

(c) For a municipality, state, federal, or other public 
agency: Qither a principal executive officer or ranking elected 
official. For the purposes of this part, a principal executive 
officer of a federal agency includes the chief executive officer 
having responsibility for the overall operations of a principal 
geographic unit of the agency (e.g., a regional administrator at 
the environmental protection agency). 

(d) For affected sources: the designated representative in 
so far as actions, standards, requirements, or prohibitions under 
Title IV of the FCAA or the regulations promulgated thereunder 
are concerned, and the designated representative for any other 
purposes under this subchapter. 

(29) "Section 502(b) (10) changes" are changes that contra­
vene an express permit term. Such changes do not include changes 
that would violate applicable requirements or contravene federal­
ly-enforceable permit terms and conditions that are monitoring 
(including test methods), recordkeeping, reporting, or compliance 
certification requirements. 

(30) "Source requiring an air quality operating permit" 
means any source subject to the permitting requirements of this 
subchapter, as provided in [RULE IV]. 

(31) "State" means any non-federal air quality permitting 
authority, including any local agency, interstate association, or 
statewide program. Where such meaning is clear from the context, 
"state" shall have its conventional meaning. 

(32) "Stationary source" means any building, structure, 
facility, or installation that emits or may emit any regulated 
air pollutant or any pollutant listed under section 7412 (b) of 
the FCAA. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE III INCORPORATIONS 8Y REFERENCE (1) In this subchap­
ter, and unless expressly provided otherwise, the following is 
applicable: 

(a) Where tne board has adopted a federal regulation by 
reference, the reference in the board rule shall refer to the 
federal agency regulations as they have been codified in the July 
1, 1992, edition of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) i 
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(b) Where the board has adopted a section of the United 
States Code (U.S.C.) by reference, the reference in the board 
rule shall refer to the section of the u.s.c. as found in the 
1988 edition and Supplement II (1990). 

(2) For the purposes of this subchapter, the board hereby 
adopts and incorporates herein by reference the following: 

(a) the standard industrial classification manual, 1987, 
executive office of the President, office of management and bud­
get, (U.S. government printing office stock number 1987 0-185-
718), which sets forth a system of industrial classification and 
definition based upon the composition and structure of the econo-
my; 

(b) 40 CFR section 70.J, which sets forth those sources and 
source categories designated by the administrator as requiring an 
operating permit pursuant to Title V of the FCAA; 

(c) 42 u.s.c. section 7429 (g), which defines solid waste 
incineration unit for the purposes of Title V of the FCAA; and 

(d) 42 u.s.c. section 7429(e), which describes those solid 
waste incineration WJits that are required to pbtain operating 
permits under Title V of the FCAA. 

(e) A copy of the above materials is available for public 
inspection and copying at the Air Quality Bureau, Department of 
Health and Environmental Sciences, Cogswell Building, 1400 Broad­
way, Helena, Montana 59620. Copies of the federal materials may 
also be obtained at EPA's Public Information Reference Unit, 401 
M Street sw, Washington DC 20460, and at the libraries of each of 
the ten EPA Regional Offices. Interested persons seeking a copy 
of the CFR may address their requests directly to: Superintendent 
of Documents, u.s. Government Printing office, Washington DC 
20402. The standard industrial classification manual (1987) 
(Order no. PB 87-100012) may also be obtained from the U.S. De­
partment of Commerce, National Technical Information service, 
5285 Port Royal Road, Springfield, Virginia 22161. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE IV AIR QUALITY OPERATING PEFMIT PROGRAM APPLICABILITY 
(1) The require~ents of this subchapter apply to the fol­

lowing sources: 
(a) any major source, as defined in this subchapter; 
(b) any source, including an area source, subject to a 

standard, limitation, or ather requirement under section 7411 of 
the FCAA; 

(c) any source, including an area source, subject to a 
standard or other requirement under section 7412 of the FCAA, 
except that a source is nat required to obtain a permit solely 
because it is subject to regulations or requirements under sec­
tion 7412(r) of the FCAA; 

(d) any affected source; 
(e) any source required to obtain a permit under section 

7429(e) of the FCAA; 
(f) any source in a source category designated by the ad­

ministrator as requiring an operating permit pursuant to 40 CFR 
section 70.3; and 

(g) any source required by the FCAA to obtain a Title V 
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operating permit. 
(2) All sources listed in (1) above that are not major or 

affected sources, or that are solid waste incineration units as 
defined in section 7429(g) of the FCAA that are not required to 
obtain a permit pursuant to section 7429(e), are exempt from the 
obligation to obtain an air quality operating permit for six 
years after the date this rule is adopted by the board, provided 
that they submit a complete air quality operating permit applica­
tion no later than 54 months after such adoption date, as re­
quired in [RULE V)(2) (e). 

( 3) The following source categories are exempted from the 
obligation to obtain an air quality operating permit: 

(a) all sources and source categories that would be re­
quired to obtain an air quality operating permit solely because 
they are subject to 4 0 CFR part 60, subpart AAA (Standards of 
Performance for New Residential wood Heaters); and 

(b) all sources and source categories that would be re­
quired to obtain an air quality operating permit solely because 
they are subject to 40 CFR part 61, subpart M (National Emission 
Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants tor Asbestos) , section 
61.145, (Standard for Demolition and Renovation). 

(4) The department may exempt a source listed in (1) above 
from the requirement to obtain an air quality operating permit by 
establishing federally-enforceable limita-cions which limit that 
source's potential to emit, such that the source is no longer 
required to obtain an air quality operating permit under this 
subchapter. 

(a) In applying for an exemption under this section the 
owner or operator of the source shall certify to the department 
that the source's potential to emit, when subject to the federal­
ly-enforceable limitations, does not require the source to obtain 
an air quality operating permit. Such certification shall con­
tain emissions measurement and monitoring data, location of moni­
toring records, and other information necessary to demonstrate to 
the department that the source is not required to obtain a permit 
under (1), above. 

(b) Any source that obtains a federally-enforceable limit 
on potential to emit shall annually certify that its actual emis­
sions are less than those that would require the source to obtain 
an air quality operating permit. Such certification shall in­
clude the type of information specified in (4) (a), above. 

(5) Any source exempt from the requirement to obtain an air 
quality operating permit may neverthele,._s opt to apply for a 
permit under this subchapter. 

(6) The air quality operating permit shall include all 
applicable requirements for all emissions units at a source re­
quired to obtain a permit. 

(7) Fugitive emissions from a source required to obtain an 
air quality operating permit shall be included in the permit 
application and permit in the same manner as stack emissions, 
regardless of whether the source category in question is included 
in the list of sources contained in the definition of major 
source. 

(8) Any person may request in writing that the department 
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make an informal determination as to whether a particular source, 
which that person operates or proposes to operate, is subject to 
the requirements of this subchapter. The request must contain 
such information as is believed sufficient for the department to 
make the requested determination. The department may request any 
additional information that is necessary for informally determin­
ing the applicability of this subchapter. An informal determina­
tion under this section (B) may not be appealed to the board, and 
does not impair or otherwise limit the opportunity to seek a 
declaratory ruling under Title 2, Chapter 4, Part 5, MCA. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217 1 MCA 

RULE V REOUIREMEN'l'S FOR TIMELY AND COMPLETE AIR QUALITY 
OPERATING PEBMIT APPLICATIONS (1) For each source required to 
obtain an air quality operating permit, the owner or operator 
shall submit a timely and complete air quality operating permit 
or renewal application in accordance with this rule. 

(2) To be considered timely for the purposes of this rule, 
a source that is required to obtain a permit pursuant to this 
subchapter must file its application with the department as fol­
lows: 

(a) one-third of all sources in existence on the date this 
rule is adopted by the board, or sources that have obtained air 
quality preconstruction permits prior to the adoption date of 
this rule but commence operation after such adoption date, shall 
submit an air quality operating permit application no later than 
one year after the adoption date or within 30 days of the date 
the permit program is approved by the administrator (including 
partial or interim approval), whichever is later. The remainder 
of these sources shall submit a permit application no later than 
one year after the date the permit program is approved by the 
administrator (including partial or interim approval). Within 30 
days after the adoption date of this rule, the department shall 
notify the one-third of the above-described sources that are 
required to submit applications for permits under this subchapter 
by the first deadline set forth above. The method used by the 
department to determine which of the above-described sources are 
included in the initial one-third must be fair and equitable and 
shall to the greatest extent practicable provide for a represen­
tative sample of air quality operating permit sources in terms of 
source size and type. 

(b) A source applying for an air quality operating permit 
for the first time due to the applicability of newly promulgated 
regulations shall submit a permit application within 12 months 
after the source becomes subject to the permit program. 

(c) Sources required to obtain an air quality operating 
permit or permit revision that are also required to obtain an air 
quality preconstruction permit under this chapter shall submit an 
application for an air quality operating permit or permit revi­
sion concurrent with the submittal of the air quality precon­
struction permit application. The processing of the air quality 
preconstruction and operating permits will be coordinated to the 
greatest extent possible, but each permit will be issued accord­
ing to the applicable procedures and time frames. Each applica-
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tion for an air quality operating permit, permit renewal, or 
permit revision and the associated preconstruction permit appli­
cation will be processed independently of any other pending ap­
plication under this chapter. 

(d) For renewal, a source shall submit a complete air qual­
ity operating permit application to the department not later than 
six months prior to the expiration of its existing permit, unless 
otherwise specified in that permit. If necessary to ensure that 
the terms of the existing permit will not lapse before renewal, 
the department may specify in writing to the permitted source a 
longer time pericc! for submission of the renewal application. 
such writt"'n notification must be provided at least one year 
before the renewal applic~tion due date established in the exist­
ing permit. In no case .,;hall this extended time period or the 
time period ;>stabllshed in the exi$cing permit be greater than 18 
months. 

(e) ;-.T,)n-majo:t~ sources exempted from obtaining an air qual-... 
ity operatirJ:; permit under· [RULE TV] (2) must submit a complete 
air quality operatin9 perr·.::.t application no later than 54 months 
after the dat.e this rule L, adoptee! by the board. 

(f) Applications for initial phase II acid rain permits 
shall be submitted to the Jepartment by January 1, 1996 for sul­
fur dioxide, and by ,January 1, 1998 for nitrogen oxides. 

(3) Tc be deemed complete for the purposes of this rule, a 
source must fi l<> its ,>pp' J.cation for an air quality operating 
permit, or r,m:-mit revision "ith the department as follows: 

(a) Ar. air quaJ ity r::perating permit application must pro­
vide all information requ.ir·ed pursuant to this rule and [RULE 
VI]. An application for p<c>rmit revision need supply such infor­
mation only if it is relat~d to the proposed change, and an ap­
plication for renewal need only address in detail those portions 
of the permit application that require revision, updating, sup­
plementation, or deletion. Information submitted pursuant to 
this rule and [RULE VI] must be sufficient to evaluate the sub­
ject source and its application and to determine all applicable 
requirements. If the applicant provides sufficient information 
to satisfy the requirements of the application completeness 
checklist then the application shall be deemed to be administra­
tively complete for the purposes of applying the application 
shield provided for in [RULE XV], and the department shall notify 
the applicant of such administrative completeness. Use of the 
completeness checklist is not intended to replace a substantive 
completeness review and determination pursuant to this subchap­
ter, but is only intended to facilitate the application of the 
application shield. A responsible official shall certify the 
submitted information consistent with [RULE VII]. Except as 
otherwise provided in [RULE XIV](6) and (7), unless the depart­
ment determines that an air quality operating application is not 
substantively complete within 60 days of receipt of the applica­
tion, such application shall be deemed to be substantively com­
plete. 

(b) If, while processing an application for an air quality 
operating permit or permit revision that has been determined or 
deemed to be substantively complete, the department determines 
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that additional information is n.ecessary to evaluate or take 
final action on that applicatioM, lt may request such information 
in writing and set a reasonable deadline for a response (not less 
than 15 days) . 

(c) The source's ability to operate without an air quality 
operating permit, as set forth· in [RULE XV], shall be in effect 
from the date the application is determined or deemed to be ad­
ministratively complete until the final permit is issued, provid­
ed that the applicant submits any requested additional informa­
tion by the deadline specified by the department. 

(d) sources that would qualify for a general air quality 
operating permit must provide written notificatioM to the depart­
ment of their intent to operate under the terms of the general 
permit, or must apply for an air quality operating permit consis­
tent with (1), above. The terms of the general permit adopted 
pursuant to (RULE XVI] may provide for applications which deviate 
from the requirements of (1) above, and (RULE VI], provided that 
such requirements are consistent with Title v of the FCAA, and 
include all information necessary for the department to determine 
qualification for, and assure compliance with, the general per­
mit. 

(e) An application for an air quality operating permit 
rev1s1on that is submitted as a minor modification shall meet the 
requirements of [RULE VIJ, and shall include the following: 

(i) a description of the change, the emissions resulting 
from the change, and any new applicable requirements that will 
apply if the change occurs; 

(ii) the source's suggested draft permit; 
(iii) certification by a responsible official, consistent 

with [RULE VII], that the proposed permit modification meets the 
criteria far use of minor modification procedures and a request 
that such procedures be used; and 

(iv) completed forms for the department to use to notify the 
administrator and affected states as required under [RULE XXV]. 

(f) An application for an air quality operating permit 
revision that is submitted as a group processing of minor modifi­
cations shall meet the requirements of [RULE VI), and shall in­
clude the following: 

(i) a description of the change, the emissions resulting 
from the change, and any ne'>l applicable requirements that will 
apply if the change occurs; 

(ii) the source's suggested draft permit; 
(iii) certification by a responsible official, consistent 

with [RULE VII], that the proposed permit modification meets the 
criteria for use of group processing procedures and a request 
that such procedures be used; 

(iv) a list of the source's other pending permit modifica­
tion applications awaiting group processing, and a determination 
of whether the requested modification, when aggregated with these 
other applications, equals or exceeds the threshold set under 
[RULE XX] (7) (b); 

(v) certification, 
source has notified the 
tion. Such notification 

consistent with [RULE VII], that the 
administrator of the proposed modifica­
need only contain a brief description of 
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the requested modification; and 
(vi) completed forms for the department to use to notify the 

administrator and affected states as required undar (RULE XXV]. 
(4) Any applicant who fails to submit any relevant facts or 

who has submitted incorrect information in an application for an 
air quality operating permit or permit revision shall, upon be­
coming aware of such failure or incorrect submittal, promptly 
submit such supplementary facts or corrected information. In 
addi_tion, an applicant shall provide additional information as; 
necessary to address any requirements that become applicable to 
the source after the date it filed a substantively complete ap­
plication, but prior to release of a draft permit. 

(5) Where an applicant has submitted information to the 
department under a judicial determination of confidentiality, the 
source must submit a copy of such information directly to the ad­
ministrator. This requirement does not preclude or limit in any 
manner the right of the applicant to assert to the administrator 
the confidential status and nature of the information. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE VI INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR AIR QUALITY OPERATING PER­
MIT APPLICATIONS (1) For each emissions unit at a source re­
quired to obtain an air quality operating permit the applicant 
shall include in its application for a permit, permit renewal or 
permit revision the information described in this rule. 

· (2) The required information shall be submitted to the 
department and the administrator on a standard air quality permit 
application form or in a standard permit application format to be 
approved by the department. To the extent possible all required 
information shall also be submitted ':.o the department in elec­
tronic form, in a word processing format convertible to or com­
patible with department software. 

(3) Insignificant emissions units need not be addressed in 
an application for an air quality operating permit, except that 
the application must include a list of such insignificant emis­
sions units. Insignificant emission units may be listed by cate­
gory. 

(4) An application for an air quality operating permit or 
permit revision may not omit information that is necessary to 
determine the applicability of any applicable requirement, to 
impose any applicable requirement, or to evaluate the fee amount 
required under subchapter 19 of this chapter. 

(5) The applicant shall, at a minimum, provide the informa­
tion specified below: 

(a) identifying information, including company name and ad­
dress (or plant name and address if different from the company 
name), owner's name and agent, and telephone number and names of 
plant site manager/contact; 

(b) a description of the source's processes and products 
(by standard industrial classification code) including any asso­
ciated with each reasonably anticipated operating scenario iden­
tified by the source pursuant to [RULE XIII](l); 

(c) an emission inventory of all emissions of pollutants 
for which the source is major, and an emission inventory of all 
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emissions of regulated air pollutants. An air quality operating 
permit application shall describe all emissions of regulated alr 
pollutants emitted from any emissions unit, except where such 
units are exempted under (3) 1 above. The applicant shall provide 
additional information related to such emissions of air pollut­
ants as necessary to verify which requirements are applicable to 
the source, and other information that may be necessary to deter­
mine any permit fees owed under subchapter 19 of this chapter; 

(d) identification and description of all points of e!llis·­
sions described in (c) above, in sufficient detail to establish 
both the basis for fees and the applicability of any applicable 
requirement; 

(e) emissions rates in tons per year, and in such terms as 
are necessary to establish compliance consistent with the appli­
cable standard reference test method; 

· (f) information regarding fuels, fuel use, raw materials, 
production rates, and operating schedules, to the extent such 
information is needed to determine or regulate emissions; 

(g) identification and description of air pollution control 
equipment and compliance monitoring devices or activities; 

(h) limitations on source operation affecting emissions or 
any work practice standards, where applicable, for all ·regulated 
pollutants at the source; 

( i) other information related to emissions as required by 
any applicable requirement (including information related to 
stack height limitations developed pursuant to section 7423 of 
the FCAA) or this chapter (including the location of emission 
units, flow rate, building dimensions, and stack parameters such 
as height, diameter, and temperature); 

(j) results of all dispersion modeling required by the 
department, except that this subsection may not be construed as a 
basis for requiring additional dispersion modeling to be done by 
the source; 

(k) all calculations on which the information in (a)-(j) 
above is based; 

(1) citation and description of all applicable require­
ments; 

(m) description of or reference to any applicable test 
method for determining compliance with each applicable require­
ment; 

(n) other specific information that may be necessary to 
implement and enforce other applicable requirements of the FCAA 
or o·f this chapter or to determine the applicability of such 
requirements; 

(o) an explanation of any proposed exemptions from other­
wise applicable requirements; 

(p) additional information as determined to be necessary by 
the department to define reasonably anticipated alternative oper­
ating scenarios identified by the source pursuant to [RULE 
XIII] ( 1) or to define permit terms and conditions implementing 
[RULE XliiJ(3) or [RULE XVIII](3) and (4); 

(q) a certification of compliance with all applicable re­
quirements by a responsible official consistent with [RULE VII] 
and section 7414(a) (3) of the FCAA; 
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(r) a statement of the methods used for determining compli­
ance, including a description of monitoring, recordlceeping, and 
reporting requirements and test methods; 

(.s) a schedule for submission of co111pliance certifications 
during the permit term, to be submitted no less frequently than 
annually, or more frequently it specified by the underlying ap­
plicable requirement or by the department; and 

(t) a statement indicating the source's compliance status 
with any applicable enhanced monitoring and compliance certifica­
tion requireaents of the FCAA. 

(6) In addition to the information required in (5) above, 
the applicant shall submit a compliance plan and schedule that 
contains a description of the compliance status of the source 
with respect to all applicable requirements, which shall include 
the following: 

(a) for applicable requirements with which the source is in 
compliance, a statement that the source will continue to comply 
with such requirements; 

(b) for applicable requirements that will become effective 
during the permit term, a statement that the source will meet 
such requirements on a timely basis. A statement that the source 
will meet in a timely manner applicable requirements that become 
effective during the permit term shall satisfy this provision, 
unless a more detailed plan or schedule is required by the appli­
cable requirement or the department; 

(c) for requirements tor which the source is not in compli­
ance at the time of permit issuance, a narrative description of 
how the source will achieve compliance with such requirements and 
a schedule of compliance. The compliance schedule shall include 
a schedule of remedial measures, including an enforceable se­
quence of actions with milestones, leading to compliance with any 
applicable requirements for which the source will be in noncom­
pliance at the time of permit issuance. This compliance schedule 
shall resemble and be at least as stringent as that contained in 
any judicial consent decree or judicial, board or department 
order to which the source is subject. Any such schedule of com­
pliance shall be supplemental to, and shall not sanction noncom­
pliance with, the applicable requirements on which it is based; 
and 

(d) a schedule for submission of certified progress reports 
no less frequently than avery six months for sources required to 
have a schedule of compliance to remedy a violation. 

(7) The compliance plan content requirements specified in 
(6) above, shall apply and be included in the acid rain portion 
of a compliance plan for an affected source, except as otherwise 
provided in requlations promulgated under Title IV of the FCAA 
with regard to the schedule and method(s) the source will use to 
achieve compliance with the acid rain emissions limitations. 

(B) As applicable, any application submitted pursuant to 
this subchapter shall usa the nationally-standardized forms for 
the acid rain portions of applications and compliance plans, 
consistent with regulations promulgated under Title IV of the 
FCAA. 

(9) As part of any application for a permit or general 
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permit submitted pursuant to this subchapter, the applicant shall 
provide to the department a copy of all safety rules, policies or 
requirements that are applicable to a department inspector during 
an air quality inspection. The applicant shall also immediately 
notify the department in writing of any subsequent changes to 
such rules, policies or requirements. 

(10) Upon request, the department shall provide to the ap­
plicant a completeness checklist that contains the minimum infor­
mation required under this rule, (RULE VJ and [RULE VII] for an 
application under this subchapter to be determined to be adminis­
tratively complete for the purpose of application of the applica­
tion shield. 

(11) An applicant is not required to submit information that 
has been previously submitted to the department, but must refer­
ence such previous submittal. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE VII CERTIFICATION OF TRUTH. ACCUEACY. AND COMPLETENESS 
(1) Any application form, report, or compliance certifica­

tion submitted pursuant to this subchapter shall contain certifi­
cation by a responsible official of truth, accuracy, and com­
pleteness. This certification and any other certification re­
quired under this subchapter shall state that, based on infor­
mation and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements 
and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE VIII GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR AIR QUALITY OPERATING 
PEEMIT CONTtNT (1) Each air quality operating permit shall con­
tain the following general information: 

(a) name and mailing address of permittee; 
(b) type of operation; 
(c) permit milestone dates including, the date the permit 

application was received, the date the permit application was 
deemed complete, the date the draft permit was issued, the date 
the proposed permit was issued, the date the final permit was 
issued and the permit expiration date; 

(d) permit number; and 
(e) name of the designated representative. 
(2) The following standard terms and conditions are appli­

cable to each air quality operating permit issued pursuant to 
this subchapter: 

(a) The permittee must comply with all conditions of the 
permit. Any noncompliance with the terms or conditions of a 
permit constitutes a violation of the Montana Clean Air Act, and 
may result in enforcement action, operating permit modification, 
revocation and reissuance, or termination, or denial of a permit 
renewal application under this subchapter. Permits may only be 
terminated or revoked for continuing and substantial violations. 

(b) It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an en­
forcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or 
reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance 
with the conditions of the permit. If appropriate, this factor 
may be considered as a mitigating factor in assessing a penalty 
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for noncompliance with an applicable requirement if the source 
demonstrates both that the health, safety, or environmental im­
pacts of halting or reducing operations would be more serious 
than the impacts of continuing operations, and that such health, 
safety, or environmental impacts ware unforeseeable and could not 
have otherwise been avoided. 

(c) The permit may be modified, revoked, reopened, and 
reissued, or terminated for cause. The filing of a request by 
the permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissu­
ance, or termination, or of a notification of planned changes or 
anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit condition. 

(d) The permit does not convey any property rights of any 
sort, or any exclusive privilege. 

(e) The permittee shall furnish to the department, within a 
reasonable time, any information that the department may request 
in writing to determine whether cause exists for modifying, re­
voking and reissuing, or te~inating the permit, or to determine 
compliance with the penni t. Upon request, the parmi ttee shall 
also furnish to the department copies of those records that are 
required to be kept pursuant to the terms of the permit. This 
subsection does not impair or otherwise limit the right of the 
permittee to assert the confidentiality of the information re­
quested by the department, as provided in 75-2-105, MCA. 

(f) A permittee must pay application and operating permit 
fees as a condition of the permit, pursuant to subchapter 19. 

(g) Permits under this subchapter will be issued for a 
fixed term of five years. 

(h) If a timely and complete permit application for permit 
renewal has been submitted, and consistent with the operation of 
the application shield pursuant to [RULE XV), the existing permit 
and all terms and conditions contained therein will not expire 
until the permit renewal has been issued or denied. 

(i) The administrative appeal or subsequent judicial review 
of the issuance by the department of an initial permit under this 
subchapter shall not impair in any manner the underlying applica­
bility of all applicable requirements, and such requirements 
continue to apply to the source as if a final permit decision had 
not been reached by the department. 

(j) The department's final decision regarding issuance, 
renewal, revision, denial, revocation, termination, or reLssuance 
of a permit is not effective until 30 days have elapsed from the 
date of the decision. The decision may be appealed to the board 
by filing a request for hearing within 30 days after the date of 
the decision. A copy of th$ request shall be served on the de­
partment. The filing of a timely request for hearing postpones 
the effective date of the department's decision until the board 
issues a final decision. If effective, the permit shield, or 
application shield, as appropriate, shall remain in effect until 
such time as the board has rendered a final decision. 

(k) The denial by the department of an application for 
permit issuance, renewal or revision under this subchapter which 
is the result of an objection by the administrator may not be 
appealed to the board. 

(3) The following additional standard terms and conditions 
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are applicable to each air quality operating permit issued to an 
affected source: 

(a) Emissions shall not be permitted in excess of any al­
lowances that the source lawfully holds under Title IV of the 
FCAA or the regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(b) No permit revision shall be required for increases in 
emissions that are authorized by allowances acquired pursuant to 
the acid rain program, provided that such increases do not re­
quire a permit revision under any other applicable requirement. 

(c) No limit shall be placed in the permit on the number of 
allowances held by the source. The source may not, however, use 
allowances as a defense to noncompliance with any other applica­
ble requirement. 

(d) Any allowances shall be accounted for according to the 
procedures established in regulations promulgated under Title IV 
of the FCAA. 

(4) Each general air quality operating permit shall contain 
provisions regarding the following standard terms and conditions: 

(a) Compliance shall be required with all requirements 
applicable to other air quality operating permits. 

(b) The criteria by which sources may qualify for the gen­
eral permit shall be set forth. 

(5) Each air quality operating permit issued to temporary 
sources shall contain provisions regarding the following standard 
terms and conditions: 

(a) Conditions that assure compliance with all applicable 
requirements at all authorized locations. 

(b) Requirements that the owner or operator notify the 
department at least 10 days in advance of each change in loca­
tion. 

(c) Conditions that assure compliance with all other provi­
sions of this chapter. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE IX REQUIREMENTS FOR AIR QUALITY OPERATING PEBMIT CON­
TENT RELATING TO EMISSION LIMITATIONS AND STANDARDS. AND OTHER 
REQUIREMENTS (1) Each air quality operating permit issued pur­
suant to this subchapter shall contain the following: 

(a} emission limitations and standards, including those 
operational requirements and limitations that assure compliance 
with all applicable requirements at the time of permit issuance; 

(b) a specific description with appropriate reference~ of 
the orig.in of, and authority for, each term or condition con­
tained in the permit, including a description of any differences 
in form as compared to the applicable requirement upon which the 
term or condition is based; and 

(c) all relevant terms and conditions applicable to a 
source, including those terms and conditions that are not appli­
cable requirements, which shall be clearly designated as such. 

(2) Every requirement contained in an air quality operating 
permit must be based upon the following: 

(a) the FCAA and rules promulgated thereunder, including 
the Montana state implementation plan and other applicable re­
quirements; 
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(b) rules, requirements, administrative orders, or per~its 
that have been promulgated, adopted, or issued pursuant to Title 
75, Chapter 2, MCA; or 

(c) requirements contained in a judicial order or consent 
decree entered in response to a violation of any rule, require­
ment, administrative order, or permit that has been promulgated, 
adopted, or issued pursuant to Title 7~, chapter 2, MCA. 

(3) In the air quality operating permit the department 
shall specifically designate as not being federally-enforceable 
under the FCAA any terms or conditions included in the ·permit 
that are not required under the FCAA or any applicable require­
ments. Those terms and conditions which the department specifi­
cally designates as not being federally-enforceable are noe sub­
ject to the following rules contained in this subchapter: 

(a) [RULE VIII], except for sections (2) and (5). However, 
while noncompliance with a permit term or condition that is not 
federally- enforceable may result in an enforcement action by the 
department, it may not result in permit revocation and reissu­
ance, termination, or denial of a permit renewal application 
under this subchapter; 

(b) [RULE IX], except for sections (1)-(3) and (7); 
(c) [RULE X], except for subsections (1) (a) and (3) (a), and 

sections (2) and (4); 
(d) [RULE XI], except for sections (3) and (4); 
(e) [RULE XII) and [RULE XIII]; 
(f) [RULE XIV], except for subsections (1) (a), (b) and (d), 

and sections (6)-(9), (12) and (U); 
(g) [RULE XVI], [RULE XVIII] through .. [RULE XXIII], and 

(RULE XXV). 
( 4) For those sources that are required to develop and 

register a risk management plan pursuant to section 7412 (r) of 
the FCAA, the air quality operating permit will only require that 
the permittee comply with the requirement to register such a 
plan. The content of the plan will not be incorporated into the 
permit as an applicable requirement. 

(5) For affected sources, the permit shall state that where 
an applicable requirement is more stringent than an applicable 
requirement from regulations promulgated under Title IV of the 
FCAA, both provisions shall be incorporated into the permit and 
shall be enforceable. 

(6) If the Montana state implementation plan allows for the 
determination of an alternative emission limit that is equivalent 
to the limit contained in the plan, and during the air quality 
oper"ting permit issuance, renewal, or significant modification 
process the department elects to make such a determination, any 
permit containing such alternative equivalent limit shall contain 
provisions to ensure that the limit is demonstrated to be quanti­
fiable, accountable, enforceable, and based on replicable proce­
dures. 

(7) The requirement under this subchapter to obtain an air 
quality operating permit may not be construed as providing . a 
basis for establishing new emission limitations beyond those 
contained in the underlying requirements to be incorporated into 
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the permit. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218 1 MCA; IMP: 75-2-217 1 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE X REQUIREMENTS FOR AIR QUALITY OPERATING PEBMIT CON­
TENT RELATING TO MONITORING; RECORQKEEPING. AND REPORTING 

(1) Each air quality operating permit shall contain the 
following requirements with respect to monitoring: 

(a) All emissions monitoring and analysis procedures or 
test methods required under the applicable requirements, includ­
ing any required procedures and methods promulgated pursuant to 
sections 766lc(b) or 7414(a) (3) of the FCAA; 

(b) Where the applicable requirement does not require peri­
odic testing or instrumental or non-instrumental monitoring 
(which may consist of recordkeeping designed to serve as monitor­
ing), periodic monitoring sufficient to yield reliable data from 
the relevant time period that are representative of the source's 
compliance with the air quality operating permit, as reported 
pursuant to (3), below. Such monitoring requirements shall as­
sure use of terms, test methods, units, averaging periods, and 
other statistical conventions consistent with the applicable 
requirement. Recordkeeping provisions may be sufficient to meet 
the requirements of this section; and 

(c) As necessary, requirements concerning the use, mainte­
nance, and, where appropriate, installation of monitoring equip­
ment or methods. 

(2) Each air quality operating permit shall incorporate all 
applicable recordkeeping requirements and require, where applica­
ble, the following: 

(a) Records of required monitoring information that include 
the following: 

(i) the date, place as defined in the permit, and time of 
sampling or measurements; 

(ii) the date(s) analyses were performed; 
(iii) the company or entity that performed the analyses; 
(iv) the analytical techniques or methods used; 
(v) the results of such analyses; and 
(vi) the operating conditions at the time of sampling or 

measurement. 
(b) A record describing changes made at the source that re­

sult in emissions of a regulated air pollutant subject to an 
applicable requirement but not otherwise regulated under the 
permit, and the emissions resulting from those changes. 

(c) Retention of records of all required monitoring data 
and support information for a period of at least five years from 
the date of the monitoring sample, measurement, report, or appli­
cation. Support information includes all calibration and mainte­
nance records and all original strip-chart recordings for contin­
uous monitoring instrumentation, and copies of all reports re­
quired by the permit. All monitoring data, support information, 
and required reports and summaries may be maintained in a comput­
erized form at the plant site if the information is made avail­
able to department personnel upon request, which may be for ei­
ther hard copies or computerized format. Strip charts must be 
retained in their original form at the plant site and shall be 

MAR Notice No. 16-2-430 15-9!12/93 



-1337-

made available to department personnel upon request. 
(J) Each air quality operating permit shall incorporate the 

following requirements relating to reporting: 
(a) All applicable reporting requirements must be included 

in the permit. 
(b) submittal of reports of any required monitoring at 

least every six months. All instances of deviations from the 
permit requirements must be clearly identified in such reports. 
All required reports must be certified by a responsible official 
consistent with [RULE VII]. 

(c) Prompt reporting of deviations from permit require­
ments, including those attributai:!le to upset conditions as de­
fined in the permit, the probabl~ cause of such deviations, and 
any corrective actions or preventive measures taken. To be con­
sidered prompt, deviations shall ge reported as part of the rou­
tine reporting requirements under (3)(b) above, and if applica­
ble, in accordance ·.vith the malfunction reporting requirements 
under ARM 16.8.705, anless ctherwise specified in an applicable 
requirement. 

(4) The requirement to obtain a permit under this subchap­
ter may not be used as the basis for establishing new monitoring, 
recordkeeping or reporting requirements, except as may be re­
quired under (1) (b), above. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE XI REQUIREMENTS FOR A!R QUALITY OPERATING PERMIT CON­
TENT RELATING TO COMPLIANCE (1) All air quality operating per­
mits shall contain the provisions required by this rule with 
respect to compliance. 

(2) consistent with (RULE X), all perntits shall contain 
compliance certification, testing, monitoring, reporting, and 
recordkeeping requirements sufficient to assure compliance with 
the terms and conditions of the permit. Any document (including 
reports) required by a permit shall contain a certification by a 
responsible official that meets the requirements of (RULE VII]. 

(3) Each permit shall contain inspection and entry require­
ments which require that, upon presentation of credentials and 
other docum!l'nts as may be required by law, the permittee shall 
allow the department, the admini.strator or an authorized repre­
sentative (including an authorized contractor acting as a repre­
sentative of the department or the administrator) to perform the 
following: 

(a) enter the premises where a source required to obtain a 
permit is located or emissions-r~lated activity is conducted, or 
where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; 

(b) have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any re­
cords that must be kept under the conditions of the permit; 

(c) inspect at reasonable times any facilities, emission 
unit, equipment (including monitoring and air pollution control 
equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under 
the permit; and 

(d) as authorized by the Montana Clean Air Act and rules 
promulgated thereunder, sample or monitor at reasonable times any 
substances or parameters at any location for the purpose of as-
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suring compliance with the permit or applicable requirements. 
( 4) Inspections pursuant to ( 3) above, shall be conducted 

in compliance with all applicable federal or state rules or re­
quirements for workplace saf~ty and source-specific facility 
workplace safety rules or requirements that have been previously 
supplied to the department in writing. 

(5) Each permit shall contain a schedule of compliance 
consistent with (RULE VI](6). 

(6) consistent with [RULE VI](6), the permit shall require 
progress reports to be submitted at least semiannually, or more 
frequently if specified in the applicable requirement or by the 
department. Such progress reports shall contain the following: 

(a) dates for achieving the activities, milestones, or com­
pliance required in the schedule of compliance, and dates when 
such activities, milestones or compliance were achieved; and 

(b) an explanation of why any dates in the schedule of com­
Pliance were not or will not be met, and any preventive or cor­
rective measures adopted. 

(7) Each permit shall contain requirements for compliance 
certification with terms and conditions contained in the permit, 
including emission limitations, standards, or work practices. 
Permits shall include the following; 

(a) A requirement that compliance certifications be submit­
ted at least once per year or more frequently if otherwise speci­
fied .in an applicable requirement or by the department. Notwith­
standing any applicable requirement, the department may specify 
that compliance certifications be submitted more frequently for 
those emission units not in compliance with permit terms and 
conditions. 

(b) In accordance with [RULE X], a means for monitoring the 
compliance of the source with its emissions limitations, stan­
dards, and work practices that are contained in applicable re­
quirements. 

(c) A requirement that the compliance certification include 
the followinq: 

(i) the identification of each term or condition of the 
permit that is the basis of the certification; 

(ii) the compliance status as shown by monitoring or other 
information required by the permit or otherwise reasonably avail­
able to the source; 

(iii) whether compliance was continuous or intermittent; 
(iv) the method(s) used for determining the compliance 

status of the source, currently and over the reporting period 
consistent with [RULE X); and 

(v) such other facts as the department may require to 
determine the compliance status of the source. 

(d) A requirement that all compliance certifications be 
submitted to the administrator as well as to the department. 

(e) Such additional requirements as may be specified pursu­
ant to sections 7414(a) (3) and 766lc(b) of the FCAA. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE XII REQUIREMENTS FOR AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMIT 
CONTENT RELATING TO THE PEBMIT SHIELD AND EMERGENCIES 
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(l) Except as provided in this section, the departmen~ 
shall include in an air quality operating permit a provision 
stating that compliance with the conditions of the permit shall 
be deemed compliance with any applicable requirements as of the 
date of permit issuance, provided that: 

(a) such applicable requirements are included and are spe­
cifically identified in the permit; or 

(b) the department, in acting on the permit application or 
revision, determines in writing that other requirements specifi­
cally identified are not applicable to the source, and the permit 
includes the determination or a concise summary thereof. 

(2) An air quality operating permit that does not expressly 
state that a permit shield extends to specific applicable re­
quirements will be presumed not to provide such a shield for 
those requirements. 

(3) Nothing in (l) or (2) above, or in any air quality 
operating permit shall alter or affect the following: 

(a) the provisions of section 7603 of the FCAA, including 
the authority of the administrator under that section; 

(b) the liability of an owner or operator of a source for 
any violation of applicable requirements prior to or at the time 
of permit issuance; 

(c) the applicable requirements of the acid rain program, 
consistent with section 765lg(a) of the FCAA; 

(d) the ability of the administrator to obtain information 
from a source pursuant to section 7414 of the FCAA; 

(e) the ability of the department to obtain information 
from a source pursuant to the Montana Clean Air Act, Title 75, 
chapter 2, MCA; 

(f) the emergency powers of the department under the Mon­
tana Clean Air Act, Title 75, chapter 2, MCA; or 

(g) the ability of the department to establish or revise 
requirements for the use of reasonably available control technol­
ogy (RACT) as defined in this chapter. However, if the inclusion 
of a RACT into the permit pursuant to this subchapter is appealed 
to the board, the permit shield as it applies to the source's 
existing permit shall remain in effect until such time as the 
board has rendered its final decision. 

(4) An emergency constitutes an affirmative defense to an 
action brought for noncompliance with a technology-based emission 
limitation if the conditions of (5) and (6) below, are met. 

(5) The affirmative defense of emergency shall be demon­
strated through properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs. 
or other relevant evidence that: 

(a) an emergency occurred and that the permittee can iden­
tify the cause(s) of the emergency; 

(b) the permitted facility was at the time being properly 
operated; 

(c) during the period of the emergency the permittee took 
all reasonable steps to minimize levels of emissions that exceed­
ed the emission standards, or other requirements in the permit; 
and 

(d) the permittee submitted notice of the emergency to the 
department within two working days of the time when emission 
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.:.imitations were exceeded due to the emergency. This notice 
fulfills the requirements of [RULE XJ (J) (c). This notice must 
contain a description of the emergency, any steps taken to miti­
gate emissions, and corrective actions taken. 

(6) In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to 
establish the occurrence of an emergency has the burden of proof. 

(7) The provisions in (4}-(6) above, are in addition to any 
emergency, malfunction or upset provision contained in any appli­
cable requirement. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75_.:2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-21_8, MCA 

RULE XIII REQUIREMENTS FOR AIR OUALITX OPERATING PERMIT 
CONTENT RELATING TO THE OPERATIONAL fLtXIBILITY (l) If request­
ed by the applicant, the department shall issue an air quality 
operating permit that contains terms and conditions for reason­
ably anticipated operating scenarios identified by the source in 
its application as approved by the department. such terms and 
conditions: 

(a) shall require the source, contemporaneously with making 
a change from one reasonably anticipated operating scenario to 
another, to record in a log at the permitted facility a record of 
the reasonably anticipated scenario under which it is operating; 

(b) shall extend the permit shield described in (RULE XI!] 
above to all terms and conditions under each such reasonably 
anticipated operating scenario; 

(c) shall provide for the written notification required in 
[RULE XVIII](l)(e), which will state when the source will shift 
from one specified reasonably anticipated operating scenario to 
another such operating scenario; and 

(d) shall ensure that the terms and conditions of each such 
reasonably anticipated operating scenario meet all applicable re­
quirements and the requirements of this subchapter. 

(2) A change in operating conditions at a source that does 
not violate an applicable requirement does not require the use of 
a reasonably anticipated operating scenario. 

( 3) If requested by the applicant, the department shall 
issue an air quality operating permit which contains terms and 
conditions for the trading or averaging of emissions increases 
and decreases in the permitted facility, to the extent that the 
applicable requirements provide for trading or averaging such in­
creases and decreases without case-by-case review and approval. 
Emissions trading or averaging may occur subject to the terms and 
conditions in the permit without being included in a reasonably 
anticipated operating scenario. Such terms and conditions: 

(a) shall include all terms required under (RULES VIII-XI] 
and this rule to determine compliance; 

(b) shall extend the permit shield described in (RULE XII] 
to all terms and conditions that allow such increases and de­
creases in emissions; 

(C) shall provide for the written notification required in 
[RULE XVIII](l)(e), which will state when the change will occur 
and shall describe the changes in emissions that will result and 
how these increases and decreases in emissions will comply with 
the terms and conditions of the permit; and 

MAR :lo~ice No. 16-2-430 15-d/12/93 



-1041-

(d) shall meet all applicable requirements and requirements 
of this chapter. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE XIV AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERlfiT ISSUAHCE. RENEHAL. 
REQPEHING AHD MQOIFICATION (1) An air quality operating permit, 
permit modification, or permit renewal may be issued only if all 
of the following conditions have been met: 

(a) the department has received a complete application for 
a permit, permit revision, or permit renewal; 

(b) the department has complied with the requirements for 
public participation under (RULE XXIV]; 

(c) the department has complied with the requirements for 
notifying and responding to affected states under (RULE XXV]; 

(d) the conditions of the perntit provide for compliance 
with all applicable requirements and the requirements of this 
part; and 

(e) the administrator has received a copy of the proposed 
permit, all necessary supporting documentation, and any notices 
required under (RULE XXV], and has not objected to issuance of 
the permit under [RULE XXV] within 45 days of receipt of the 
proposed permit and all necessary supporting documentation; and 

(f) it the administrator objects to the issuance of a per­
mit, the department shall, within seven days of receipt of the 
administrator's objection, send the permit applicant a copy of 
the objection and any statement received from the administrator. 

(2) Except as provided under the initial transition plan, 
(J) below, or under regulations promulgated under Title IV or 
Title v of the FCAA for the permitting of affected sources under 
the acid rain program, the department shall take final action on 
each air quality operating permit applica,tion (including a re­
quest for permit modification or renewal) within 18 months of 
receiving a complete application. 

(3) The department shall take final action on at least one­
third of all air quality operating permit applications received 
during the initial transition period annually for a period of 
three years following approval of the permit program by the ad­
ministrator. 

(4) The department shall take final action on a complete 
air quality operating permit application containing an early 
reduction demonstration that has been approved by the administra­
tor under section 7412(i) (5) of the FCAA within nine months of 
receiving a complete application. 

(5) The department shall ensure prior~ty is given to taking 
action on air quality preconstruction permit applications for 
construction or modification submitted pursuant to subchapters 9, 
11, 17, and 18 of this chapter. 

(6) Upon filing, the department shall promptly make a de­
termination as to whether the application is administratively 
complete, as provided for in (RULE V](3). The department shall 
provide notice to the applicant of whether the air quality oper­
ating permit application is substantively complete. unless the 
department requests additional information or otherwise notifies 
the applicant of substantive incompleteness within 60 days of 
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receipt of a permit application, the application shall be deemed 
complete. For modifications processed through the minor modifi­
cation procedures contained in (RULE XX], the department does not 
have to provide a completeness determination. 

(7) Within JO days of receipt of a notice of substantive 
incompleteness, the source shall submit a response to the depart­
ment supplying the requested information. The department :nay 
extend this time period upon request. If a response is not re­
ceived within this time period the application shall be consid­
ered withdrawn, and may be resubmitted. The department shall 
notify the applicarit in writing within 60 days thereafter if the 
application is still substantively incomplete. This, and any 
subsequent incomplete notice shall follow the same fo~ and re­
quirements as the original incomplete notice. 

( 8) The department shall provide a statement that sets 
forth the legal and factual basis for the draft air quality oper­
ating permit conditions (including references to the applicable 
statutory or regulatory provisions). The department shall send 
this statement to the administrator and to any other person who 
requests it. 

(9) The submittal of a complete air quality operating per­
mit application does not affect a requirement that a source ob­
tain an air quality preconstruction permit prior to commencement 
of construction under subchapters 9, 11, 17, or 18 of this chap­
ter. 

(10) An air quality operating permit modification for pur­
poses of the acid rain portion of the permit shall be governed by 
regulations promulgated under Title IV of the FCAA. 

(11) The renewal of an air quality operating permit is sub­
ject to the same procedural requirements that apply to permit 
issuance, including those for applications, content, public par­
ticipation, and affected state and administrator review. 

(12) Expiration of an air quality operating perl!lit termi­
nates the source's right to operate unless a timely and complete 
permit renewal application has been submitted consistent with 
(RULE XV] and (RULE V] (2) (d). If a timely and complete applica­
tion has been submitted all terms and conditions of the permit, 
including the application shield, remain in effect after the 
permit expires. 

(1J) The department shall provide a minimum of JO days ad­
vance written notice to the holder of an air quality operating 
penni t of the department's intent to revoke the permit or deny 
the permit renewal application. The notice of intent may not be 
appealed to the board. The department's final decision to revoke 
or deny renewal becomes effective and may be appealed to the 
board as provided for in [RULE V!II](j). Nothing in this section 
shall limit the emergency powers of the department under the 
Montana Clean Air Act, Title 75, chapter 2, MCA. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE XV OPERATION WITHOUT AN AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMIT 
AND APPLICATION SHIELD ( 1) Except as provided in ( 2) below, 
[RULE XVIII](J), and (RULE XX](6) and (10), no source required to 
obtain an air quality operating permit may operate after the time 
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that it is required ~o submit a timely and complete application 
for a permit, except in compliance with a permit issued under 
this subchapter. 

{2) If a source required to obtain an air quality operating 
permit submits a timely and complete application for permit issu­
ance or renewal, the source's failure to have a permit is not a 
violation of this subchapter until the department takes final 
action on the permit application, except as otherwise noted in 
this subchapter. This protection becomes effective upon determi­
nation by the department that a timely application is administra­
tively complete, as provided for in (RULE VJ(3), and shall cease 
to apply if, subsequent to the substantive completeness determi­
nation made pursuant to [RULE XIV](6), and as required by [RULE 
V]{J), the applicant fails to submit by the deadline specified in 
writing by tha department any additional information identified 
as being necessary to process the permit application. If the 
department's final. action ::m any permit application under this 
subchapter is appealed to the board, the application shield, if 
in effect, shall remain in effect until such time as the board 
renders its final decision. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE XVI GENERAL AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMITS { 1) The 
department may provide for a general air quality operating permit 
covering a source category with numerous similar sources, if it 
concludes that the category is appropriate for permitting on a 
generic basis. 

{2) The department may provide for a general permit based 
upon its own initiative or the application of a source within the 
source category. The department shall provide a notice and op­
portunity for public participation, consistent with [RULE XXIV]. 
such procedures may be combined with the rulemaking process be­
fore the board relating to the adoption and incorporation by 
reference of the general permit. 

(3) A qaneral permit may be used to establish terms and 
conditions to implement applicable requirements for a source 
category or for new requirements that apply to sources with ex­
isting general permits, or to establish federally-enforceable 
caps on emissions from sources in a specific category. 

(4) A general permit may be appropriate under the following 
conditions: 

(a) there are several permittees, permit applicants, or 
potential permit applicants who have the same or substantially 
similar operations, emissions, activities, or facilities; 

(b) the permittees, permit applicants, or potential permit 
applicants emit the same types of regulated air pollutants; 

(c) the operations, emissions, activities, or facilities 
are subject to the same or similar standards, li111itations, and 
operating requirements; and 

(d) the operations, emissions, activities or facilities are 
subject to the same or similar monitoring requirements. 

(5) A general air quality operating permit shall include 
those requirements set forth in [RULE VIII)(4). 

(6) After a general permit has been proposed by the depart-
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ment and formally adopted by the board, a source that intends to 
operate under the terms of the general permit must provide writ­
ten notice to the department before it may qualify for the gener­
al permit, as required by [RULE V] (J) (d). such notification 
shall identify the source, provide information sufficient to 
demonstrate, that the source falls within the source category 
covered by the general permit and is capable of operating in 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the general permit, 
and include any additional information that may be specified in 
the general permit. 

(7) Without repeating the public participation procedures 
required under [RULE XXIV], the department may review a source's 
written notification, and based upon the. information submitted, 
confirm or deny that the source appears to both qualify for the 
general permit and be capable of operating in compliance with the 
terms and conditions of the general permit. The department may 
request such additional information from the source as may be 
necessary to make these findings. Such action is not a final 
permit action for purposes of board review. 

(8) The department shall act to make the necessary findings 
in (7) above, within 90 days of receipt of the notification pro­
vided for in (6) above, and shall provide written notice to the 
source of its findings. 

(9) A general permit shall provide that any source whose 
coverage under the general permit has been confirmed by the de­
partment pursuant to (7) above, shall be entitled to the protec­
tion of the permit shield for all operations, activities, and 
emissions addressed by the general parmi t, unless and to the 
extent that it is subsequently determined that the source does 
not qualify for the conditions and terms of the general permit. 
If the source is later determined not to qualify for the condi­
tions and terms of the general permit, the source may be subject 
to enforcement action for operation without an air quality oper­
ating permit. 

(10) The renewal of a general permit is subject to the same 
procedural requirements, including public participation, that 
apply to the initial issuance of general permits. 

(11) General air quality operating permits may not be autho­
rized for affected sources under the acid rain program, unless 
otherwise provided in regulations promulgated under Title IV of 
the FCAA. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RQLE XVII TEMPORARY AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMITS (1) The 
department may issue an air quality operating permit authorizing 
emissions from similar operations by the same source owner or 
operator at multiple temporary locations. The operation must be 
temporary and involve at least one change of location during the 
tenn of the permit. No affected source may be permitted as a 
temporary source. Permits for temporary sources shall include 
those requirements set forth in [RULE VIII) (5). 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, MCA 

RULE XVIII ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR OPERATIONAL FLEX!-
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BILITX AND AIR QUALITY oPERATING PERMIT CHANCES THAT DQ NQT RE­
QUIRE REVISIONS (1) A source holding an air quality operating 
permit is authorized to ma~e changes within a permitted facility 
as described in (3) and (4) below, providing the following condi­
tions are met: 

(a) the proposed changes do not require the source or al­
teration to obtain an air quality pr4construction permit under 
subchapter 11 of this chapter; 

(b) the proposed changes- are not modifications under Title 
I of the FCAA, or as defined in subchapters 9, 17 or 18 of this 
chapter; 

(c) the emissions resulting from the "reposed changes do 
not exceed the emissions allowable under the permit, whether 
expressed as a rate of emissions, or in total emissions; 

(d) the proposed changes do not alter permit terms that are 
necessary to enforce applicable emission limitations on emissions 
units covered by the permit; 

(e) the facility provides the administrator and the depart­
ment with written notification at least seven days prior to mak­
ing the proposed changes. 

(2) The source and department shall attach each notice 
provided pursuant to (1)(e), above, to their respective copies of 
the appropriate air quality operating permit. 

(3) Pursuant to the conditions in (I) and (2) above, a 
source holding an alr quality operating permit is authorized to 
make section 502(b)(10) changes, as defined in this subchapter, 
without a permit revision. For each such change, the written 
notification required under (1) (e) above, shall include a des­
cription of the change within the source, the date on which the 
change will occur, any change in emissions, and any permit term 
or condition that is no longer applicable as a result of the 
change. 

(4) Pursuant to the conditions in (1) and (2) above, and 
upon the request of the permit applicant, the department shall 
issue an air quality operating permit that contains terms and 
conditions, including all terms required under [BULkS VIII-XI and 
XIII] to determine compliance, allowing for.the trading ot emis­
sions increases and decreases at the source solely for the pur­
pose of complying with a federally-enforceable emissions cap that 
is established in the permit independent of otherwise applicable 
requirements, providing the following conditions are met: 

(a) the applicant must include in its application proposed 
replicable procedures and permit terms that ensure the emissions 
trades are quantifiable and enforceable; 

(b) the emissions trades may not be applied to any emis­
sions units for which emissions are not quantifiable or for which 
there are no replicable procedures to enforce the emissions 
trades; 

(c) the permit must require compliance with all applicable 
requirements; 

(d) emission trading may only be done within a pollutant, 
that is, emission decreases may only be traded for emission in­
creases of the same pollutant; and 

(e) the written notification required under (1) (e) above, 
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must state when the change will occur, and describe the changes 
in emissions that will result and how these increases and de­
creases in emissions will comply with the terms and conditions of 
the permit. · 

(5) A source holding ary air quality operating permit may 
make a change not specifically addressed or prohibited by the 
permit terms and conditions without requiring a permit revision, 
provided that the following conditions are met: 

(a) each proposed "change does not weaken the enforceability 
of any existing permit condition; 

(b) the department has not objected to such change; 
(c) each proposed change meets all applicable requirements 

and does not violate any existing permit term or condition; and 
(d) the source provides contemporaneous written notice to 

the department and the administrator of each change, except for 
changes that qualify as insignificant emission units under (RULE 
II](21) and (RULE VI](J), and the written notice describes each 
such change, including the requirement that would apply as a 
result of the change. 

(6) The permit shield authorized by [RULE XII] shall not 
apply to changes made pursuant to (J) and (5) above, but is ap­
plicable to terms and conditions that allow for increases and 
decreases in emissions pursuant to (4) above. 

(7) Notwithstanding any provisions of this rule, the fol­
lowing changes must be submitted as an air quality operating 
permit revision: 

(a) any change that increases emissions above those allowed 
in the air quality operating permit; 

(b) any change that increases emissions above those allowed 
in the air quality preconstruction permit; 

(c) any change that is a modification as defined in sub­
chapters 9, 17 or lB of this chapter; 

(d) any change that is a modification or reconstruction 
under sections 7410, 7411, or 7412 of the FCAA; or 

(e) any change subject to the acid rain requirements under 
Title IV of the FCAA. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE XIX ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR AIR QUALITY OPERATING 
PERMIT AMENDMENTS (1) An administrative permit amendment may be 
made by the department to an air quality operating permit, con­
sistent with the following: 

(a) The department shall take no more than 60 days fro111 
receipt of a request for an administrative permit amendment to 
take final action on such request, and may incorporate such 
changes into the permit without providing notice to the public or 
affected states, provided that it designates any such permit 
revisions as having been made pursuant to this rule. 

(b) The department shall submit a copy of the revised per­
mit to the administrator. 

(c) The source may implement the changes addressed in the 
request for an administrative amendment immediately upon submit­
tal of the request. 

(2) If the administrative permit amendment involves a 
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change in ownership or operational control of a source, the ap­
plicant must include in its request to the department a written 
agreement containing a specific date for the transfer of permit 
responsibility, coverage, and liability between the current and 
new permittee. 

(3) Administrative permit amendments for purposes of the 
acid rain portion of the permit will be governed by regulations 
promulgated under Title IV of the FCAA. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, MCA 

RULE XX ADQITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MINOR AIR OYALITX OPER­
ATING PERMIT MODIFICATIONS ( 1) Minor air quality operating 
permit modification procedures may be used only for those permit 
modifications that: 

(a) do not violate any applicable requirement; 
(b) do not involve significant changes to existing monitor­

ing, reporting, or recordkeeping requirements or other permit 
terms that are necessary to enforce applicable emission limita­
tions on emissions units covered by the permit; 

(c) do not require or change a case-by-case determination 
of an emission limitation or other standard, a source-specific 
determination of ambient impacts for temporary sources, or a 
visibility or increment analysis; 

(d) are not modifications under any provision of Title I of 
the FCAA; 

(e) do not require an air quality preconstruction permit; 
(f) are not required by the department to be processed as a 

significant modification; and 
(g) do not seek to establish or change a permit term or 

condition for which there is no corresponding underlying appli­
cable requirement and that the source has assumed to avoid an 
applicable requirement to which the source would otherwise be 
subject. such terms and conditions include a federally-enforce­
able emissions cap assumed to avoid classification as a modifica­
tion under any provision of Title I of the FCAA, and an alter­
native emissions limit approved pursuant to regulations promul­
gated under section 7412(i) (5) of the FCAA. 

(2) Notwithstanding (1) and (7), minor air quality operat­
ing permit modification procedures may be used for permit modifi­
cations involving the use of economic incentives, marketable 
permits, emissions trading, and other similar approaches, to the 
extent that such minor permit modification procedures are explic­
itly provided for in the Montana state implementation plan or in 
applicable requirements promulgated by the administrator. 

( J) An application for a minor permit modification under 
this rule need only address in detail those portions of the per­
mit application that require revision, updating, supplementation, 
or deletion, and may reference any required information that has 
been previously submitted. 

(4) Within five working days of receipt of a complete per­
mit modification application, the department shall meet its obli­
gation under (RULE XXV] to notify the administrator and affected 
states of the requested permit modification. The department must 
promptly send any notice required under (RULE XXV] to the admin-
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istrator. 
(5) The department may not issue a final minor air quality 

operating permit modification until after the administrator's 45-
day review period ends, or until the administrator has notified 
the department that the administrator will not object to issuance 
of the permit modification, whichever first occurs, although the 
department can approve the permit modification prior to that 
time. Within 90 days of the department's receipt of an applica­
tion under minor modification procedures or 15 days after the end 
of the administrator's 45-day review period under [RULE XXV], 
whichever is later, and after the close of any public comment 
period, the department shall: 

(a) issue the permit modification as proposed; 
(b) deny the permit modification application; 
(C) determine that the requested permit modification does 

not meet the minor modification criteria and should be reviewed 
under the significant modification procedures; or 

(d) revise the draft permit modification and transmit to 
the administrator the new proposed permit modification as re­
quired by [RULE XXV]. 

(6) Unless the proposed change requires an air quality 
preconstruction permit, the source may make the change proposed 
in its minor modification application immediately after such 
application is filed with the department. After the source makes 
the proposed change, and until the department takes any of the 
actions specified in (5) above, the source must comply with both 
the applicable requirements governing the change and the proposed 
permit terms and conditions. During this time period, the source 
need not comply with the existing permit terms and conditions 
that it seeks to modify. However, if the source fails to comply 
;.;ith its proposed permit terms and conditions during this time 
period, the existing permit terms and conditions that it seeks to 
modify may be enforced against it. 

(7) consistent with the requirements in this section and 
(8)-(10) below, the department may process groups of a source's 
applications for certain modifications eligible for minor modifi­
cation processing. Group processing may be used only far those 
modifications: 

(a) that meet the criteria for minor modification proce­
dures under (l) above; and 

(b) that collectively are below 10% of the emissions al­
lowed by the existing air quality operating permit for the emis­
sions unit at which the change is requested, 20% of the applica­
ble definition of major source in (RULE II](22), or five tons per 
year, whichever is least. 

(8) On a quarterly basis or within five business days of 
receipt of a permit modification application demonstrating that 
the aggregate of a source's pending minor permit modification 
application equals or exceeds the threshold level set under (7) 
above, whichever is earlier, the department must promptly meet 
its obligation under [RULE XXV] to notify the administrator and 
affected states of the requested permit modifications. The de­
partment shall send any notice required under [RULE XXV] to the 
administrator. 

~R ~otice No. 16-2-430 15-a/12/93 



-1849-

(9) The prov1s1ons of (5) above, shall apply to modifica­
tions eligible ear group processing, except that the department 
shall take one of the actions specified in (5) (a)-(d) above, 
within 180 days of receipt of the application or 15 days after 
the end of the administrator's 45-day review period under (RULE 
XXV], whichever is later. 

(10) The provisions of (6) above, shall apply to modifica­
tions eligible for group processing. 

(11) The permit shield under (RULE XII] will not extend to 
any minor modifications processed pursuant to this rule. 

(12) Consistent with (RULE XXIV], the department shall pro­
vide public notice of a change or changes proposed in a minor 
permit modification application pursuant to this rule, promptly 
on receipt of the application. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, MCA 

RQl.E XXI ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SIGNIFICANT AIR ORALI­
TY OPERATING PERMIT MODIFICATIONS (1) The modification proce­
dures set forth in ( 3) l::Jelow, must be used for any application 
requesting a significant modification of an air quality operating 
permit. Significant modifications include the following: 

(a) any permit modification that does not qualify as either 
a minor modifica~ion or as an administrative permit amendment; 

(b) every significant change in existing permit monitoring 
terms or conditions; 

(c) every relaxation of permit reporting or recordkeeping 
terms or conditions; or 

(d) any 01;her change determined by the depart1nent to be 
significant. 

(2) Nothing herein may be construed to preclude the per­
mittee from making changes consistent with this chapter that 
would render existing permit compliance terms and conditions ir­
relevant. 

(3) Significant modifications shall meet all requirements 
of this chapter, including those for applications, public partic­
ipation, and review by affected states and the administrator, as 
they apply to permit issuance and renewal, except that an appli­
cation for a significant modification permit need only address in 
detail those portions of the permit application that require 
revision, updating, supplementation, or deletion. The department 
shall conduct this proce$S to complete review of the majority of 
significant modifications within nine months after receipt of a 
complete application. 

(4) The permit shield provided for in (RULE XII] shall 
extend to significant modifications. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RQLE XXII AQDITIONAL REOUIREKENTS FOR AIR QUALITY OPERATING 
PERMIT REVOCATION. REOPEHING AND REVISION FOR CAUSE (1) An air 
quality operating permit may be reopened and revised only under 
the following circumstances: 

(a) Additional applicable requireJnents under the FCAA be­
come applicable to a major source holding a permit with a remain­
ing term of three or more years. Reopening and revision of the 
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permit shall be completed not later than 18 months after promul­
gation of the applicable requirement. No reopening is required 
under this- subsection if the effective date of the applicable 
requirement is later than the date on which the permit is due to 
expire, unless the original permit or any of its terms and condi­
tions have been extended pursuant to (RULE XIV] (12) or [RULE 
XV] (2). 

(b) Additional requirements (including excess emissions re­
quirements) become applicable to an affected source under the 
acid rain program. Upon approval by the administrator, excess· 
emissions offset plans shall be deemed to be incorporated into 
the permit. 

(c) The department or the administrator determines that the 
permit contains a material mistake or that inaccurate statements 
were made in establishing the emissions standards or other terms 
or conditions of the permit. 

(d) The administrator or the department determines that the 
permit must be revised or revoked to assure compliance with the 
applicable requirements. 

(2) Each permit issued under this subchapter shall specify 
that under the circumstances contained in (1) (a)-(d), above, the 
permit shall be reopened and revised. 

(3) Proceedings to reopen and revise an air quality operat­
ing permit, including the opportunity for appeal and review by 
the board, shall follow the same procedures as apply to permit 
issuance, and shall affect only those parts of the permit for 
which cause exists for reopening and revision under ( 1) above. 
Reopening and revision shall be completed as expeditiously as 
practicable. 

(4) The department shall provide a minimum of 90 days ad­
vance written notice to the holder of an air quality operating 
permit of the department's intent to reopen and revise the permit 
under ( 1) above. The department may, in the notice of intent, 
request such information as may be necessary to prepare the per­
mit revision for inclusion in the permit after reopening. The 
notice of intent to reopen may not be appealed to the board. The 
department's final decision on reopening and revision becomes 
effective and may be appealed to the board as provided for in 
[RULE VIII](j). Nothing in this section shall limit the emergen­
cy powers of the department under the Montana Clean Air Act. 
Title 75, chapter 2, MCA. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE XXIII NOTICE OF TERMINATION, MODIFICATION. OR REVOCA­
TION AND REIS$UANCE BY THE ADMINISTEATOR FOR CAUSE (1) If the 
administrator notifies the department and the permittee in writ­
ing that cause exists to terminate, modify, or revoke and reissue 
an air quality operating permit pursuant to the circumstances 
contained in (RULE XXII](l), the department shall, within 90 days 
after receipt of notification, forward to the administrator a 
proposed determination of termination, modification, or revoca­
tion and reissuance, as appropriate. The department may apply to 
the administrator for an extension of up to an additional 90 days 
if a new or revised permit application is necessary or the de-
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partment ~ust require the permittee to sub~it additional informa­
tion. 

(2) If the ad~inistrator objects in writing to the depart­
ment's proposed determination pursuant to (1) above, the depart­
~ent shall have 90 days from receipt of the objection to resolve 
the issues raised by the administrator, and to terminate, ~odify, 
or revoke and reissue the permit in ac·cordance with the admini­
strator's objection. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, MCA 

JiULE XXIV Put!L!C PARTICIPATION (1) Except for permit 
changes not requiring revisions under [RULE XVIII], administra­
tive permit amendments under (RULE XIX], and department review of 
activities to be conducted pursuant to general permits under 
[RULE XVI], all air quality operating permit proceedings, includ­
ing initial permit issuance, minor and significant modifications, 
and renewals, shall provide adequilte procedures for public :-:o­
tice, including ·an opportunity for both public cOIIIlllent and a 
hearing an the draft ~e~it. These procedures shall include the 
following: 

(a) The department shall give public notice by publication 
in a newspaper of general circulation in the al:'ea where the 
soUX'ce is located, to persons on a mailing list developed by the 
department including those who request in writing to be on the 
list, and by other means if necessary to assure adequate notice 
to the affected public. 

(b) The notice required under (a) above, shall identify the 
following: 

(i) the affected facility; 
(ii) the name and address of the permittee; 
(iii) the name and address of the department; 
(iv) the activity or activities involved in the permit 

action; 
(v) the e~issions change involved in any permit modifica­

tion; 
(vi) the name, address, and telephone number of a person 

from whom interested persons may obtain additional information, 
including copies of the draft peX'IIIit, the application, all rele­
vant supportinq materials, including those set forth in compli­
anc~ plans, compliance certification reports and monitoring re­
ports, and all other materials available to the department that 
ara relevant to the permit decision, with the exception of infor­
mation that has been declared confidential; 

(vii) a brief description of the comment and appeal proce­
dures required by this chapter; and 

(viii) the time and place of any hearing that may be held, 
including a statement of procedures to request a hearing (unless 
a hearing has already been scheduled). 

(c) The department shall provide such notice and opportuni­
ty for participation by affected states as provided in [RULE 
XXV). . 

(d) The department shall provide at least 30 days for pub­
lic comment and shall give notice of any public hearinq at least 
30 days in advance of the hearing. 
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(2) The department shall keep a record ot both the cornmen­
ters and the issues raised during the public participation pro­
cess so that the administrator may fulfill the obligation under 
section 766ld(b) (2) of the FCAA to determine whether a citizen 
petition may be granted, and such records shall be available to 
the public. 

(3) All comments received during the public comment period 
shall be promptly forwarded to the source in order that the 
source may have an opportunity to respond to these comments. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, 75-2-218, MCA 

RULE XXV PERMIT REVIEW BY THE ADMINISTRATOR AND AFFECTED 
STATES (1) The department shall provide to the administrator a 
copy of each proposed air quality operating permit and each final 
permit. 

(2) An applicant shall provide a copy of each air quality 
operating permit application and each permit modification appli­
cation (including the compliance plans) directly to the adminis­
trator. Upon agreement with the administrator, the applicant may 
submit to the administrator a permit application summary form and 
any relevant. portion of the permit application and compliance 
plan, in place of the complete application and compliance plan. 
To the extent practicable, the information required under this 
subsection shall be provided in computer-readable format compati­
ble with the administrator's national database management system. 

(J) The department shall keep for five years such records 
and submit to the administrator such information as the admin­
istrator reasonably requires to ascertain whether the state pro­
gram complies with the requirements of the FCAA and 40 CFR Part 
70. 

(4) The department shall give notice of each draft air 
quality operating permit to any affected state on or before the 
time that the department provides this notice to the public under 
[RULE XXIV], except to the extent [RULE XX)(4) or (8) requires 
the timing of the notice to be different. 

(5) The department shall, as part ot the submittal of the 
proposed air quality operating permit to the administrator (or as 
soon as possible after the submittal for minor permit modifica­
tion procedures allowed under [RULE XX] (4) or (8)) notify the 
administrator and any affected state in writing of any refusal by 
the department to accept all recommendations for the proposed 
permit submitted by the affected state during the public comment 
or affected state review period. The notice shall include the 
department's reasons for not accepting any such recommendation. 
The department is not required to accept recommendations that are 
not based on applicable requirements or the requirements of this 
subchapter. Those requirements designated as not being federal­
ly-enforceable may not serve as the basis for such recommenda­
tions. 

(6) No air quality operating permit for which an applica­
tion must be transmitted to the administrator under ( 2) allove, 
shall be issued if the administrator objects in writing to its 
issuance within 45 days of receipt of the proposed permit and all 
necessary supporting information. Objections by the administra-
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tor shall only be based on the qrounds that the per111it did not 
demonstrate or require compliance with applicable requirements or 
comply with the requirements of this subchapter. Those require­
ments designated as not being federally-enforceable may not serve 
as the basis for such objections. 

(7) Any objection by the administratoJ;" under (6) above, 
shall include a statement of the administrator's reasons for 
objection and a description of the terms and conditions that the 
air quality operating permit must include to respond to the ob­
jection. The administrator shall provide to the permit applicant 
a copy of the objection. 

(8) The failure of the department to do any of the follow­
ing shall also constitute grounds for an objection by the admin­
istrator: 

(a) comply with (1)-(5), above; 
(b) submit any information necessacy to adequately review 

the proposed permit; or 
(c) process the perni t under the procedures approved to 

meet (RULE XXIV], except for those actions by the department that 
are not subject to (RULE XXIV]. 

(9) If the administrator does not object in WX"iting under 
(6) above, any person may petition the administrator within 60 
days after the expiration of the administrator's 45-day review 
period to make such objection. 

(10) Any petition filed with the administrator pursuant to 
(9) above shall be based only on objections to the air quality 
operating permit that were raised with reasonable specificity 
during the public conuuent period provided for in (RULE XXIV] , 
unless the petitioner demonstrates that it was impracticable to 
raise such objections within such period, or unless the grounds 
for such objection arose after such period. 

(11) If the administrator objects to the air quality operat­
ing permit as a result of a petition filed under (9) above, the 
department shall not issue the permit until the administrator's 
objection has been resolved, except that a petition for review 
does not stay the effectiveness of a permit or its requirements 
if the permit was issued after the end of the 45-day review peri­
od and prior to the administrator's objection. If the department 
has issued a permit prior to receipt of the administrator's ob­
jection under this section, and the administrator modifies, ter­
minates, or revokes the permit consistent with the pJ:"ocedures in 
[RULE XXIII], the department may thereafter issue only a revised 
permit that satisfies the administrator's objection. In any 
case, the source will not be in violation of the J:"equirement to 
have submitted a timely and complete application. 

(12) Consistent with (6)-(11) above, the department may not 
issue an air quality operating permit (including a permit renewal 
or modification) until affected states and the administrator have 
had an opportunity to review the proposed permit as required 
under this subchapter. The administrator may waive the opportu­
nity for such review by the administrator and affected states. 
AUTH: 75-2-217, MCA; IMP: 75-2-217, MCA 
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4. The board is proposing these rules because they are 
necessary to implement the provisions of House Bill No. 318, 
passed by the 1993 legislature. Pursuant to Title v of the fed­
eral Clean Air Act, 42 u.s.c. 7401, et seq., as amended in 1990, 
states are required, no later than November 15, 1993, to adopt an 
operating permit program for ·certain stationary sources of air 
pollution, and to submit the program to the Environmental Protec­
tion Agency (EPA) for approval. Sections (9)-(11) of House Bill 
No. 318 provide the statutory authority both for the board to 
adopt the necessary implementing rules and for the department to 
administer the required program. These rules are proposed to 
implement the required Title v operating permit program, as au­
thorized under HB 318. Failure of the states to timely submit an 
operating permit program to EPA triggers the imposition of sanc­
tions by the federal government, including loss of highway funds, 
loss of federal funding of the state air program, and others. 

5. Interested persons may submit their data, views, or 
arguments concerning the proposed rule, either orally or in ~rit­
ing, at the hearing. Written data, views, or arguments may also 
be submitted to Yoli Fitzsimmons, Board of Health and Environmen­
tal Sciences, Cogswell Building, Capitol Station, Helena, Montana 
59620, no later than September 14, 1993. 

RAYMOND W. GUSTAFSON, Chairman 
BOARD OF HEALTH AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES 

by 

Certified to the secretary of State August 2. 1993 

Reviewed by: 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the adoption, ) 
amendment and repeal of Rules ) 
of the fire prevention and ) 
investigation bureau describin~ 
the revision of licensure ) 
requirements for persons ) 
selling, installing or ) 
servicing fire protection ) 
equipment and other provisions l 
dealing with fire safety l 

TO: All Interested Persons: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON PROPOSED ADOPTION, 
AMENDMENT AND REPEAL OF 
RULES PERTAINING TO 
REVISION OF LICENSURE 
REQUIREMENTS 

1. on September 15, 1993, at 9:30A.M. a public hearing 
will be held in the auditorium of the Department of Social and 
Rehabilitation Services, 111 sanders street, Helena, Montana, to 
consider the adoption of rules I through v, the amendment of ARM 
23.7.105, 23.7.121, 23.7.122, 23.7.123, 23.7.124, 23.7.125, 
23.7.131, 23.7.132, 23.7.133, 23.7.134, 23.7.135, 23.7.136, 
23.7.141, 23.7.153, 23.7.154, 23.7.159, 23.7.160 and the repeal 
of ARM 23.7.142, 23.7.151, 23.7.152. 

2. The department of justice proposes to adopt the 
following rules: 

RULE I DEFINITIONS Unless the context requires 
otherwise, the following definitions apply to (rules 23.7.101 
through 23.7.203]: 

(1) "Apprentice" is a person new to the entity or position 
in a training capacity, for the service or installation of fire 
alarm systems, special agent fire suppression systems, or fire 
extinguishing systems and who is studying in accordance with an 
apprentice program approved by the department or who holds 
National Institute for Certification in Engineering Technologies 
(NICET) level I certification and is studying for level II 
certification. 

(2) "Building code" means the latest edition of the 
Uniform Building Code adopted by the department of collllllerce. 
Whenever a provision of the Building Code is incorporated within 
the Uniform Fire Code by reference, such provision is hereby 
adopted for application to all buildings within the jurisdiction 
of the state fire prevention and investigation bureau, unless 
the bureau chief determines otherwise in accordance with UFC 
section 2. 301. Copies of the Uniform Building Code may be 
obtained from th111 Building Codes Bureau of the Department of 
Commerce, 1218 East Sixth Avenue, Helena, Montana 59620. 

(3) "Building official" refers to the bureau chief of the 
building codes bureau of the department of commerce or, when 
made applicable by statute or rule, the building official of the 
local jurisdiction. 
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(4) "Chief," "fire chief," "fire marshal," and "fire 
prevention engineer" all are treated as referring to the chief 
of the fire prevention and investigation bureau of the 
department of justice or, when made applicable by statute or 
rule or the context thereof, to the chief official of the 
appropriate local fire protection agency. 

(5) "City•• is treated as referring to the state of Montana 
or, when made applicable by statute or rule or the context 
thereof, to the appropriate local jurisdiction. 

(6) "Commercial General Liability Insurance" means 
insurance that covers bodily injury and property damage, 
personal and advertising injury and medical payments resulting 
from, but not limited to, premises/operations claims and 
products/completed operations claims. 

(7) "Department" means the department of justice. 
(8) "District", as used in section 50-61-114, MCA means a 

rural fire district established under Title 7, chapter 33, part 
21, MCA. 

{9) "Endorsement" means a document issued by the 
department to an individual who has met qualifications which 
authorizes the individual to service and install fire alarm 
systems, special agent fire suppression systems, or fire 
extinguishing systems. 

(10) "Entity" means 
propriety, organization, 
governmental organization, 
association. 

any business, partnership, sole 
association, corporation, firm, 
fire agency or any other business 

( 11) "Fire alarm system" means a combination of approved 
compatible devices with the necessary electrical interconnection 
and energy to produce an alarm signaling the event of fire or 
system activation but does not include single station smoke or 
heat detectors. 

(12) "Fire Department" and "bureau of fire prevention" are 
treated as referring to the fire prevention and investigation 
bureau of the department of justice or, when made applicable by 
statute or rule or the context thereof, to the appropriate local 
jurisdiction. 

( lJ) "Fire extinguisher" means a portable device containing 
an extinguishing agent that can be expelled under pressure for 
the purpose of suppressing or extinguishing a fire. 

( 14) ''Fire extinguishing system" means a fire sprinkler 
system that consists of an assembly of piping or conduits that 
conveys water, foam or air with or without other agents to 
dispersal openings or devices to extinguish, control or contain 
tire and to provide protection from exposure to fire or the 
products of combustion. 

(15) "Fire protection equipment" means any fire alarm 
system, special agent fire suppression system, fire 
extinguishing system or related components. 

(16) "Fire sprinkler system" means a fire extinguishing 
system. 

(17) "Inspection" means a visual check that an extinguisher 
is available and will operate. It is intended to give 
reasonable assurance that the extinguisher is fully charged and 
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operable. This is done by seeing that it is in its desiqnated 
place, that it has not been actuated or tampered with, and that 
there is no obvious physical damage or condition to prevent 
operation. 

(18) "License" means the document issued by the department 
which authorizes a person or entity to engage in the business of 
servicing fire extinguishers or before engaging in the business 
of selling, servicing or installing fire alarm systems, spacial 
agent fire suppression systems or fire extinguishing systems. 

(19) "Local authority,. means a fire agency, law enforcement 
agency or other governmental agency having jurisdiction in a 
given location. 

(20) "Mechanical code'" means the latest edition of the 
Uniform Mechanical Code adopted by the department of commerce. 
Whenever a provision of the Mechanical Code is incorporated 
within the Uniform Fire Code by reference, such px-ovision is 
hereby adopted for application to all buildings within the 
jurisdiction of the state fire prevention and investigation 
bureau, unless the bureau chief determines otherwise in 
accordance with UFC Section 2.301. 

(21) "NICET" means National Institute for Certification in 
Engineering Technologies. 

(22) •ordinance" means state law, city or county ordinance, 
or rule adopted by the fire prevention and investigation bureau. 

(23) "Service", when referring to portable fire 
extinguishers and fire extinguisher cylinders, means maintenance 
and includes breakdown for replacement of parts or agent, 
repair, recharging or hydrostatic testing. 
(a) When referring to alar. systems, fire extinguishing systems 

and fire suppression syst-ms, "service" means maintenance and 
testing required to keep th•protective signaling, extinguishing 
and suppression system and its component parts in an operative 
condition at all times, together with replacement of the system 
or its component parts with listed or approved parts, when, for 
any reason they become undependable, defective or inoperative. 
(b) "Service" does not include resetting manual alarm systems 

which may be reset by properly trained building owners or their 
designated representative. 

(24) "Single family private house" means a dwelling unit as 
defined in the Uniform Fire Code, no part of which is rented to 
another person. 

(25) "Special agent !ire suppression system" means an 
approved system and co~onants which requlre individual 
engineering in accordance with manufacturer specifications and 
includes dry chemical, carbon dioxide, halogenated, gaseous 
agent, foam and wet chemical systems; includes pre-engineered 
system but does not include a fire extinguishing system. 

(26) "Uniform Fire Coda" 111eans the latest edition of the 
Uniform Fire Code adopted by the state fire prevention and 
investigation bureau. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA, IMP: 50-3-102, MCA, 

the issuance 

15-8/12/93 

INSPECIIQN OF AppLICANT FACILITY (1) Prior to 
of a license the department may inspect the 
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business facility to verify that the applicant is properly· 
equipped and staffed to provide the sales or services to be 
licensed and endorsed. 

(2') The department may reinspect the applicant facility 
annually or more often to assure the facility meets department 
standards. AUTH: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, 50-3-
107, MCA 

RVLE III PROOF OF INSURANCE (1) Prior to issuance of a 
license and annually thereafter the entity shall obtain, 
maintain in full force and file with the department a full term 
commercial general liability insurance policy from an insurance 
company authorized to do business in the state of Montana and 
except as provided in subsection (5), submit verification of 
workers' compensation insurance. 

(2) An entity engaging in the business of servicing fire 
extinguishers shall submit a copy of colnlnercial general 
liability insurance with a minimum limit per occurrence of 
$500,000 that includes premises/operations and 
products/completed operations coverage. 

(3) An entity engaging in the business of selling, 
servicing or installing fire alarm systems, special agent fire 
suppression systems or fire extinguisher systems shall submit a 
copy of commercial general liability insurance with a minimum 
limit per occurrence of $1,000, 000 that includes 
premises/operations and products/completed operations coverage. 

(4) Failure to maintain liability insurance required under 
this chapter constitutes grounds for denial, suspension, or 
revocation of a license. 

(5) Sole proprietors or working members of a partnership 
who are on file with the department of labor and industry as 
independent contractors, with no employees, need not submit 
workers' compensation but shall submit independent contractor 
exemption verification to the department. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, MCA 

RULE IV CONTIN!JING EDUCATION (1) C o n t i n u i n g 
education is that education obtained which is in addition to the 
educational requirements for endorsement. continuing education 
must be related to the practice of installing or servicing fire 
protection equipment. 

(2) An endorsee shall obtain a minimum of 15 hours (50 to 
60 minutes per hour) or 1.5 continuing education units annually 
and submit copies of continuing education certificates. 
(3) The following continuing education programs may be approved 
by the department for continuing education credit: 

(a) workshops, seminars and educational conferences 
sponsored by fire protection equipment manufacturers or trade 
associations; and 

(b) accreditation and refresher courses in specialized 
programs approved by the department. 

{4) Continuing education may be obtained by correspondence 
course work through NICET, fire protection equipment 
manufacturers or industry trade associations approved by the 
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department. 
(5) Any continuing education which has been obt~ined in 

another state that meets the continuing education requirements 
ot that state may be approved by the department. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA; IMP: 50-39-102, MCA 

RULE V TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP PROHIBITED A license or 
endorsement issued under this chapter is not transferable. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA 

RULE VI NICET LEVEL III PLbNS APPBOVAL AU1HORIZAT10N 
(1) A registered professional electrical engineer, 

mechanical engineer, fire protection engineer or senior 
engineering technician having NICET level III certification in 
fire protection engineering technology may certify plans for 
fire alarm systems, special agent fire suppression systems or 
fire extinguishing systems. 

(2) The person may be on staff at an entity licensed in 
accordance with these rules. 

(3) A person holding NICET level II and who is studying in 
accordance with NICET level III may certify plans for fire alarm 
systems, special agent fire suppression systems or fire 
extinguishing systems for a maximum of one year. Tile person 
shall submit NICET level III certification to the department to 
continue plans certification. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA 

3. The rules proposed to be amended provide as follows: 

23.7.105 ADOPTION OF YNIFORM FIRE CODE AND DEFINITIONS 
(1) The fire prevention and investigation bureau hereby 

adopts and incorporates by reference the Uniform Fire Code, 
International Conference of Building Officials, 1991 edition, 
and the 1991 edition of the UFC Standards. Copies of the 
Uniform Fire code and related materials may be obtained from the 
International conference of BUilding Officials, 5360 South 
Workman Mill Road, Whittier, California 90601, or from the 
Building Codes Bureau of the State of Montana Department of 
commerce, 1218 East Sixth Avenue, Helena, Montana 59620. 
Information is available upon request from the Fire Prevention 
and Investigation Bureau, Department of Justice, 303 North 
Roberts, Helena MT 59620. 

(2) As used in these rules, all definitions excgpt those 
found in. Rule I contained within the Uniform Fire Code apply 
vieh eae fe11eviR'!J eweep~ieRe ~ftd ~ddi~ieRel. 

fa) "hpp!'eR~iee" is ~ pereeft iR ~ 4!J!'~iRift'!J peeiceiel'h fer 
a pe!'ied et 1\a •ere ~haft 12 •eRehe, fer ~he ifte~allaeieR aJ!' 
se~·iee ef fire pret:eet.ieR e~ipmeR£, 

(b) "Biii1oiiROJ eeEle" meafte the l~eeee ecHeiea ef ehe 
\JflUO!'III B~;tildin'!f Gede adeplied by ehe a epa remeRe ef eeiiiiM!J!'ee, Wh•••••,.l." ~ p:re'+'isien ef ~he B\lildiftOJ eeae ie iftae~pe:raeed •wiehi" 
11:fte linifell'• F'iPe Gede B} Pefe!'eftee, 8\lah pl."e•.-ieieft is he:reby 
<~oliep'6eli fel!' applieat.iel'l ee ~11 eu.icldirw)e .... iehi:n ~he j\IJ!'ieai:eeieft 
ef t-he !lleaee fil!'e pl!'e'•'el'l4!ien ;utd il'l•.•eet:iOJa~ien l:n:trea\1, \lrtleee 
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the b~a~eaH el\ief Eiet.ermiRes a'ehe~<..dse ll'l aeeel Eial'lee with UPC 
SeetieR 2 • 391• Qepiee ef t.he Ul'liferm BHilEiiROJ Cede may be 
ellt.aiReEi frem t.he Bllildii'IOJ Cedee B~area~a ef t.he Qepart.lllel'lt. et 
Ce-eree, 1:!19 Bast. Siw'eh AveftHe 1 llelefta, Meft'eafta 59629. 

(e) "B~ailEiiROJ effieial" refers te t.he ll~area~a ebief ef the 
ll~ailEiiROJ _eeEies e~area~a ef the eiel!'a~t:meR'e ef ee111111eree ap, iihen 
maEie appl~eaele ey et.at.ut.e er l'Hle, tl\e e~aileliROJ effieial af the 
leeal j~a~iedietiel'lo 

(li) "eaief," "fit<e ehiaf," "fil!'e ma:t'ahal," aaREi "fire 
pl'eveRt:iaR eROJiReel' 11 all are t.reat.ed as PeferriROJ t.a t:he ehief 
ef the fire pre•,eRt:ien aREi iR·,•est.io:Jat.iaR b~area\i ef the 
Eiel!i>aEt.meRt. ef j~:~etiee 9:1:' 1 '"'heR maEie applieable by st.at:~at:e 9:1:' 
~ie er t.he eeRt:eut: 'el\e£e9f 1 'e9 t.he ehief 9ffieial 9f 'ehe 
apprepriat.e leeal fire pr9'eeet.iefl ao:Je>fley. 

(e) "eit.y" ie tPeat.ed ae refer!!'iROJ 'ee the state ef llel'l'eefta 
er, wheR made applieaele ey et:at~ate ar rule er t.he eeRtext 
tl\ereef, te the apprepriate leeal jHrisEiiet.iefl• 

(f) "Qist.riet.", as liseel in seet.ieR 59 61 lH, MilA meaRs a 
r~l fire dist.riet. est ,-part 
ill, MQA, 

(OJ) "Pire Eie!!i>aMmeRt:" and "b~area'tl ef fire preveRtiOft"-al:'e 
treateEi as referrinEJ t~·pre•reRtien aRd in.,•eeti~t=iel'l 
~ ef the departllleftt: ef j'tlstiee er, wheft 111<tde applicable by 
at:at.otte-er-~1!!' the eeRteJft thereef, ta the appre!!i>Fi.ate lee a} 

jli'l!'issiet:ieR, 
(h) "Fire proteetieR eq'<lipmeRt" means any listed aREife;t' 

·l-abeled fire alaz:lll system, alitamat~~larm system, 
aatemat.ie fire eutinEJuiehino:J system Bl!!' pert.aele-~ 
eut:il'lo:Jiiisl\er, 

(i) "!Ftstallat.ien aAEi serviee," wheA ap!!lieaele to f~r~ 
pret.eetiort eqHipmeRt:, meaRs SHeh ifist.allatieR aREi serviei~ 
req'tlired by the YAiferm Fire Cede aREi ey Aatienall~ reeeEJAi~eEi 
staREiarde refel!!'eneed iR the WRiferm Pire cede. Requires service 
fe'l!' fire preteetieA eqHipmeRt is te ee eased en the p'tlrehase 
~ 

( j) "MeehaRieal eade" meaRs the latest. editiefi ef the 
UfiifeFi!l !!eehaRieal Cede adept.ed ey the departmefit ef ee-eree, 
WheRe·~eF a !!revisien ef the MeehaRieal Cede ie iReerperateel 
<within the URiferm Pire Cede ey l!!'efereRee, 9\leh previeien is 
n-eey aseptea fer applieatiel'l te all eui ltiift~s wit.hiR the 
jHrisEiiet.ieR ef the state fire pre <efttiefl aREi iR•.•eetiOJMdePl 
Btirea\1 1 ufileso the eHrea'tl chief determines ether~ise iA 
aeeerlial'lee with WFC 6eetiefi 2,JQ1, 

(ll) "Ordinance" meafts st.ate law, eit.y er ee'tiAty erliinanee, 
er rule adepteEi ey the fire !!re.,•eRt.ien aftd iR•••estio:JatioR eureeli, 

( 1) "Pertable fire eut.iftOJHisher" means a l\aREi fiOrt.allle ol!!' 
···heelei!l eaRt.ainer filled with aRy approved fire elttin~~aiehiAOJ 
a«JeRt that eal'! be used to eJttirtiJHieh small fires, 

(111) "Reo:Jietraflt" meaRs a persefi eel!Ctified ey the state 
l'i'l!'e maPel\al '•lho pol'fe'l!'!IIS the iRstallatieR er serviee ef fil'e 
!!ll'eteetiert e~'<lipmel'lt., 

(n) "SinEJle fa!llily pri•rate 1\e\iee" meaRs a dwelliAOJ \iRit as 
aefinei!l i" the anife~ FiFe 9ede, ne ~art ef whiel\ ie 'l!'eftteEi te 
aRethep pe~eeft• 
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(a) "aRiferm Fi•e sedaa me~e ~he leeese edi'&ieR ef ~he 
Wf'life- Fiol:'e Sede adep~ed 'lly ~• eea•e fil:'e pl:'8">en'&ien end 
inweat;i9at;ien aa•eaa. 

(3) The tire prevention and inve•tiqation bureau does not 
adopt Articles 4 and 78 or the Uniform Fire Code aRd deee ftBt; 
al!ep'& ~he felle~iftiiJ apper~dieea1 II G (Mal:'iRa!il), II 9 (Rifle 
RaR9eS) • 

141 The fire prevention and investigation bureau adopts 
all appendices of the Uniform Fire· code in accordance with 
Section 1,102 Ccl exceot tor II-C Cmarinasl. and II-D Critle 
Ranges!. AUTH: 50-3-102, 50-61-102, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, 50-61-
102, MCA 

23,7,h21 APPLICATION FOR PBRMii• LICENSE QR iiRfiFIGATi 
(1) "Applieat;iefte fel:' li!llet'laes, pe-i'&a, er ee•~ifiea'l!ee 

shall ee made eR a fe .. p•eeel:'ibed &r 'l!he e~a~e !il:'a ~rehal•" 
See'l!ien 59 39 192(1) MeJ,, Except as proyided in subsection C5l. 
a person or entity shall obtain a license from the department 
before engaging in the business of servicing fire extinguishers 
or selling, servicing, or installing fire alarm systems. special 
agent fire suppression systems, or tire extinguishing systems 
and shall be licensed before participating in contract bidding. 
Applications must also be accompanied by any required 
application fee. 

(2) ~e appliea~ieR te.- ehall iBeladet 
(a) Applieaftt.'a fteme and addl:'e!ll!ll' 
(B) Basir~ees addl:"esst 
(B) BueiBese Rame used, 
(d) 'l'ype ef wel:'lt t;e be pel:'fC.-ed, e• predaet.111 toe be aeldl 

(e) llheeher t;he appliean• ie eapleyed by a iliPe pl:'eteaeieft 
ageRc.y ef the e~at.e er ef ar~y leeal ge.,el:'llflane ar~i'l!t 

(f) llhe~he• '~!he applieaRt is a meabel:' ef the peraer~r~el ef 
a ReR p•efi~ fil:'e depa•'l!mene aRtl 1 if ae, fe• l'ha'e pv~eee the 
eel:"eifiea'l!e 1 lieer~ee el:' pePmit is being ebt;aiBedt aftd 

(g) Q~hel:' pertineRt infsPma~ien •e~il:'ed by ~he st.at;e fire 
mal:'ehal• Tbe application must follow procedures and be on forms 
oroyided by the department • 

.lll Incomplete applications are retained for sixty days 
after applicant is notified. If the applicant does not submit 
completed documents within sixty days the apRlicant must 
reapply, 

(~.i) Copies of the application fons are available upon 
request fl.'om the St;at;e Fwoe Marshal Bv•eaa 1 Department of 
Justice, Fire Prevention and Investigation Bureau Ream 311, 
Scott Hart Building, 303 North Roberts, P.O. Box 201412L Helena, 
Montana 59620=l!ll. 

i2l The following persons or entities are exempt from the 
licensing requirements imposed by these rules: 

(al Persons or entities that engage only in the routine 
visual inspection of fire alarm systems. special agent fire 
suppression systems or fire extinguishing systems owned by the 
pgrson gr entity and installed on property under tbeir control 
an exempt from obtaining a license or endorsement from the 
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department; however. these persons or entities are not exempt if 
they service or install fire protection equipment. 

l.!2l. A licensed eleCtrical contractor who subcontracts to 
instabl fire protection eauipment that incbudes smoke detection 
and fire alarm equipment pursuant to building specifications is 
exempt from obtaining a license or endorsement under this 
chapter. provided the installation is inspected and approyed by 
a. person endorsed to service or install the fire protection 
equipment. 

L[l Tbe applicant is responsible for having knowledge oi 
these rules and laws pertaining to fire protection equipment. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA; IMP: 50-39-101 through 105, MCA 

23.7. 122 SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION OF PE!UH'P. LICENSE OR 
ENPORSEHENTCSH'i'!FIGA'PE .L.ll_The departmentst:ai>e fi:l!'e marsllal 
~ lll.5l:l suspend or revoke a pe-i1> 1 license-; or 
endorsementeeRi!ieate ef Fei!Jist:r:atien, following notice and 
opportunity for bearing, if the holder has: 

{~A) GQbtained or attempted to obtain a peFmii>, license or 
endorsement eertifieai>e ef l!'e~istrai>ie~ by fraudulent 
misrepresentation; 

{i-.!;1) Ccoml!litted malpractice or exhibited incompetency in 
the installation or servicing of any fire protection equipment; 

{~£) Advertised or sold fire protection equipment by 
knowingly making false or deceptive statements; 

(~) &~old or installed fire protection equipment not 
approved by the department under ARM 23.7,143; 

{~~) &~erviced, and failed to notify the owner. the 
~uthority haying jurisdiction and the department of apy 
deficiencies found in the eer:eeet; -y fire protection equipment 
tfiae bas eeeft impreperl) ine~alled; 

{6.{) ilgmployed aft iruii···ial!al~ who 1 w8ile empleyea ey 
tfie fielder ef tfie liee~se, pe:r:mi~ 1 er eel!'tifieate, installs or 
services fire protection equipment improperly or who installs or 
services fire protection equipment without the required 
endorsement eertifieate ef r~ie~etiOR; 

{~) ¥yiolated any of tbe conditions, qualifications, or 
limitations set forth in the permit, license or endorsementr-&F 
eertifieete, or allowed the permit, license or endorsement,-er 
ee:e-tifieate to be used by anyone other than the person or 
~~ to whom the same was issued 1 

(&h) ¥yiolated the provisions of section 2-2-121{2) {b) or 
2~4-125(2) {b), MCA1 

{~i) ¥yiolated any provisions of this chapter; 
lil faibed to display or to carry copy of endorsementCsl 

as proyided in 50-39-101(2) MCA. 
ill Unless a specific period of suspension or revocation 

is set out in any final order of the department. a suspension 
shall not exceed one year and a revocation shall be permanent. 

ill As a condition to the reinstatement of a suspended 
endorsement the department may require the applicant to take and 
pass a qualifying examination. or course. or both as determined 
.Qy the department and demonstrate the reason for suspension has 
been corrected. 
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lil As a condition to reinstatement of a suspended lieenae 
the entity shall meet all original conditions of licensing and 
demonstrate the reason for suspension has been corrected. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, 50-39-101 through 
105, MCA 

23.7.123 DUPLICATE PJ:jRJH'fS. LICENSE&,= OR 
ENPOBSEMENTifiB'fiFISA'fES 

The departments~a~e tire marshal may upon request replace 
any previously issued permi£ 1 license or endorsement~ 
eer~ifieaee ef rei!Jist.raeieft that has been lost or destroyed. 
~ request must include a written statement from the holder 
attesting to the loss or destruction of ~his er her peraie 1 
license or endorsement1 e• ee•eitieaee. The request must also 
be accompanied by a fee of $~~. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102 1 MCA 

23.7.124 PENIAL OF ' CBR'l'IFICA'fJii P13F!HI'f Qft LICENSE OR 
ENDORSEMENT 

(1) Ths departrnentseaee fire marshal may deny a perai~ 1 
license or endorsement, er eereifieate to an applicant if the 
granting of one would adversely affect public safety or welfare, 
or if the applicant fails to satisfy the applicable requirements 
of section 50-39-102, MCA, or these rules. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, 50-39-101 through 
105, .MCA 

23.7.125 INVESTIGATION AHD/OR INSPECTION OF IMPROPER 
INSTALtATIQN OR SEBYICE 

(1) Upon efte-written request of a local authority or other 
~. the departmentseate fire marshal may conduct an 
inspection of the installation or service of fire protection 
equipment-r-. 

(2) The departmentstate fire marshal may enjoin the use of 
all or a portion of a building where fire protection equipment 
has been improperly installed or serviced. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, 50-39-101 through 
105, MCA 

23.7.131 WHO MQST OBTAIN AN ENDORSEMENT CBR'fiBilcU 9F 
RIGIS'l'R:t(l'I9N 

(1) Except as provided in subsection (2), a ftat~l!'&l person 
must oDtain an endorsement ee~tifieaee ef •e!ieeraeieft from the 
dapartm.nta•a-. fire marshal prior to iftseallift9 •• .. P¥isift'!J 
fire preee&EiSft e~ipmer~e selling. servicing. or installing fire 
alarm systems. special agent fire suppression systems or fire 
extinguishing systems. 

(2) The following persons need not obtain anse•eifisaea af 
re9ia6ratieftendorsementT~ 

(a) A~ manufacturer filling or charging a psrEahle fire 
extinguisher prior to its initial sale. 

(b) leAD apprentice, so long as he er ehetbe person 
performs the installation or service of fire protection 
equipment under the immediate personal supervision of a person 
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holding an endorsement. 
(e) !~ elee•rieal een~raa~iftiJ fiPa ~biaa haa a aen~rae~ •• 

phyai:eally ineeall and ili:re f.ire ):'reeeaeien e!llli•l:'•er~e aeeerl!lir~IJ 
toe rirawifiiJIII 1 ):'rar,•ided el'tae all final eeftl!eeeiene ef ~e syaeea 
are sliperviaed 111, a lfl:Hllifiel!l reiJieerane. 

(£&) A~n owner 1 manager 1 or maintenance personnel making 
monthly inspections on their own facilities and/e!' aftft\lal 
1118i:fteaftaflee e&eelte of psr•aele fire extinguishers. 

Lll An apprentice shall be registered with the department 
and in good standjng jn an apprentice program approved by th~ 
department and may serve in that capacity until a person 
completes the program but no longer than; 

1Al. four years for the seryice or installation of fire 
alarm systems; 

iRl two years for the service or installation of special 
agent fire suppression systems; 

l£1_ four years for the service or installation of fire 
extjnguishing systems. or; 

iQl be studying in accordance with NICET level II 
certification requirements that are applicable for the 
endorsement requirements. 

i1l An apprentice will be issued a card that indicates the 
individual is in a training position and shall not install. 
inspect. recharge. repair. service or test fire protection 
equipment without the direct and immediate supervision of a 
person endorsed by the department. 

121 An apprentice shall obtain an endorsement within 
thirty days atter completion of the apprentice program. 
AUTH: 50-3-102 1 50-3-107, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102 1 50-39-101 through 
105 1 MCA 

23,7.132 LICENSE. ENt)QRSEMENTGBffi'IFIOM'B AND PROCESSING 
~ (l)SMeepe as p~etidea in e~eaeeeien (2)• 

fat .Lll Each ~Pe'!1a•raft1!: shall pay an annual 
licensea fee of ilQQ$5 few a eerl!:ifieal!:e ef re'!i:S~a•ian. 

ilL Each persgn employed by the licensee to perform 
seryices under the license shall obtajn from the department an 
endorsement and pay:'i'he s•a•e fire maraaal shall aH-il'le a111i 
aereify the fellewiR'! peleBRe wie&a\le a feet 

(a) qlhe peraei'IJ'Iel sf a ftBR pretit. fi:re rieparemer~e W!,e 
i11eer~li ee ser• .. iea pert<tl!lle fire eul!:il'l'!f\liebera, 'l'a !Jll<tlify llflaer 
ebia SQseee•ial! 1 •he fl&ft prafie fire EiepareaeRl!: ~al!: pravide a 
pi!Blia serviee aflri -• any aefley IJeneraeeri •a aer• .. e tfte pllllll:ie 
ifl4se!'eae. 
~ SlOQ to sell. ~eryjce. or install fire alarm systems; 
Lbl $100 to sell. geryice, or install special agent fire 

suppression systems; and 
lsi $100 to sell. service. or ingtall fire extinguishing 

systems. 
111 In the year of first application for a license. tbe 

applicant shall pay a processing fee in the amount of $100, or 
an amount sufficient to coyer the travel and <;>verhead cogts 
incurred in conducting an inspection of the applicant's 
facilities, whicbever is less. 
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AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, MCA 

23.7.133 EXAMINAIION FOR ENDORSEMENTCEftTIFIPAWB (1) ~ 
State Fi~e Ma~shal shall issHe a ee~titieate et ~e~ist~atien ta 
aft ti~e e*tinqaishe~ applieaftt ~he seeres a pasein~ ~aae en an 
eKamiftatiefl devisee! hy the state fire 111a~shal aftel 'she pa~ e the 
reqtii~ea fee." Seet,ieft sa 39 1ai!(3) MC!Ao 'i'he enamiflatieft shall 
iflelltae a w~itt.en e~tamiftatien aftel may iftehuie praetieal teats el!' 
Eiemenstratief\5-- fer the instail-a-1:iaft e~ &e~·~iee at fi~e 
prateetie'ft equipmeo.ftt.• T.!:J& department lihall issue an endorsement 
for pre-~nqineered-..fiL~an __ __§,~j;ems. special _I;i.re agent 
suppression s~ .... eml!I._Q.L....J..l~S!. ____ ~run..~g___§,y~_j;_g__m 
indi vidua_l __ whc submi. t~~£ti,-efa.s;t..QI:y__gm~till..~:L-~ 
applicant holds G~ent Gertif~~~tiQn ~proved_lnL~he depart~ 
or who hOlds lfiCET l~U.....£.!l.!:.t.ification. is koowledgeabL~ 
current laws and ~~-pays the required fee, 

(2) The department sruu.LJ.~sue an endoJ;:~_f2l:... . .rum...m.;: 
engineered fire alarm systems, . SJl.ecial fire ilgent suppre~s.i.Qn 
systems or fire extingUishing systems to .ru:LJ.n.<tividual who 
currently holds Ntctr level !I certification, has successfully 
completed an approved apprenticeship program, or is a licensed 
engineer, is knowledgeable of current laws and rules and who 
pays the required fee. '!'1\e '4'riU:ea euataiRat.iefl may iftBl'<'ele 
iftfel!'llat.ien f~em Ute latest. eaitien sf the Fire Prsteatien 
Haftelbeele, the latest. editiefts ef the Y'ftifeP~B Fire Seas St.aftaard 
~Is, 18, 1, afta tne Hatieftal Fire Pret.eetiel'l Asseeiat:ien (!IFPA) 
Pamplilets !lt>mbe!!' 19 1 13, 13.'\, 13D, 13iR, 72A, 72B, 728, 72D 1 7i!E, 
aftel 7 4 , 

-f3) Aft elcamiftatieR may he •,.·ai• .. eel ifl t.he dise~etieft ef the 
state fire lllal!'sl\al it the aplllieant p!!'eviaes sat.isfaet.e!'y 
aeeHmeft'Cat:ien that. he e~ she has reeeived t~aiftiftEJ that: 
~alifies t.he applieaflt. te iftst.all er se~·iee fire 
eutift~ishe~spreteetieft eEfaipment:, 

( 4) 'i'he eJtaMinatieft may alee it~elltae it~fel!'llat.iel'l 
eeReePHift~ 1\ya~est.at:ie t.estiB~ er 9epa~tmeflt at 'l'ral'tspertatien 
listed eyliftelere eefttaiftea iB t.he sempl!'essea sas Aseeeiatiel'l 
Palllphlet S l (Metheas tel!' llycil!'eetatie 'Pes'dnEJ eempressed Sas 
sylifteie~s, ) 

(5) .". passifl~ EJ~ade fe~ the written eMaminatieft is a see~e 
at 79 er het:ter. .-.n applieaftt •,.•he tails may reapply afte~ 39 
days te talte aftet.her e*alllil'latieft, 'i'he eJEamia.atieft may be 'Qalteft 
ne mere thal'l thl!'ee eimes Ei~riHEJ a efte yea!!' pel!'iea. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, 50-3-107, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, 50-39-101 through 
105, MCA 

23.7.134 ENDORSEMENT 9F 2'QAUFI€A'PI2t1S (1) A person 
shall be issued a certificate of endorsement and card that 
indicates the engorsement the individual holds. ~he ee~titieat.e 
at t"e{fis~~atieR shall se eREie~aed •A•ith the t-ype at 
~alifieatiafts sf the halde~, as Eiet.ermiftea hy tae ty11ea at ~e!!'k 
te se ~ertermea listed Bfl the a~plieat.ie'ft, aftel sy the 
eJ!alliftatieB, 

(d) Feasible eftaersemeftts are• 
(a) llyarastatie t.estinEJ ef wet ehemieal el!' neft aepa~tmeftt 
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af transper~atian listed eylinder, 
(a) Hyares'aaei:a teatin4J ef any aeperbaeftt at: 

eranapereatien liaeed eylinaer, ar 
(e) Inatallati:en, ee~iein4J 1 ehar4Jift4J, reehar4Jin~, er 

iflapeetift4JI 
(i) pertaale fire BHtin4JYisherer 
(ii) a~:~tematie fire eutin4JYishift4J eyetemsr 
(iii) fire alarasr 
(i;) aYtematie fire alarm e~ete111er er 
(v) ether filted fire preteetiar! systems, 
(l~l A person re~ietrant may only perform the type of work 

indicatedenlieraed on the endorsementhia er her eartifieate ~ 
re~Jistrati:en. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, MCA 

23.7 .p5 DUTY TO REPORT NAME OR ADDRESS CHAHGE (1) An 
entity licensed or person endorsedref§istrant shall report a 
change of name or~ address to the departmentetate fil!'e 
marshal within 15 days of the change. The entity or 
~ref§ietraat shall also record the new name or address on 
the reverse side of the license and endorsementee~ifieate. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, MCA 

23.7.136 HOLDER NOT ENTITLED TO RIGHT OF ENTRY (1) A 
pePmit, licens&r or endorsementeertifieate does not authorize 
any person to enter any property or building er te enferee tft4e 
ehapter without permission. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, MCA 

23.7-141 Wijo MVST OBTAIN A LICENSEPBmfiT T9 SELL 1ll__h 
business entity orA self-employed person, fi~ 1 ee~~r~tien 1 er 
partnershi~ engaged in tile business of sery~c~nq fire 
extinguishers, selling. er leasing. servicing or installing fire 
protection equipment must obtain a 1icensepe-i~ t.a sell fer 
eaeb separate h~ifteee leeaeiea. 

(2) A lieer~ee is ., alia eRly ee leftf§ as ~e balder ie 
eft4J84Jed in Efta inetallatiaft at fire ppe£ee6ian e~~ent.o 
AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, MCA 

23.7.143 APPRQVAL OF EQUIPMENT ill Ne A li~ensed entity 
or endorsed person er fh"'l may D.Qt sell, lease, install or 
service fire protection equipment or component parts that 
actuate or control fire protection equipment, unless the 
equipment has been labeled or listed by underwriters 
Laboratories, Inc., Underwriters Laboratory of Canada, Factory 
Mutual Laboratories or other nationally recogni~ed testing 
laboratories approved by the departmentstate fipe marebal• 
uewsehela fil'e alaEIII systems 'A'ileR euattiRea aRa perfe-anee 
tested aeeeraift'J ts the i:RteRtl ef this r'clle ana, if faYnli 
elf\livalent 1 111ay l!le appre·,•edo 

lll xne minimum equipment on hand at each seryice location 
or in each mobile service vehicle for an entity engaged only in 
the business of servicing fire extinguishers must be in good 
working condition and must include; 
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lAl. an adequate supply of extinguishing agents appropriate 
for the types of extinguishers the firm is requested to fill and 
facilities for proper storage of extinguishing agents set 
according to manufacturer specifications; 

iQl commercial dry nitrogen supply 1-60 degrees 
fahrenheit. 51.1 degrees centigrade dew point or less! and 
pressure regulator with supply and regulated pressure gauges 
suitable for properly pressurizing fire extinguishers; 
~ equipment for leak testing pressurized extinguishers 

and/or system cylinders; 
l.Q.l_ adapters. fittinas, tools and equip!Jlellt ;req•lired fQ.:C 

properly servicing all fir!' exti~ers the entity soJ,j,_gj.tLQJ: 
accepts for service set accordj_)lq_...t.Q_ spec if icatiJ:1.11'L9L~..!.ill 
extinguisher manufacturer; 
~ closed recovep< systf-m(sl and storaq~_sQ~~ 

store chemicals t~om fire ext~nguisher during~~ 
i!l inventorv of spare part~ 
1gl a copy of the most rec~ntlv adopt_i!_fL.~.itl.!m_.Q.f __ tllil. 

Uniform Fire Code Standards and applicabl~~__fj,s~ 
Protection Association standards. and; 

1hl a ~upplv of required service and test tags meeting the 
provisions of these rules. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA; IMP: 50-3-102, MCA 

23.7.154 SEEVICE TAGS (1) A service tag must be used to 
indicate when fire protection equipment is installed or when 
service is performed on fire protection equipment and the name 
of the J::"efj'iseriuteendorsed person installing or servicing the 
equipment. e~ilaiftfJ' e~ftefs, aaftafJ'ere ef maiH~eftaftee ~ef:'ssftftel 
l!le!'fB-iHIJ llll!lftehly iHBI!Iee~iefts el!' aftf'll!al maifteertaAee eheeiEs ef 
~er~aele fire exeiAIJI!ishe!!'s may Ae~ l!se a ee!'.,.iee eafj' w• !litiS~ 
mai:Mlaift reeell!'ds, 

(2) A service tag shall be of a size and of a durable 
material approved by the departments~aee fi!l!'e -...rehal but not 
less than 4-1/2 inches by 2-1/2 inches. It must not be red. 

(3) A service tag must bear the following information: 
(a) imprinted Nname, address. telephone and license number 

of licensed ~~; 
(b) ~type of service performed; 
(c) Mmonth and year of service;-&ftd 
(d) Hname and ~Qdorsement!l!'efJ'iaeraeieH number of registrant 

performing service. ~A registrant shall indicate the type of 
service performed and date of servic~ by punching the 
appropriate section of ihga tag. ~A tag must bear dates for 
1 to l~ yearsT~ 

1.1ti. "00 NOT REMQVE BY ORDER OF THE STAIE FIRE HARSHAL" in 
capital letters. at least 10-point boldface type, 

(4) ~ registrant ~~ attach the service tag in a 
position so ~ it can be conveniently inspected by an 
inspecting authority but ee that ie does not hamper the 
operation of fire protection equipment. 

(5) No person may remove a service tag except when further 
service is performed and a new tag is attached. No person may 
alter or deface a service tag attached to or required to be 
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attached to fire protection equipment. 
ill Stored pressure extinguisher tags must follow the 

guidelines listed in the Uniform Fire Code Standard 10-1 and 
include the information listed in C3l of this rule, 

ill A blank tag shall be submitted for approval to the 
department at the time of application. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, KCA; IMP: 50-3-102, KCA 

23.7. J,59 RENEWAL Of PRI'f, LICENSET OR 
EHOOBSEMENTC§5TIFICATB 

(1) Each entity or person ~ who receives a pe~it, 
license or endorsementee~~ifieate ef re~istre~ieft from the 
departmentst;ate fire prf.·, efltieR efld ifiYeeti<Jaeiel'l bareell in 
accordance with these rules ~~ submit an application for 
renewal annuallyeyery ewe )ears. 

(2) The application for renewal ~ must follow 
procedures ang be on a form provided by the department.~ 
tfte felle~ift<J iAfermatie"' 

(a) applieaflt's fl~e al\d aaeresst 
(bl 8\taiAese adareee, 
(e) eaaiAesa flame llsedf 
(a) ttpe ef '"'erlt te be perte:t!'llled, er preliaets te ae seMf 
(e) whether the applieant is empleyed by a !ire preeeetien 

a<JeAey ef t:he st:aee er ef ally l:eeal IJElo'ermaeAt aAit 1 
(f) whether t:he appliean£ is a memeer ef t:he pereaAflel ef 

a Raft p~efit fire depare.efttl 
(IJ) '"'heehel'! afly ef' t:he abeo.•e infeA!aeien has ehan<Jed einee 

£fie date ef' first issllanee ef t:he lieef!ee 1 permit, ar 
eertif'ieate, er siftee t:he date ef last reftewalt 

(hi wheehel'! the applieeAt has beeR eeAtinYeYsly en~<Jed iA 
iftet:alla'Eieft 1 sale, er eero.•iee ef fire pre£eeeiel'l e!f1!ipmeftt 
eiBee the date af first iel!laa.nee ef the lieenee, pel!'lllie, <!H!' 

eertifieate 1 er aiflee tBe date ef last renewal, 
(J) Upon receipt of the application, the deparementstate 

fire Marshal shall grant a renewal of the permi£, license or 
endorsementeel'!tifieate if it appears that the applicant meets 
all of the requirements under ARK 23.7.1~1, has committed no act 
which would constitute grouuQ for suspension or revocation under 
ARM 23. 7. 122, and remaina properly equipped and staffed to 
provide the services intended to be performed. The 
departmentfire marshal may require retesting if the applicant 
fails to meet any of the requirements of this section or if the 
applicant has not, for a period of ~ years, enqaged in the 
business for which the original per•i£ 1 license or 
endorsementeertitiea.te was issued. 

(4) Each application for renewal ~~ be accompanied 
by ~a feei§l specified under rule 23.7.132~. 
AUTH: 50-3-102, KCA; IMP: 50-39-101 through 105, KCA 

23.7.160 RULES RELATING TO THE BUILDING COD);: (1) A 
notice of adoption or amendment by the departmentstate fire 
marshal of a rule relating to building and equipment standards 
covered by the state or a municipal building code must be signed 
by the director of the department of commerce. Such rules •are 
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effective upon approval of t~e department of commerce and filing 
wit~ the secretary of state." section 50-3-103(2) MCA. AUTH: 
2-4-201, 52-4-201, MCA; IMP: 50-3-107, MCA 

4. The rules proposed to be repealed are as follows: ARM 
23.7.142; 23.7.151; and 23.7.152. These rules may be found on 
page 23-361.12 of the Administrative Rules of Montana. 

AUTH: 50-3-102, MCA IMP: 50-3-102, MCA 
5. The adoption of these rules is necessary to implement 

Chapter 396, Laws of 1993, which revises licensing requirements 
for persons and entitias engaging in the business of selling, 
servicing, or installinq certain fire protection equipment. The 
rules clarify and refine licensing requirements in accordance 
with the law and will carry into effect the purpose of the new 
law to protect life and property from uncontrolled fire due to 
deficient fire protection systems. 

6. Interested persons may present their data, 
arguments either orally or in writinq at the hearing. 
data, views or arguments -y also be subatitted to 
Varone, Administrative Officer, P.O. Box 201417, 
Montana, 59620 no later than september 24, 1993. 

views or 
Written 

Anita L. 
Helena, 

Certified to the Secretary of State __ Agyu~gu~s~t_.2~·~1~9~9~3 __ __ 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In ~he matter of the 9roposed 
amendment of rules related to 
liability of workers :or 
medical expenses for workers' 
compensation purposes 

~0 ALL !NTERESTED PERSONS: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT OF ARM 
24.29.1402, PAYMENT OF 
MEDICAL C!..A!MS 

1. On September 3, 1993, at 10:00 a.m., a public hearing 
will be held in the first floor conference room at the Walt 
Sullivan Building \Dept. of Labor Building), 1327 Lockey Street. 
Helena, Montana, to consider ~he amendment of the rule related 
to the liability of workers for medical expenses for workers• 
compensation purposes. 

The Department of Labor and Industry will make reasonable 
accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to 
participate in ~his public hearing. If you request an accommo­
dation, contact the Department by nat later than 5:00 p.rr., 
August 30, 1993, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation 
chat you need. ?lease contact the Employment Relations Divi­
sian, Attn: Ms. Kara Christianson, P.O. Box 8011, Helena, MT 
59604-8011; telephone (406) 444-1389; TDD (406) 444-5549; fax 
\406) 444-4140. 

2. The Department of Labor and Industry proposes to amend 
its rule as follows: (new matter underlined, deleted matter 
interlined) 

24.2S!.l40.2 PAXMENT OF MEDICAL CLAIMS (1) Payment of 
medical claims shall be made in accordance with the schedule of 
nonhospital medical fees and the hospital rates adopted by the 
department. 

( 2) Pie fee er eaal!'!j'e ehal.!. ee pa·taele l;vt' the iRj'll:rea 
.. erlte:r ieot~ ~;;reat.mern: ef iR;j'llries s'tlstaiReEl if liaeility .:.s 
aeeeptea a, tae ias'IIFer. The insurer shall make timely payments 
of all medical claims for which liability is accepted. 

13) Payment of private room charges shall be made only if 
ordered by the ~reating physician. 

(4) Special nurses shall be paid only if ordered by the 
treating physician. 

ill For claims arising before July 1. 1993. no fee or 
charge shall be payable by the injured worker for treatment of 
injuries sustained if liability is accepted bv the insurer. 

l&l For claims arising on or after July 1. 1993. no fee or 
charge other than the co-payment orovided by 39-71-704. MCA 
(1993! shall be payable by the injured worker for treatment of 
injur}es sustained if liability is accepted by the insurer. The 
decision whether to require a co-oayment rests with rhe insurer. 
not the medical orovider. If the insurer does not require a co­
payment by the worker. the provider may not charge or bill the 
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worker anv fee. The insurer must aive enough notice to medical 
nroviders thac it '"ill require co-pavments from a worker so that 
che provider can ~ake arranaements with the worker to collect 
the co-navment. 
AUTH: Sec. 39··71-203, MCA IMP: Sec. 39-71-704, MCA 

REASON: This rule is being amended to reflect changes enacted 
by ::he 1993 Legislature (Ch. 628, L. 1993) relating to co­
}'ayment of medical expenses by claimants. Because the co­
payment provisions apply only to claims arising on or after 
July l, 1993, the rule wil~ differentiate between claims arising 
before and afcer that date. The amendments also specify that it 
.~s the :;.nsurer, not the medica!. provider, that decides whether 
co-payments will be required from the claimant, and provides for 
notification by the 1.nsurer to t!"le provider that co-payments are 
required. 

3. Interested persons may present their data, views, or 
arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. Wrltten 
jata, views or arguments may also be submitted co: 

Dennis Zeiler, Bureau Chief 
Workers' CompensatlOn Regulations Bureau 
Emolovment Relations Division 
Department of Labor and Industry 
P.O. Box 8011 
Helena, Montana 59604-9011 

and muse be received by no later ~han 5:00p.m., September 10, 
l993. 

4. The !-fearing Unit of the Legal Services Division of the 
DePartment has been desianaced to Preside over and conduct the 
hearing. - ~ 

David A. Scott 
Rule Reviewer 

Laurie Ekanger, Commissioner 
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRY 

Certified to the Secretary of State: August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In ~he matter of ~he proposed 
amendment of rules related to 
~ravel expense reimbursements 
for workers' compensation 
purposes 

TO ALL INTERESTED PERSONS: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT OF ARM 
24.29.1409, TRAVEL EXPENSE 
REIMBURSEMENTS 

1. On September 3, 1993, at 11:00 a.m., a public heari.ng 
will be held in the Erst floor conference room at the Walt 
Sullivan Building (Dept. of Labor Building), 1327 Lockey Street, 
tielena, Montana, to consider the amendment of the rule related 
to travel expense reimbursements for workers' compensation 
purposes. 

The Department of Labor and Industry will make reasonable 
accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to 
participate in this public hearing. If you request an accommo­
dation, contact the Department by not later than 5:00 p. m, 
Auaust 30, 1993, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation 
::.h.it you need. Please contact r:he Employment Relations Divi­
sion, Attn: Ms. ~ara Christianson, P.O. Box 8011, Helena, MT 
59604-8011; telephone 1406) 444-1389; TDD (406) 444-5549; fax 
(406) 444-4140. 

2. The Department of Labor and Industry proposes to amend 
che rules as follows: (new matter underlined, deleted matter 
im:erlined) 

Rule 24.29 .l409 TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT (1) Em: 
claims arising before July 1. 1989. ReiMB~rsemeee reimbursemenc 
for travel expenses shall be determined as follows: 

ill Personal automobile and privar.e airplane mileage 
expenses shall be reimbursed at the current rates specified for 
state emplovees. Prior autijgri zation ~'rom tbe insurer is 
required for the use of a private airplane. Total reimbursabl~ 
automobile miles shall Q§ determined according to the most 
direct highway route betweeu the injured worker's residence and 
the orovider. 

1Ql Expenses for eligible meals shall be reimburstd at ;h~ 
meal races established for state employees. 

i£1 Actual out-of-pocket receipted lodging expeuses 
incuged by injured workers shall be reimbursed up to the 
maximum amounts established for state employees. Lodging in 
those areas specifically designated as high cost cities shall be 
reimbursed at actual cost .. ;nv claim for receipted or high cost 
lodging reimbursement must be accompanied by an original ;eceipt 
from a licensed lodging facility. If the injured worker stay§ 
in a oon·receiptable facility. or fails to obcain a receipt. the 
reimbursement is the amount sec for state employees for non­
receipted lodging. 
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~ Miscellaneous transportation ~xpenses. such as taxi 
fares or oarking :ees, are rQimbursable and ~ust be supported by 
oaid recel.pts. 

l§l Reguests for travel reimbursement muse be made within 
a reasonable sime following the date(sl the travel was incurred . 

..!.2.1 r'or claims arising during the period July l. 1989. 
chrough June 30 1993, reimbursement for travel expenses shall 
b~ determined as follows: 

(a) ?ersonal automobile and private airplane mileage 
expenses shall be reimbursed at che current rates specified fer 
state employees. ?rior authorization from the insurer is 
required for the use of a ~rivate airplane. Total reimbursable 
automobile miles shall be determined according to the most 
direct highway route between the injured worker's residence and 
the provider. When the travel coincides in whole or in part 
with the injured worker's regular travel to or from fti.g ~ 
worker's employment, the coincident mileage may be subtracted 
from the reimbursable mileage. For each calendar month, the 
first fifty (50) miles of automobile mileage is not relmburs­
able. 

(b) Expenses for eligible meals shall be reimbursed at the 
meal rates established for state employees. 

(c) Actual out-of-pocket receipted lodging expenses 
incurred by injured workers shall be reimbursed up to the 
maximum amounts established for state employees. Lodging in 
those areas specifically designated as high cost cities shall be 
reimbursed at actual cost. ,;ny claim for receipted or high cost 
lodging reimbursement must be accompanied by an original receipt 
from a licensed lodging facility. If the injured worker stays 
in a non-recelptable facility, or fails to obtain a receipt, the 
relmbursement is the amount set for state employees for non­
receipted lodging. 

(d) Miscellaneous transportation expenses, such as taxi 
fares or parking fees, are reimbursable and must be supported by 
paid receipts. 

lgl Claims for reimbursement of travel expenses must be 
submitted within 90 days. of the date the expenses are incurred. 
on a form furnlshed bv the \nsurer. 

lll For claims arising on or after July 1, 1993, travel 
expenses are not reimbursed unless the travel is at the request 
of the lnsurer. Travel is "at the request ot the insurer" when 
the insurer directs the claimant to chancre treating ohysician. 
to attend an independent medical examination, to use a preferred 
orovider, or to be treated by a managed care organization. If 
travel expenses are to be reimbursed. then reimbursement shall 
be determined as follows: · 

:a I Personal automobile and nri vate airplane mileage 
expenses shall be reimbursed at the current rates specified for 
state employees. Prior authorization from the insurer 1s 
required for the use of a orivate airplane. Total reimbursable 
automooile 'lliles shall be determined according to the most 
direct highway route between the injured worker's residence and 
the provider. For each calendar month. the first fifty (SO) 
miles of automobile mileacre is not reimbursable. In addition, 
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;ravel within the community in which the worker resides shall 
noc be reimbursed. For the purooses gf rhis rule. the comrouni~y 
in which the worker resides is the town or city seryed by the 
post gffice which serves the worker's residence, ~egardless ot 
.... here the worker req:ives mail. 

1Ql Expenses for Qligible meals shall be reimbursed at the 
meal rates established for state employees. 
~ Actual out-of-oocket receipted lodging expense~ 

incurred by injured workers shall be rei!nbursed up to the 
maximum amounts @Stablished for state @mployees. Lodging in 
those areas specifically designated as high cost cities shall b@ 
re~mbursed ~tactual cost. AnY claim for receipted or hiah cost 
lodging reimbursement must be accompanied by an original receipt 
from a licensed lodging facility. If the iniured worker stays 
in a non-receiptabl@ fa~ilitv. or fails to obtain a receipt. th~ 
reimbursement is the amount set for state employ§eS for non­
receipted lodging. 

iill.. Miscellaneous transportation expenses, such as taxi 
fares or parking fees. are reimbursable and muse be supporced by 
pa,id receipts. 
~ Claims for reimbursement of travel expenses must be 

submitted within 90 days of the date the expenses ar~ incurred. 
on a form furnished by the insurer . 

.;.;;+.l.1.L':a) Preauthorized expenses incurred for direct 
commercial transportation by air or ground, including rental 
vehicles, shall be reimbursed when no other less costly form of 
travel is available to the injured worker, or when less coscly 
forms of travel are not suitable to the injured worker's medical 
condition. 

(b) If an injured worker chooses to use commercial 
~ransportation when a less costly form of travel suitable to his 
medical condition is available, reimbursement shall be made 
according to the rates associated with the least costly form of 
travel. 

( 3) ClaiMs fe~ ~ei!Mltt~ee!!leftt: sf tra, el eKI'eesee !!Met ae 
etii!Mitteli witaie 99 Ei~J"e ef tke aat:e tke <::!'!leHeee are iftearpee, 
a!ft a l!er111 f~l!'eislie€1 a,• the iftettrel!'. 

+4+~ The department shall make available to interested 
parties the specific information referenced in this rule 
concerning rates for transportation, meals, and lodging; meal 
t~me ranges; and designations of high cost cities. The dep~rt­
ment shall inform interested parties in a timely manner of all 
applicable updates to this information. 
~UTH: Sec. 39-71-203, MCA IMP: Sec. 39-71-704, MCA 

RgASON: This rule is being amended to reflect changes enacted 
by the 1993 Legislature (Ch. 628, L. 1993) which amended 39-71-
704, MCA to provide for travel reimbursement only when travel is 
at the request of the insurer. The rule is also amended to make 
technical corrections, to reflect 1989 legislative authority to 
make rules regarding travel reimbursements, and to clarify that 
the "SO mile deductible" provision is not to be applied to 
claims arising before July l, 1989. See Lovell v. State fund, 
wee No. 9204-6432 (decided December 31, 1992). 
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3. !nterested persons may present their data, views, or 
arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. Written 
data, views or arguments may also be submitted to: 

Dennis Zeiler, Bureau Chief 
Norkers' Compensation Regulations Bureau 
Smployment Relations Division 
Department of Labor and Industry 
P . o . Box 8 0 ll 
Helena, Montana 59604-8011 

and must be received by no later than 5:00p.m., September 10, 
1993. 

4. The Hearing Unit of the Legal Services Divis-ion of the 
Department has been des~gnated to preside over and conduct the 
hearing. 

~~-~OA- A,,d/--
oavict A. Scott 
Rule Reviewer 

. w 
1/fti'tl I_,W u/.~ 

Laurie Ekanger, 7Com-m-~,...· s-s-:-i-o_n_e_r __ _ 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRY 

Certified to the Secretary of State: August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the proposed 
amendment of rules related to ) 
applicability of rules and statutes) 
in workers' compensation matters ) 

) 

TO ALL INTERESTED PERSONS: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON PROPOSED AMENDMENT OF 
ARM 24.29.1416, APPLICA· 
BILITY OF DATE OF INJURY, 
DATE OF SERVICE 

1. On September 3, 1~93, at 1:30 p.m., a public hearing 
will be held in the first floor conference room at the Walt 
Sullivan Building (Dept. of Labor Building), 1327 Lockey Street, 
Helena, Montana, to ~onsider the amendment of the rule related 
to the applicability of the date of injury and date of ser<ice 
to rules and statutes for workers' compensation purposes. 

The Department of Labor and Industry will make reasonable 
accommodations for persons ~ith disabilities who wish to 
participate in this public hearing. If you request an accommo­
dation, contact the Department by not: later than 5:00 p.m, 
August 30, 1993, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation 
thac. you need. Please contact the Employment Relations Di vi­
sian, Attn: Ms. Kara Christianson, P.O. Box 8011, Helena, MT 
59604-8011; telephone (406) 444-1389; TDD (406) 444-5549; fax 
(406) 444-4l40. 

2. The Department of Labor and Industry proposes to amend 
the rules as follows: (new matter underlined, deleted matter 
inr.erlined) 

Rule 24.29.1416 APPLICABILITY OF DATE OF INJQRY. DAIE OF 
SERVICE (1) Sections of the WOrkers' Compensation and Occupa­
tional Disease Acts and the Administrative Rules of Montana 
relating to medical payments or medical benefits, including 
sec~ion 39·71-704(1) (c), MeA, and ARM 24.29.1409, apply only to 
claims for which the date of injury is on or after the effective 
date of the section in question, except that for all pharmacy 
services rendered on or after July 1, 199-i-J., an insurer is 
liable only for the purchase of generic-name drugs according to 
the provisions of section 39-71-~ 212. MCA, regardless of 
r.he date of injury. 

(2) The amounts of the following types of payments are 
determined according to the specific department rates in effect 
on the date the medical service is provided, regardless of the 
date of injury: medical fees; hospital charges; sn5i travel 
reimbursements for mileage, meals, and lodging, !Jefle:rie ft&l'lle 
~- The rate for a specific generic-name drug is the price 
customarily charged by the pharmacist for that drug. Department 
rates (fee schedules) dQ not apply to preferred providers or 
managed care organizations to the extent that they are rendering 
services or providing googs to workers who are covered by 
insurers with which they have a con,ract. 
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IMP: Sees. 39-71-704, 39-71-727, 
and 39-71-1102, MCA 

REASON: This rule ~s being 3.mended to correct a statutory 
2itat~on in subpart (1) of the rule, and to clarifv that there 
is not a separate fee schedule for ~he cost of ~rescription 
drugs. Recent enactments by the 1993 ~egislature (Ch. 628, L. 
1993) provide the £ee schedules do not apply to preferred 
providers or :o managed care organizations, and the rule is also 
bei~g amended :o reflect that change. 

3. Interested persons may present their data, views, or 
arguments, e~ther o1·ally or in wn.ting, at the h.earing. Written 
data, views or ar~uments may also be submitted to: 

Dennis Zeiler, Buraau Chief 
Workers' Compensation Regulations Bureau 
Employment Relations Division 
:Jepartment of Labor and Industry 
? . o . Box 8 0 11 
Helena, Montana 59604-8011 

and must be received by no later than 5:00p.m., September 10, 
1993. 

4. The Hearing Unit of the Legal Services Division of the 
Depart;nent: i1as been designated ::o pres1de '::lver and conduct the 
hearing. 

~A.cfc£11= 
:Javid A. Scot:r: 
Rule Reviewer 

Certified ::o the Secrer:ary of State: August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of ~he proposed 
amendment of rules related to 
selection of treating physician 
:or workers' compensation 
purposes 

TO ALL INTERESTED PERSONS: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON PROPOSED AMENDMENT OF 
ARM 24.29.1504, DEFINITIONS; 
24.29.1511. SELECTION OF 
PHYSICIAN; AND ADOPTION OF 
NEW RULE I 

' On September 3, 1993, at 2:30p.m., a public hearing 
wil2. be held in ::he first floor conference room at the Walt 
Sullivan Building (Dept. of Labor Building), 1327 Lockey Street, 
Helena, Montana, co consider the amendment of rules related to 
select1on of the treating physician for workers' compensation 
purposes. 

The Department of Labor and Industry wi~l make reasonable 
accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to 
participate in this public hearing. !f you request an accomrno-
1ation, contact che Department by not later than 5:00 p. m, 
August 30, 1993, to advlse us of the nature of the accommodation 
that you need. Please contact the Employment Relations Divi­
sion, Attn: Ms. Kara Christianson, P.O. Box 8011, Helena, MT 
59604-6011; teleohone (406) 444-1369; TDD (406) 444-5549; fax 
(406) 444-4140. -

2. The Deoartment of Labor and Industry proposes to amend 
the rules as follows: (new matter underlined, deleted matter 
interL.neci) 

Rule 24.29.1504 DEFINITIONS As used in this subchapter, 
toe following definitions apply: 

,1) through (7) remain the same. 
(6) "Treating physician" mea1u1 Ute p.h).eieiafl seleeeeli ~ft 

aeee•a~ee wt~h has the meaning proyided by ARM 24.29.1511 ~ 
claims arising before July 1. 1993. and the meaning provideg by 
39-71- 1 16(30), MCA <1993) for claims arising on or after July .. 
~· 

{9) remains the same. 
AUTH: Sec. 39-71-203, MCA IMP: Sec. 39-71-704, MCA 

REASON: This rule is being amended to reflect enactment of 
Ch. 628, L- 1993, which defines toe term ''treating physician" 
and provides a statutory process for selection and changes of 
the initial treating physician for claims arising on or after 
July 1, 1993. The amendment. is needed to accommodate the 
different substantive rights concerning the worker's choice of 
treating physician based upon the date on which the claim arose. 
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?ule 24.29.151: SELECTcON OF PHYSICIAN FOR CLAIMS AffiSING 
BEFORE JULY 1, "!.S93 ill Although sectwn 33-22-111, MCA, 
prov!des freedom or choice in selec~lon of a phys~c1an, workers' 
compensation and oc-:::-upat.:;_onal disease case law also recognizes 
tha': a worker must selecc a single physJ.cian who is responsible 
~or ':.:1e overall medical :nanagement: of the 'Norkers' condition. 
That phvsicJ.an ls known as che treating physician. For clabms 
arisi;g.before Julv 1. 1993 the worker may select any person 
who is def~ned as a physicJ.an by 33-22-111. MCA as that worker's 
initial 11 treat:!...ng ohysician 1

'. 

(21 and !3i remain ~he same. 
AUTIL Sec. 39-7l-203, MCA IMP: Sec. 39-71-704, MCA 

REbSON: This rule is being amended to reflect that it applies 
only to claims arJ.sing on or before July l, 1993, in response to 
substam:ive 1993 ~egislat:.Lve changes in the rights of workers to 
select a treating physician (Ch. 628, L. 1993) NEW RULE I is 
bel.ng proposed for claims a.rising on or after July 1, 1993, 
which are subJecc to the provisions of Chapter 628. 

3. The Department proposes to adopt a new rule as 
follows: 

NEW ~ULE I SELECT!ON OF PHYSICIAN FOR CLAIMS ARISING ON OR 
Af~R JULY ', 1993 Ill For claims arlsing on or after July 1, 
1993, "treating physician" has the meaning provided by 39-71-
116 (30), MCA \1993). 

12) The worker has a dut:y to select a treating physician. 
Initial creacmenc in an emergency room or urgent care facility 
is not selection af a treating physician. The selection of a 
treating physician must: be made as soon as practicable. A 
worker may not avoid selection of a treating physician by 
repeatedly seex:ing care in an emergency room or urgent care 
facility. The ·worker should select a treating physician with 
due consideration for the type of injury or occupational disease 
suffered, as well as practical considerations such as the 
proximity and the availability of the physician to the ~rker. 

(3) Selection of the"treating physician, referrals made by 
the treat:ing physician, and changes of treating physician must 
all be made in accordance with the provisions of 39-71-1101, MCA 
(1993) 

AUTH: Sec. 39-71-203, MCA IMP: Sec. 39-71-1101, MCA 

R$ASON: This rule is being proposed to reflect enactment of 
Ch. 628, L. 1993, which deffnes the term ''treating physician" 
and provides a statutory process for selection and change of the 
initial treating physician. This new rule is needed to 
distinguish the procedure which applies to claims arising on or 
after July 1, 1993, from the procedure which applies to claims 
arising before July l, 1993, and is described in ARM 24.29.1511. 
ARM 24.29.1511 is also being amended to specify that it applies 
only to claims arising before July l, 1993. 
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4. Incerested persons ~ay present ~heir data, views, or 
arguments, e!ther orally or in writing, at the hearing. Written 
data, views or arguments may also be submitted to: 

Dennis Zeiler, Bureau Chief 
Workers' Compensation Regulations Bureau 
EmPlovment Relations Division 
Department of Labor and Industry 
?.0. Box 8011 
Helena, Montana 59604-8011 

and must be received by no later than 5:00p.m., September 10, 
1993. 

5. The Hearing Unit of the Legal Services Division of the 
Department has been designated ~o preside over and conduct the 
hearing. 

d)n.u ,j? /l . ...fuzt/= 
Dav~d A. Scot:: 
Rule Reviewer 

Laurie Ekanger, Commissioner 
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRY 

Certified to the Secretary of State: August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE DEPAR'l'MENT OF STATE LANDS 
AND BOARD OF LAND COMMISSIONERS 

OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the adoption Of 
a new rule pertaining to the 
assessment of fire protection fees 
for private lands under direct 
state fire protection. 

TO: All Interested Persons 

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. on September 13, 15 and 16, 1993, the Department of 
State Lands and Board of Land Commissioners will hold hearings 
to consider adoption of a new rule regulating the assessment 
of fire protection fees on owners of classified forest land, 
or of the timber located on such land, tor which the 
Department of State Lands has wildland fire protection 
responsibility. The hearings will be held at the following 
locations, on the following dates, and at the following times: 

- Missoula at the Missoula Rural Fire Station No. 1, 2521 
South Avenue West, Missoula, on September 13, 1993, at 7:00 
p.m. 

-~ at the West Helena Valley Main Fire station, 
5460 North Montana Ave., Helena, on September 15, 1993, at 
7:00 p.m. 

- Bozeman at the City center Motor Inn, Hyalite Room, 507 
West Main, Bozeman, on September 16, 1993, at 7:00 p.m. 

2. The proposed new rule provides as follows: 

RULE I FORMULA TO SET LANDOWNER ASSESSMENTS FOR FIRE 
PROTECTION 

(1) on or before August 1, 1994, the Department shall, 
pursuant to 76-13-207, MCA, set the annual fire assessment fee 
due from landowners pursuant to Title 76, Chapter 13, parts 1 
and 2, MCA. The total of all statewide landowner assessments 
must be as equal as administratively possible to but no 
greater than one-third of the amount appropriated by the 
legislature to fund the protection costs. 

(2) The individual assessments must be established using 
the following criteria: 

(a) Each person who is responsible for fire protection 
pursuant to 76-lJ-108 and 76-13-201, MCA, and for whom the 
Department provides fire protection, must be assessed a per 
capita landowner fee. The to~al per capita landowner 
assessments statewide from persons who own 20 acres or less of 
land for which the Department provides protection must be as 
close as administratively possible to sot of the total private 
landowner assessments. 

(b) A person who owns more than 20 acres of land for 
which the Department provides protection shall, in addition to 
the fee assessed pursuant to (a), pay a per acre fee for each 
whole acre that the person owns in excess of 20 acres. The 
total of all acreage assessments statewide from persons who 
own more than 20 acres must be as close as administratively 
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possible to 50\ ot the total statewide assessaent. 
(3) (a) Except as provided in (3)(b), the per capita and 

per acre fees set tor 1994 ~u•t r..-in in effect for 
subsequent years. · 

(b) The Department shall reset the per capita and per 
acre fees whenever: 

(i) it is necessary to reset fees to obtain the aaount 
appropriated by the legislature; or 

(ii) the fees assessed statewide pursuant to (2)(a) on 
persons who own 20 acres or less of land tor which the 
Depar~ent provides protection obtain more than 55\ or less 
than 45\ of the total amount appropriated by the leqislature. 

(c) Whenever the Department resets the tees pursuant to 
(3)(b), it shall do so in accordance with (2) and the fees 
must remain in effect until either of the conditions in (3)(b) 
ia ~et. AUTH: 76-13-109, MCA, IMP: 76-13-105, 76-13-201, 76-
13-207, MCA. 

3. The proposed rule is necessary to allow the 
Depa~ent of State Lands to apportion fire assessments 
~tween the per acre and the per landowner assessments. 
Assessments are necessary to fund a portion of the 
Departaent•s wildland fire pre-suppression program, are 
required by 76-13-201 and 76-13-207, MCA, and are authori~ed 
~y 76-13-705, MCA. 

4. Interested persons may present their data, views, or 
arguments either orally or in writing at the hearinqs. 
Written data, views, or arguments may also be submitted to 
Jeff Jahnke, Depar~ent of State Lands, Forestry Division, 
2705 Spurgin Road, Missoula, Montana 59a01, no later than 
September 21, 1993. To guarantee consideration, written data, 
views, or arguments must be postmarked by September 21, 1993. 

5. The following Department of state Lands personnel 
have been designated to preside over and conduct the hearings: 

- Jeff Jahnke, Deputy Administrator, Forestry Division 
- Paul Klug, Chief, Service Forestry Bureau 

Reviewed by: 

Certified to the Secretary of State August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In .. l:he. Matter of the Proposed 
AdOption of New Rules Regarding 
Commis!!ioning of Notary Publics 

To All Interested Persons. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC 
.HEARING 

1. On September 1, 1993 a public hearing will be held at 
10:00 a.m. in the Secretary of State's Office Conference Room at 
room 2:;:5 of the Capitol Building at Helena, Montana, to consider 
the adoption of new rules regarding the commissionin~ of Notary 
Publics. 

2. The proposed new rules provide as follows: 

RVLE T APPLIGATION FOR A CQMMISSIQN AS A NOTA&Y PQBLIC 
(1) A person seeking a commission as a notary public shall 

make an application on a form prescribed by the secretary of 
state which contains the following information: 

(a) Nanle of the applicant; , 
(b) Applicant's address and phone number; 
(c) Nan~e of employer; 
(d) Employer's address and phone number; 
(e) Applicant's social security number; 
(f) Date of birth; 
(g) The date of expiration of the applicant· s current 

notary commission (if applicable); and 
(h) Name under which previous commission. was issued if 

different than the name used on the application. 
(2) The application must state if the applicant: 
(a) has been a resident of the s·tate of Montana for over 

one year; 
(b) is a citizen of the United States; 
(c) is at least 18 years old; 
(d) has been convicted of a felony; and 
(e) has had a notary conmission or bond denied, revolted or 

restricted ·i~ any state. · 
( 3) The applicant must affirm unde_r oath that the 

information on the. application is true and correct. 
AUTH: 2-4-201, MCA. IMP:. 1-5-405, MCA. 

RQLE II APPLICATION FEE (1) The applicant shall submit 
a $20 non-refundable application fee. 

AUTH: 1-5-408, MCA. IMP: 1·5·408, MCA. 

RVLE III NOTARJ BOND (1) The applicant shall submit with 
the application and fee, a bond from an approved bonding company 
in the amount of $5000 for the duration of the period of the 
notary commission. The bonding company shall notify the 
secretary of state's office if the bond is canceled or otherwise 
not honored. 

AUTH: 2-4-201, MCA. IMP' 1-5-405, MCA 
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RULE IV CANCELLATION OF CQMMISSION (l.) If the sec:reta.ry 
of state receives information or has reason to believe a notary 
public has engaged in activities that constitute just cause to 
revoke a commission of a notarial officer, then the secretary of 
state may revoke the commission of a notary public following the 
procedures for contested easel!! found in the Montana 
Administrative Procedure Act. 

(2) If the secretary of state receives official notice of 
the revocation of a notary bond, conviction of a felony or a 
change of residence to outside the state of Montana of a notary 
public, then the office shall cancel the commission upon giving 
the notary public 10 days notice. 

AUTH: 21-4-201, MCA. IMP: 1-5-404, MCA. 

3 . These rules are being adopted to illlplement SB 84, 
passed by the 53rd Legislative Session. Rule I is necessary to 
identify the information on the application form submitted to 
the Secretary of State's office. Rule II identifies the amount 
of the application fee. Rule III identifies that the bond must 
be submitted with the application and the bonding company must 
notify the secretary of State's office if the bond is canceled. 
Rule IV identifies the procedure for cancellation of a notary 
public commission. 

4. Interested persons may present their data, views, or 
arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. Written 
data, views or arguments may also be submitted to Joe Kerwin, 
Election Bureau, secretary of State's office, State Capitol, 
Room 225, Helena, Montana 59620, and must be received no later 
than September 9, 1993. 

5. Joe Kerwin, addres 
been designated to preside eve 

Certified August 2, 1993 
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BEFORE THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
OF THE STATE OP MONTANA 

In the Matter of the Proposed 
Adoption of New Rules Regarding 
Fees for Limited Liability 
Companies and amending the fees 
Charged for Priority Handling of 
Documents. 

To All Interested Persons. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC 
HEARING 

1. On September 1, 1993 a public hearing will be held at 
11:00 a.m. in the Secretary of State's Office Conference Room at 
room 225 of the Capitol Building at Helena, Montana, to consider 
the adoption of new rules regarding the fees for limited 
liability companies and amendments fer priority and fax filing 
fees. 

2. The proposed new rules provide as follows: 

NEW RULE I. FEES FOR FILING DOCUMENT$ - LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANIES The secretary of state shall charge and collect for: 

(1) filing articles of organization, $20.00. 
(2) filing articles of correction of an original document, 

$15.00; 
(3) filing articles of amendment, $15.00; 
(4) filing restated articles of organization, $15.00; 
(5) filing articles of merger, $20.00; 
(6) filing an application to reserve a limited liability 

company name, $10.00; 
(7) filing a notice of transfer of a reserved limited 

liability company name, $5.00; 
(8) fi~ing a statement of change of address of registered 

office or change of registered agent, or both, $5.00; 
(9) filing articles of revocation of voluntary dissolution 

proceedings, $20.00; 
, (10) filing articles of dissolution, $15.00; 

(11) filing an application of a foreign limited liability 
company for a certificate of authority to transact business in 
this state and issuing a certificate of· authority, $20.00; 

(12) filing an application of a foreign limited liability 
company for an amended certificate of authority to transact 
business in this state and issuing an amended certificate of 
authority, $15.00; 

(13) filing a copy of articl.es of merger of a foreign 
corporation holding a certificate of authority to transact 
business in this state, $20.00; 

(14) filing an application for withdrawal of a foreign 
corporation and issuing a certificate of withdrawal, $15.00; 

(15) filing an annual report within allotted time, $10.00; 
(16) filing an annual report after the April 15 statutory 

deadline but within 140 days after April 15, $20.00; 
(17) filing an annual report after 140 days after statutory 

deadline, $30.00; 
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(18) tiling any other stat ... nt or report except an annual 
report, of a do-stic or toreiC)Jl liaitad lial:lility coapany 
$1!5.00; 

(19) tiling a stat...nt of chanqe, changing only the 
business address of the reqistered agent, $!5. 00 each lilaited 
lial:lility COIIpany; ' 

(20) issuinq a certiticate of existence for a d011estic 
limited liability company or certificate of authorization tor 
foreiqn limited lial:lility company $5.00; 

(21) issuing a certificate of tact, $15.00. 
(22) tor furnishing a computerized printout of business 

information, $1.00, 
(23) Filing an application tor reinatata.ent or a 

involuntary dissolved limited liability company, $35.00 plus 
$30.00 for every year of delinquent annual reports. 
Auth. 35-8-211, IMP. 35-8-104, 3!5-8-105, 35-8-202, 35-8-205, 
35-8-208, 35-8-211, 35-8-906, 35-8-907, 35-8-1003, 35-8-1005, 
35-8-1006, 35-8-1010, 35-8-1201, MCA 

44.5.104 MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES - PROFIT AND NQKPIOFIT 
CORPQMTIQNS ANP I.IMITED LIABILITY COMPAlfXE§ The secretary of 
state shall charge and collect: 

(1) tor furnishing a certitied copy ot any docuaent, 
instrument or paper relating to a limited liabilitv companies 
profit or nonprofit corporation, so cents par page and $2.00 tor 
the certification; 

(2) and (3) remain the same; 
(4) tiling a document transmitted by facsimile machine, gx 

sub;itted for priority handling. $18o89f $20.00: 
(5) prie~i~ ~eRdliRV fa• filiR9 fereign er de•e••i• prafi~ 

ar RBRP••fie aa.,a.aeiaRa, $~e.ee, 
(5} prieriey haRaliRV far all e~be• de...aRea1 $5oee,_ 

(A.th: Sec. 35-1-1307, 35-2-1107, 38-8-211 MCA; IMP Sec. 35-1-
1206, 3!5-2-1003, 35-8-207, 35-8-211 MCA.) 

3. These rules are baing adopted to implement SB 146, 
paased by the SJrd Legislative Session. The tees reflect costs 
of filing and handling documents related to limited liability 
ca.panies. Rule 44.5.104, ARM is being amended to re~lect the 
c~t of priority handling of LLC documents. It is also being 
amanded to reflect higher costs of filing priority documents. 

4. Interested persons may present their data, views, or 
arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. Written 
data, views or arguments may also be submitted to Garth Jacobson 
secretary of State's o~tice, State Capitol, RoOll 225, Helena, 
Montana 59620, and aust be received no later than September 9, 
1993. 

s. Garth Jacobson at the address given in paracp:aph 4 
above, has bean designated to preside over and conduct the 
hearing. 
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5 . Garth Jacobson at the address given in paragraph 4 
above, has been designated to preside over and conduct the 
hearing. -~ 

J 
·~~~--=:::::::~~~ 

Certified August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL 
AND REHABILITATION SERVICES OF THE 

STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the 
amendment of 46.12.602, 
46.12.605 and 46.12.606 
pertaining to medicaid 
dental services 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT OF 
RULES 46.12.602, 46.12.605 
AND 46.12.606 PERTAINING TO 
MEDICAID DENTAL SERVICES 

To: All Interested Persons 

1. On September 1, 1993, at 11:00 a.m., a public hearing 
will be held in the auditorium of the Social and Rehabilitation 
Services Building, 111 sanders, Helena, Montana to consider the 
proposed amendment of rules 46.12.602, 46.12.605 and 46.12.606 
pertaining to medicaid dental records. 

2. The rules as proposed to be amended provide as 
follows: 

46.12.602 DENTAL SERVICES. BEOUIFEMENTS Subsection (1) 
remains the same. 

(2) Medicaid reimbursement for dental care is limited to 
services speeifiea as provided in ARM 46.12.606 eras e~ae~·ise 
previded fer ~Ader :~~ 46.12.695(13) (r). 

Subsection (3) and (3) (a) remain the same. 
(b) m~s~ se lis~ed a covered service as provided in ARM 

46.12.606 eP as e~hePwise previded fer ~ft!ler ABM 
46o1ii!.69!i(13) (!!'). 

AUTH: Sec. 53-6-113 MCA 
IMP: Sec. 53-6-101 and 53-6-141 MCA 

i6,12.605 DENTAL SEBVICES. REIMBURSEMENT (1) The 
department will pay the lowest of the following for dental.._ 
denturist and orthodontic services covered by the medicoi'il 
prgqram: 

Subsection (l)(a) remains the same. 
(b) the amount allowable for the same service under 

medicare as stated by a medicare explanation of benefits; ~ 
(c) the department's fee schedule&, contained in •hie -let 

~sections Gang H dated. July 1993. of the department's dental 
services proyider manual and in section F. dated July 1993. of 
the department'§ denturi§t §ervices provider manual Published bV 
the department. · 

L2l For the purpose of specifying fees for reimbursement 
of covereg dental and orthodontic services, the departmtnt 
incorporates by reference sections G and H. dated July 1993. of 
the department's dental service provider manual published by the 
department: 
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Cal dental and orthodontic services that are designated in 
the manual as being reimbursed through the report method. "BR". 
or are listed in the manual under the tee column are reimbursed 
by the medicaid program at 65.2% of the billed charge. 

(al) Dental and orthodontic services not listed in ARM 
4 6, 12, 696 ser;;tions G and H of the dental services provider 
manual that are determined ~ medically necessary by the 
department's designated review organization after an EPSDT 
screen will be reimbursed through the "by report" method which 
is 65.2% of the billed chargesT~ 

( 2) Effee>ti·~e Joaly 1, 1999, the P8btlslil!'semefl>t I!'IM!es lis-tea 
will be inereasea by faoal!' [!>el!'eent ( +~) , l'oll ite111e paia 1!1)1 
re[!>ert ~ill remain at the rat~naieatea. 

( 3) Pre·~entive ana diaEJneet.ie se•..,iees iflell:uie 1 
(a) 98128 eMallliflatien ana e!tee~iefl e! terms 18.38; 
(Is) 99219 eem[!Olete il'l"e!'a e!'al l!'adie,Pams, l'llil'lillll!lll 14 

Hll'lls 28.69; 
(e) 98228 

~ 
-f(-EiEif.t)--<9~8~i!e;3~9~-eeaaEe!flh.-<Jat<!aH;Eii-Jit-1to.;J."'. e~ft~a&*l-4ffoJ.ie::il:IIM..,,"'""""'P~e!'ll!'l!'-:t;t,' aapeJ.iEeaar.!l,..--;i!!-c.ri8;!<65+; 
(e) 99i!ii! !!lite ••<iH'J EaaieiJrams, i! films 18:39 1 
(f) 99249 iHt.ra epal eeehtsal !leltillary er maftail3oalar 

~ 
-f(-E!IJH)--<9~9~3:1--4...,8~---<e"'ee!f'""hltaa-lleeilliii!Ee~te!!''-ii:-<:e~l:!'!'<a~ai;J.i-<' e"'r!frl'fr&&mlllll!eree>t!l:!''-tlp>eat!'H~eHI!'~a!HHfo,~ai;~i:i' a~IJEtnHeeee-

tie eftly 28o68 1 
(h) 88258 eutl!'a el!!'al l!!'aelie~JI!'Bfllot 1 ... a•dlli!u:') el!' lftaftaibalal!' 

la~eral film 21.451 
(i) allawa•le ehar!Jee tel!' u rays ifl a eifi!Jle .isi~ shall 

net e!leeea the alle•~Jal3le ehari!Jes fel!' a fall 10ettth lC ralJ 1 

(j) 99318 eeftsoal~a~ieft fee (fteaeesi~y te lse ehewft) [!>el!' 
sessiel'l 14.381 

(IE) 89428 hespital ealls 21.451 
(1) 99418 heoase calls afta ftl!raifl'!J heme ealls 18.91; 
(111) 99468 vi~alit.y l;es~s efte t.ee~h er per Ef~!aEi!'aflt. 

!h-5<1-t-
(H) 89119 palliat.ive ( el!le!'!Jertey ereat111ene ef aeft~al 

paift 1 il'leloaeles enly Rlifter pl!'eeedoal!'es 1 i.e, I · >temf!eral!'y fillii'I'JB I 

il'leieieH afta Eil:!'aifta!Je 1 te[!>ieal 111eEiieameAt.s 1 iPPi!Jal!.iel'l 1 peri 
eel!'efti>tis 1 ete.) 8.54 1 

(e) .91292 seanftoae flett!'ide 8\ 1 ene treat111ent 1 iftelttEiift!J 
prephylawis 24 , 311 

([!>) J!l!'sphylalfis, inehtain!J re~t'l!oifte sealift'!!' ana !lelish 
iHEJfaa~tll;e (seae 91119) a!'ld ehild!'ell (eede 91129) 18.591 

(4) hlllalEJalll l:!'esteratiens iHeloaEiee 
(a) 92119 deeiaoaeas 1 efte soarfaee 
(b) 92128 eleeidoaeoas 1 t\JS earfaee 26.611 
(e) 92138 aeeieloaeoas, l;hl:!'ee soarfaee 37. 17; 
(d) 92131 eaea aaditieftal s~trfaee, eieeid:ljetJ:s 3o631 
(e) 92119 efte soa!'faee, pe!'lllal'leftt. 
(€) 92159 twe soal!'faee 1 pel!'lllafteftt 26.611 
(EJ) 92169 three sttl!'faee 1 JleEmafteftt 37' 17; 
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(I\) 9634 eaeft aaaitieAal sur~aee (iAeluaes euep reate 

(i) 92199 pifle l!er l!'eteflt.ieA (mallimum i!) eael\ piA 
~ 

(j) 91351 eealal'lts, per teeth tl\reu~l\ the ey repert 
metaea wnieh is 65,2~ at the eillea el\ar~es. 

(5) Silieates afld fiser~lass pesteratiefle iflelude• 
(a~ 92219 ailieate l4o38 per aurl!aee, 
(e) 92339 ee111peaite 'l!'esi:n (aariel'lt, elaller aaapeie, 

eeAeise, preeei!e, ete.) 25,34 peP aurl!eee, ' 
(e) e~esite fillifl~B fel!' peaterier teeth will ee paiel at 

the rate ef a siMilar amal~am reeteratiel'l eMeept fer btteea-1 
surl!aeee, 

(6) Aaait;ieflal eperati:e pl!'eeeelurea ifleluae1 
(at 1!9969 iiBllleeliate t!!'eatiaeflt fer fraetureel aflteriel!' 

permaHeftt teeth iAeluaifl! pulp testifl~, pulp eappil'l~ aflel use ef 
metoal eand er erewft fer!~ vilol\ sedative fillifl~ 22.88/ 

(el 92949 treatomel'lt fillil'l~ (eiBer~eAey) 7.15; 
(e) 92919 reee!Bef!t iAlay 7.15/ 
(~) 93228 pulpetemy iHeluaift§' pulp eappin!J when 

autoher*eea 25.34; 
(e) ~le eM'Era fee fer pulp eappil'l! er eases. 
(7~ crewl'ls aAa eriaqes ifleluae. 
(a) 92719 pelyearbel'late (ieA type) with pelye\ieeflat.e 

aeE'tlie lifle£ 52.89. 
(B) PeaedeAt.ies, eertaift ePe\'I'IB, aAa amal<Jam res'Ee'l!'atieHs 

liRiel\ He paili the satBc as per!llaneAto teeth. 'PI'1e ee•.•e'l!'ed 
se:rvieee aree 

(ai 92939 el'1ra!B8 erB~I'I 52.891 
(b) :!9991 i-eaiate t'l!'eat.mefl'E ef f'l!'aet.ured an'EerieP 

~e'l!'lllaAei'IE t.eetb, ineltioaee p\ilp t.eet.iAq, pulp eappin! aflel use ef 
met.al e&ftd e'l!' e'l!'e'tlft l!el!'IB with seaat.h•e fillifl'J 22.89 r 

(e) 91519 ebl'eme e'I!'B\JI'I afla lee~ spaeer er etl'le'l!' t~pes 
(spaee .aiRt.aif!e'l!') 57.291 

(a~ 9*515 eilat.e'l!'al spaee lllaifteaifle'l!' ep lifi~Jual area 
~ 

(e) o999il aerylie liene-e, wit.he\it elaepe, s\ipplyifl~ 1 
toe 4 a"•••ier teeea (flipper) 71.5Br 

(f) :!2993 eaeh aaaitiel'lal teeta, ~ermaneftto en ae'l!'~lie 
defttHre (flipper) 7o1St 

(~ 0!9995 stoaiAlese steel eaAa l3oi!9; 
(9~ Pree~edeflt.iee iRelHdel 
(a• ae~~~pleee IIIEUiillary denture, aer)•lie 1 plus l'!eeeseary 

aajHS'EIIant 369 I sa ... hen pre•. ided ey a aentsist (eede 95119) er 
184o89 Wft81'1 JU!'BVided by a lientil:ll!'iSlo (eede 1!19119)1 

(e) ee~~~pletoe maflaisular deRtl:l:re, aerylie 1 pll:ls l'lseeseary 
adjYet.llleRto 369.69 ·A·hefl pl!'e"iaed ey a deneist (eeae 8510!9) er 
1B4o89 'lftBft previaea sy a liel'lt.U:rieto (eede e~lll) f 

(e) ae'l'ylie !BaMillalt'y partial liefl•wre with east! el'll!'eme 
elaspe al'la :reate repl:aeii'I'J at lease 4 peeterier eee'EI\ pl:Hs 
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146.99 ~~eft pre1ided ~y a deA~~~ie~ (eede 39912)1 
(d) aerylie maftdi~~lar par~ial deA~~~e oi~ eas~ e~reme 

elasfls arui ~es'Es t'eplaeifl' a~ leas'~: 4 pes'l:e~ie~ ~ee~~ pl~s 
adj~s~meft~s 286o99 w8er1 p~eJided ~y a deA~ie'l: (eede 95212) er 
H6d~Q ···~eft pre·1ided ~y a deft~Hl!'is'E (eede 39913lt 

(e) ftlaMillary eas-e e~l!'eme par~ial lieft~H~e, ae~ylie 
saddles, elaspe and reses, replaeiA~ a~ leas'~: eAe afteerier eeeeh 
and ar~y ftHmser ef peseerier eeee~, pl~s adjHsemeAes 357,59 
·w~eft pre'<'idedo lily a del'l'6ise (eede 95213) er 178.75 t.·~ea previdea 
ay a defte~risl& (Bade 39114)' 

(f) maAdi~Ylar ease e8~eme pareial deat.~:re, aerylie 
saddles, elaefs aRd ree'l:s replaeiA~ at. leas~ er1e aaeeriel!' teet~ 
aad afty ftt;!Biael' ef peetel'ier lleet8 pl~s adj~st.mer~es 357.59 ·w~eft 
pre•vieled ey a eleftt.is'E'. (eede 95214) eE 178,75 \l~aft pre ... idea ey a 
defttHrise (eede 39115) 1 

(') l'eplteeemeftt fer mauillary defttHres ef eet..,·een 5 aAd 19 
yea~s eld liillo 55 ·w~ea ppe•.•ided ley a deft'eise (eeEie 95719) eP 
69.78 \•'HBA previded It~ a derr!li~ise (eede 39125), 

(~) PeplaeemeAe £er meAdiltlila~ deftEH~es at lteeweeft s aRe 
19 ~eal!'s elEI 12L55 iiheA p!'evided ley a Eleft~is~ (aede 95711) er 
69.78 w8eft pre• idea ley a deAe~riee (eaae 39126). 

(19) ReliAes aAd repairs iAel11Eie1 
(aj eYI!ed !'eeift Pelifte, lewer 95,19 '"~eft ppe,•idea ey a 

deaeise (eeEie 85751) e~ 17.55 w~eft pPe~ideEI I!!~ a EleR~~l!'is~ (eeae 
39116)1 

(Ia) sHred l'esiA reliae, lil'f'eP 95.19 .. ~eA pPevided by a 
defteise (eede 95769) er 47.55 ·w~eft pre.,.ided ley a aeA'eHl!'ist (eeEie 
2:9117) 1 

(e) ~peJleft EieAt."tlre repair, Ae teet~, meeal iA.,.elved 
~:a.H w~eft pra<iaeEI ley a deAt.is>E (eeEie 95619) Bl!' 21.12 w~eA 
pre•.•iEieEI ley a del'le11~ie~ (eede 39118); 

(d) EieAtitre adjt.~s>Emer~~ eftly \ohel!'e aeA'Eie~ el!' Eiefteurise 
aid flat malta deA'eu~ee a, 58 "''ABA pl!'e ~iEied sy a dei'>Eie.. (eeae 
95119) er 4o29 weeA pl!'e:ided ey a deA .. Hl!'is~ (esde 39119)1 

(e) l!'eplaeifl~ s~eltefl tee~~ eR deftoture 1 i!il!'a~ ~ee'eft 26' 49 
\J~eft J!'l!'evided hy a Eienotise (eede 95529j e~ 13,29 tJHeA fll!'e'tiaed 
ley a deflt.H!'ie• (eede 2:9129)1 

(!!) ea&ft addi'eieAal ~eee~ attel!' pl!'eeedl!~e (e) aftd (!) 
7<15 .,..~eft p~evided by a deftt.iso£ (sede 95649) e~ 3.58 w8eA 
J!'l!'B¥ided ley~ daft~HPist (eede 2:9121)1 

(!) adEliA~ teet~ te pal!'tial te replaee eMtl!'aeted AatHral 
teeth, fil!'st 1!ee£~ 35o75 \oheft p:re•.•ided ley a defttist (eede 
95659) el!' 17.88 .,..~eA pl!'avieled l!!y a EieftEHI!'ise (eede 1;19122) 1 

(~) PeplaeinOJ elasp 1 Hew elasp (EieAt.ists eede 956891 
EieAtt.~!'is'es eeEie 39123) 59.951 

(i) l!'epaiPin~ (welEiiA~ Bl!' eeldeFin~J) palatal ears, liA~Iial 
ears, meeal eeftRee~e~s, ella. eft e8~e-e pareials 92•95 wheft 
pre···hied bt a tlefttist (asele 956iHlj sF 46:48 WHet~- !9PB•liEieEI l!!y a 
deAotiiPist (eede 2:9124); 
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(j) j1211lplRIJ sf !llal!illal!'y lieR6\il!'e 121.55 \o'hBR J!li!'B'<'ioiea sy 
a aeR£is£ (eeae 95719) 91!' 69:79 WfleR Pl!'9'oioieEl ey a lieR£1:1J!'i51£ 
(eelie i!Qli!S)I 

(l() . j12111piREJ e£ MaAEiisl:llal!' oieH£ttl!'e 121,55 ·.:heR pl!'e•riliea 
ey a EleR£1s£ (eeae 85711) el!' 68.79 wheH pl!'evieiea e' a eleHt.l:ll!'ist 
(eeeie ZEllil6)1 

(1) plaeiREJ Hame el'l Aew 1 fl:lll er pal!'eial EleHel:lres 11•98 
'•ftel'l pl!'eoiElea e~ ei aeAeist (eeEle i19El96) 91!' §,;;g 1/Refl prevideE! by 
a aeRtl:ll!'iet (eeE!e i!8127) . 

(~l PaRties aREl abl:ltmeR£ t.eet8 iAell:lElel 
(a) (eaE!e 96219) steele's faeiHOJ type 357. SQ fer 

eemplete el!'ieiEJe aHa as\itmeR£ teeehr 
(e) (eeae 96248) eeramie, paRt-ie aHa asl:lemel'le teet.h 

357.59 fa!!' eemplete sl!'iElEJe aHa asl:ltllleHt teeth; 
(e) (ease 96259) elil!'ea aerylie, lasa~:aeary preeesseEl, 

veReel!', peHt.1e aHa el!'elo'HeEl aslielllef\t t.eet.h (eemplete Bl!'ia~Je) 
357,59 fer eemplet.e eriElEJe aAEl asl:lt.lllel'lt. t.eet.h, 

(12) Repairs iHell:lael 
(a) 86939 J!'eeellleR£ erid!Je 14<38, 
(s) 92929 ]!'eeemel'lt erewfl 7ol5, 
(e) 96898 pereelail'l faeiREJ 29o6El; 
(a) i!887El Peplaee 13Pe1Eel'l st.eele's £aeii'IOJ, past iAt.aet 
~ 

(e) 829568 
~ 

i(..ffL))-..;2~9~9~77'22--.,Ft'<eep~laaee!E!e,....ee~l!''€e~IE;Ee!fl'lt-fB~t~e~e;t,l~ee-'-' ss-ffaaee-iii'li'II<!!IJr.,--f'piEe~Es~t=-ie~r"'e~l~teel'l!b-
~ 

( 13) 9ral slirEJer-t iHel~;~;aes 1 

(a) 97528 I afta 8 ef aeeess eME~a aPal 55.991 
(e) 87119 ~emeval ef teee~ (iRelttdes shapil'l~ sf ria~e 

eel'le) 17.40, 
(e) 07229 l!'BIIB'al 

impaet.ieft 35.75; 
(d) 97239 Slil!'EJieal rellle""'l at BBI'Ie 

impaat.ieft 64·351 
(e) 972 ~8 slit:~ieal l!'eme•.-al ef eee'l.h, eeii!Jileee lee!'le 

impaeeiel'l 187.25, 
(f) 97329 alveeleeeemy 1 Ret iH eeHjeeeiel'l wit.h exerae 

eiel'ls, per ~ttadl!'al'lt. 35.751 
(EJ) 97979 elleisiel'l ef hyperplastie tisstte/eaeh EfttaEl 
~ 

(R) 97259 l!'eme~al ef ret.&~•ed 1 l!'esidlial !!'sees, ferei~l'l 
:eeaies il'l eel'ly eies~;~;e J5,75t 

(i) 97\51 remeval ef eyet; S5.99r 
(j) 97269 reme""al ef l!'eeainea 1 peeid~;~;al peet.s 1 fereiEJI'I 

beeiee iR maxilla!'} siRiis 197.251 
(k) 97968 frel'leet.emy 59o95r 
(1) 97478 r-emeoal sf eMaat.esis t.erae 1 llla~tillary er 

mel'ldiblilar 71:59; 
(m) g-~e5 eiapsy, 
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(H) 97619 mauilla, apeH zoe!htet:ieH 358, 93; 
(s) 97629 fraet:~zoe, simple, maMilla, t:zoeatmeHt: aHa eare 

i!7Bo85; 
(p) 97639 maHaiale, epeH zoea~et:ieH 489o4BI 
('!) 97649 fraet~re, simple, maHaiale, tzoeat:meHt: aHa eazoe 

i!7Bo85; 
(r) emer§'eHe~ eral s~l!'§'ezoy pl!'eeeEi~l!eS HBt: list:ed iH t:hie 

z~le iolill be zoeiml!lttl!'eea ifl aeeezoaaHee •,.-ita ."<.'lit 46 o1i!. 2988, \~hell 
a~t:l!oa!'iiled ay t:fie Eiesi§'flated P9'o'l9'K BF§'aftilla'l!iBflo 

(14) EflasdeAt:ies inelttder 
(a) 93319 rest eaflal eaemet:fieFa~ efld meefiaHieal 

p!'epazoat:ieH, sealift§' aHa filifl§' l23.29t 
(e) 93329 rest: eaaal, eaeh aEidit:iaflal reee ttp t:e t:we 
~ 

+(.;oe>\-)--iilK9~9~9~7;r-..-;r~e~eEl't:l;-.ee.aaf!Haa±l--aaf!ft,EJEii-aacflp>4i,;;e><;e~e~e~t:E<e~mlll'~'f'-eeeeBIBI~I3>4i"'H~e>EEil-Eell!fl~e~l'"'a:t<tl!-l:~· e&HH 
128.79; 

(Ei) 93 419 apieeeet:emy flat: ifl eeflj<:metieft wit:h rest: eaAal 
64o35o 

(15) Periedent:al seroiees iHelttdeer 
(a) 949Hl pezoieaeatoal prephylaJEie pel!' ae~r 18.59; 
(e) 94219 §'iH§'i•,•al :t>eseet:ien 35.7S pszo IJ~aEiFant:; 
(4) For the ourpose of specifying fees for reimbursement 

gf covered denturist ~ervices. the department incorporates by 
reference section F, dated July 1993, of the department's 
denturist service provider manual. 

C5l No extra fee for pulp capping or bases. 
(6) Payment for denture adjustment will be made only to a 

dentist or denturist who did not make the dentures. 
(71 Medical procedures which are within the scope of 

pt'actice for licensed dentists. but which are not listed in 
sections G and H of the dental services provider manual will be 
reimbursed in accordance with ARM 46.12.2003. 

(±6~) A BQentist examining more than one medicaid 
recipient in a long-term care facility on the same day shall be 
allowed payment for one nursing home call in addition to &YeP 
the examination fees. Examination is considered a recorded 
evaluation. 

191 The denturist service provider manual and the dental 
services provider manual are available from the Department of 
social and Rehabilitation Services, Medicaid services Division, 
P.O. Box 4210. Helena, MT 59604-4210. 

(17) Reim~~rse~ene fez- e:t>tfieEieHeia ehall se ~ade iH 
aeeerdaHee with the fees iA effeee eR Feal!'tta•y 28 1 1999 pltte twa 
pezoeeRto 

AUTH: Sec. 53-6-113 MCA 
IMP: Sec. 53-6-101 and 53-6-141 MCA 

46.12.606 DENTAL SERVICES. COVERED PHQCEDUBES (1) '±'ae 
fellewinEJ EieHeal sel'!viees a:t"e ee•1eFeEI sy t:ae p!'e§'ram• 

(a) SiaEJAest:ie and pl'!e/eflt:ieH. 
( i) ee•,•ef'ea sef'Y iees: 
(.'\) simple el!E:t>aet:iens ~ 
(B) f~ll metteR l! rays, er paRereM, sr eephalsmetFie 

eaEiieEJl'!a~s. the fsre§'aiREJ alle~eEI at three ~eazo ineervals1 
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(C) ai'U!Ii&l site '" iA'!J M r:ays 1 
(D) siruJle periaf!ieal 11 rays \;sen req1:1ireEi te •iiai!Jrtese a 

eeAEiH:iefl etaer taart EieAtal earies, 'l'ae AeeEi fer u rays Mlist ee 
iAaieated eft the elaim, 

(E) ifttl:a eral eeel1:1sal mauillary er MaRaia'lllar 11 r:ats 
~heR reql:lirea ts aia'!fAese a eeRaitisR ether tfiaft EieAtal sarles• 
'l'fie Aeea fer w rays M'llst ee iAdieated sR tae elaimr 

(F) elltl!'a eral; paRe:r:aMie type ll!altilla:r:y er ll!aRailntlar: 
lateral w rays waea req'llired te Eiiai!Jf\ese a eeAdi~ieR etaer thaA 
EieAtal ea.ries, 'l'fie Reed t:er 11 Fays 1111:\st be iAaieated ea tae 
e-laHt-

(6) 
(H) silf 

iftterYals, 
(I) f'llll me1:1ta w rays af\ edeRtl:llslis patieAts prier 

a~:~taerieed s., tae desii!JAa'Eea peer pe•,•iew eFI!faAieatieA, 
(J) ae~:~se sells, 
(:K) ''itelH;y ~es'Es 1 
(L) eefts'llltaeieft, >J'!!'it'EeR jl:lst!.H'ieatisf! fel:' eeAsl:lltatieR 

m~:~st ee l'f!'•Widee, 
(M) heapital af\a Rl:lr:sif\~ aeme eallsl aad 
(tl) !"alliati 1e eMS!!''!Jel'ley 45!!'eal!lllertt sf EieAtal paift, 

iRel~:~ail'l~ mifter p'!!'eeeEi~:~res, tempe'!!'al!')' fillif\'!JS, if\eisiefts aRd 
a£aiRal!fe, tepieal medieameRI!S, i~ri~a~ieR fS£ perieeFaRitia, 

(~) resea'!!'atieft et earie'lle aREi t!!'aet~ral teeth! 
( i) esYered ser•,.ieesl 
(A) aaalgam restef'atiaf\s eft deeiEi'llells af!Ei !"ermaReR'I; teet!\; 
(B) retef\eieA piAe 1 up te 2 per teeth; 
(€) silieat.e !!'esteratieftsr 
(D) eempesite aftd l:'eeiR rest.eratisRBI 
(E) aer~ lie jaeltet fer illllllediate trea'EmeRt at f'!!'aet!ll!'ed 

aAteris• per.aneHt testa, iHell:ldif\'!1 p11lp tes'EiAg, p1:1lp eappiA~, 
af\d Olea ef metal l!laftd sr ereWI! fe- with sedat.i•.•e filliR! 
a~:~therieed a, ~e desi!ftel!ed review ergaHieatiBf\J 

(F) treat•ettt filliRgsl 
fG • ree-eai>i~ ef iftlaye r 
(K) plllp.tell~ e prier attttlerieell by the deeil)f\ated re•o'ie••• 

er~aRieatiaHr aftll 
(I) sealaft~s. 

(e) er&i BI:II!'I!Jer~t 
( i) ee·~ered eeJ"Yieesl 
(A), BMt.aftsi 1e eral e~ri!Jery prie!!' a'tlt8erieed. by ttle 

deeigftatea review ari!JaftieatieRt 
(B) tlsspital deRtal treat!lal'll! l!lriar ollii!Aerieed ey 'ebe 

aesi1!fl'la'6ea re•1iew ergaHieat.isftJ 
(a) I aRd D ef eMtra eral al!lesaser 
(D) re•e..,al ef teats ir~sllldiR'!J sl'lapii'I'!J ef riage l!lsftet 
(B) ew:r:gieal re•a• .. al ef teeth, seft tiee1:1e illlpaetieftJ 
(F) el:lri!Jieal l!'eme•~al ef teeel\, pal!''!ial :Bsl'le iJIIIIaetiartl 
(G) Bli!!'I!Jieal reme•al ef teeth 1 eemplet.e :Bef\e impae~iBf\1 
(II) ah eelee'Eemy, !let. il'l eeRjllRe\ief\ •JJi~b eu~!!'ae6ieAs 1 
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(I) aMeisial'l ef ft¥parplaat!ia t!.it&alte !'leeesaal''Y Iiiia 'ee 
••diea•ieR •eae~ieRJ 

(J) l!'ellu:...,al ef re'aaiJII!IIl er rea.itdllal reeial!l al'ld fereiiJI'I 
ead.ites il'l hefty eia&ll81 

(K) t:BliiEJ'•al ai B'}'Bt!, 
(L) l!'al!leval ef re•eil'led sr l!'aaid~tal ree'6e al'ld tereiiJA 

&eaies iA 111axillary Sil'l~tsr 
(!!) freRee'I!BIIIYI 
(N) Feme•,•al sf eHaa'laeie, terua, lliltHillar) er mal'ldislllerl 
( s) eiepe:n 
fP) maMilla, epe11 reli~tet!isl'lr 
f~) fraetoldre, t~i•ple, mauilla, t=toeatmene and eel!' a 1 
fRt-maAdisle 1 epel'l rea~tei!isl'll 
(6) ltae'l!lire 1 ~imple 1 me!'ldi&le, t!raa~al'li! &l'ld aarer &Ad 
('!') eotal SliPIJBI'Y praeadltl"BI!I 118'6 lie'lad il'l 'al\il!l !!'lila if 

tbey are• 
+(~I+)----~ll~·s~t~e~a~i~ft~A~W~1~4~&~·~l~a~.~a&e&ea~, 
(II) ~ertermad hy a aeA'I!ist!l 

(IV) al;lt!haorieea 8y 'll'l:e daei1fl'l11'6ed rev:i:e11 Ell"IJ&I'Itieai!iel'l. 
(d) e11dedal'lt!ia servieeat 
(i) IJe!'leral re~ireme!'ltst 
(A) R&Remel'IJeftey enaelieAt.iea !11\ls• ee pPial' au•l'latoieea ey 

6he 4eeijJIIa6eli l'eview etl'IJeAieatial'l• 
(ii) eeverea ser~ieee: 
(A) 1.'88'1 ea!'la1 trea&~~~eR6 eft ~ppew er lew~ aiM a~el'ier 

~·4.-nelllaiiiiJ ebe!l8therapy al'la ~aeel'llal'ltieal !'l'epal'a41i8PI1 aftd 
f-i·i·l-ffit'h'"-

··t-8) l!'eet: eaftal fE::reat.-~~:er.'t 8ft peaea:PieP ~ee'eft eareapts tJ:ftirel 
.alare inel~aiR~ eh .. eeherai''Y al'la !18&ftaftieal ptoeparaeiel'l 1 aftd 
filliiiiJ, maMilll~lll 8f eliPee l'sete per teetl\r 

(C) e!llel'IJBI'I&y reee eaftals alld apieeae•e•iei!l ;ue'6ifiea lly 
111ei!HII!I et fiRi:sl'lle:d ll P&'!! 'e a'64;ae!lad ee ala,._, 

(9) Feet eaRai a11d apie-Ma.y &llai-fteli eperat~iei'IJ aali 
(5) apieeee4!e., l'lte'a il'l eaRj\lfte4!ial'lt vi.,.. Pa.e eal'ltalo 
(e) aaMutoea • .,..e ralifti:ftiiJ •• ju.piJI" at lieMeae 1 
(i) "aft&!'Bl l!'B~~e.al'l4!81 
(A) sep•.-j,ees desepilseli il'l eiH!eeiJtliefte fl) (a) (ii) (A) 

ttt:l'aotl§ft (F) 1 (J), (I{} • (M:), (N), (l) ta) (iii) (A~ 1 (B) ane (G) 
~8'1 lse pri8P a~6heto-.eli lly &as deeifl'l•••li •~·iew &PIJ&ftiee'6i8RJ 

(8) eervieea .,..., !ee pre•,.ithut a, a li_.iM ep pl'eSel'ilaali 
ey a ael'ltie• al'ld prw•ilied ey a liaaBaea a~i"'' 

(E) •elf'leats ••• flill pPtua"heeia ••H after •~• a'JireKi•••• 
aat:e ef tofte Mas11 !'•••"• et.::e,_.aat.iBRa, aRIIl;'e .. Wle &tJ• art• •w• ef 
tl'le presel'lt'6 prea'lfteeia. 

(ii) ee#aPad servieeat 
fAI replaaa.Bfte 8f laaw aeJ\tttl'ee :iti 'ala leee is lie-IMali 

ey a 8619elial'ltti"; tl'le t.toeatiiiiiJ lieft•ia• el' 'ale del'ltllolaPia• p.l!e""i:liiiU!J 
tAl! deR••••el 
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(B) e~~ea and ~esin Felines, apper ana ls~er, en immeaiate 
na earlie~ than th~ee ment3s a£ter plaeemeat 9f 

Eieft.,~l!'e, 

(C) e~reEI ana !'esin re1:ines 1 ~pper aAa lal;er, at three 
year iatervalst 

(B) Ei~pliaate (;aMp) apper ana;er lewer S9Mplete Eientare 
91!' pa!'tial aeHtlu·ee prie!' a~;~therieeli l9y ~he f'&BII re, iew 
9:f'IJaHii!ati9HI 

+B) eemplete III<Hfillary -tll!!l'lt~re 1 !U!P'f:lo~ao, phle !'lee@~~ery 
atij~tstme~ 

;Pi eempleee m<mEiie\tlar EieR'Ill*re,--~ 
~ 

(G) srelEeR tiel'ltttre rel'air, fte eeeth 91? metal iR.,.eh•eat 
(!!) ele1'!t1u·e ad'}~ate eel'"'iee when ieatist 

er Eie"Rj,arist dis Ret make del'!t!:lrelf'1 
(I) l!'eplaeii'IIJ aroltefl teeth 91'1 aeflt\!Pe, 
TJ-) j~l!lpe eF replaeelllent fer den-t~hat are set1;een 

five (S) and t&B (19) years 9lEil 
(i\) ~eplaeemel\t ef del'ltli!~es ever tel\ yee:l!'s eld wAel'l ~!he 

'£1!'eaeiHIJ EieH£iee dee\!lllanes th.e I'IE!ed feP !"eple:ee~~~el'l£; . 
H•l l!'eplaeelll81'14! at pa~:eul deBtl!res tl\a£ are eve!!' flo"Ve (5) 

ye11rs 9la uith !Hll Eiel\tares: aRd 
-f*) plaeii'IIJ !'Iallie en a Re•.J 1 fl:lll 91!' partial del\£\!l!'es aHEi 

eMieein~ 9eft£1:lres fer a Aarsin~ heme l!'eaideftt!o 
#H) t.l\e limi£s 91'1 ee.,.el!'al)e Elf Elel'llsl!l!'e se:t'Viees 111ay be 

eueeedea •lftcl'l lshe-desiEJHated:--IC'eVie"" el!EjaHie&tieA 1e1:lel!'llliftes tl!,ai; 
the eMistiHq aeHEY!'es are eaasin'! tfie reeipient serieas physiea~ 
1\ealth preelemso 

(fl pa•eial deB61!l!'eBI 
~) Ejel'leral Pe~~irement&l 
(A) aer•>'iaes mlts4! ee priaP a\!eheris!ea ey tl\e deeiql'lated 

peview 9rganiea£iel'll aftd 
(B) serviees _,.._ se prs•.-iaed l9:1 a Eiafltiee ep preeeFil3eel 

lioy a Elefleist Mid pro•,•ideel sy a lieel'l9ed defltat"ist. 
(ii) eevered aar.,.iees1 
P'•) aerylie ~ppel!' aP level!' pareial Eien~nt!!'e ~ith t· ... e eh!!'eme 

al!' EjelEI elaape aAd reate aHa adj~:~eemente 1 te replaee a miRi~m 
ef \ pe~erieP ~eeth er eny naml9er e# aHeerier ~eeel\r 

(B) mauillary er taal'ldib~le:t' east eh!!'alllll! pe!!'-ial !lel\ta!!'e 
replaeiR'! any Rl;ll!lber sf peeterie!!' eeeth bl!£ 111\tSE inel~de eBe eP 
lllePe al\eerier teeth aRd adjHetmeneet 

(C) aerylie Eiel'lt.'tlre 1 a·i~he~ elasps 1 Sli!pplyil'll!t 1 te 4 
aBt.erier teeth (flipper)t 

(9) adllit.iel\al teeth, per•al'lellt el'l aery lie 
( fl iflper) 1 

(B) addii\IJ teeth te part.ial te l!'efJlaee euerae'l!eei Aat.Hw-al 
t.eeth-1-

(F) rep1e:ein1J elaep 1 He~ elaep1 aftll 
(G) repairii'IOJ (we laiR~ er selderil'l~) palaeal sa!!'B 1 lil\'}l:lal 

ears, •eta1 eenl'leetePe, etea en el\Pellle partials• 
(OJ) perieEieBtal ser•1ieee 1 
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(i) !8fte~al ~·~~iremafteae 
(A) sa~-:ieee •tis~ be p~ie~ atlt!fts~illiiS by t!fte ael!li!HIIIt!e!ll 

re•.riaw ••ta~tiaaeieft, 
(iii ee=e~ed ee~-:i:ees• 
(a) ~eep sealift! aftd e~eeea,e tiP t!e let!• ene het1~ 

seeei:ane fer disabled aftd tiP t!e ewe efta hatlr eeeeiefts fel!' nan 
dieableli1 and 

(B) IJiftiJi·,•al ~esee"tieA !e~ l!he e~eat!ment: e!l! tintivel 
hypel!'plaeia Eit1e t.e meliieat!ieA l!'eael!iefts. 'l'rea~111en'l! shell eave• 
peet!eriel!' anl!l aftt!e~ie~ 'eeet.l!o aft !ippers ana le'jjers (selll!anl!s)• 

(A) e~eWftl!l aft!il fiHeEi e~i!ii!Jesl 
(il IJefteral re~~iremeft'tsl 
EM aer., ieee 111t1st. be prier atlt.herieed by el!oe liesi!HBt!ed 

••view ••IJanieeeien. 
(ii) eettel!'eel ee!'Vieea1 
(o'.) pel:yeel!'eeftet!e (ian t!ype) wi'tl!o ae•~ lie li:nel!' erewna fer 

-the liJ!IP•J!' ana lewe~ 6 aR-teria~ eeet!l'll 
(B) ehl!'el!le el!'ewns eft pes"tel!'ia'l!' l!ee'tl!o ftsl! res'tel!'&ble by 

eeRVenl!ianal filliRIJ ma'tel!'ial; 
(Sl filted b'l!'ili!Jee eft aft'teriel!' l!.eet.l!o eftl·t 1 
(9) Bai!'BIIIiB B'l!'iliiJeS l!'eplaeift! ~e me~e t.l!oaft 2 ~ee~hl 
(E) eel!'amie peneies1 
(F) eeeele'e t'B:einiJ "type peRI=ieet ana 
(G) e-ed aer~lie, laeePa"ter~ preeesseli, "'BI'Ieer f!Bn'aiee. 
( i) pedeaent.ie ser,•iees! 
(i) ee .. erea ee ... ieeat 
(A) spaeere ana erewftSI 
(B) amaliJam ree-terat.ieftst 
(e) el!o~el!le ere• .. ·n pl!'ie:f' auehel!'ised ey lase desiiJfla'aed peel!' 

pe•dew BPIJBI'Iisaeien 1 
(9) i~~~media'ae 't'l!'eaeme~e e€ frB:e"t~red aRt!erieJ!' pel!'lllaneft"t 

eeeeh, ineltldiftiJ pulp eeet!iftiJ, pt!l:p eappiniJ and lise ef me-tal 
sana er el!'e~n fer. wit-h eelilet!i;e t'illiHIJI 

(E) ehre111e e~ewR a~a leap epaeer er et-her l!ypes ef epaee 
-iflt.aiftBI!'S pJ!'iBI!' iiltlt.hel!'iBed BY 'the deSiiJI'Ia'ted J!'etie·A· SPIJ8ftiea 
*-t-

(F) l!ilat.e~al spaee JlaiR"taiflep el!' liftfJU:al ae-eh:, p•ier 
atll!herieed by ~l!oe aeeiiJRel!.eli peer review er1Jal'lieaeiel'l 1 ae lease 
ene "tee'ah •~ee ee miesiRIJ en eaeh eiae ef ~!.he •~ehr aftli 

(G) e"taiAleee eeeel baREio 
()) erlahelie~l!ia fep l!'eeipiel'lt.e aiJe eweREy efte a~d elder 

'Nhe l!lave l!laHillefaeial a~e•alies t.l!lal!. 111t1st. be •-•ee'tea Slfl!'IJi 
sally aftd fe'l!' wl!ll:el!l f.l!oe er"theEieRI=ia ie a ~eeee•••Y adjtlfte"t "te 
"the BtlriJery. 

(~) * l!'ays a'l!'e re~ui:f'ed wit-1!1 l!'e~uest.s fer el!le fellewiRIJ 
Eieft'aal sePvieesl 

(1'\o) all: BI!'BW~e I 
(B) enliedeft"tie eases1 
(€) all eMI:raetie~e eMeept simple eHt£ae"tie~st 
(9) an} ease ·.~hel!'e p~lp eAambel!' is i~vehea, a~Ei 
(E) l!'emeral ef illlpaeeed t.eeth. 

15-8/12/93 MAR Notice No. 4&-2-754 



-ltl98-

(3) Gasme•ie deRtis•r~ i• Aee a ~eRe£i~ ef the medieaid 
perreii!Jelft'--BT• 

Cll For purposes of specifying dental and orthodontic 
seryices covered by the medicaid program and the limitations on 
the coverage of those services. the department incorporates by 
reference sections G and H. dated July 1993. of the dental 
seryices provider manual published by the department. 

c 21 For purposes of specifying denturist services. CO¥ered 
by the medicaid program and the limitations on the coverage of 
thgle services. the department incorporates by reference sedtion 
F. dated July 1993, of the denturist services provider manual 
pub!ished by the department; 

Cal all services provided by a denturist must be pre­
scribed by a licensed dentist. 

(31 Licensed dentists may bill medical "CPT" procedure 
codes as provided in 46.12.2001 for any medicaid covered medical 
pro*edure which they are allowed to provide under the dental 
practice act. These procedures must be billed in accordance 
with the administrative rules aoverning physician services at 
46.12.2001 et seq. 

141 All services which require prior authorization from 
the designated review organization are designated by a "Yes" in 
the column titled "AUTH REO," in sections G and H of the dental 
services provider manual. Reimbursement will not be oroyided 
for such services unless prior authorization has been given by 
the designated review organization. 

C5l coverage of denture services are subiect to tbe 
following requirements and limitations; 

Cal all denture seryices must be provided by a dentist or 
prescribed by a dentist and proyided by a licensed denturist; 

lbl requests for full prostbesis must show the aJU)roximate 
date of the most recent extractions. and/or the age and type of 
the present prosthesis; 

<cl replacement of lost dentures is a coyered service; and 
Cil the dentist or denturist must indicate "lost dentures" 

on the request for prior authorization for replacement; 
Cdl denture replacement is sub1ect to prior aqthgrization 

reguiroments and the following limita; 
lil tyll dentyres which are oyer ten (10) years old mov 

be replaced when the treatina dentist dQcuments the n•ed for 
reg.los;nent; 

Iii! partial gentures wtich are oyer five C5l year~ qld 
max b1 replacad With full dentures; 

Ciiil dentures which are between 5 and 10 years old~~· 
replaced when the treating dentist documents the neld Car 
replacement. byt rtimbursement will be at the rate for duplicat­
ing lor iumpingl the dentures; and 

civl the limits on covexase ot denture replacement maY be 
U!<!il~ed when the designated review organization determines that 
the existing dentutes are causing che recipient $trious physical 
hgalth oroblelJI!a· 
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161 Orthodontia for recipients age twenty-one and older 
who have maxillofacial anomalies that must be corrected 
surgically and for which the orthodontia is a necessary adjunct 
to the surgery is a covered service. 

(7\ cosmetic dentistry is not a covered service of the 
medicaid program. 

(81 The denturist service provider manual and the dental 
services provider manual are available from the Department of 
social and Rehabilitation services. Medicaid Services Division. 
P.O. Box 4210. Helena. MT 59604-4210. 

AUTH: 
IMP: 

sec. 53-6-113 MCA 
sec. 53-6-101 MCA 

3. The proposed amendments to the rules governing the 
provision of dental, orthodontics, and denturist services 
through the medicaid program are necessary to revise certain 
reimbursement rates and to provide for certain procedure codes. 
The proposed amendments are also necessary to reduce rule text, 
to reduce the extent of textual amendment in the adoption by 
rule of future changes to coverage and reimbursement rates, and 
to provide the specifics of coverage and reimbursement in a 
context that is convenient and accessible to providers of those 
services. 

The Department, with the advice of providers of dental, 
orthodontic, and denturist services, is proposing the adoption 
of the procedure codes of the American Dental Association. The 
Department is also proposing to revise certain reimbursement 
rates for those services and to provide codes and reimbursement 
for certain services not previously covered by the program. 
These amendments are necessary to update basic service coverage 
and to provide revisions to existing and new procedures that is 
more appropriate. 

In addition, the Department has provided a new comprehensive 
provider manual that lists the reimbursement rates and procedure 
codes. The presentation of reimbursement rates and covered 
services in department published provider manuals is a preferred 
manner for communicating these matters to providers, The 
incorporation of provider manuals with reimbursement rates and 
covered services by rule or the presentation of formulas for 
reimbursement rates by rule are the two principle ways that the 
medicaid program adopts reimbursement rates and covered 
services. 

The proposed amendments for ARM 46.12.602, "Requirements", are 
necessary to conform the citat,ions with the amendments to the 
rules cited. 

The proposed amendments for ARM 4 6. 12. 605, "Reimbursement", and 
ARM 46.12. 606, "Covered Procedures", are necessary to provide 
the reimbursement rates and covered procedures to govern the 
provision of dental, orthodontics, and denturist services by the 
medicaid program through a comprehensive and comprehensible 
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presentation in a provider manual that is incorporated by 
reference. The presentation and adoption of reimbursement rates 
and covered procedures in a manual will also reduce rule text 
and the reduce the text of future rule amendments. 

The provider manual will be republished on a regular basi~ and 
the appropriate rules will be amended to incorporate the 
relevant text of the republished manual. The proVider manual 
will be avairable from the Medicaid Services Division of the 
Department of Social and Rehabilitation Services at P.O. 13o:.: 
4210, Helena, MT 59604-4210. 

4. Interested parties :uay submit their data, views, or 
arguments either orally or in writing at the hearing. Written 
data, views, or arguments may also be submitted to Russell E. 
Cater, Chief Legal Counsel, Office of Legal Affairs, Department 
of Social and Rehabilitation Services, P.O. Box 4210, Helena, MT 
59604-4210, no later than September 9, 1993. 

5. The Office of Legal Affairs, Department of Social and 
Rehabilitation services has been designated to preside over and 
conduct the hearing. 

Rule Reviewer 
~~~ 

Director, Social and Rehabilita 
tion services 

certified to the Secretary of State ~A~u~au~s~t~2~----------' 1993. 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL 
AND REHABILITATION SERVICES OF THE 

STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the 
amendment of rules 
46.12.1930, 46.12.1945 
through 46.12.1947, 
46.12.1950 and 46.12.1951 
pertaining to targeted case 
management for adults with 
severe and disabling mental 
illness and youth with 
severe emotional disturbance 

TO: All Interested Persons 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT OF 
RULES 46.12.1930, 
46.12.1945 THROUGH 
46.12.1947, 46.12.1950 AND 
46.12.1951 PERTAINING TO 
TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT 
FOR ADULTS WITH SEVERE AND 
DISABLING MENTAL ILLNESS 
AND YOUTH WITK SEVERE 
EMOTIONAL DIS~BANCE 

1. on september 1, 1993, at 10:00 a.m., a public hearing 
will be held in the auditorium of the social and aehabilitation 
Services Building, 111 Sanders, Helena, Montana to consider the 
proposed amendment of rules 46.12.1930, 46.12.1945 through 
46.12.1947, 46.12.1950 and 46.12.1951 pertaining to targeted 
case management for adults with severe and disabling mental 
illness and youth with severe emotional disturbance. 

2. The rules as proposed to be amended provide as 
follows: 

46.12.1930 CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR ADQLTS WITH 
SEVERE AND DISABLING MENTAL ILLNESS. REIMBURSEMENT 
Subsections (1) through (3) remains the same. 
(a) for individual case management services: 

Each 15 minute unit ....................•. ~ 

Region I Region II Region III Region IV Region v 

(b) for group case management services: 
Each 15 minute unit ... , .. , ...•........... ~ 

Region I Region II Region III Region IV Region V 

~ ~ ~ ~ 

AUTH: sec. 53-6-1;p MCA 
IMP: sec. 53-6-101 MCA 
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46.12.1945 CASE MANAGEMENT SEBYICES FOR XOQTH WITH SEVERE 
E.'10TIONAL DISTVRBANC!. DEFINITIONS (l) 11 Ad..,eeaeyu aeaf!s 

\:he aee e! eflhafle ifi'!J p&l'ent. e~ eldri'B'JIIte pareR'\: il""'al·,•eaene ifl 
\:he plal"l'lift'J afiEl deli·~el') ef sel!'·~iees tel!' a eliel'!l!, al'ld ef 
empewel'ii'I'!J t.he eliel'lt. t.e epealt ell' aet. el'l behalf ef self waene·~r 
peseibleo 'i'he ease lllal"aliJel!.' spealts ell' aees 81'1 the alieni!' s 
sehalf whefl the elieftt ell' t!l'te pal!'eftt. is liftable te eal!'~Y' e11t. t.:t\is 
~ 

Subsection (2) remains the same but is renumbered (1). 
C2l "Assistance in dailv living" means the gnqotng 

monitoring of how a client is coping with life on a day-tg-day 
basis and the provision of assistance by a case manager which 
supports a client in daily life. Assistance wttn daily living 
skills includes but is not limited tg; 

Cal assistance with shogping and budgeting; 
lbl teaching use of public trans;ortatign and other 

resources; 
lcl monitoring and tutoring with regard to health 

maintenance; and 
ldl monitoring gontact with family members. 
(3) "Case planning" means the development of a written 

individualized case !IIB.nagement plan for the client which is 
arrived at by the case manager with ~ participation of~ 

lgl the parent. legal guardian. or the surrogate parent,~ 
lQt the client advocate aftd~ 
i£l the client~~ 
~ the client's service providers. 
( 4) "Crisis aseis~af!ee •u~a intervention and stabilization" 

means ~:he aet ef a9Bessin~ ~1\e nat.1:1re aftd se 1erity sf the 
elient's erisi.s 1 iden~if)il'l~ apprepriat.e rese1:1rees ~e pre..,iae 
~e Bl!fiJIBI!.'~ sero,•iee waiel\ tdll alle .. •iat.e tohe el'isis 1 ana 
arl!.'ai'IEJifli!J fer deli·.•el")• ef sail!."> ieee in a t.i111ely aanner. ~isis 
aseis~aftee afts iflter' et~toie11 aees net ii"Bll!ae liireeto fl'I!'B'~ieiefl ef 
se~iee te eliail'late the erisie er stasiliee Efie eira...etoaflees 
sf the elient., the parento Bl' ~e Sl!l!'I!.'SfJII~e pareftto• the immediate 
action by a case mMager fq:r the purnose of supporting or 
assisting a client or other person in respgnse to a client's 
mental health crisis. Crisis intervention and stabilizatton 
should be consistent with the concept of least re§trictj.ve 
alternative. Crisis interyention and stabilization may inclyde 
contact with a client's family members if necessary and 
appropriate. 

(5) "Hel'literifl.,. 111eane ~e Bft'!Jein' aet. ef1 
{a) aseeseifl~ t.he i111paet. ef eer1ieea beifti!J pre~idea t.e a 

elieftt aeeerdifi'!J te t.he est.abliskea ease planr 
{19) idel'ltiJ!) in'!J servieee iFtelHded ifl tl\e plafl l'll!to Ret 

el!~reAtly pre 1iEled, af!El the reasefte fer aer'<'ieee As~ eein'} 
pre'>'ideElr aAEl 

{e) efiB~rifli!J that tl\e aer~iees are preoiaea, tfelliterifli!J 
inell!des iael'ltifyiHEJ fteeded eaaH~es 811S the pl!'eviaieH ef l!'eper~s 
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al!' teeEieael£ ee the ~l!'evielel!'s, the elie"'t aflel the ~al!'eat ar 
s~l!'l!'e~ate ~al!'eflto 

15l "Care coordination. referral and advocacy" means 
providing access to and mobilizing resources to meet the needs 
of the client. This may include but is not limited to: 

(al monitoring and assessing the impact of services being 
provided; 

Cbl identifying services included in the case plan that 
are not currently being proyided. and the reasons the seryices 
are not being proyided; 

Ccl ensuring tnat services identified in the case plan are 
provided; 

Cdl making appropriate referrals, including to advocacy 
organizations and se;yica proyiders; 

Cel enhancing parent or surrogate parent involvement in 
the planning and deliyery of seryices for a client; 

Cfl empowering the client to speak or act on the client's 
own behalf when pgsaible: and 

Cgl speaking or acting on the client's behalf when tbe 
client or others are unable to carry out this rgle. 

AUTH: Sec, 53-6-113 MCA 
IMP: Sec. 53-6-101 MCA 

46.12,1946 CASE KANAGEHENT SERVICES FOR YOUTH WITH SEVERE 
EMOTIONAL DISTURBANCE. ELIGIBILITY Subsection (1) remains 

the same. 
(a) is receiving medicaid; ADS 
(b) hae rtee l!'eaehed 18 ~eat!'s at afJel aftd has been 

determined by the regional managed care entity or its designee 
to be in need of case management for youth with severe emgtional 
disturbance. 

(e) has eeeH deoee•miHed te ee & ~e•seft with seve•e 
emetieRal die~~l!'e&Hee, 

(2) A person with severe emotional disturbance is a person 
who meets one of the following definitions: 

Ca) the person is under 18 vears of age and presents a 
danger of suicide; 

(bl the person is under 21 years of age. is emotionally 
disturbed as defined by 20-7-401(8), MCA and is being served by 
an education agency; 

Ccl the persgn is under 22 years of age. is emotionally 
disturbed as defined by 20-7-40118\, MCA. is being served by an 
education agency, and is completing a school year which began 
before the person turned age 21; or 

(ug) the person is under 18 years of age, demonstrates a 
need for specialized services from two or more human service 
~·e~l!'a!lls ~we ~o systems because of emotional disturbance; and : 

(13) ~he perseR mee~e ene at ehe ~we fellewin~ eenaitiens1 
( i) tl!oe !!'el!'BSR has a 9SJI III R elia~Jfteeee meAtal elieel!'elel!' 

iflel~tded i11 s~teseetiert (3) eliafj'neseEi ey a eel!'~ifieel el!' lieeftsed 
11\eR'I:al aeal~h ~Fefessief\al, <Uid ~he ~ersePI eensietefl~l~ aRei 
pel!'sisteRtly demeRStl!'ates eRe of the felle•,.·iR~ el!oal!'aetel!'isties: 
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(A) tA:e persel\ has tailed te estaelieh er mail'ltai'll 
iRterpersel'lal l'elatieftshipe apprepriate te the pe!'sal'l' s lie\'el 
aplllel'ltal sta~e al'ld ellle\i!'al eAiil'al'llllel'ltl 

(B) tae pel!'eefl ~Hepla~ e be!ta'lie:P il'lappl!'ep:Piate te the 
pe:pse11' s Eie•.•elefllllSf'leal staEJe etf'ld elllt\!ral ei'IVi:Pel'lllleAt; 

(C) tA:e persal'l fails te demeAetrate a l'aA~e er app:pepri 
ateAese ef ematieA er 111eed apprepriate te the pel!'seA'e Eie~el 
epllleAtal eta~Je aftEi e\!lt\!!'al eAoireAIII&I'Itl 

(tl) the l'le•sel'l displays diS!'Ilpthe seaa,.ie:P wtliea lealis te 
iselatieA iA e:P frem seheel 1 ft911le, therapel!eie e!' •eereatieA 
settiAI!JSI e• 

(E) the pereeA liisplaye beaavie:P 9\!ffi~;~iefttly iAteAee 9:!' 
ee\•epe te be eeAeidel!'ed ae:E"ia\!ely det:rillleA'I!al te 1 

(I) tA:9 pe!'S9A's I!JI!'BWt.h, develepmeAt er ,,·elfare: er 
(II) tA:e safety 9:!' welfare 9f 9the!'lh 
( iio) the pe!'Sel'l Ilea Ae BSM III R aia'}fteeis eat ellhibit!e 

severe emetieAal al'ld/er er~Jal'lie illlpail!'llleft'l! whiel\t 
(A) l!laAifeste as em11tial'lal e• eehaviel'al SY!IIt'i!eii!B eP 

Elie'IO~otl'eaAse, 
(B) ehe SYJilfl'I!BIIlB er dist~ot:PBaAee 1\a~e eeeft preseA'I! fsp at 

least sin meflths er ape Bllpeeted 6e eeAtiA~ote fer a peried B¥<!1!' 
si:~t msAehst slid 

(C) t-he sympeelfts er dis'l!\!reallee are IIBASis~eAtly iHMI 
J!9e!!'Sistel'lf:ly deme!'lsf:!'ateEI by ena e£ tae eharaeteristies sef: 
fepte il'l S\tBseetisAS (i) (A) tal'S\ti!JA (E). 

Cil has a mental disorder diagnosed Under OSM-III-R or 
revision thereof by a certified or licensed mental health 
professional; and 

Ciil consistently and persistently demonstrates for a 
Period of at least six months or is expected to cont~nue for a 
period over six months one of the following ~aracteristics: 

CAl failure to establish or maintain interpersonal 
relationships relevant to his appropriate deyelomnental. stagelsl 
and cultural environment; 

CBl displays inappropriate behavior relevant to his 
developmental stage and cultute; 

(Cl failure to demonstrate a range or apprgprioteness of 
emotion or rnoog relevant to his developmental stage and yulture; 

(D) displays behavior sufficiently diskyptive to lead to 
isolation in or f~om school. home. therapeut~c or re9reationa1 
settings; or 

CEl displays behavior sufficiently intense or severe to be 
copsidered seriously detrimental to his growth. development or 
welfare. or to the safety or welfare of others. . 

(3) DSM-III-R diagnoses necessary for categorization as 
set'ie~sly e1111,ieaally ais~\ii!'Bea of severe emotional disturbanc!l 
include: 

Subsections(3)(a) through (e) remain the same. 
(f) sexual disorders (302.2G, 302.3, 302.84, 302.89); 
Subsections (3} (g) through (r) remain the same. 
(4) A f!ersea 11lle ltas Aet reaeaed 21 yeaps e£ at;Je ia 

eliEJisle fel!' ease maAaEJel!left~ fel!' ye~'l\ .. ·ith se 1epe emet:ieftal 
BiB~~f'Baflee if tl\a~ pef'SElfl. 
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(a) is "elftelsieAally elise~o~!'aed" as defifted ay ~~~ 7 4111 (5) 1 

(b) is aeil'l'!f served ay al'l edHealsieft ai!Jefte~l al'!d 
(e) is reeeivil'l'!f lfteElieaiEio 
(4) Human service systems are the following; 
Cal mental health services including outpatient therapy 

ll9me-based therapy. school-based tberapy. day treatment. and 
intensive case management; 

(bl specialized residential services including residential 
treatment. therapeutic group home. or therapeutic foster care; 

(cl child protective services; 
(dl specialized education supporta including special 

~Nucation placement. services by school counselor. or other 
support services provided by the school: and 

(el iuvenile corrections or probation. 
( 5) !, per seA wiel\ pri111ary pFealeme ef Eievelepmeneal Elie 

a.Sility 1 e~o~.Seeal'lee ab~o~ee er el\e111ieel !lepeAEieney Elees Aei! 1\a•~e 
98'•'8!'8 emetienal Eihi'EIH.'ba!'lee 1:1nleee t:l\8 pers8f! aadi1!ienallt 
eMfii.Sits .Sel\avie!' res~o~llsil'l'!f ~rem e111etiBAal ElieeHrba!'lee, 

C5\ Unless behavior results from emotional disturbance or 
a youth is dually diagnosed. a youth does not meet the defini­
tion of severe emotional disturbance if the youth has a primary 
problem of; 

(al deyelopmental disability; 
<bl substance abuse or chemical dependency; 
rcl sexual or physical abuse victimization; or 
Cdl character and personality disorders characterized bv 

lifelona and deeply ingrained anti-social behavior patterns 
including sexual behaviors which are abnormal and prohibited by 
statute. 

(6) A persel'l oae is a ..,ie1Si111 a~ seMotal ar paysieal ai!J-e 
1\ae se¥e!'e e111eeieflal Elise~:~rilaf!ee >JI\eA ~1\e abuse l!'esHl'ISs in 
el!lstial'lal Elisloi:I!'BBI'Iee mal'li~eseeEI ~- tl\e eharaetef'isloiee 
Eleseril!lea in a~.Sseeeian (2). 

( 7) .\ perssl'l IJilsl\ a el\araeloer aftEi l'e;rsel"'ality aiserder 
inel\Uli:t\'!f selt~o~al aeha viers 118ieh is al!lftermal at~& l'l"Bftil!li'ISeel sy 
s£atulse sees Hat l\a¥e se..,ere emeeianal Elist~ri!lal'!ee ul'lleas the 
Seftao,•ief' l'BSHH;e fl!'BIII BlftBlsianal dislsl:ll!':lilal'leeo 

AUTH: Sec. 53-6-llJ MCA 
IMP: Sec. 53-6-101 MCA 

46.12.1947 CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES fOR XOYTH WITH SEVERE 
EMOTIONAL DISTURBANCE. SERVICE COVERAGE Subsections (1) 

through (l) (b) remain the same. 
(c) crisis aseistal'lea ai'IEI intervention and stabilization; 
(d) lftBflitaril'l!l assistance in daily livjng; and 
(e) reeera maifleef!al'lee; 
C*§l care coordination, referral and advocacy~~ 
(!) l!'eseotree Ele•.•eleplllel'l'ISo 

AUTH: Sec. 53-6-113 MCA 
IMP: Sec. 53-6-101 MeA 
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46.12.1950 CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR XOQTH WITH SEVERE 
EMOTIONAL DISTYRBANCE. GEOGBAPHICAL COVERAGE ( 1) Case 

management services for youth with severe emotional disturbance 
are available anly fa!' !'eeidef!ee af 'eha '!f881J!'i!tphie at~eae 
beo#nnin'!J eft 'ehe effeetoh•e datoes epeeified as fellewet .QD.._,g 

statewide basis. 
(a) llieee~:tla eel:lRey d'~:tne 15 1 19921 anti 
(b) Helena afld lie lena o•alle)' ef I:.ewis and Slat~ll ee~:tntoy 

d'l:lf!e 16, 1992a 

AUTH: Sec. 53-6-113 MCA 
IMP: Sec. 53-6-101 MCA 

46.12.1951 CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR YOUTH WITH SEVERE 
EMOTIONAL DISTURBANCE. REIMBURSEMENT Subsections ( 1) 

through (3) remain the same. 
(a) for individual case management se~ices: 

each 15 minute unit ~ 

Reqion I Region n Region III Regign IV 

(b) for group case management services: 
each 15 minute unit 

Region I Region II Region III Region IY 
~ .LL.ll .LL..ll .L.l....Q.a 

AUTH: Sec. ~J-6-U.J MCA 
IMP- Sec. SJ-6-J.QJ, MCA 

Region V 

Region V 

3. ARM 46.12.1930 and ARM 46.12.1951 are proposed for 
amendment to revise the reimbursement rates for the provision of 
case management services to adults with severe and disabling 
mental illness and to youth with severe emotional disturbance. 
The proposed rate structure is predicated in part on cost 
information for the administration and direct delivery of case 
management services reported by the regional mental health 
centers during the first fiscal year of se~ice provision. The 
proposed rates are necessary to provide more appropriate 
compensation for case management se~ices based on regional 
variations in costs. 

The proposed amendments to ARM 46.12.1945 definitions for case 
management for youth with severe emotional disturbance, are 
necessary in order to generally conform those definitions with 
the definitions in the rules governing case management for 
adults with severe and disabling mental illness. conforming 
these rules is necessary to avoid current confusion in the 
administration of the two programs resulting from dissblilar 
provisions and language. The two sets of services are provided 
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by the same contractors and case managers and the two sets of 
services are intended to be similar. 

The proposed inclusion in ARM 46.12.1945 and in ARM 46.12.1947, 
of: "assistance in daily living" and "care coordination, 
referral and advocacy" and the revision of the terlll, "crisis 
assistance and intervention" to "crisis intervention and 
stabilization" are necessary to bring the reimbursable services 
for case management for youth with severe emotional disturbance 
into conformity with those for adults with severe and disabling 
mental illness. 

The definition section is intended to provide definitions for 
those terlll& that are used for reimbursable services. The 
proposed deletion of the definition of "record maintenance" is 
necessary because there is no reimbursement per se for record 
maintenance and a definition is unnecessary for other purposes. 

The proposed deletions of the definitions of the terms, 
"advocacy" and "service coordination", are necessary because 
they will be subsumed in the new term, "care coordination, 
referral and advocacy", which is a proposed definition. The 
proposed de-letion of the definition of the term, "monitoring", 
is necessary because it will be subsumed in the new term 
"assistance in daily living", which is a proposed definition. 

The proposed definition of the tenn, "care coordination, 
referral and advocacy", and the proposed amended definition of 
"case planning" contain definitional elements that do not appear 
in the definitions of the terms for case management of adults 
with severe and disabling mental illness. The inclusion of 
these additional elements is necessary because they are specific 
to the provision of services to youth. 

The proposed amendments to ARM 46.12.1946 are necessary to 
revise the eligibility criteria and definitions to allow 
intensive case management to become a component of the State's 
new systel!l of managed care for overseeing the provision of 
mental health services to youth with severe emotional distur­
bance. This system is being developed at the direction of the 
1993 Legislature. The case management services are an essential 
aspect of the implementation and development of managed care for 
emotionally disturbed youth. The new managed care system of 
services is necessary to address the critical problems in the 
delivery of services to emotionally disturbed youth on an 
effective programmatic basis, in a cost-effective manner, and in 
a unified and consistent manner. The proposed amendments 
provide a more inclusive eligibility necessary for the purposes 
ot the managed care system and previae more detail necessary to 
certain aspects of eligibility. 

The proposed amendment to ARM 46.12.1950, expanding coverage to 
the entire state, is necessary to provide implementation of the 
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State's new case management system of managed care for youth 
with severe emotional disturbance on a statewide basis. 

4. The proposed amendments, except for the rates of 
reimbursement provided in ARM 46.12.1930(a) and (b) and ARM 
46.12.1951(a) and (b) for Region IV, are to be retroactively 
adopted beginning with July 1, 1993. Region IV is the only 
region that would be adversely impacted by the retroactive 
implementation of the proposed rates of reimbursement and 
therefore, the Department proposes that the rates currently in 
effect for Region IV would continue until october 1, 1993. The 
prospective adoption of rates for Region IV is necessary in that 
it would avoid an unanticipated adverse financial impact for 
which that Region has had no notice. 

The retroactive application of the amendments to July 1, 1993 is 
necessary to implement the state's new system of managed care 
for youth with severe emotional disturbance in accord with the 
budgetary mandates of the 1993 Legislature as presented in HB 2, 
Chapter No. 2 and with the language at pp D-6 and D-7 of HB 2. 

5. Interested parties may submit their data, views, or 
arguments either orally or in writing at the hearing. Written 
data, views, or arguments may also be submitted to Russell E. 
Cater, Chief Legal Counsel, Office of Legal Affairs, Department 
of Social and Rehabilitation Services, P.O. Box 4210, Helena, MT 
59604-4210, no later than September 9, 1993. 

6. The Office of Legal Affairs, Department of social and 
Rehabilitation Services has'been designated to preside over and 
conduct the hearing. 

Rule Reviewer 
--1=:•-b:?isl '">'-= ~ 

Director, Soc~al and Rehabilita­
tion services 

certified to the secretary of State ____ A_u~g_u_st __ 2 _________ , 1993. 
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF REALTY REGULATION 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

STATE OF MONTJ\NA 

In the matter of the amendment 
of rules pertaining to applica~ 
tions, t~Jst accounts, 
continuing education, and un~ 
professional conduct, and the 
adoption of new rules pertain­
ing to property management 

TO: All Interested Persons: 

NOTICE OF AMENDMENT OF 
RULES PERTAINING TO THE 
PRACTICE OF REAL ESTATE 
AND THE ADOPTION OF NEW 
RULES PERTAINING TO 
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 

1. On May 27, 1993, the Board of Realty Regulation 
published a notice of public hearing at page 1063, 1993 
Montana Administrative Register, issue number 10. The hearing 
was held on June 25, 1993, in the conference room of the 
P~ofessional and Occupational Licensing Bureau, Helena, 
Montana. 

2. The Board has amended ARM 8.58.406A, 8.5B.406C, and 
8.58.415C and adopted new rules I through XIV (8.58.701 
through 8.58.714) exactly as proposed. The Board is not 
adopting the proposed amendments to ARM 8.58.41SA at this 
time. The Board will deliberate on this rule at its next 
scheduled meeting and plans to adopt the rule at a later date. 
The Board has amended ARM 8.58.414, 8.58.415B, 8.58.419 as 
proposed but with the following changes: 

"8.58.414 TRUST ACCOUNT REQUIREMENTS (1) through (16) 
will remain the same as proposed. 

(17\ EXISTING rHECKS. DOCUMENTS AND FORMS BEARING THE 
NAME "DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT" MAY BE USED UNTIL CURRENT SUPPLIES 
ARE DEPLETED . " 

Auth: Sec. 37-1-131, 37-51·203, MCA; IMP, Sec. 37-51· 
202, 37-51-203, 37·51-321, MCA 

"8. 58. 415B CONTINUING R&AL ESTATE EDUCATION -- COURSE 
APPROVAL (1) through (3) will remain the same as proposed. 

(4) No credit for continuing education correspondence or 
video courses will be allowed EXCEPT IHAT THE USE OF VIDEOS IN 
A MQNITORED. APPROVED INSTRUCTION PROGRAM WILL BE PERMITTED. 

(5) will remain the same as proposed.• 
Auth: Sec. 37·1·131, 37~51·202, 37·51·203, 37-51-204, 

MCA; IMP, Sec. 37·51-204, 37-51-204, MCA 

"8.58.419 GROUNPS FOR LJCENSE DISCIPLINE GENERAL 
PROVISIONS UNPROFESSIONAL CONQUCT (1) through (3) (a) will 
remain the same as proposed. 

(b) Licensees shall disclose in writing to ~ parties 
TO THE TRAN§ACTION the existence and nature of the existing 
agency relationship no later ~han when an offer is prepared in 
a cransaction. 

(c) through (5) will remain the same as proposed." 
Auth: Sec. 37-1-131, 37-1-136, 37·51·203, 37·51·321, 

MCA; ill£. Sec. 37-51·201, 37-51·202, 37·51-321, MCA 
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3. The Board has thoroughly considered all comments and 
testimony received. Those comments and the Soard's responses 
thereto are as follows: 

ARM 8.58.414 

COMMENT: Opponents stated that a real estate depository 
account did not fit the legal definition of a trust and could 
subject a licensee to statutory provisions that were never 
intended to deal with a real estate account. There was also 
concern expressed regarding the cost of implementing this rule 
because of the account name requirement on checks and forms. 
The opponents also stated that brokers were not confused by 
the designation of the account as a "depository account." 

RESPONSE: The Board determined that a majority of the 
licensees, other jurisdictions and the industry refer to this 
account as a "trust account" and that calling the account by 
another name was creating misunderstanding. The Soard felt it 
was obvious from the requirements for the account that it was 
intended that brokers would hold money deposited in such 
accounts as trust money. 

COMMENT: The staff of the Administrative Code Committee 
suggested section 37~51~321 be substituted as the implementing 
section. 

RESPONSE: The Board concurs and section 37-51-321 has 
been added as an implementing section. 

ARM 8.58.4158 

COMMENT: Concern was expressed regarding the elimination 
of correspondence and video coursea for credit. It was stated 
that some sort of completion requirement should be established 
for such courses. Some live courses contained videos which 
should also be approved. It was pointed out that the Board 
was sponsoring education that was being transferred by 
fiberoptics. This could be considered video since no clear 
definition has been established. There was also opposition to 
the elimination of other courses of continuing education which 
would leave the board the sole provider of such education. 
Other opponents complained that the Soard had not provided 
adequate rationale for doing away with video courses. 

RESPONSE: The Board addressed these comments by noting 
that statutas prohibit any kind of examination at the end of 
an approved continuing education course. There is no way to 
require verification of completion of such a course. The 
Board did concede that videos as an integral portion of a live 
course would be counted as credit. rt stated that fiberoptic 
courses were appropriate because they are monitored and do 
have live contact with the instructor and do not involve video 
tape. The Board did amend the rule, as shown above, to 
indicate that the use of videos in a monitored, approved 
instruction program will be permitted. However, the Board 
clarified that it was deleting permission for other use of the 
video tapes since there was no manner to examine those 
individuals claiming to have viewed a particular tape. 
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ARM 8 58.41SC 

COMMENI: It was noted that an error had inadvertently 
occurred in the original proposed notice. The notice should 
have read •subsection (3) (b) through (4) will remain the 
same.'' 

RESPONSE: The Board noted the error and moved to adopt 
the rule with the corrected language. 

CQMMENT: Comments received on this rule amendment 
stemmed from the misunderstanding caused by the above error. 
The licensees were opposed to the elimination of alternative 
means to qualify as an approved instructor. 

RESPONSE: The Board reviewed the comments and determined 
that the rule as notice simply clarified one means of 
instructor qualification and did not eliminate any Other 
means. 

COMMENT' The staff of the Administrative Code Committee 
suggested section 37-51-203 be substituted for 37-51-202 as 
the authorizing section. 

RESPONSE: The Board concurs and will make the change 
when the replacement pages are completed. 

ARM il.sa 419 

COMMENT: Clarification was sought regarding this 
proposed rule amendment. Individual observers wanted to know 
what parties were to be notified and whether the appraiser, 
title company, etc. were considered parties. 

RESPONSE: The Board stated that it was not its intention 
that entities such as lending institutions, title insurers, or 
appraisers need be provided the disclaimer on agency and 
amended the rule as shown above. 

ARM 8.58.712 !NEW RULE XIII 

CQMMENT: Staff of the Administrative Code Committee 
suggested that section 37-51-202 be deleted as an authority 
section from new rule XII (8.58.712), and section 37-51-203 be 
deleted as an implementing section_ Section 37-51-321 was 
suggested as an implementing section. 

RESPONSE: The Board concurs with the above suggestions 
and the changes will be made when replacement pages are 
completed. 

COMMENT= Counsel for the Association of Realtors 
objected to new rule XII'S (8_58.7i2) designation of the 
account as a trust account, suggesting instead that it be 
labeled as a depository account to avoid confusion with 
statutory liabilities and duties imposed on trusts. 

RESPONSE: The Board stated that money held in such an 
account is money held for others and as such represents a 
trust held by the property manager. The Board therefore 
stated it was not improper to designate the account a trust 
account. 
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COMMENT; Certain individuals complained that they had 
not received a complete set of the Rule notice and had not 
received notice of the proposed rules on Property Management. 
The individuals stated they received their copy from the 
Montana Association of Realtors not the Soard. 

RESPONSE; The Board noted this rule had been properly 
filed with the Secretary of State's office, thus putting all 
individuals on constructive notice. The Board stated that 
anybody wishing a complete set of rules may request one from 
the Board office. The Board advised individuals to feel free 
to approach it with suggested amendments to these rules. 

BOARD OF REALTY REGULATION 
JACK MOORE, CHAIRMAN 

BY; a/[_.{ c.t1_. F>«--t 
ANNIE M. BARTOS, CHIEF COUNSEL 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

ANNIE M. BARTOS, RULE REVIEWER 

Certified to the Secretary of State, August 2, 1993. 
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BEFORE THE SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the repeal, 
amendment and adoption of 
rules pertaining to special 
education 

To: All interested persons 

NOTICE OF REPEAL, AMENDMENT 
AND ADOPTION OF RULES 
RELATING TO SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

1. on May 13, 1993, the Superintendent of PUblic 
Instruction (OPI) published notice of public hearing on the 
proposed repeal, amendment and adoption ot the rules referenced 
above at page 757 of the 1993 Montana Administrative Register, 
issue number 9. 

2. A public hearinq was held on June 3, 1992, and was 
attended by nine persons. The hearing was recorded and the tape 
is included in the file on this matter. In addition, written 
comments were received at the hearing and prior to the closing 
of the comment period. 

3. After consideration of the comments received, the 
following rules are being repealed as proposed: 10.16.901, 
10.16.902, 10.16.903, 10.16.904, 10.16.1002, 10.16.1003, 
10.16.1107, 10.16.1111, 10.16.1202, 10.16.1203, 10.16.1205, 
10.16.1206, 10.16.1208, 10.16.1209, 10.16.1211, 10.16.1309, 
10.16.1311, 10.16.1701, 10.16.1702, 10.16.1703, 10.16.1704, 
10.16.1705, 10.16.1706, 10.16.1707, 10.16.1708, 10.16.1709, 
10.16.1710, 10.16.1711, and 10.16.1112, ARM. 

CQMMENT: The Administrative Code committee (ACC) commented that 
20-7-403, MCA, authorizes OPI to only administer policies 
adopted by the board of public education, while 20-7-401, 20-7-
422 and 20-7-423, MCA, do not provide any rulemaking authority. 

RESPONSE: OPI cites S 20-7-402, MCA, as authority for adopting 
these rules. 

COMfSl;HT: The ACC commented that OPI cited "state law" as a 
reason for the changes, but did not cite which state law made 
the rule changes necessary. 

RESPQN~E: OPI deletes •state law" from its statement of 
reasonable necessity. 

NOTE: OPI inadvertently proposed ARK 10.16.1204 as both a 
repealed and amended rule. The rule should have been proposed 
as amended only. 

4. After consideration of the comments recei vecl, the 
following rules are beinq' amended as proposed: 10.16.1001, 
10.16.1108, 10.16.1204, 10.16.1207, 10.16.1305, 10.16.1308, 
10.16.1902, 10.16.2401, 10.16.2405, 10.16.2406, 10.16.2408, 
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10.16.2416, and 10.16.2417, ARM. 

COHMEHT: 10.16.1108. Montana Advocacy Program (MAP) raised the 
question of whether or not inadequate notice can be kept from 
being raised in a due process hearing. 

RESPONSE: No. 

COHMENT: 10.16.1902. The terln "residing" and "living" in are 
used interchangeably in the proposed rules. Use of one term was 
recommended by HAP. 

RESPONSE: OPI will use the federal term "residing in." 

COMHENT: 10.16.2417. MAP requested changes in ARM 10.16.2403 
and 10.16.2417. MAP requested that findings be sent to them. 
Under 10.16.2403, MAP requested 1) a timeline in which OPI must 
mail a list of potential hearing officers, 2) a statement that 
the superintendent will make the appointment, and 3) elimination 
of subsection (l) (c) (C). 

RESPONSE: The due process rules will be reviewed for 
consistency of language. OPI 1 s current due process hearing 
procedure was approved as part of Office of Special Education 
Programs (OSEP) 1 s monitoring and acceptance of the state plan. 
The only changes proposed in these rules were those required for 
final approval of the state plan. Additional concerns will be 
noted for the next administrative rule changes to coincide with 
FY 96-98 s~ate plan application. 

coMMENT: OPI staff discovered that bath "ensure" and "insure" 
are being used throughout these rules to describe making sure or 
certain. 

RESPONSE: The word "insuren will be changed to "ensuren in the 
following rules: 10.16.1305, 10.16.1902, and 10.16.2406, ARM. 

5. After consideration of the c011111ents received, the 
following rules are being adopted as proposed and codified as 
follows: ROL2 II (10.16.104) 1 RULE III (10.16.105), RULE V 
(10.16.107), RULE VI (10.16.108), RULE VII (10.16.109) 1 RULE 
VIII (10.16.110), RULE IX (10.16.111), RULE X (10.16.112) 1 RULE 
XI (10.16.113), RULE XII (10.16.114), RULE XIII (10.16.115) 1 

RULE XIV (10.16.116) I RULE XV (10.16.117) I RULE XVII 
(10.16.2702), RULE XIX (10.16.2704), RULE XX (10.16.2705) 1 RULE 
XXI (10.16.2706), RULE XXII (10.16.2707), RULE XXIV 
(10.16.2709), RULE XXVII (10.16.1004), RULE XXVIII (10.16.1005), 
RULE XXX (10.16.1113), RULE XXXIII (10.16.1115), RULE XXXIV 
(10.16.1116) 1 RULE XXXV (10.16.1117) 1 RULE XXXVI (10.16.1118), 
RULE XXXIX (10.16.1120) 1 RULE XL (10.16.1121), RULE XLII 
(10.16.1122), RULE XLIII (10.16.1123), RULE XLV (10.16.1124) 1 

RULE XLVI (10.16.2712) 1 RULE IL (10.16.2715), RULE L 
(10.16.2716) 1 RULE LI (10.16.2717), RULE LII (10.16.2718), RULE 
LIV (10.16.2719), RULE LV (10.16.1713), and RULE LVI 
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(10.16.2720). 

COMMENT: RULE III 110.16.105}. Parents Let's Unite for Kids 
(PLUK) and MAP requested a change in rule to require that copies 
of all monitoring reports be sent to them. 

RESPONSE: Monitoring reports are public documents which may be 
obtained from the local educational agency. No change in the 
rule is proposed. 

COMMEHT: RULE XV I 10. 16. 118\ . MAP requested a change to ensure 
representation by advocates of students with disabilities and 
that the annual report be sent to MAP. 

RJSPOHS~: The state superintendent must ensure that an 
appropriate balance between professional groups and cOniJUlllers 
and advocates exists on the advisory panel. The panel operates 
under the state• s open meeting laws and annual reports are 
available upon request. 

QOMMENT: RYLE XXVII 110.16.2712). MAP believes this rule is 
inconsistent with federal law and requested clarification of the 
need for this rule. 

RgSPONSE: This rule complies with requirements of the General 
Education Provisions Act (GEPA), chapter 31, part IV, Family 
educational and privacy rights, 20 USC 1232g (4) (B) (i), and 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 34 CFR 99.3(2) (b). 

CQMMENT: RULE XLVI 110.16.28161. MAP believes specific 
timelines, specifically 5 days, would be more helpful tor school 
districts to know how much time they have to develop an IEP when 
a student transfers. 

RESPQNSE: The issue was discussed at the task force meetings. 
Due to the variety of circumstances encountered in Montana when 
ttansferring from one school to another, the time line was 
daterlltined to be "within a short period of time." The IEP 
manual states that is usually 5 days. No rule change will be 
ma,de. 

COJSHIHT: RYLE LY (10.16.17141. PLUK and MAP expressed concern 
abQ~t the lack of qualifications of principals in supervisinq 
spacial education personnel and requested additional languaqe to 
ensure that information was current and that principals were 
adequately trained. 

RESPONSE: No change. The. board of public education sets 
standards for teacher and administrator certification includinq 
require.aents for recency of certification units. Since 
info:n~ation changes regularly, a principal, in order to be 
effective in meeting the needs of students with disabilities, 
would need to annually update his or her skills or information. 
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COMMENT: OPI staff discovered that both "ensure" and "insure" 
are being used throughout these rules to describe making sure or 
certain. 

RESPONSE: The word "insure" will be changed to "ensure" in the 
following rules: RULE II (10.16.105), RULE XXII (10.16.2707), 
RULE XXIV (10.16.2709), RULE XXX (10.16.1113), RULE XLVI 
(10.16.1316), and RULE L (10.16.1320). 

6. After consideration of the comments received, the 
following rules are being amended as proposed with those changes 
given below, new material underlined, deleted material 
interlined. 

10.16.1101 PROTECTION IN EVALUATION PRQCEDQRES (1) Each 
local educational agency shall establish and implement 
procedures to i§nsure that testing and evaluation materials and 
procedures used for evaluation and placement of students with 
disabilities are selected and administered so as not to be 
racially or culturally discriminatory. 

(2) Local educational agencies shall ~naure, at a minimum, 
that tests and other evaluation materials: 

(a) - (e) remains the same. 
( 3) The local educational agency shall ~nsure that no 

single procedure is used as t~e sole criterion for determining 
eligibility for services and an appropriate educational program 
for a student. 

(4) remains the same. 
(a) remains the same, renumbered (5). 
(i) - (vi) remains the same, renumbered (a) - (f). 
(5) - (6) remains the same, renumbered (6) - (7). 

(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COMMENT: MAP suggested that this section be renumbered and 
clarified to ensure that "in an individual case, the written 
stllQIIIary statement required under subsection (4) (a) may be 
insufficient and a supplementary written report may be 
required." 

RESPONSE: Subsection (5) with its list of required 
supplementary reports was intended to ensure that adequate 
documentation is collected to support a comprehensive 
evaluation. In combination with subsection (6), which requires 
persons who give individualhed assessments to summarize in 
writing their evaluation, adequate data should be collected to 
ensure a comprehensive evaluation. 

A numbering change will be made in this rule. Further, the only 
language change in this rule is "insure" to "ensure." 

10.16.1102 INDEPENDENT EPUCATIONl\L BVALUATION (1) ln 
accordance with 34 CfR 300.503. incorporated by reference. which 
can be obtained from the Office of Public Instruction. Room 106. 
state capitol. Helena. Montana 59620, PQarqnts shall have the 
right to an independent educational evaluation of their child at 
public expense if the parents disagree with the local educa­
tional agency's or public agency's educational evaluation. ~ 
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leeal edtieatieftal a'ife!'ley ep p$lie a!Jeftey may ifti'l!iat.e a heaPiftiJ 
aAde~ ARM 19,16o2491 thPeH!Jh 19.16.2417 te she~ that it.e 
evalaatieft is ap(U!'epriai!oe, If the deeisieft e£ the heaPiftO!J 
eftiee:P is t.hat the e"'alaat.ie" is epJU!'epl!'iate, t:he pal:.'eft'l! s'l!ill 
has t.he l'itJht. t.e al'l i!'lliepeAdel"t edaeat:ie11al e..,aluat.ie11, su-e fts'6 
at: p$lie expeAse. 

(2) llbefte., Bl!' aft il'laepeftdeftt. eli\lea'l!ieRe.l eYal'tle.'-ieR is ae 
paelie eupeRse, 'l!l!e eritel!'ia tlRae:t' whiell t:he e"aluatieft is 
eetaifteli 1 ifteludift~J the leeat.ieft sf elle e.,.ahtatieA el"li ~e 
Ef\talifiea'-iel"s at the euaminel!' ( 9') , llll;l!lt! fie l!l!e same as t:he 
erit:eria wfiieh the p~~oelie 8rO!JSRey 'tleee w8eR it: il"itietes aft 
e•.•al~~oaeiefto 

(a) 'i'fle leeal efiueatiette.l &~Jel'lsy Sl!!' ptiblie a'!fel'tey shall 
ideftl!if) the e~it.el!'ia it. aees when it ~i'l!iatee aft e~al~~oa'l!ieA 
aRii ~heR it. det:ePmiRes the ~alif~eat.iel'le sf Uhe eHaail'lel!' aftd 1 
upeR I!'B~eet sf the paPsft£ 1 -ppe ... ide il'lfaPmetieft as 'l!e whel!'e aR 
iftdepal'ldaftt: eooeet:ieRal e•.aluatieft whish meeota eheae el!'iteria 
may BB estaiRedo 

(e) 'i'fle leeal edaeatieftal aEJeBey er p~lie aiJel'ley llllU!l'l! 
ef!sare t:hae t:he ifldepeRdeft'E ed~~oea'Eiettal er,•alYa'l!ieR is eandtiet!ed 
B} a £tHalified eKamiftel!' whe ia ftet. empleyed B) t:he leeel 
eaaeatieRal alfeRey el!' paelie a~JeRey Pespeftsisle tel' the ell:il<i'e 
elilleat:isfl and is etherwiee pretided at: ft8 east: t:e the pereftt iR 
aeeerElaftee wit!h IDEl'u qlfte leeal edueat:ieftal aiJeAB) may 
eet.aeliell el!'itel!'ia te eRetlre t:hat the eeet: e£ a pasliely fal"ded 
iRdepeftdeftt edaeatie~tal eralliatien is l!'eaaeRahle. 

( 3) '¥he pare~tt! '111\tst Elireet: a f'efiUeet: tel!' aft indetteftdeftt: 
eelueatieftal e •'aluatiel'l toe the leeal ealieal!ienal a~Je"ey pl'iftsipal 
er admiRietl'at:ive aeeiO!Jflee lffle aas atit:hef'i~ toe pre•:ide el!' 
sape!'.,.ise the pl!'e..,ieieft sf epeeial eaueatieft eePYieee, 
~he pareftt(e) ~at et:ate l!llat: a diea'!fl!'eeaent ~it.h the earreft£ 
edlteat:ieRal e..,aluat:ien eHist:eo 

(a) t!fte pal!'eRt(e) ~et: allew the leeal eeheel diet.l'iet: t:e 
ee~~~plet:e a earl!!'eltt. e-,.aluet:ien (aeees•eR!i li\ll!'iB'!J t:he eeheel 
yeal!') eefel!'e l!'eEfUest:iftOJ aft ii'IEiependef!£ e'>alaat:ieB; 

(h) the pa:P!!!!'I! (e) llll;le,._ eiiJB a eeBeiM'It: tel!' er,-al"llat:ieR t:a he 
eeftdtiet!eed fiy t:he iRiiepefldeM; eo,•al-'l!ef' ( 5) • 

(31 (41 l!'emeiRe 'Eha Ba.e 1 Peftumlaeree (4) (5), 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

CQMMENT: As proposed by OPI at the public hearing, adoption of 
the federal rule by referfU1ce is preferred to elilllinate any 
variabilities. 

RESPONSE: The rule is changed based on the comMent. 

10.16.1104 SPRROGATE PABEHTS (1) The local educational 
agency or public agency ift lfflieh the st;t~lieftt lives shall ensure 
that the rights of a child are protected when the parents of the 
child cannot be identified, or the whereabouts of the parents 
cannot be discovered or the child is a ward of the state. 

(2) - (5) (b) relllains the sallie. 
(6) The local educational agency may §hall petition a court 

of competent jurisdiction for termination of the surrogate 
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parent appointment when th• ehila seeemes an eaaReipaeea aa~le, 
the child's parents ar• identified, the whereabouts of the 
parents are discover~d, the child is no longer a ward of the 
state or the surrogate parent wishes to discontinue her or his 
appointment. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COMMENT: Both Parents Let's Unite for Kids (PLUK) and MAP 
requested the term "emancipated adult" be rel!loved frol!l this 
rule. PLUK further expressed a concern that "the existence of 
independent rights of adult students to consent or not consent 
to a proposed IEP does not eliminate the parent or surrogate 
parent 1 s right to participate in the IEP process as well." MAP 
stated that "while . . . an adult with disabilities be accorded 
all the rights of non-disabled adults, this does not preclude a 
surrogate parent from continuing to provide advocacy assistance 
to the student in his/her role as a formally appointed surrogate 
parent." 

MAP also requested that if the line regarding emancipated adult 
is removed, then "may" should be changed to "shall" since a 
surrogate parent appointment is no longer needed under IDEA in 
the rel!laining circumstances. 

RESPONSE: The rule is being changed to reflect the coml!lent. 

10. 16. 1106 PRQTECTION FROM b"•BBJ:.HI6 PB96BBS USE OF 
DIAGNOSTIC CATEGORY lOR PLACEMENT PURPOSES (1) The child 
study team shall identify a disability category for each student 
with a disability following comprehensive evaluation. The 
disability category shall relate to various disabilities defined 
in section 20-7-401, MCA. The disability category is to be used 
for reports requixed by the office of public instruction. A 
local educational agency or public agency should not refer to 
students, teachers or rooms by category of disability as such 
practices do not facilitate education and are otten harmful to 
the student with a disability. Parents shall be informed of the 
disability category as it relates to their ss~aen~ ~­
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COMHENI: MAP suggested change in use of the word "student" in 
the last sentence. 

RESPONSE: The term "student" is being changed to "child." 
FUrther 1 the term "labeling process" has been changed in the 
catchphrase. 

10.16.1110 §TATE COMPLAINT PROCEDURE~ (1) - (4) remains 
the same. 

(a) If the complaint addresses matters listed in ARM 
10-16.1108, the ca.plainant shall be informed of the right to 
secure a hearing under the provisions of special education due 
process procedural rules under ARM 10.16.2401, et seq.. The 
complainant will be notified that unless s/he requests that 
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their names not be released to the local educational agency, the 
ais~ri~ local ~ducational agency will be notified of the ~e 
of the person(s) filing the complaint. 

(b) - (b) (i) remains the same. 
(ii) The local educational or public agency may request a 

10 day extension of the 15 day period. The compliance orficer 
may grant an extension of 10 days if the liis'lil'iet. .l2kU 
educational or public agency has shown good cause exists. 

(iii) - (h) reaains the same. 
(AOTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

CQMBENT: OP! inadvertently used "district" in place of wloeal 
educational agency." 

RESPONSE: 
c0111111ent. 

Language in the rule is changed to reflect the 

COBftENT: MAP and PLUK requested a change in the amount ot time 
for the local educational agency to achieve compliance. Both 
MAP and PLUK believe "60 days from the date of the final report 
is tar too lengthy a period tor implementation of the corrective 
action before the compliance officer is authorized to impose 
sanctions. 

MAP requested additional change in the remedies set forth in the 
procedures. The remedies should include reference to the rule 
regarding failure of LEA to provide FAPE. 

RE$PONSE: OPI reads this rule to state that if compliance is 
not achieved 60 days from the date of the final report, then OPI 
will invoke sanctions. This does not preclude compliance from 
occurring prior to that timeline or within shorter timelines as 
specified in the corrective action. 

Rule on OPI responsibility to ensure FAPE reqUires OPI to take 
immediate steps to ensure FAPE is made available upon 
determination that the local educational agency fails to provide 
FAPE. The rule does not identify any particular circumstances. 
Even through a co~aplaint process, if an LEA fails to provide 
FAPE, the OPI must take ilamediate steps. Additional language in 
this rule is not needed. 

10.16.1201 LQCAL EDUCATIONAL AGEHCX CHILD FIJO 
~ONSIBILITIES (1) - (1) (b)(i) remains the same. 

(ii) describe student identification activities including 
audiological, health, speech/language and visual screening, and 
review of S&l'eenift4 preeeases data or records for children who 
have been or are being considered for retention, delayed 
adlllittance, long tenn suspension or expulsion, or waiver of 
learner outcomes (accreditation standards); and 

(iii)- (3) remains the same. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COM.MENT: Is OPI requiring a ~nethod or the development of 
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criteria for further assessment? Is the intent to have 
procedures which describe student identification and not "review 
of screening processes?" 

RESPONSE: The intent in this section is to require local 
educational agencies under ARM 10. 55. 805 to not only have a 
method for screening but to develop criteria for determining at 
what point should a child be referred for comprehensive 
evaluation. This reference to review of screening processes is 
somewhat confusing. It is intended to ensure that Child Find 
procedures include a look at those students who are being 
considered for retention or who have disciplinary records. 

10.16.1213 PARENTAL INYOLYEHENT ( 1) ( 2) remains the 
same. 

(3) No parent of a child plaeee il'l rec.eiying special 
education and related services will be required to perform 
duties not required of any other parent whose child is enrolled 
in the local educational agency. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COMMENT: The word "placed" should be changed to "receiving." 

RESPONSE: Language changed reflecting the comment. 

10.16.1301 LEAST RESTRICTIVE EHVIRONMEHT (1) Each local 
educational agency shall ~nsure: 

(a) - (b) remains the same. 
(2) Each local educational agency shall ~nsure that: 
(a) - (d) remains the same. 
(e) in· providing or arranging for the provision of 

nonacademic and extra-curricular services and activities, 
including meals, recess periods, and the services and activities 
set forth in ARM 10.16.1310, aftd each student with disabilities 
participates with children without disabilities in those 
services and activities to the maximum extent appropriate to the 
needs of that student. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MeA) 

CQMMENT: Subsection (2)(e) has a statement which is contusing 
because it is lined with the word "and." 

BESPQNSE: Language changed to reflect the COIDIIlellt, deleting the 
word "and." Further, "insure" is being changeq to "ensure" so 
use of the term is consistent throughout these rules. 

10.16.1)10 PLACEMENT BY THE LOQL EDUQTIOHAL AGEHCY (1) -
(2) (a)(iv) remains the same. 

(b) A local educational agency must first make a reasonable 
attempt to secure and utilize in-state residential schools or 
facilities, if appropriate. before making an out-of-state 
placement in a residential school or facility. 

(3) - (4) (c) remains the same. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 
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CQMMEHT: PLUK and MAP suggested a language change which would 
ensure that out-of-state facilities ~y be used when in-state 
facilities are not appropriate to the student's needs. 

RESPONSE: Since all local educational agencies must follow the 
requirements for development of the IEP and placement in the 
IJU!, this rule does not require schools to place students in 
inappropriate in-state facilities before considering an out-of­
state placement. However, for clarification, the words "if 
appropriate" will be added. 

10.16.2402 INITIATING SPEClAL EDUCATION DUE PRQCESS 
PRG€EBYHB PR2CB6S (1) - (2) re~in• the same. 

(3) A request for an impartial due process hearing 
involving the education or possible identification of a 
l!iUtdieapped el!ild student with disabilities shall be ~de in 
writing to the State Superintendent of Public Instruction, State 
Capitol, Helena, Montana 59620, and include a short, plain 
statement of ~tters asserted. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-402, MCA) 

COMMEHT: OPI inadvertently did not change "handicapped child" 
to "student with disabilities" in subsection (3). 

RESPQNSE: Language changed to re!lect the comment. 

7. After consideration of the comments received, the 
following rules are being adopted as proposed with those changes 
given below, new material underlined, deleted material 
interlined. 

RULE I I 10 . 16 . 214 l SPECIAL EDUCATION DEFINITIONS ( 1) 
remains the same. 

(a) Consent: incorporate by reference 34 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) 300.5001Al. 

lbl Evaluation: incot:gorate by reference 34 CFR 
300.500(bl. 

Ccl Personally identifiable: incorporate by reference 34 
CfR 300.500(C!. 

(b) - (e) remains the same, renumbered (d) - (g). 
(~!l) Parent: means a parent·, a guardian, a person acting 

as a parent of a child, or a surrogate parent who has been 
appointed in accordance with 34 CFR 300.514. The tar. does not 
include the state if the child is & ward of the state. The term 
parent is defined to include peraons acting in the place ot a 
parent. such,as a grandmother or stepparent with whom a child 
lives. as well as persons who are legally resp0nsilae for a 
9hil<a's welfare. 

(g) - (m) remains the same, renumbered (i) - (o). 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, MCA) 

Q?HMENT: MAP suggested including the definition of "personally 
identifiable" and "evaluation" in this rule. 
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RESPONSE: The above definitions are being added to the rule. 
Further, language has been added to clarify the definition of 
t•parent." 

~: Volume 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations can be found 
at the state Law Library, Justice/State Library Building, 215 
North Sanders, Helena, Montana 59620-3004. 

RQLE IV (10.16.1061 INTERAGENCY AGREEHEHTS (1) remains the 
same. 

(2) The interagency agreement shall define the financial 
responsibility of each agency for providing a free appropriate 
public education and establish procedures for resolving 
interagency disputes among parties to the agreement; and 
establish procedures under which seheel diee~iees local 
educational agencies may initiate proceedings in order to secure 
reimbursement from agencies that are parties to the agreements 
or otherwise implement the provisions of the agreements. 

(3) remains the same. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMPt 20-7-403, MCA) 

COMMENT: OPI inadvertently used "school districts" in place of 
"local educational agencies." 

RESPONSE: 
comment. 

Language in the rule is changed to reflect the 

RULE XVI Cl0.16.270ll LOCAL EDUCATIQNAL AGENCY 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES (1) The local 
educational agency (LEA) in which the student with disabilities 
~ resides is responsible for ensuring that the student has 
available a free, ap~opriate public education. 

(2) remains the same. 
(a) 'Pfte ~ LEA shall enlllll!'e ~e p;pe•.-isien et provide 

special education and related services designed to meet the 
needs of private school students with disabilities livin~ within 
the le!Jal ae•d•ies ~ t.be leeal elhleatienal aiJeney residing in 
tbe iurisdiction of the agency. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

CQMMENT: Helena School. District contends language "lives" or 
"living within" conflicts with Montana law. 

RESPONSE: Language in the rule will be changed to conform to 
federal. language. 

RULE XVIII 110.16. 2703 l LOCAL EQYCA'riOHAL AGENCY 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR PBQMOTlQN OF STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 

(1) - (2) remains the same. 
C J l A student with disabilities shall be promoted or 

retained according to locaJ e¢ucational agency criteria unless 
specific learner outcomes tr• waived in the student's IEP, 

!11 A stydent with disabilities who has completed a 
prescr1bed course of studies shall be eligible for graduation 
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from high school. 
Cal A student who has successfully completed the goals an 

the IEP $hall haye cgmpleted a prescribed course of stugy. 
Cbl pocumentation of completion of the annual goals sh~l 

be included in the periodic review of the IEP. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COMMENT: OPI staff determined that RULE XVIII and RULE LIII 
could be combined into one rule. 

RESPONSE: The language of RULE LIII has been used to modify 
RULE xQ!II in subsections (3) and (4) above. Accordingly, Rutg 
LIII is withdrawn. Further, this rule is intended to replade 
ARM 10.16.1212 and OPI will repeal ARM 10.16.1212 at a later 
time. 

RU1.P! XXIII Cl0.16.2708l PARENTAL CONSENT (1) (1) (b) 
remains the same. 

{2) Written parental consent for initial and annual 
place.ent of a student with disabilities in special education 
and related services ~ ~ be obtained by the local 
educational agency or public agency prior to the place111ent 
except as provided in subsection (3), 

l.i!l The local educational agency shall maintain written 
documer~tation of the date of parental consent for initial or 
annual placement. 

(bl If the parents and local educational agency canD9t 
aaree on the IEP put can agree on certain IEP services or 
interim placement. the student's new IEP would be implemented in 
the areas of agreement and the Student's last agreed-upon IEP 
would remain in effect in the areas of disagreement until th~ 
disagnement is rgsolved, 

(3}- (J)(a) (i) remains the same. 
(b) When parental consent for annual placement is wiEhaeld 

~ hal!! not been obtained after following procedures in AM 
10.16.1213 and Rule XXIV 110.16.2709) and bas not ~ 
specLfically refused or revoked, the local educational agency or 
public agency shall informally attempt to obtain consent from 
the parent. 

(i) If parental consent cannot be obtained within a 
reasonable time, the local educational agency or public aqency 
shall send written notice to the parent requesting approval and 
stating that the student with disabilities shall be plaae• iR 
~ prqyi2§d special education and related services according ta 
the stucient's individualized education program (IEP) U 
develo;gd RY tbe lQCal educational agency 15 days from the date 
of the notice. 

(ii) If no response froM the parent is obtained, the local 
educational agency or public agency shall piaee provj.de the 
student ~ special education and related services according to 
the student's IEP without parent consent subject to the parent's 
right to an impartial due process hearing under ARM 10.16.2401 
throuqh 10.16.2417. 

(c) - (d) remains the sa111e. 
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(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COHMENT: MAP and PLUK and Montana council of Administrators of 
Special Education (MCASE), in oral testimony, expressed concerns 
about the clarity of this rule. The rule needs to clearly 
identify that portions of the IEP to which parents have given 
consent may be implemented even though disagreement exists over 
other portions of the IEP. PLUK wants a revision to ensure that 
parents have the opportunity to participate and that if they 
choose not to participate there is good documentation of the 
opportunity. MAP also requests revision of subsection (3) (b) to 
make it clear that the IEP to be implemented is the one proposed 
by the school and unsigned by the parent. The suggested 
language is "When a local educational agency has been unable to 
obtain parental consent atter following required procedures for 
parental involvement and when parental consent has not been 
refused or revoked, the LEA or public agency shall informally 
attempt to obtain consent from the parent.'' 

RESPONSE: The issue raised is one of ensuring adequate parental 
participation in the development of the IEP. Coupled with the 
rules on parent participation in the IEP and parental 
involvement, OPI believes the rules adequately protect the 
parent's rights. Further, clarification from Appendix C, 
question 35 will be made in the rule. 

RULE XXV (10.16.27101 STUDENT'S STATUS DURING PROCEEDINGS 
( 1) During the pendency of any eemplaiHt;, fie preeess 

heari~~ administrative or judicial proceeding regarding a 
complaint, unless the leeal e9Hea£ie~al ~ agency and the 
parent§ of the e~HaeHE £hilg agree otherwise, the ~Hde~~ £hilg 
~i£9 aieasili£iee shall involved in the complaint must remain in 
Ebe sEudene'a his or her present educational placement. 

(a} If the complaint er aHe preeese aearin<J involves an 
application for initial enrellmeHE admission to public school, 
the s£Ha~e ~. with the consent of the parents, must be 
placed in the public school program until the completion of all 
the proceedings. 

(8) If l;he eemplaine er 9He preeeee heari!ltJ in·.•elvea a 
se~aene a<Je a 5 waa is nee eli<Jisle far reOJHlar enrell.ane in 
pHblie eeheel, £Re SEHdeH£ is HBE eli<Jisle fer plaee•ene iH eae 
p~slie seaeel HAEil £he s£HaeH£ reaeaes £he a<Je ef eli~i&ilil;y 
fer enrelllllenEo 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, KCA) 

COMMENT: OSEP, U.S. Department of Education, questioned the 
application of subsection (1) (b) as in conflict with federal 
regulations. 

RESPONSE: OPI will adopt the language of 34 CFR 300.513. 

RYLE XXVI (10.16.2711) STUDENI'S STATVS DUBING EXCLUSION 
FROM SCHOOL ( 1) The local educational agency may suspend a 
student with disabilities provided that the ehils s£uay eeam has 
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aeee~iRedt length of the susPension is no more than 10 
consecutive days or a series of suspensions which does not 
constitute a significant change in plaqepent. th~ local 
educational agency shall consider the length at each suspens1on. 
the proximity of the suspensions to one another. and the total 
amount of time the student is excluded !rom school. 

(a) ehe seha:ier whish res~l~a in ~e a.apefteisft ~.~ is a 
aireee ~iteseaeieR at ehe s~~defte'e disa8ilieyt aftd Exglusion 
from school which constitutes a significant change in placement 
as defined in subsection Ill may occur only if the local 
educotional aqenQY and PArent agree to t4e change in placement 
or a court of competent jurisdiction grants appropriate 
relief. 

(b) the left~Eft ef the slispeflsiert is rte mere 4Ylaft 19 
eensee~EiYe days er a se~ies sf slispeRsiens dees ne~ amelinE ee 
a si~RifieaftE ehaK~e in plaeemeRE, IA deeerwiniA~ ei!ftifieane 
ehaA~e iA p1aeemea~ 1 t:fie leeal e~eaeienal a,eney shell eeAeider 
tile leA~~ ef eae:k e~speRsieH 1 'E:fte pret~iilt;ey ef ebe e~epensi:eRe 
t:e efte ane~er 1 aaa t.he t:e't;al emslilltf e~ eiile eae sei:Miefte is 
exeluaed f~ee seheelo If the student is excluded from school 
under subsection Cal above for more tban 10 consecutive days. 
the local ectucatignal agency must ensure that the student wtth 
disabilities receives special education and related services in 
accordance witb the individualized education prograa. 

(i!) If t:he sehavier e>t the s~aef!E oiNt disabi:liEies f19Ses 
an i-ediat:e t.h!'eal: t:e t.he e~den1!:'e se.feey er £he eafet:y ef 
et:hel!'s, t:ne leeal adueaeieRal a~eRey -Y' e~spefta him er he~ tel!' 
Re mere tbaft 19 days, 

(a) EKellisiea fl!'em seheel whieb eea&Ei't;Ht:es a ai~i£ieaR1!: 
ehaft~e iR plaeemeat: as aefiHea iR sQbaeetien (l)(b) abe~e, may 
eeeu~ eRly if t.he laeal eaueat.ieaal e,eaey aftd f!Areftt: a~ee ee 
"l;he ehafUJe ia f!laeet~teRE er a ee~ft sf j~:trisaiettieft ~ftt:s 
apprepriaee relief, 

(b) If ~e stilident. is remsoed frBII his/her edlieaeie~tal 
!llaeeaeRe faP mere EhaR lQ Eia~e e, eetlft srd8f 1 e&e leeal 
edYeaeienal AIJilftE!Y -sl: eftstee ehat. she ewdeRt: wit:h 
aisasilit:iee reeei~ee e~eeial ea~eaeie~t asd rel&Eea serviees. 
(AutH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-40J, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COMnEHT: PLUK raises the question that students with 
disabilities cannot be suspended for behavior that is a direct 
manifestation of the student's disability. 

RESPONSE: A rule clarification waa submitted at the public 
hearing on June 3, 1993. While the rule does not speak 
specifically to manifestation of disability, suspension of less 
than 10 days is one of a number of factors that may trigger a 
review of the appropriateness of the student's IEP and may meet 
the requirements for change in placement as defined in the rule. 
A suspension of 10 days or less is not a change in placement. 
Therefore, there need not be a manifestation determination prior 
to suspension. 

R "-"UL~EL.......'XX,.,_,I .. X.__._( ... l_,O_._, ... l.,.6c,.._.l"'l"'l"'2"'l---"R""E"'F..=ER,BA~....,L ( l) A !3Stleel dietiPiett 
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local educational agency shall establish a referral process 
which includes a method for collecting information to determine 
whether comprehensive educational evaluation is necessary and 
the types of evaluations warranted. 

(a) The referral =ust include a statement of the reasons 
for referral, a description of any options the sebeel distrie£ 
local educational agency considered including documentation of 
regular education interventions and the reasons why those 
options were rejected, and the signature of the person making 
the referral. 

(b) remains the same. 
(c) If a comprehensive educational evaluation is warranted, 

the seaeel dis£rie£ local educational agency shall obtain 
consent of the parent before conducting a comprehensive 
educational evaluation. 

(2) If, after receiving a referral, a child study team 
determines that a comprehensive evaluation is not necessary, the 
distFie£ local educational agency shall notify the parent in 
writing of its decision, including a description of any options 
the seaeel dis£rie£ 1Q4al eduCational agency considered and the 
reasons why those options were rejected and a full explanation 
of all of the procedural safeguards available under subpart E of 
IDEA. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COMMENT: OPI inadvertently used "school district" in place of 
"local educational agency." 

RESPONSE: 
comment. 

Language in the rule is changed to reflect the 

RULE XXXI (10.16.1114\ COMPOSITION OF A CHILD STUDY TEAM 
(1) - (1) (g) (iv) remains the same. 
(2) The local educational agency ~ §ball invite other 

specialists when such specialists are needed to complete a 
comprehensive evaluation. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COMMENI: MAP requested addition of language regarding 
independent educational evaluation in subsection ( 2) of RULE 
XXIX (10.16.1112). In RULE XXX (10.16.1113), MAP suggested a 
cross-reference notation would be helpful. In the above rule, 
MAP proposes a change in the language from "may" to "shall". 

RESPONSE: RULE XXIX references a full explanation of parental 
rights, therefore, no additional language is necessary, In RULE 
XXX, the cross-reference notation to ARM 10.16.1101 had been 
111ade in the proposed rule so no change is necessary. The 
language change in RULE XXXI will be made as commented. 

RULE XXXVIII (10.16.11191 CRITgRIA FOR IDENTIFICATION OF 
STUDENT AS HAVING A HEABING IMPAIRMENT (1) remains the same. 

(2) Each sefteel riiee•iet; local educational agency shall 
ensure that auditory trainers or hearing aids worn in school by 
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students with hearing impairments are functioning properly. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA, IMP: 20-7-401, 20-7-403, MCA) 

COMM)lliT: OPI inadvertently used "school district" in place of 
"local educational agency.• 

RESPONSE: 
comment. 

Language in the rule is changed to reflect the 

RQLE XLVII 110.16. 2713! COMPQSITION OF INDIVIDUALIZED 
EDUCATION PBQGBAM TEAM (1) remains the same. 

(a) principal or administrative designee or representative 
of the local educational agency, other than the student • s 
special education teacher who is qualified to provide, or 
supervise the provision of, special education~~ 

Cil if the local educational agency does not emPloy a 
principal. the county superintendent or special educat~on 
cooperative director: and 

(b) r~ins the same. 
(i) - (d) remains the same. 
(2) For a student with disabilities who has been evaluated 

for the first time, the local educational agency shall 4§nsure 
that a member of the evaluation team or a representative of the 
local educational agency who is knowledgeable about the 
evaluation procedures used with the student and is familiar with 
the results of the evaluation. 

(3) For a student with disabilities who is enrolled in a 
private school and receives special education and related 
services from the local educational agency, the local 
educational agency shall ~nsure that a representative of the 
private school attends each meeting. 

(a) If the representative cannot attend, the agency shall 
use other methods to ~nsure participation by the private 
school, including individual or conference telephone calls. 

(b) If the representative does not attend the meeting, the 
local educational agency shall keep documentation of its 
attempts to ~ure participation by the private school. 

(4) If the purpose of the meeting is the consideration of 
transition services for a student with disabilities, the local 
educational aqency shall ~sure that the student with 
disabilities and a representative of any other agency that is 
likely to ~ responsible for providing or paying for transition 
services participates in the meeting. 

{a) - (b) remains the same. 
(5) In interpreting evaluation data and in making placement 

decisions, the local educational agency shall ~nsure that the 
placement decision is made by persons knowledgeable about the 
student, the meaning of the evaluation data, and the placement 
options. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

CGMHENT: MAP suggested inserting the same language as found in 
the CST team composition for IEP team composition. MAP also 
wanted to ensure that a regular education teacher attends the 
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IEP meeting. 

RESPONSE: The rule is written with an "and" after each category 
of participant. With the exception of the preschool child, a 
regular education teacher is required to attend the IEP. The 
rule is being changed based an the comment. Further, "insure" 
is being changed to "ensure" so use of the term is consistent 
throughout these rules. 

RULE XLVIII (10.16.27141 RELATED SERVICES (1) A student 
shall ee eeRsiaeFea eli~iele ~e receive related services only 
when the related service§ is Aeeessary fer are required to 
assist the student with a disability to benefit from the 
student's special education aRe tfie student bas aft IBP developed 
iR aeeeeEiaAee with HlEA and tfie eela>teEi serviee is: . 

(a) Reeessary te stlppert achievement ef eRe er mere at tfle 
\jeals er sfiert term eejeetives eR tfle stude!'!t's IEP; aREi 

(e) l'leedeEi dttrin~ sefieel fieurs er duriR~ preseribed 
ea~o~eatial'lal aetivity, 

(2) - (3) remains the same. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, 20-7-414, MCA) 

COMMENT: MAP and PLUK requested a change in the language in 
this rule to more clearly reflect federal rule. This language 
was regarded as too restrictive. 

RESPONSE: The rule is being changed to reflect the comment. 

RULE LVII (10.16.27211 VOLUNTARY ENROLLMENT TN NONPUBLIC 
SCHOOLS BY PABENTS 

( 1) If the leeal edueatieRal a~eRe) \~!I ere the studeRt lives 
bas made a•.<ailaele a f:l!'ee ar'p:l!'e!Jriate p~o~elie edt,~eat:iefi t:e a 
st: .. deflt: wit:ll aieaeilities ana tfle "t"'dent is velt,~Rt:arily 
ert£ellea iH a priYate seheel ey tfie sbtaefit's pareftt, tbe leeal 
eEiueat:ieRal aOJeRey iR whieb t:he pri·~ate sabael is leeat:ea is 
respeRsiele fer serviees ~aer 34 eFR 399o459. 

(i!-l) If a student with Eiisaeilit:ies is vel~t:aril:; eRrelled 
&y the st:~o~Eieftt's !Jarent: in a private seheel eutside ef t:he leeal 
eEitu:e.t:ieftal a~eRey '-'He:l!'e tile e4mlieRt: lh•es, t:!!e leeal 
edt;teatioRal afJeAey •,.•fiere the stot~deftt: lives shall make a....ailal!le 
a free appref!riate puelie eliueat:ioR a disability has rAPE 
available and the parents choose to place the student in a 

· e sc ool o c · · t t e ub · is t · 

the private school or facility. However. the Public tgency 
shall make services available to the student as provided under 
34 CfR 300.450 through 300.452. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, MCA) 

COMMENT: OPI staff testified at the public hearing that the 
proposed rule created confusion about local educational 
responsibilities. 

RESPONSE: To clear up any confusion, OPI will adopt federal 
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language of 34 CFR J00.403(a). 

RQLE LVIII (10.16.27221 SPECIAL EDUCATION AND RELATED 
SERVICES WHEN STUDENT IS RESIDENT OF ANQTHER LOCAL EDtzCA:UOlfAL 
~ 

(1) If a student with disabilities attends a local 
educational agency outside of the district of residence of the 
student because of the actions of another public agency such as 
departments of family services or social and rehabilitation 
services or corrections and hUJPan services, the local 
educational agency HI which ~ the student ~ shall 
initiate meetings to develop, review or revise the student's 
individualized education program. 

(a) - (2) remains the same. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, MCA; IMP: 20-7-403, MCA) 

COHMEN:t: LEA serving student initiates action and notifies 
resident LEA. 

RESPONSE: Rule is being modified to reflect comment. 

RULE LYIX C 10.16. 2723) RESIDEHTIAL PLACEMENT BY PUBLIC 
AGENCY OTHER THAN LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY (1) If a student with 
disabilities -!,a has been placed by a plH!lie a<JeRey, sueft ills 
depaF1oillefttoe ef fetily SE!l!'Vieee el!' seeial aRa l!'eftaeilit>atoiea 
serviees er e-ree'Eiefta aad a-aft eerviees, in a residential 
treatment facility or children's psychiatric hospital according 
to section 20-7-435, MCA, the residential treatment facility or 
hospital shall initiate mee'Eift'JB ~ to develop, review or 
cevise the student's individualized education program and. it 
necessary. to evaluate and identity a student with a disability 
in accordance with the requirements of IDEA. 

(a~) The resideatial t~ea9eat facility or ehilaFes's 
peyeniaerie hospital shall easi:IJ!'e paNieipatieR iR 'Ehe: IEP 
mee'Eis' ey D2tify a representative of the student's resident 
local educational agency of the student's placement ift ~bieh t.ee 
at the facility is leeates or hospital and request the 
participation of the resident LEA in meetings as required by 
IQjA. If the representative of the resident LEA cannot attend 
the meetings, the ~eeiseM!ial 'E't'eaEBieR'E faeili1>y ero llaepit.al 
represegtativ~ shall use other methods to ensure participation 
by leeal ed~eatiet~al a~Re~ ift ~~ieh the taeility ie leeaeed ~ 
q.1sident LEA. 

(51) The leeal eaueatieaal a<Jeftey iR whish tfte f~ility m;: 
hospitAl is leeat.ed shall eaeure that .QQ.t.ily the parent,s aftd 'Ehlil 
aiet.riet. af reeiaeRee toepreaast.a'Eive a~e i1'l"elves of tl:!.ei;r right 
to participate in any decision about the student's 
individualized educational: program and agree to any proposed 
changes in the program before those changes are implemented. 

(e!) The student's resident local educational agency HI 
~aieh the iaaili'Ey is leeated efld 'Eae effiee ef publie 
iRetraetieR are i§ responsible for ensuring eempliaaee ~ien IDBA 
that a student placed in a residential treatment facility or 
children'~ psychiatric hospital receives FAPE under IDEA. ~ 
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office of public instruction is responsible for ensuring 
compliance witb IDEA. 
(AUTH: 20-7-402, KCA; IMP: 20-7-403, MCA) 

COMMEHT: OPI staff testified at the public hearing that the 
local educational agency where the student lives regardless of 
how the student arrived in that agency's boundaries is 
responsible for ensuring that a free appropriate public 
education is provided. 

CQMMEHT: Intermountain Children's Home contends that federal 
law places the duty for FAPE for a student in a residential 
treatment facility or children's p~chiatric hospital with the 
OPI. 

COMMEHT: Helena School District contends that under Montana 
law, the duty to ensure a student with disabilities receives 
FAPE rests with the student's resident LEA regardless of where 
the student receives the educational services. 

BE5PQNSE: The rule has been modified to reflect Montana law, 
which places the duty for FAPE for a student with the resident 
LEA. A private residential treatlllent facility or children's 
psychiatric hospital under contract with OPI has a contractual 
duty to initiate action to ensure that a student with 
disabilities receives FAPE during the atudent' s atay in the 
facility or hoapital. This duty includes notifying the resident 
LEA of the need for its participation in IDEA procedures. OPI 
has the duty to ensure compliance with IDEA. 

S. OPI has determined that further study is needed on four 
proposed new rulea. Therefore, ROLE XXXII, RULE ~I, RULE 
XLI and RULE XLIV are withdrawn at this tiae to permit further 
review and opportunity to comment. 

9. Based on the foregoing, the superintendent 
Instruction hereby repeals, amends and adopts the 
proposed. 

~tUJ /'d. fld_, 
Ka ieei{ F. Holden 
Rule Reviewer 

NIUlCy nan suP::n~ndent 

of Public 
rul- as 

Office of Public Instruction Office af Public Instruction 

Certified to the Secretary of State August 2, 1993 
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of ) 
ARM 16.14.406 dealing with disposal) 
fees for solid waste. ) 

To: All Interested Persons 

NOTICE OF AMENDMENT 
OF ARM 16.14.406 

(Solid & Hazardous 
Waste) 

1. On June 24, 1993, the department published notice of 
the proposed amendment of rule 16.14.406, at page 1318 of the 
1993 Montana Administrative Register, issue number 12. 

2. The department has amended the rule as proposed with 
the following change (new material is underlined; material to be 
deleted is interlined): 

16.14.406 VOLUME-BASER QISMSAL FEE ( 1) -(2) Same as 
proposed. 

(3) In addition to the volume based fee specified in (1) of 
this rule, any person licensed to dispose of or incinerate solid 
waste shall submit to the department a quarterly fee of ~ 
~ per ton of solid waste generated outside Montana and 
disposed of or incinerated within Montana. All facilities that 
accept wastes from outside Montana for the purpose of 
incineration or disposal must weigh the wastes accepted at that 
facility to accurately determine the volume accepted. 

(4) Same as proposed. 

3. One person, Mr. Jon Dilliard, Solid Waste Program 
Manager, provided comments during the public meeting held on July 
21, 1993 at 9:00 a.m. in Room 209 of the Cogswell Building, 1800 
Broadway Avenue, Helena, MT. In addition to this testimony, two 
written comments were received during the 30 day public comment 
period. summaries of the comments and the department's response 
to them follow. 

Comment 1: The department presented testimony at the hearing to 
explain that there had been an error in calculation of the fee. 
The error was discovered just prior to the publishing date in the 
MAR. Ther@fore, it was published in the MAR at the incorrect 
amount of $0. 13 per ton. It should have been $0. 2 7 per ton. 
However, the regulated community that will be impacted by this 
amended rule and other interested parties that received the 
Department's notice were notified of the correct fee amount. 

Response: The department accepts this comment and has made the 
change. 

comment 2: One commenter requested that the department either 
provide an equivalency formula for volume to weight calculations 
(enabling a landfill to measure volumes instead of weighing 
incoming waste) or allow the use of weight tickets from public 
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scales or point of origin scales in order to avoid the cost of 
installinq scales at the landfill. 

Response: The department does not wish to cause undue financial 
burdens on the landfill operators of Montana. At the same time 
the department has no control over operations at out-of-state 
solid facilities. Imported wastes may not be tYPical mixed 
municipal solid waste and, therefore, of unknown density. 
compaction machinery employed at these sites will tend to 
optimize volumetric reduction in order to provide greater 
transportation efficiencies. The final density achieved may vary 
greatly, in a manner unknown to the department. The department 
therefore requires that some form of weighing take place in order 
to accurately track the tonnages received. 

The department concurs with that part of the comment that 
requests the option to present weight tickets from scales not 
located at the Montana disposal facility and feels that this 
option is already addressed by the language of the proposed 
regulation. 

Comment 3: One comment stated that the proposed fee was fair but 
should not be set above $0.27 per ton. 

Response: The department accepts this comment but reserves the 
right to increase the fee through the rulemaking process if 
needed in the future. · 

Certified to the Secretary of State August 2. 1993 
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BEFORE THE DEPAR'l'MENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment of ) 
ARM 16.24.104 concerning eligibi1- ) 
ity requirements for the children's) 
special health services program ) 

To: All Interested Persons 

NOTICE OF AMENDMENT 
OF ARM 16.24.104 

(Children's Special 
Health Services) 

1. on June 24, 1993, the department published notice of 
the proposed.amendment of rule 16.24.104, at page 1262 of the 
1993 Montana Administrative Register, issue number 12. 

2. The department has amended rule 16.24.104 as propoGed. 
3. No comments or testimony were received. 

Certified to the Secretary of State August 2. 199J 

Reviewed by: 

~.i:rtilrr:orooy 
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VOLUME NO. 45 OPINION NO. 9 

ARREST - Authority of police officers; 
CITIES AND TOWNS - Authority to adopt ordinances prohibiting 
breaches of peace; 
COUNTY OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES - Sheriffs, their duties, number 
of deputies; 
PEACE OFFICERS - Duties and authority of police officers and 
sheriffs; 
POLICE - Arrest authority; 
POLICE - Minimum number of officers in department; 
POLICE DEPARTMENTS - Minimum n~mber of officers; 
SHERIFFS - Duties and authority; 
SHERIFFS - Minimum number of officers in department; 
MONTANA CODE .ANNOTATED - Sections 7-32-2102, 7-32-2121, 7-32-
4101, 7-32-4105, 7-32-4106, 7-32-4302, 45-2-101(48), 46-1-
202(17), 46-6-210, 46-6-311; 
MONTANA CONSTITUTION - Article XI, section 2; 
OPINIONS OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL - 42 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 8 
( 1987). 

HELD: 1. Montana Code Annotated S 7-32-4302 authorizes, but 
does not require, a city or town to enact ordinances 
to prevent acts or conduct calculated to disturb the 
public peace. 

2. A city or town police officer acting within the 
officer's territorial jurisdiction may arrest a person 
for a violation of state law prohibiting offenses 
against public order regardless of whether the city 
or town has exercised its power to adopt an ordinance 
prohibiting breache~ of the peace. 

3. Each city or town ntust have a· chief of police; no 
further police officers are required. Each county 
sheriff, except those in counties of the seventh 
class, must appoint an undersheriff. No other deputy 
sheriffs are required by law. 

4. The sheriff has the primary duty to enforce county 
and state laws throughout the county. lf local 
enforcement is lacking, the sheriff must undertaks 
such enforcement. 

Ms. Vicki Knudsen 
Musselshell County Attorney 
One Main Street 
Roundup, MT 59072 

Dear Ms. Knudsen: 

~lantana Admlnist.ratlVe Reglster 

July 21, 1993 
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You have requested my opinion on four questions I have rephrased 
as follows: 

1. Does MCA S 7-32-4302 require that a city or town 
council adopt an ordinance or ordinances 
regulating breaches of the peace? 

2. Do city or town police officers have any 
autho-r! ty to arrest persons for breach of the 
peace i! the city or town has not adopted an 
ordinance or ordinances regulating breaches of 
the p4ace? 

J. Is th•re a statutory m~n~mum number of officers 
that must be maintained in either a police or 
sheriff's department? 

4. Is the sheriff required to enforce all county 
and state laws everywhere within the county, 
without regard to city or town boundaries? 

Montana Code Annotated S 7-32-4302 provides: 

Within the. city or town and within 3 miles of the 
limits thereof, the city or town council has power to 
prevent and punish . . . fights, riots, loud noises, 
disorderly conduct, obscenity, and acts or conduct 
calculated to disturb the public peace or which are 
offensive to public morals. 

By its plain language, MCA S 7-32-4302 gives a city or town the 
authority to enact ordinances to prevent acts or conduct 
calculated to disturb the public peace. Accord state ex rel. 
Moreland v. Police Court of City of Hardin, 87 Mont. 17, 22, 
285 P. 178, 180 (1930). see also 42 Op. Att'y Gen. No.8 at 
22, 26 (1987). However, there is no requirement in the statute 
that the city ar town exercise this express grant of power. 

In situations where a city or town has not exercised its 
authority to prevent and punish such acts or conduct by enacting 
an ordinance pursuant to MCA S 7-32-4302, you question whether 
a city or t~ police officer has authority to arrest an 
individual for breach of the peace. It is my opinion that a 
city or town police officer acting within the officer's 
territorial jurisdiction may arrest a person for a violation of 
state law prohibiting offenses against public order regardless 
of whether the city or town has exercised its power to prohibit 
breaches of the peace by ordinance. 

Montana Code Annotated S 7-32-4105 includes within the duties 
of the chief of police the duty "to arrest all persons guilty 
o£ a breach of the peace or for the violation of any city or 
town ordinance and bring them before the city judge for trial." 

15-8/12/93 Montana Admin~strat~ve Register 
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MCA § 7-32-4105(l)(b) (1991). The language of the statute 
mandating that the chief arrest persons guilty of a breach of 
the peace or for violation of an ordinance would be redundant 
if his duties encompassed only arrests for breaches of the peace 
prohibited by city ordinance. 

Additionally, it is clear that a city or town police officer is 
a peace officer under Montana law. MCA §S 45-2-101(48), 46-l-
202( 17) ( 1991) ("Peace officer" means any person who by virtue 
of the person's office or public employment is vested by law 
with a duty to maintain public order and make arrests for 
offenses while acting within the scope of the person's 
authority"). See also Maney v. State, 49 St. Rep. 980, 842 P.2d 
704 (1992) (recognizing Chinook city police officer is a peace 
officer) . 

Pursuant to MCA S 46-6-311(1): 

A peace officer may arrest a person when no warrant 
has been issued if the officer has probable cause to 
believe that the person is committing an offense or 
that the person has committed an offense and existing 
circumstances require immediate arrest. 

This statute does not restrict the arrest authority of a city 
or town peace officer to arrests for the violation of a city 
ordinance. In State v. McDole, 226 Mont. 169, 734 P.2d 683, 
685 ( 1987), a Eureka city police officer arrested McDole for 
driving under the influence of alcohol in violation of a state 
law, MCA § 61-8-401. McDole argued on appeal that his arrest 
was illegal because it was made outside the Eureka city limits 
and without an arrest warrant. He argued that because the City 
of Eureka could not produce an ordinance authorizing its police 
officers to make arrests within five miles of the city limits 
in accordance with MCA S 7-3:2-4301, the police officer '#las 
without authority to arrest him. The Court held that McDole's 
arrest was proper because the officer had authority to make a 
warrantless arrest outside his jurisdiction in his capacity as 
a private citizen. In the McDole opinion, the Court noted, in 
dicta: 

There is no question that Mr. McDole's arrest would 
have been legal under S 46-6-40l(l)(d), MCA, [now MCA 
s 46-6-311(1)] if that arrest had been made within the 
Eureka city limits. Section 46-6-40l(l)(d), MCA, 
provides: 

"A peace officer may arrest a person when: ... (d) he 
believes on reasonable gounds that the person is 
committing an offense or that the person has committed 
an offense and the existing circumstances require his 
immediate arrest." 

Montana .Z\.dminist!:ative Register 15-8/12/':!3 
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The hit and run accident in particular, as well as 
the reported erratic driving, clearly required Mr. 
McDole • s immediate arrest in order to prevent his 
getting in additional accidents and possibly seriously 
injuring someone. In addition, the preservation of 
Mr. McDole's blood alcohol content required his 
immediate arrest. 

( Citation omitted.) The reasoning of the Court supports my 
conclusion that, similarly, a city or town police officer has 
the authority to arrest an individual who violates state laws 
prohibiting breach of the peace if the arr8st is made within 
the territorial jurisdiction of the officer and the existing 
circumstances require the individual's immediate arrest. MCA 
S 46-6-311. See also MCA § 46-6-210 (a peace officer may arrest 
a person when the officer has a warrant commanding that the 
person be arrested or when he believes on reasonable grounds 
that a warrant for the person's arrest has been issued). 

Your second question concerns whether there is a statutory 
minimum number of officers that must be maintained in either a 
police or sheriff's department. Montana Code Annotated S 7-
32-4101 requires that "[t]here shall be in every city and town 
of this state a police department which shall be organized, 
managed, and controlled as provided in this part." The statutes 
regarding the municipal police force also specifically refer to 
the chief of police, and include among the chief's duties the 
duty "to have charge and control of all policemen, subject to 
such rules as may be prescribed by ordinance." MCA S 7-32-4105 
(1991). MCA S 7-32-4106(1} expressly gives the city council 
power to set the number of members of a police force, stating: 

The city council shall have absolute and exclusive 
power to determine and limit the number of police 
officers and members to comprise the police force of 
any city, to reduce the number of the police force at 
any time, and to divide the police membership into two 
lists: 

{a) one an active 1 ist, who are to be actual! y 
employed and receive pay while so employed; and 

{b) one an eligible list, who shall not receive pay 
while not actually employed as an officer or member. 

Reading and construing these statutes as a whole, as I must, 
Crist v. segna, 191 Mont. 210, 212, 622 P.2d 1028, 1029 (1981), 
I reach the same conclusion reached years ago when the Montana 
Suprema Court analy~ed substantially similar statutes: 

The office of chief of police is required to be 
maintained. The subordinate offices need not be. 
They are created to meet the needs of the city; and 
if out of the necessities of any given case a 
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reduction in the number of members of the force 
becomes imperative, patrolmen may be relegated to the 
eligible list[ . ] 

State ex rel. Dwyer v. Duncan, 49 Mont. 54, 59, 140 P. 95, 97 
( 1914) . Each city or town must have a chief of police; no 
further police officers are requireO. 

My conclusion is similar with regard to a minimum number of 
members required in a sheriff's department. The constitution 
and statutes clearly contemplate the election of a county 
sheriff. Mont. Const. art. XI, S 2; MCA SS 7-4-2203, 7-4-3001, 
7-32-2101 to -2145. Additionally, "[t]he sheriff, as soon as 
possible after he enters upon the duties of his office, must, 
except in counties of the seventh class, appoint some person 
undersheriff to hold during the pleasure of the sheriff. Such 
undersheriff has the same powers and duties as a deputy 
sheriff." MCA § 7-32-2102(1) (1991). None of the other 
statutes regarding the power and authority of the sheriff to 
organize the department require the appointment of further 
officers. see MCA SS 7-32-2104 to -2145 (1991). I therefore 
conclude that each county sheriff, except those in counties of 
the seventh class, must appoint an undersheriff. No other 
deputy sheriffs are required by law. 

Finally, you have requested my opinion on the issue of whether 
the sheriff is required to enforce all county and state laws 
everywhere within the county, without regard to city or town 
boundaries. The duties of the sheriff include the duties to 
preserve the peace, arrest all persons who have committed a 
public offense, and prevent and suppress all breaches of the 
peace. MCA S 7-32-2121(1), (2), and (3) (1991). The sheriff 
is a county officer and his authority extends over the entire 
county, and includes all municipalities and townships within 
the county. State v. Williams, 144 S.W.2d 98, 104 (Mo. 1940) 
(en bane); 80 C.J.S. Sheriffs and Constables S 36, at 205. 
Nonetheless, it is often customary far a sheriff to leave local 
policing to local enforcement officers. While the sheriff may, 
in che absence of information t~ the contrary, assume that a 
local police department will do its duty in enforcing the law, 
the primary duty of such enforcement is the sheriff's and cannot 
be altered by custom. ~ 

If the sheriff has reason to believe that the police 
force is neglecting its duty it is his duty to inform 
himself. And if he knows that the police are ignoring 
or permitting offenses his duty to prevent and 
suppress such offenses is the same as it would be if 
there was no municipality and no police force. 

Williams, 144 s.W.2d at 105. I therefore conclude that the 
sheriff has the primary duty to enforce county and state laws 
throughout the county. If local enforcement is lacking, the 
sheriff must undertake such enforcement. 
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THEREFORE, IT IS MY OPINION: 

1. !1ontana Code Annotated S 7-32-4302 authorizes, but 
does not require, a city or town to enact ordinances 
to prevent acts or conduct calculated to disturb the 
public peace. 

2. A city or town police officer acting within the 
officer's territorial jurisdiction may arrest a person 
for a violation of state law prohibiting offenses 
against public order regardless of whether the city 
or town bas exercised its power to adopt an ordinance 
prohibiting breaches of the peace. 

3. Each city or town must have a chief of police; no 
further police officers are required. Each county 
sheriff, except those in counties of the seventh 
class, must appoint an undersheriff. No other deputy 
sheriffs are required by law. 

4. The sheriff has the primary duty to enforce county 
and state laws throughout the county. If local 
enforcement is lacking, the sheriff must undertake 
such enforcement. 
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VOLUME NO. 45 OPINION NO. 10 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST Exercise Of separation option in 
collective bargaining agreement by public official; 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST - What constitutes "substantial financial 
interest" under code of ethics for public officers and 
employees; 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST - What constitutes "substantial financial 
transaction" under code of ethics for public officers and 
employees; 
PUBLIC OFFICERS - Exercise of separation option in collective 
bargaining agreement by public official; 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION - Exercise of separation option in 
collective bargaining agreement by commissioner; 
MONTANA CODE ANNOTATED - Title 69, chapter 14; sections 2-2-
101 to -132, 2-2-104, 2-2-121(2), 2-16-501; 
MONTANA CONSTITUTION - Article XIII, section 4; 
OPINIONS OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL - 40 Op. Att 'y Gen. No. 28 
(1983), 38 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 55 (1979), 37 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 
179 ( 1978), 37 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 104 ( 1978). 

HELD: A Public Service Commissioner does not violate the 
code of ethics for public officials and employees by 
temporarily reactivating and then terminating his 
employment with a railroad company in order to become 
eligible to receive a severance payment negotiated 
between the railroad and the collective bargaining 
unit to which the commissioner belongs. 

Mr. Danny Oberg 
Commissioner 
Public Service Commission 
P.O. Box 202601 
Helena, M~ 59620-2601 

Dear Commissioner Oberg: 

July 26, 1993 

You have requested an Attorney General's Opinion concerning the 
propriety of a Public Service Commissioner temporarily 
reactivating his employment with a railroad company in order to 
become eligible for a severance payment negotiated between the 
railroad and the union to which the commissioner belongs. Your 
question is whether, if the commissioner chooses to accept the 
railroad's severance offer, he becomes ineligible to retain his 
public office. 

For purposes of this response, I assume the following facts, 
stated in your letter of inquiry: The Burlington Northern 
Railroad [BN] and the United Transportation Union [UTU] recently 
entered into a collective bargaining agreement under the terms 
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of which BN will reduce its train crew sizes in exchange for 
granting severance payment to those employees who agree to 
terminate their employment with the railroad (referred to in the 
agreement as "voluntary separation"). Since assuming office in 
1983, you have been on leave of absence from your employment 
with BN but retain your seniority as a railroad 
brakeman/conductor. As a member of the UTU bargaining unit, you 
are eligible to receive this severance payment by temporarily 
reactivating your employment with BN for one eight-hour work 
shift. It is my understanding that these conditions for payment 
have now been met and, upon execution of a voluntary separation 
release agreement, your employment with the railroad has been 
terminated. 

The Montana Public Service Commission [Commission] has general 
supervision of all railroads engaged in the transportation of 
passengers or property in the state. MCA §§ 69-14-102 and -111. 
In that capacity, the Commission is authorized to investigate: 

alleged neglect or violation of the laws by any railroad 
or its officers or agents; 

railroad accidents resulting in injury, death, or 
destruction of property greater in value than $2000; and 

rates, classifications or rules for transportation of 
freight by any railroad within the state. 

MCA SS 69-14-112 and -114. Under state law, the Commission also 
has some authority concerning railroad safety, MCA S 69-14-115; 
rates, MCA SS 69-14-301 to -322; highway crossings, MCA 
SS 69-14-606 and -607; loading platforms and spurs, MCA 
SS 69-14-801 to -814; and other duties relating to the operation 
of railroads in the state of Montana. Despite these seemingly 
broad powers, the Commission has limited oversight of the 
day-to-day operations of railroads in Montana; federal law 
governs most significant matters related to int~state railroad 
operations and has preempted much of the state's law in the 
area. 1 

Your question requires an examination of the relationship 
between your duties as a public service commissioner and your 
rights as a BN employee and member of the UTU-rapresented 
bargaining unit. 

It has long been recognized in Montana that a public office is 
"created in the interest and for the benefit of the public." 
State ex rel. Bell v. McCullough, 85 Mont. 435, 438, 279 P. 246 
( 1929). Thus: 

1See. e.g., Burlington Northern R.R. v. State of Montana, 
815 F. Supp. 1522 (D. Mont. 1992); Burlington Northern v. state 
of Montana, 880 F.2d 1104 (9th Cir. 1989). 
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"An incumbent of a public office is invested with 
certain powers and charged with certain duties 
pertinent to sovereignty. The powers so delegated to 
the officer are held in trust for the people and are 
to be exercised in behalf of the government or of all 
citizens who may need the intervention of the officer. 

Public officers, in other words, are but the 
servants of the people, and not their rulers. They 
are amenable to the rule which forbids an agent or 
trustee to place himself in such an attitude toward 
his principal or cestui que trust as to have his 
interest conflict with his duty." 

state ex rel. Grant v. Eaton, 114 Mont. 199, 206, 133 P.2d 588, 
591 (1943) (citation omitted). Stated generally, "An officer 
cannot lawfully act as the agent of one person where the private 
agency would come in conflict with his official duties." State 
ex rel. Bell, 85 Mont. at 438, 279 P. at 247. See also State 
ex rel. Hollibaugh v. State Fish & Game Comm•n, 139 Mont. 384, 
394, 365 P.2d 942, 948 (1961); State ex rel. Bonner v. District 
Court of 1st Jud. Dist., 122 Mont. 464, 470, 206 P.2d 166, 169 
( 1949). 

These authorities correspond with the "long-standing common law 
doctrine that the faithful performance of official duties is 
best secured if a governmental officer, like any other person 
holding a fiduciary position, is not called upon to make 
decisions that may advance or injure his individual interest." 
Brown v. Kirk, 355 N.E.2d 12, 15 (Ill. 1976). The doctrine has 
its genesis in the principle that no one may serve two masters, 
"a maxim which is especially pertinent if one of the masters 
happens to be economic self- interest."' United States v. 
Mississippi Valley Generating Co., 364 U.S. 520, 549 (1961). 

To codify this principle, article XIII, section 4 of the Montana 
Constitution directs the Legislature to "provide a code of 
ethics prohibiting conflict between public duty and private 
interest" tor public officers and elllployees.' In response to 
this mandate, the 1977 Legislature enacted a set of standards 
governing the conduct of all public officials. MCA SS 2-2-101 
to ~132. Based on the concept that ''[t]he holding of public 

'There is no constitutional provision specifically 
concerning the receipt of private compensation while holding 
public office. Article VI, section 5(2) of the Montana 
Constitution speaks only to the prohibition against holding dual 
offices or receiving compensation from more than one 
governmental agency. see 43 op. Att'y Gen. No. 32 at 93 (1989). 
The Constitutional Convention transcripts indicate that the 
framers intended, through art. XIII, § 5, to entrust the 
Legislature with the task of delineating the circumstances under 
which receipt of private compensation would be prohibited. See 
IV Mont. Const. Conv. 796 (1972). 
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office or employment is a public trust,'' MCA § 2-2-103( l), the 
code of ethics recognizes "that some actions are conflicts per 
se between public duty and private interest while other actions 
may or may not pose such conflicts depending upon the 
surrounding circumstances," MCA § 2-2-101. Thus, "it is 
necessary to look at each particular transaction or relationship 
in conjunction with the surrounding circumstances before a 
determination can be made as to whether or not a breach has 
occurred." 37 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 104 at 431, 434 (1978). 

Montana Code Annotated S 2-2-104{1) enumerates certain actions 
which constitute a breach of fiduciary duty if performed by any 
public officer. It provides in part: 

A public officer, legislator, or employee may not: 

(b) accept a gift of substantial value or a 
substantial economic benefit tantamount to a gift: 

(i) which would tend improperly to influence a 
reasonable person in his position to depart from the 
faithful and impartial discharge of his public duties; 
or 

(ii) which he knows or which a reasonable person in 
his position should know under the circumstances is 
primarily for the purpose of rewarding him for 
official action he has taken. 

Although the term "gift" is not defined by statute, an "economic 
benefit tantamount to a gift" includes "compensation received 
for private services rendered at a rate substantially exceeding 
the fair market value of such services.·• MCA S 2-2-104(2). 
Severance pay is not an uncommon feature of union contracts and 
in this case has been offered to a large class of BN employees 
of which you are a member. Rather than compensation for 
services, severance pay connotes payment "beyond [an employee's] 
wages on termination of his employment." Black • s Law Dictionaty 
1232 (5th ed. 1979). Since the severance payment is part of a 
negotiated agreement and supported by consideration--here the 
surrender of accrued seniority and entitlement to 
reemployment--it does not appear to constitute a "gift" within 
the meaning of MCA S 2-2-104.' 

Under MCA S 2-2-121(2), a state officer or employee may not: 

'For the same reason, conclude that, under the 
circumstances presented, your conduct does not violate MCA S 69-
1-112, prohibiting acceptance by public service commissioners 
of gifts or favors from railroads. 
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(b) engage in a substantial financial transaction for 
his private business purposes with a person whom he 
inspects or supervises in the course of his official 
duties; 

(e) perform an official act directly and 
substantially affecting to its economic benefit a 
business or other undertaking in which he either has 
a substantial financial interest or is engaged as 
counsel, consultant, representative, or agent; or 

(f) solicit or accept employment, or engage in 
negotiations or meetings to consider employment, with 
a person whom he regulates in the course of his 
official duties without first giving written 
notification to his supervisor and department 
director. 

As a preliminary matter, it must be determined whether your 
termination of employment and acceptance of a severance payment 
constitute a "substantial financial transaction·• for your 
''private business purposes" within the meaning of section 
2-2-l21(2)(b). I am of the opinion that you have not engaged 
in a t'inanc1al transaction with BN as contemplated by the ethics 
code. 

The collective bargaining agreement was negotiated between BN 
and UTU. As a member of the affected bargaining unit, you are 
represented by the union and therefore bound by the agreement. 
Under the Railway Labor Act, 45 u.s.c. §§ 151 to 188, a 
representative chosen to act on behalf of the railroad employees 
is the exclusive agent for collective bargaining purposes; as 
a member of the employee unit, you are precluded from bargaining 
~ndividually on behalf of yourself as to matters which are 
properly the subject of collective bargaining. Steele v. 
Louisville & N. R.R., 323 u.s. 192, 200 (1944); see also Del 
Costello v. International Broth. of Teamsters, 462 u.s. 151, 164 
n.l4 (1983). "'The very purpose of providing by statute for the 
collective agreement is to supersede the terms of separate 
agreements of employees with terms which reflect the strength 
and bargaining power and serve the welfare of the group. Its 
benefits and advantages are open to every employee of the 
represented unit.'" ~' 323 U.S. at 200 (quoting J.I. Case 
co. v. National Labor Relations Bd., 321 u.s. 332, 338 (1944)). 
Ne~ther you nor any other employee was entitled to individual 
dealings or discussions with BN during the negotiation process. 
As the agreement is the product of the negotiations conducted 
by his representative, no employee is at liberty to modify its 
terms. The "transaction," within the meaning of tbe statute, 
is the transaction between UTU and BN. 
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In short, by accepting the offered severance payment, you have 
not engaged in a financial transaction with the railroad within 
the contemplation of the code of ethics. The substantive 
transaction occurred between UTU and BN. By exercising your 
right as a member of the represented unit to receive severance 
pay in return for surrender of your accrued seniority, you have 
not engaged in a distinct "financial transaction for ... private 
business purposes" with the railroad; instead you have merely 
exercised an entitlement which is contained in a labor agreement 
negotiated by a collective bargaining representative for the 
benefit of a substantial group of employees. The conflict of 
interest against which MCA § 2-2-121(2) (b) prot"ects does not 
exist since there is no direct or indirect dealing over the 
involved compensation between the public official as an 
individual and the supervised entity. 

Likewise, I am of the op~n~on that you do not have a 
"substantial financial interest" in the railroad company, within 
the meaning of MCA § 2-2-121(2)(e), by virtue of your severance 
payment. "Financial interest" is defined to include: 

(a) an ownership interest in a business; 
(b) a creditor interest in an insolvent business; 
(c) an employment or prospective employment for which 

negotiations have begun; 
(d) an ownership interest in real or personal 

property; 
(e) a loan or other debtor interest; or 
(f) a directorship or officership in a business. 

Although you have had an employment interest with BN, that 
relationship has been severed, and there is no on9oing financial 
relationship between you and the railroad. Moreover, 
subsection (e) is tailored to the prohibition of particular 
official actions and may be applied only on a case-by-case 
basis. It does not apply as a general prohibition against 
holding public office, but serves to prohibit an official from 
taking action on a matter in which he has a substantial personal 
interest. See 40 op. Att'y Gen. No. 28 at 108 (1983), 38 Op. 
Att'y Gen. No. 55 at 190 (1979), 37 Op. Att'y Gen. No. 179 at 
752 ( 1978).' 

Finally, i. t is my opinion that the circumstances you have 
described do not violate MCA § 2-2-121(2)(f) since, even if your 
actions constitute the acceptance of employment, the statute 

'Voluntary disclosure of a substantial financial interest 
will excuse a potential violation of the ethics code only as 
provided in MCA § 2-2-121(3), where the official is a member of 
a quasi-judicial or rulemaking board (which would include the 
Commission) and his participation is necessary to obtain a 
quorum or to enable the body to act. 40 op. Att'y Gen. No. 28 
at 114 ( 1983). 
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only requires written notification to your "supervisor and 
department director." Since the Commission is the director of 
the Department of Public service Regulation, MCA § 2-15-2601, 
notice to your fellow commissioners was adequate to comply with 
the terms of section 2-2-121(2)(f). 

In sum, the circumstances described in your inquiry do not 
present a situation in which you, as a public official, are at 
risk of advancing your own interests at the expense of the 
public welfare. Conflict of interest laws are designed "to 
prevent honest government agents from succumbing to temptation 
by making it illegal for them to enter into relationships which 
are fraught with temptation." United Statal ¥. Mississippi 
Valley Generating Co., ~· 364 u.s. at 550. The termination 
of your employment with the railroad and acceptance of a 
severance payment negotiated by the union on behalf of an entire 
class of employees do not constitute tlle kind of private 
relationship contemplated by the code of ethics which would 
threaten the integrity of your position. The situation simply 
presents no opportunity for you to use the influence you exert 
in your official position to further your own personal gain.' 

Aside from issues concerning conflict of interest, I have also 
considered whether your temporary reactivation of employment and 
acceptance of severance pay constitute a vacancy in your office 
and conclude they do not. Generally speaking, a public officer 
is not prohibited from engaging in another occupation during his 
term of office, unless expressly prohibited by law from doing 
so. 57 c.J.S. Officers and Employees S 203, at 665 (1978). 
Although a public service commissioner may be removed from 
office for failing to perform his duties, MeA S 69-1-113, there 
is no statute prohibiting him from engaging in any other 
employment. Like other state offices, the office becomes vacant 
"on the happening of any one of the following events before the 
expiration of thQ term of the incumbent:" 

(1) the death of the incumbent; 
( 2) a determination pursuant to Title 53, chapter 21, 

part 1, that he is seriously mentally ill; 
(3) his resignation; 
(4) his removal from office; 
(5) his ceasing to be a resident of the state or, if 

the office be local, of the ctistrict, city, 
county, town, or township for which ha was chosan 
or appointed or within which tha duties of his 
office are required to be dischargad; 

'r am not asked to, and do not, express any opinion 
concerning the propriety of your taking a leave of absence from 
employment with BN when you assumed office, particularly since 
that employment relationship has now been terminated. 
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(6) his absence from the state, without the 
permission of the legislature, beyond the period 
allowed by law; 

(7) his ceasing ~o discharge the duty of his office 
for the period of 3 consecutive months, except 
when prevented by sickness or when absent from 
the state by permission of the legislature; 

( 8) his conviction of a felony or of any offense 
involving moral turpitude or a violation of his 
official duties; 

(9) his refusal or neglect to file his official oath 
or bond within the time prescribed; 

(10) the decision of a competent tribunal declaring 
void his election or appointment. 

MCA S 2-16-501. None of these events has occurred in this case, 
and I conclude therefore that your actions have not resulted in 
a vacancy within the Public Service Commission. 

Since the attorney general's author! ty to issue opinions is 
limited solely to questions of law, MCA S 2-15-501(6), I do not 
resolve any issues raised by your request that require a factual 
determination. 

In conclusion, it is my opinion that your actions in qualifying 
for receipt of a severance payment under the terms of a 
collective bargaining agreement do not constitute a breach of 
your fiduciary duty or effect a vacancy in your office. 
Obviously, this determination does not affect the ability of a 
party to an administrative proceeding to raise an issue of 
disqualification, if otherwise appropriate, under MCA 
s 2-4-611(4). 

THEREFORE, IT IS MY OPINION: 

A Public Service Commissioner does not violate the code ot 
ethics for public officials and employees by temporarily 
reactivating and then terminating his employment with a 
railroad company in order to become eligible to receive a 
severance payment negotiated between the railroad and the 
collective bargaining unit to which the commissioner 
belongs. 

tt"' , .. ,~ 
tto ney General 

jpm/esb/dlh 
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NOTICE OF FQNCTXONS OF APMINISTIATIVB CQDE CQMHIITEE 

The Administrative Code Committee reviews all proposals for 

adoption of new rules, amendment or repeal of existing rules 

filed with the Secretary of State, except rules proposed by the 

Department of Revenue. Proposals of the Department of Revenue 

are reviewed by the Revenue Oversight Committee. 

The Administrative Code Committee has the authority to make 

recommendations to an agency regarding the adoption, alllen~ent, 

or repeal of a rule or to request that the agency prepare a 

statement of the estimated economic impact of a proposal. In 

addition, the Committee may poll the members of the Legislature 

to dete:onine if a proposed rule is consistent with the intent of 

the Legislature or, during a legislative session, introduce a 

bill repealing a rule, or directing an agency to adopt or amend 

a rule, or a Joint Resolution recommending that an agency adopt 

or alllend a rule. 

The Committee welcomes comments from the pu.blie and invites 

members of the public to appear before it or to send it written 

statemeats in order to bring to the Comadttea's attention any 

diffieulties with the existing or proposed rules. The address 

is Room 138, Montana State Capitol, Helena, Montana 59620. 
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HOW 1'0 USB 'l'BE AOMINISTRATIVIi: RULES OF MOI!ITANA AHD THE 
MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER 

Definitions: Administrati~e Rules of Montana <ARM! is a 
looseleaf compilation by department of all rules 
of state departments and attached boards 
presently in effect, except rules adopted up to 
chree ~onths pre~iously. 

Montapa Administrative Register <KARl is a soft 
back, bound publication, issued twice-monthly, 
containing notices of rules proposed by agencies, 
notices of rules adopted by agencies, and 
interpretations of statutea and rulea by the 
attorney general (Attorney General's Opinions) 
and agenciea (Declaratory Rulings) isaued since 
publication of the preceding regiater. 

Use of the Administrative Rules gf Montana (ARM!: 

Known 
Subject 
Matter 

Statute 
Number and 
Departlllent 

1. Conault ARM topical index. 
Update the rule by checking the accumulative 
table and the table of contents in the last 
Montana Administrative Register issued. 

2. Go to cross reference table at end of each 
title which lists MCA :;oection numbers and 
corresponding ARM rule numbers. 
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ACCUMOLATIVE TABLE 

The AdministratiYe Rules of Montana (ARM) is a compilation of 
existing permanent rules of those executive agencies which have 
been designated by the Montana Administrative Procedure Act for 
inclusion in the UM. The ARM is updated through 
March 31, 1993. This table includes those rules adopted during 
the period April 1, 1993 through June 3.0, 1993 and any proposed 
rule action that is pending during the past 6 month period. (A 
notice of adoption must be published within 6 months of the 
published notice of the proposed rule.) This table does not, 
however, include the contents of this issue of the Montana 
Adm±AistratiYe Register (MAR). 

To be cu:rrent on proposed and adopted rulezllaking, it is 
necessary to check the ARM updated through Ma:rch 31, 1993, this 
table and the table of contents of this issue of the MAR. 

This table indicates the department name, title number, rule 
numbers in ascending order, catchphrase or the subject matter of 
the rule and the page number at which the action is published in 
the 1992 and 1993 Montana Administrative Registers. 

ADMINISTRATION. Department of. Title 2 

2.21.908 and other rules - Disability and Maternity Leave -
Sick Leave - Parental LeaV1f for State :&:lllployees, 
p. 827, 2372 

(Public Employees' Retir~t Board) 
I-II Establisbment and Implementation of Family Law Orders 

Splitting and Paying Montana Public Retirement 
Benefits, p. 1580 

I-V Retirement Incentive Progrllllt Provided by BB 517, 
p. 742 

I-V Emergency Adoption of Rul-. on the Retirement 
Incentive Window for Certain PERS Members, p. 933 

2.43.418 Accrual and Payment of Inter.et for Previous Periods 
of Elected Service, p. 496, 1199 

2. 43.609 Funding Available for Post-RetirU~ent Adjustments, 
p. 359, 1200 

2.43.612 and other rules - Certifying ~u.a.l Benefit Payments 
for Distributing Lump SWil. Benefit Increases to 
Montana Resident Retirees, p. 1900, 2721 

(Teachers' Retirement Board) 
I-II Implementing the Provisions of SB 173 Pertaining to 

the Establishlnent and Implementation of Family Law 
Orders, p. 1584 

2.44.201 and other rules Adopting the Current Model 
Procedure Rules - Updating the Calculation of Part­
Time Service • Clarifying the Retirement Effective 
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Date - Correcting Benefit Amount Quoted - Requiring 
Copies of Member's Contracts be Submitted When 
Applying for Retirement Benefits Clarifying 
Investment Earning Available for Post Retirement 
Adjustments - Implementing Amendments to SB 226 
Adopted by the First 1992 Special Legislative Session 
Relating to the Teachers' Retirement System, p. 492, 
1201 

(State Compensation Mutual Insurance Fund) 
2.55.101 and other ~es - Organization of the State Fund -

Open Meetings Establishment of Premium Rates, 

2.55.320 

2.55.324 

p. 748, 1635 
and other rule 
Classification., 
Industry Premium 
and other rules 
p. 1, 340 

Method for Assignment of 
of Employments Construction 

Credit Program, p. 970, 1485 
- Establishment of Premium Rates, 

AGRICULTURE· Department of. Title 4 

I-III and other rules Civil Penalties Relating to 
Beekeeping in Montana - Designating Regulated Bee 
Diseases Clarifying the Apiary Registration 
Forfeiture Procedure Restrictions on Apiary 
Registration, p. 1588 

I-IV and other rules - Importation of Mint Plants and 
Equi~ent Into Montana • Field Inspection - Mint Oil 
Fee, p. 750, 1637 

I-IX and other rules - Civil Penalties - Inspection Fees -
Assessment Fees - Produce Grades Relating to the 
Distribution of Produce in Montana - verification of 
Produce Grown in J(Ontana Co=aodi.ty Grade and 
Charges - Control of Apples - Grading of Cherries -
Wholesalers and Itinerant Merchants, p. 1163, 1636 

4.4.316 and other rules - Liability on all Crops - Time 
Policy Becomes Effective • cut Off Date, p, 361, 939 

4.12. 3007 and other rules • Civil Penalties Relating to the 
Distribution of Seed in Montana - Seed License Pees -
References to See4 Processing Plants - Seed Buyers 
and Seed Public Warehouses • Bonding of Seed Buyers 
and Seed Public ••rehouses, p. 972, 1486 

STATE AUDITOR. Title 6 

I-IV Prohibiting Unfair Discrimination for Previously· 
Uninsured P~sonal Automobile Insurance Applicants, 
p. 2436, 674 

6. 6. 502 and other rule• - Medicare Supplement Insurance, 
p. 979, 1481 
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(Classification and Rating Committee) 
I-IX Temporary Rules on Matters Subject to Notice and 

Rearing Before the ClassificatiOil and Rating 
Committee, p. 1173, 1638 

COMKSRCE. Department of. Title 8 

(Board of Altexuative Health Care) 
I Direct Entry Midwife Education Standards, p. 2225, 

2722 
8.4.301 

8.4.301 

(Board of 
8.8.2801 
(Board of 
I 

8.12.601 

(Board of 
8.16.601 

8.17.702 

(Board of 
8.20.401. 

(Board of 
8.22.502 

8.22.612 

(Board of 
8.24.409 
(Board of 
I 

and other rules - Fees - Licensing by Examination -
Dir~t intry Midwife Apprenticeship Requirements -
O'nprofessiol:lal Conduct High Risk Conditions· 
Con6Ultation on Transfer Conditions Required 
Report~g. p. 1055, 1639 
and other rules Fees - Direct Entry Midwifery 
Apprenticeship, p. 2106, 2498 

Athletics) 
and other rules - Kickboxing, p. 363, 1109, 1320 

Chiropractors) 
and other rule - Interns and Preceptors - Fees -
Ap~ications, p. 1592 
and other rules Applications Reciprocity 
Reinstatement - Fees, p. 2674 

Dentistry) 
and other rules - Introduction - Dental Auxiliaries -
Kxa.s - Licensure by Credentials - O'nprofessional 
Conduct - Qualif-ying Standards - Dental Auxiliaries -
Denturist Interns, p. 2229, 393 
and other rules - Renewal - Continuing Education -
Continuing Education for the Practice of Dentistry, 
Dental Hygiene and Denturitry, p. 2236, 287 

Rear:!.~ lid Dispensers) 
and other rules - Traineeship Requirements - Fees -
Record Retention - Unethical Conduct - Complaints -
Disciplinary Actions Testing Procedures 
Continuing Educational Require111ents - Notification -
Definitions - Forms of Bills of Sale Contracts and 
P~ohase Agreements - Inactive Status, p. 197, 534 

Hor~ Racing) 
a114 other rules - Licenses Issued for Conducting 
Parimutuel Wagering Daily Double Feature 
Requirements of Licensee - Pool Calculations, p. 1595 
and other rule - Veterinarians: State or Practicing -
Trainers, p. 277, 535 

Landscape Architects) 
Fea Schedule, p. 325 

Medical E!xaminers) 
Practice of Acupuncture - Unprofessional Conduct, 
p. 4!t8, 1322 
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8.28.l.50l. 

8.28.1.505 
(Board of 
8.32.406 

(Board of 
3.34.41.4 

8.34.4l4 

(Boal:d of 
8.35.41.4 
(Board of 
!<C!I 

8.36.40l. 

(Board of 
8.39.502 
8.39.502 

8.39.503 
(Board of 
8.40.40l. 

(Board of 
8.44.41.2 
(Board of 
8.50.428 

(Board of 
8.54.407 

(Board of 
8.56.409 

(Board of 
8.57.40l. 

8.57.40l. 

-1953-

and other rules - Definitions - Utilization Plans 
Protocol Infonned Consent Prohibitions 
supervision • Prescriptions - Allowable Functions -
Revocation or Suspension of Approval -
Prescribing/Dispensing Authority - Scope of Practice 
- Termination and Transfer - Training of Physician 
Assistants, p. 2677, 341, 395 
Fees, p. 1784, 2375 

Nursing) 
and other rule Licensure for Foreign Nurses 
Prescribing Practices, p. 385, 1202 

Nursing Home Administrators) 
and other rule - Examinations - Reciprocity Lic@nses, 
p. 2686, 264, 396 
and other l.-ules Examinations Definition$ 
Applications, p. 1903, 2640 

Occupational Therapy Practice) 
Therapeutic Devices, p. 1598 

Optometrists) 
Surgery - Aspects of Surgery Prohibited • Anter:!.o,-
Segment Defined Optometrist's Role in Post· 
Operative Care, p. 2625, 398 
and other rules · Board Meetings - Applications for 
Examination - Examinations - Reciprocity - General 
Practice Requirements Fees Applicants for 
Licensure, p. 1447 

outfitters) 
Licensure • Outfitter Qualifications, p. 327 
and other rules Licensure Qualifications 
Applications Renewals Transfer of License, 
p. 1292, 2376 
Licensure - Outfitter ~!nation, p. 2688, 343 

Pha=acy) 
and other rules • Definitions • Patient Records -
Prospectiye Drug Review Patient Counseling, 
p. 2439, 293 

Plumbers) 
Fee Schedule, p. 2482, 141 

Private Security Patrol Officers & Investigators) 
and other rules - Experience Requirements - Insurance 
Requirements • Fees, p. 1450 

Public Accountants) 
Qualifications for a License as a Licensed Public 
Accountant, p. 1453 

Radiologic _Technologists) 
and other rules • Examinations - Renewals - Fees -
Permits - Permit Fees, p. 1455 

Real Estate Appraisers) 
and other rule Definitions E:xperi~ce 

Requirements, p. 501, 1642 
and other rule Definitions Ad Valorem Tax 
Appraisal Experience, p. 2443, 142 
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(Board of Realty Regulation) 
8.58.406A and other rules - Applications - Trust Accounts -

Continuing Education Unprofessional Conduct 
Property Management, p. 1063 

a. 58. 406A Application for License - Salesperson and Broker, 
p. 1545' 2274 

(Board of Respiratory Care Practitioners) 
8.59.501 and other rules - Applications - T~orary Permits • 

Renewals - Continuing Education, p. 1458 
(Board of Social Work Examiners and Professional Counselors) 
8.61.402 and other rule - Licensure ·Requira.ents for Social 

Workers and Professional Counselors, p. 92, 1325 
(Building Codes Bureau) 
8.70.101 Incorporation by Reference of Uniform Building Code. 

p. 2484, 146 
(Weights and Measures Bureau) 
8.77.102 and other rule· Fees for Testing and Certification­

License Fee Schedule for Weighing and Measuring 
Devices, p. 1077, 1501 

(Milk Control Bureau) 
8.79.301 Licensee Assessments, p. 95, 400 
(Financial Division) 
! Credit Unions, p. 1786, 2465 
S. so .101 and other rules - Banks - Reserve Requirements -

Investment in Corporate StocJr: Investments of 
Financial Institutions - L~itatioms on Loans • Loans 
to a Managing Officer, Officer, Director or Principal 
Shareholder - Corporate Credit Unions, p. 1599 

(Board of Milk Control) 
8.86.301 Emergency Amendment - Calculating the Class I Milk 

Paid to Milk Producers, p. 120~ 
8.86.301 Class I Producer Prices - Inter-Plant Hauling Rates, 

p. 329 
8.86.301 Regulating the Calculation of tbe Price of Class II 

and III Milk Paid to Milk Producerl!l Each Month, 
p. 1788, 2377 

(Local Government Assistance Division) 
I Administration of the Treasure State Bn~ent 

Program (TSEP), p. 2323, 2723 
8.94.3701 and other rules - 1985 and l!t86 Pedex"al CQJIIIIIUnity 

Develo~t Block Grant Program - Adminiatration of 
the 1993 Federal Community Development Block Grant 
Program, p. 205, 536 

8. 94.4102 Report Filing Pees Paid by Local Government Entities 
Under the Montana Single Audit Act, p. 755, 1328 

{Board of Investments) 
I·XXI and othex- rules • Municipal Finance Consolidation Act 

- Rules Implementing the INTERCAP Program, p. 1715, 
2275 

8.97.1301 and other rules 
Approval Procedures 
p. 1247 
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(Aeronautics Division) 
8.106.101 and other rules • Transfer of Aeronautics and Board 

of Aeronautics Rules from Department of Commerce to 
Department of Transportation, p. 2551 

(Board of Aeronautics) 
8.107.101 and other rules • Transfer of Aeronautics and Board 

of Aeronautics Rules tram Department of Commerce to 
Department of Transportation, p. 2551 

(Board of Housing) 
8.111.405 and other rule • Income Limits and Loan Allleunts · 

Ca8h Advances Reverse Annuity Mortgage Loan 
Provisions, p. 503, 1207 

(Science and Technology Development Board) 
I-V Seed Capital Project Loans to Venture Capital 

Companies, p. 1791, 2643 
(Montana State Lottery) 
8.127.101 Organizational Rule - Retailer Commission · Sales 

Staff Incentive Plan, p. 2486, 401 

(Superintendent of Public Instruction) . 
10.6.101 and other rules · School Controversy Contested Cases 

Rules of Procedure, p. 2110, 344 
10.16.901 and other rules · Special Education, p. 757 
10.41.101 and other rules · Vocational Education General Rules, 

p. 1795, 296 
(Board of Public Education) 
10. 51.104 and other rule · Responsibility Assigned by Statute 

10.55.601 
10.56.101 
10.57.21:!. 
10.57.404 

Board Staff, p. 1451, 2727 
Accreditation Standards: Procedures, p. 2690, 682 
Student A8ses5ment, p. 2693, 683 
Test for Teacher Certification, p. 1463 
Teacher Certification · Class 4 VocatioPal Education, 
p. 387' 940 

10.64.301 and other rules · Transportation - DefinitioPs · Bus 
Chassis - Bus Body · Special Educatio~> Vehicle · LP 
Gas Motor Fuel Installation - General - Application -
•· Special Equipment, p. 207, 684 

(State Library Commission) 
10.101.101 Organization of the State Library Agency, 1461 

FAMILY SERVICES. DeRtrtment of. Title 11 

I 
11.2.401 

ll.S.l002 
ll.7.313 

15.8/12/93 

Qualifications of Respite Care Providers, p. 1251 
and other rule · Local Service Areas · Local Youth 
Services Advisory Councils, p. 1831, 2501 
and other rule Disclosure of Case Records 
Containing Reports of Child Abuse or Neglect, 
p. 1829, 2378 
Day Care Rates, p. 1908, ~379 

Foster Care Payaents, p. 589, 1208 

Montana Administrative Register 



11.7.313 

11.7.601 

11.12.101 
11.12.101 

11.12.101 

11.12.401 
11.14.102 

11.14.103 

11.14.605 
11.17.101 

11.18.107 

11.18.125 

-1956-

Deta:onination of Daily Rates for Youth Care 
Facilities, p. 2627, 147 
and other ru1es • Youth Care Facilities · Foster Care 
Support Services, p. 1086, 1505 
and other rules · Youth Care Facilities, p. 1079, 
1506 
Definition of Youth, p. 591, 1209 
and other rules - Maternity !lomas Licensed as Youth 
Care Facilities, p. 102, 403 
and other rules - Youth Care Faci1ities, p. 2325, 
2728 
Administ~ation of Youth Group Kames, p. 812 
and other rules - Family and Group Day Care Homes 
Providing Care ODly to Infants • Day Ca~e Facility 
Registration for Certain In-Home Providers for the 
Purpose of Receiving State Paymeat, p. 97, 941 
and other rules - Day care Facility Licensing and 
Registration Requirements, p. 333, 1210 
State Paymant for Day Care Services, p. 279, 541 
and other rules Youth Detention Facilities, 
p. 1.813, 2645 
and other rules - Licensing of community Homes for 
the DevelOpmentally and Physically Disabled, p. 741, 
1197, 2277 
and other rule - COlltlllUDity Homes for Persons with 
Developlllental Disabilities Community Homes for 
Per&Ons who are Severely Disabled, p. 2630, 149 

fiSH. WILDLIFE. AND PARJS. Departmapt of. Title 12 

I·VI 

I-XII 
12.3.402 
12.5.301 

12.6.904 

Development of State Parks aDd Fishing Access Sites, 
p. 1841, 2382 
and other rules • Falconry, .p. 1833, 2381 
License Re~s. p. 105, 951, 1330 
Yellow Perch as Nongame Species in Need .of 
Managamaat, p. 389, 953 
Closure of Flint Creek Below the D~, p. 1844, 2380 

!IEALTI AND EmZ,UONMENTAL SCXENCI$. D!Q2Ut:ment o;f. Title 16 

I-VI Establishing Proc~ures for Local Water Quality 
District Program Approval • Procedures for Granting 
Entoree.ent Authority to Local Water Quality 
Districts, p. 2445, 543 

I-XXXIV and other rules Air Quality Air Quality 
Permitting - Prevention of Significant Deterioration 
- Permitting in Nonattainment Areas - Source Testing 

Protocol and Procedure Wood Waste Burners, 
p. 1264 

16.8.1004 &lUI. other rules - Incorporating Federal Regulatory 
Ch&Dges for the Air Quality Bureau, p. 2243, 2741 
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16.8.1307 and other X"Ule• • Air Quality • Open Burning Permit 
Fees for Conditional and Emergency Open Burning 
Permits, p. 1732, 2285, 2743 

16.8.1903 Air Quality · Pe~it Fees, p. 1730, 2390 
16.14.406 Solid and Ha~ardous Waste - Disposal Fees for Solid 

Waste, p. 1318 
16.14. 501 and other X"Ules · Solid Waste Management, p. 814, 

1645 
16.16.803 SUbdiYisions • Subdivision Review Fees for RV Parks 

and Campgrounds, p. 283, 542 
16.24 .104 Children's Special Health SerYices !ligibili ty 

Requirements for the Children's Speeial Health 
Services Program, p. 1262 

15.23.':'01 and other :rules - School Immunization Requiremen':s, 
p. 505, 1214 

15.2 8 .1005 Tuberculosis Coiltrol Requil;ements for Employeez cf 
Schools and Day Care Facilities, p. 1303, 2744 

16.32.302 Llcensing and Certification - Updating hferences to 
National Construction Codes, p. 1178, 1658 

16.42. 302 and other rules Occupational and Radiological 
Health · Asbestos Abatement Requirements · Permit -
Accreditation Course Pees Remedies for 
Violations, p. 215, 549 . 

16.44.102 and other rules - Ha~ardous Waste • Exportation of 
Hazardous Waste HSWA Cluster I Regulations. 
p. 2330, 2750 

16.44.102 and other rules • Solid and Hazardous Waste • Boiler 
and Industrial Furnace (BIP) Regu1ationg, p. 2567, 
445. 1911, 2502 

. 16.44,106 and other rules - Solid and Ha~ardous Waste -
Regulation of Hazardous Waste Facilities and 
Generators Identification of Hazardous Waste, 
p. 232, 555 

16.44.125 and other rules - Hazardous Waste · Facility Permit 
Pees - Ha~ardous waste Management - AttoD:~ey' s Pees 
in Court Action Concerning Release oe· aecords, 
p. 1254 

1.6.44.202 and other rule :Hazardous Waste Ul:lderground 
Injection Wells, p. 1608 

T&ANSPO&TATIQN. Departm"Pt of. Title 18 

18.12.101 and other rules · Transfer of Aeronautice and Board 
of Aeronautics Rules from Department of Commerce to 
Department of Transportation, p. 2551 

CO&RECTIQNS AND HUMAN SERVICES. Department of, Title 20 

20.3.413 and other rules - Certificatioil Syste. for Chemical 
Dependency Personnel, p. 2633, 151 

20.7.201 and other rules- Resident Reimbursement at C~unity 
Correctional Centers, p. 1454. 2286 
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20.14.302 

(Board of 
20.25.101 

-1958-

and other rulea Application for Voluntary 
Admiaaions to the Montana State Hospital, p. 979, 
1483. 2287 

Pardons) 
and other rules - Revision of the Rules of the Board 
of Pardons, p. 2639, 297 

JOSTICB. Department of. Title 23 

I Issuance of Seasonal Commercial Driver• s License, 
p. 1610 . 

I Affidavit Form for an Indigence Piaancial Statellleilt, 
p. 1465 

I Drug Abuse Resistance Education (DARE) Trust Fund, 
p. 2452, 12 

I-II Montana Peace Officer Standarda and Training - Public 
Safety Communications Officers, p. 519, 1513 

I-II Probation and Parole Officer Certification, p. 521, 
1514 

I-V Investigative Protocol by the Department of Justice 
in the Performance of its Investigative 
Reaponsibilities, p. 2117, 2466, 2752 

23.5.101 State Adoption of Federal Hazardous Materials 
Regulations, p. 1469 

23.12.101 and other rules - Department of Justice 
Standardization of Criminal History Information 
Collection - Implementation of an Arrest Numbering 
system, p. 2246 

23.14.404 Peace Officers Standards and Training, p. 2450, 559 

LABOR AND INDUSTRY, Departm~t of. Title 24 

24.9.314 and other rule · Document Format, Piling and Service 
- Exceptions to Proposed Orders, p. 2695, 298, 560 

24.11.813 and other rules - What is Classified aa Wages for 
purposes of Workers' Compensation and Un~loymetit 
Insurance, p. 2344, 2753, 13 

24 .11. 814 and other rule - What is Classified as Wages for 
Purposes of Workers' Compensati~ and Unemployment 
Insurance, p. 1577, 1949, 2251 

24.16.9007 Prevailing Wage Rates - Service Occupations, p. 391, 
1331 

24.29. 702G and other rule - Groups of Employers that Self-Insure 
for Workers' Compensation Purposes, p. 1613 

24.29.706 Exclusions from the Definitions of l':laployment in the 
Unemployment Insurance and Workers' Compensation 
Acts, p. 1573, 1948, 2250, 2759 

24.29.1403 and other rules • Medical Services for Workers' 
Compensation - Selection of Physician - Physicians 
Reports - Relative Value Pee Schedule - Treaballnt and, 
Reporting, p. 107, 404 
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24.29.1531 and othex rules - Chiropractic Services and Pees_in 
Workers' Compensation Matters, p. 1089, 1659 

STATE LANPS. Department of. Title 26 

I-XI 

26.3.180 

26.4.301 

Regulations for Forest Practices in the Streamside 
Management zone, p. 2252, 14 
and other rules • Recreational Use of State Lands -
Posting of State Lands to Prevent Trespass, p. 1471 
and other rules - Regulation of Coal and Uranium 
Mining and Prospecting, p. 2260 

LIVESTOCK, pepartmeut of, Iitl~ 

32.2.401 Pees for Slaughterhouse, Meat Packing House or Meat 
Depot Li4«nse, p. 1180 

32.2.401 Impcsition of a Pee Pertaining to Inspection of Game 
·Farm Aniaals, p. 2348, 265 

NATURAL RESOURCES l!lJP CQNSERVATIQN, Departmem; __ QL.._TI.ll.!\t..li. 

I Reject, Modify or Condition Permit Applications in 
the Sharratt Creek Basin, p. 1101, 1515 

I-VII Requiring Measuring Devices on Watercourses 
Identified as Chronically Dewatered, p. 2454, 561, 
1668 

3 6 .12 .101 and other rules Defini tiona Application and 
Special li'ees - Issuance of Interim Permits · Testing 
and Monitoring, p. 593, 1335A 

(Board of Oil and Gas Conservation) 
36.22.302 and other rules - Definitions - Bonding of Oil and 

Gas Wells - Reports - Well Plugging Requirements -
Referral of Administrative Matters, p. 1950, 152 

PUBLIC SERVICE REG!JLATION. Department of. Title 38 

I Requiring a Prefiling Notification of Certain Utility 
Rate Case Pilings before the Public Service 
CommiSSiOZl, p. 6 

I-II Electric Utility Line Maintenance • Electric Utility 
N~inal Voltage and Variance Range, p. 523, 1672 

I-II and other rule - Fuel Cost Surcharge - Temporary Rate 
Reductioaa - Defining "Miles•, All Regarding Motor 
Carriers, p. 2121, 2647 

I-XII and other rules - Establishing Policy Guidelines on 
Integrated Least cost Resource Planning for Electric 
Utilities in Montana - Cogeneration and Small Power 
Production, p. 1846, 2269, 2764 

38.5.102 and other rules - Minimum Piling RequireJIIents 
Procedures for Class Cost of Service - Rate Design, 
p. 596, 1669 

38.5.2601 and other rules - Telecommunications Services and 
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General Utility Tariff Price List Filing 
Requirements, p. 2699, 1336 

38.5.3345 Change in Customer's Interexchange Carrier 
Deferring of Implementation Until September 1, 1993, 
p. 285 

REVENUE· Department of, Title 42 

I 

I·III 
I·V 
42.2.602 
42.11.211 
42.11.301 
42.14.102 
42.14.102 
42.15.101 
42.15.112 

42.15.116 
42.15.118 
42.15.121 

42.16.104 
42.17.105 
42.17.112 
42.17.301 

42.18.105 

42.18.105 

42.19.402 

42.21.106 

42.22.101 

42.22.101 

42.22.103 

42.24.102 
42.26.101 

42.31.110 

42.31.404 
42.38.101 

Tax Information Provided to the Department of 
Revenue, p. 1192 
Valuation for Commercial PrOperty, p. 1955, 2780 
Forest Land Property Taxes, p. 1227, 2650 
and other rules· Taxpayer Appeal Rules, p. 247, 570 
and other rules · Liquor Division, p. 2492, 158, 434 
Opening a New Liquor Store, p. 1475 
and other rules • Miscellaneous Taxes, p. 2350, 2776 
Accommodations Tax, p. 1739, 2393 
and otber rules · Change of Domicile, p. 244, 571 
and other rules - Income Tax Returns and Tax Credits, 
p. 2005, 2555 
Net Operating Loss Computations, p. 2023, 2556 
Exempt R.etir~ent Limitation, p. 2353, 2777 
and other rule· Taxation of Indian Income, p. 2719, 
242' 1674 
Interest on Unpaid Tax, p. 2012, 2557 
Computation of Withholding, p. 525, 1111 
and other rule - Withholding, p. 2014, 2558 
and other rules - Estimated Tax Payments, p. 1988, 
2778 
and other rules - Property Reappraisal for Taxable 
Property in Montana, p. 1182 
and other rule · Montana Reappraisal Plan, p. 2490, 
160 
and other rules - Property Taxes for Low Income 
Property - Energy Related Tax Incentives - New 
Industrial Property, p. 2016, 2559 
and other rules • Property Taxes for Market Value of 
PersoDal Property, p. 1971, 2394 
and other rules Central1y Assessed Companies, 
p. 131, 4l5 
and other rule Situs Property for Centrally 
Assessed Railroads, p. 2356, 2787 
and other rules Property Taxes for Centrally 
Assessed Property, p. 1959, 2560 
and other rules - Subchapter S, p. 1741, 2395 
and other rules - Corporation Lieense Tax Multistate 
Activities, p. 250, 572 
and other rules - Untaxed Cigarettes Under Tribal 
Agreements, p. 1994, 2563 
Emergency Telephone Service Pee, p. 2010, 2569 
and other rules • Abandoned Property, p. 1744, 2570 
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SECRETARY OP STATE. Title 44 

l.2.H9 Piling, Compiling, i'rinter i'ickup and i'ublication 
Schedule for the Montana Administrative Register for 
1993, p. 2270, 2652 

SOCIAL ANP REHABILITATION SERVICES. Department of. Title 46 

I 

I 

I 
I-VIII 

!-VIII 
46.6.102 

46.8.1203 

46.10.305 

46.10.318 

46.10.403 
46.10.404 
46.10.406 
46.10.505 

46.10.807 
46.10.823 
4fi .12. 503 

46.12.516 

46.12.555 

46.12.565 
46.12.583 
46.12.590 

46.12.806 
46.12.1222 

46.12.1226 

46.12.1928 
46.12.3002 
46.12.3803 
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Specified Low Income Medicare Beneficiaries, p. 1103, 
1542 
and other rules Kids Count a11d Early i'eriodic 
Screening Diagnosis and Treatment Services, p. 2359, 
2788 
Statistical Sampling Audits, p. 2Z12, 441 
and other rules Individual lla.bilitation Plans, 
p. 881, 1353 
Passport to Health Program, p. 998, 1231, 2288 
and other rules Vocational Rehabilitation 
Extended Employment and Independent Living Programs, 
p. 1306, 2572 
and other rules - Developmental Disabilities Aversive 
Procedures, p. 890, 1356 
and other rules APDC Standards of Assistance, 
p. 2025, 2396 
and other rule Emergency Asaistance to Nou!dy 
Families with Dependent Children, p. 1479 
APDC Assistance Standards, p. 908, 1360 
Title IV-A Day care for Children, p. 2125, 2469 
APDC Resources, p. 135, 345 
and other rule - Specially Treated Income for APDC, 
p. 918, 1517 
and other rules - APDC JOBS ProgT .. , p. 638, 1361 
Self-Initiated Education or Training, p. 2460, 161 
and other rules Medicaid Re~seaent for 
Inpatient and OUtpatient Hospital Service&, p. 607, 
1520 
Medicaid Coverage of Intermediate Level Therapeutic 
Youth Group Home Treatment, p. 1106, 1540 
aDd other rules - Medicaid PersOQal Care Services, 
p. 922, 1363 
and other rules- Private Duty NUra~g, p. 2~27, 2653 
and other rule - Organ Transplantatioa, p. 604, 1367 
and other rules - Inpatient Psychiatric SeX"Vices, 
p. 646, 1369 
Durable Medical Equipment -·Oxygee, p. 531, 1~12 

and other rules Medicaid NUrsing Facility 
Reimbursement, p. 662, 1385 
and other rule - Nursing Facility Reimbursement, 
p. 8, 685 
Targeted Case Management for Adults, p. 920, 1397 
Medically Needy, p. 913, 1398 
Medically Needy Income Standards, p. 2033, 2398 
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46.12.4002 

46.13.203 

46.13.301 

46.25.101 

46.25.101 
46.25.725 

-1962-

and other rules AFDC-Related Institutionalized 
Individuals, p. 905, 1399 
and other rules Low Income Energy Assistance 
Program (LIEAP), p. 1618 
and other rules - Low Income Energy and 
Weatherization Assistance Programs, p. 527, 1113 
and other rules General Relief Assistance and 
General Relief Medical, p. 1195, 1678 
and other rules - General Relief, p. 2035, 2584 
Income for General Relief Assistance, p. 139, 346 

Montana Administrative Register 15-8/12/93 


